

## PACE® Select Advisors Trust

March 28, 2024

Supplement to the prospectuses relating to Class A and Class Y shares (the "Multi-Class Prospectus"), Class P shares (the "Class P Prospectus") and standalone prospectus relating to Class P shares for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund (the "Government Money Market Investments Prospectus") (collectively, the "Prospectuses") and the Statement of Additional Information (the "SAI"), each dated November 28, 2023, as supplemented.

### Includes:

- UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund
- PACE® Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments
- PACE® Intermediate Fixed Income Investments
- PACE® Strategic Fixed Income Investments
- PACE® Municipal Fixed Income Investments
- PACE® Global Fixed Income Investments
- PACE® High Yield Investments
- PACE® Large Co Value Equity Investments
- PACE® Large Co Growth Equity Investments
- PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments
- PACE® Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments
- PACE® International Equity Investments
- PACE® International Emerging Markets Equity Investments
- PACE® Global Real Estate Securities Investments
- PACE® Alternative Strategies Investments

#### Dear Investor,

The purpose of this supplement is to update certain information for the above-named series (each, a "fund") of PACE Select Advisers Trust (the "Trust").

First, this supplement updates certain information in the Multi-Class Prospectus regarding changes to intermediary-specific sales charge waivers and discounts.

Second, the purpose of this supplement is to update certain information regarding additional compensation paid to UBS Financial Services Inc. as an affiliated broker-dealer.

### I. Intermediary-specific sales charge waivers and discounts

# Effective April 1, 2024, Appendix A to the Multi-Class Prospectus is revised by replacing the section relating to Merrill Lynch in its entirety with the following:

Purchases or sales of front-end (i.e., Class A) mutual fund shares through a Merrill Lynch ("Merrill") platform or account will be eligible only for the following sales load waivers (front-end, contingent deferred, or back-end waivers) and discounts, which differ from those disclosed elsewhere in the funds' prospectus or SAI. Purchasers will have to buy mutual fund shares directly from the mutual fund company or through another intermediary to be eligible for waivers or discounts not listed below.

It is the investor's responsibility to notify Merrill at the time of purchase or sale of any relationship or other facts that qualify the transaction for a waiver or discount. A Merrill representative may ask for reasonable documentation of such facts and Merrill may condition the granting of a waiver or discount on the timely receipt of such documentation.

Additional information on waivers and discounts is available in the Merrill Sales Load Waiver and Discounts Supplement (the "Merrill SLWD Supplement") and in the Mutual Fund Investing at Merrill pamphlet at ml.com/funds. Investors are encouraged to review these documents and speak with their financial advisor to determine whether a transaction is eligible for a waiver or discount.

### Front-end Sales Load Waivers on Class A Shares Available at Merrill

Shares of mutual funds available for purchase by employer-sponsored retirement, deferred compensation, and employee benefit plans (including health savings accounts) and trusts used to fund those plans, provided the shares are not held in a commission-based brokerage account and shares are held for the benefit of the plan. For purposes of this provision, employer-sponsored retirement plans do not include SEP IRAs, Simple IRAs, SAR-SEPs or Keogh plans

Shares purchased through a Merrill investment advisory program

Brokerage class shares exchanged from advisory class shares due to the holdings moving from a Merrill investment advisory program to a Merrill brokerage account

Shares purchased through the Merrill Edge Self-Directed platform

Shares purchased through the systematic reinvestment of capital gains distributions and dividend reinvestment when purchasing shares of the same mutual fund in the same account

Shares exchanged from level-load shares to front-end load shares of the same mutual fund in accordance with the description in the Merrill SLWD Supplement

Shares purchased by eligible employees of Merrill or its affiliates and their family members who purchase shares in accounts within the employee's Merrill Household (as defined in the Merrill SLWD Supplement)

Shares purchased by eliqible persons associated with the fund as defined in this prospectus (e.g. the fund's officers or trustees)

Shares purchased from the proceeds of a mutual fund redemption in front-end load shares provided (1) the repurchase is in a mutual fund within the same fund family; (2) the repurchase occurs within 90 calendar days from the redemption trade date, and (3) the redemption and purchase occur in the same account (known as Rights of Reinstatement). Automated transactions (i.e. systematic purchases and withdrawals) and purchases made after shares are automatically sold to pay Merrill's account maintenance fees are not eligible for Rights of Reinstatement

## Contingent Deferred Sales Charge ("CDSC") Waivers on Front-end, Back-end, and Level Load Shares Available at Merrill

Shares sold due to the client's death or disability (as defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 22(e)(3))

Shares sold pursuant to a systematic withdrawal program subject to Merrill's maximum systematic withdrawal limits as described in the Merrill SLWD Supplement

Shares sold due to return of excess contributions from an IRA account

Shares sold as part of a required minimum distribution for IRA and retirement accounts due to the investor reaching the qualified age based on applicable IRS regulation

Front-end or level-load shares held in commission-based, non-taxable retirement brokerage accounts (e.g. traditional, Roth, rollover, SEP IRAs, Simple IRAs, SAR-SEPs or Keogh plans) that are transferred to fee-based accounts or platforms and exchanged for a lower cost share class of the same mutual fund

### Front-end Load Discounts Available at Merrill: Breakpoints, Rights of Accumulation & Letters of Intent

Breakpoint discounts, as described in this prospectus, where the sales load is at or below the maximum sales load that Merrill permits to be assessed to a front-end load purchase, as described in the Merrill SLWD Supplement

Rights of Accumulation (ROA), as described in the Merrill SLWD Supplement, which entitle investors to breakpoint discounts based on the aggregated holdings of mutual fund family assets held in accounts in their Merrill Household

Letters of Intent (LOI), which allow for breakpoint discounts on eligible new purchases based on anticipated future eligible purchases within a fund family at Merrill, in accounts within your Merrill Household, as further described in the Merrill SLWD Supplement

### II. Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer

### Effective immediately, the Prospectuses and SAI are hereby revised as follows:

The section captioned "Buying shares" and sub-captioned "Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer" beginning on page 140 of the Multi-Class Prospectus is revised by replacing the first bullet point of that section in its entirety with the following:

- All funds (except PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE
  International Equity Investments): Annual rate of 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in
  each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such
  payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory
  programs).
- PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE International Equity Investments: Annual rate of 0.15% (15 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).

The section captioned "Buying shares" and sub-captioned "Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer" on page 141 of the Class P Prospectus is revised by replacing the first and second bullet points of that section in their entirety with the following:

- All funds (except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE International Equity Investments): Annual rate of 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).
- PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE International Equity Investments: Annual rate of 0.15% (15 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).
- UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund: Annual rate of up to 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund (excluding assets attributable to retirement accounts held in discretionary programs at UBS Financial Services Inc.) to be paid on a monthly basis.

The section captioned "Buying shares" and sub-captioned "Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer" on page 10 of the Government Money Market Investments Prospectus is revised by replacing the bullet point of that section in its entirety with the following:

• Annual rate of up to 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund (excluding assets attributable to retirement accounts held in discretionary programs at UBS Financial Services Inc.) to be paid on a monthly basis.

The same section of the Multi-Class Prospectus and Class P Prospectus is revised by deleting the second to last paragraph in its entirety.

The section captioned "Investment management, administration and principal underwriting arrangements" and sub-captioned "Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer" on page 110 of the SAI is revised by replacing the first and second bullet points of that section in their entirety with the following:

- All funds (except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE International Equity Investments): Annual rate of 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).
- PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments and PACE International Equity Investments: Annual rate of 0.15% (15 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain types of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).
- UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund: Annual rate of up to 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund (excluding assets attributable to retirement accounts held in discretionary programs at UBS Financial Services Inc.) to be paid on a monthly basis.

The same section of the SAI is revised by deleting the second to last paragraph in its entirety.

PLEASE BE SURE TO RETAIN THIS IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

© UBS 2024. All rights reserved. UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC





March 4, 2024

Supplement to the prospectuses (each, a "Prospectus" and together, the "Prospectuses") and Statements of Additional Information (each, an "SAI" and together, the "SAIs") referenced on the reverse, as may have been supplemented.

### Includes:

- UBS Series Funds
- UBS Investment Trust
- PACE Select Advisors Trust
- Master Trust
- The UBS Funds
- SMA Relationship Trust

#### Dear Investor.

The purpose of this supplement is to update certain information in the Prospectuses and SAIs for the above-named investment trusts, including each series thereof (each, a "Trust" and together, the "Trusts") regarding changes to UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC (formerly known as UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc.) ("UBS AM"), the Trusts' investment manager, investment advisor and/or administrator, as applicable. On March 1, 2024, UBS AM converted from a Delaware corporation to a Delaware limited liability company pursuant to Delaware statute and changed its name to "UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC". This conversion involved no change to: (i) the investment processes and strategies employed in the management of the Trusts' assets; (ii) the nature and level of services provided to the Trusts; (iii) the individuals primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Trust assets; or (iv) the trustees and officers of the Trusts.

Effective immediately, the Prospectuses and SAIs are hereby revised as follows:

All references to "UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc." in the Prospectuses and SAIs are hereby revised to "UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC."

All references to UBS AM as a Delaware corporation are hereby revised to refer to UBS AM as a Delaware limited liability company.

PLEASE BE SURE TO RETAIN THIS IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

© UBS 2024. All rights reserved. UBS Asset Management (Americas) LLC

## This supplement relates to each of the following Prospectuses and SAIs:

Role of UBS AM	Date of Prospectus and SAI
Administrator	August 28, 2023
Administrator	August 28, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	August 28, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	August 28, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	August 25, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	December 29, 2023
Investment Manager and Administrator	November 28, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	August 25, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	October 27, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	October 27, 2023
Investment Advisor and Administrator	April 28, 2023
	Administrator  Investment Advisor and Administrator  Investment Advisor and Administrator  Investment Advisor and Administrator  Investment Advisor and Administrator  Investment Manager and Administrator  Investment Advisor and Administrator



# PACE® Select Advisors Trust

January 5, 2024

Supplement to the prospectuses relating to Class A and Class Y shares (the "Multi-Class Prospectus"), Class P shares (the "Class P Prospectus") and Class P2 shares (the "Class P2 Prospectus") (collectively, the "Prospectuses") and the Statement of Additional Information (the "SAI"), each dated November 28, 2023, as supplemented.

### Includes:

- PACE® Large Co Growth Equity Investments
- PACE® International Equity Investments

Dear Investor.

The purpose of this supplement is to update certain information for series (each, a "fund") of PACE Select Advisors Trust (the "Trust").

First, the purpose of this supplement is to update certain information regarding the portfolio management team of Polen Capital Management, LLC, a subadvisor to PACE® Large Co Growth Equity Investments, a series of the Trust.

Second, this supplement updates certain information regarding the investment advisory arrangements for PACE® International Equity Investments, a series of the Trust. Los Angeles Capital Management LLC ("Los Angeles Capital") has been a subadvisor to the fund since September 2013. Los Angeles Capital entered into a transaction (the "Transaction") to offer new equity interests in the firm to its employees. Upon consummation of the Transaction on January 1, 2024, the ownership of Hal Reynolds, a founder and Co-Chief Investment Officer of Los Angeles Capital and a portfolio manager for the fund, fell below 25% of the firm's voting equity.

In anticipation of the Transaction, and at the recommendation of UBS AM, the Board had approved a new sub-advisory agreement with Los Angeles Capital that became effective upon the consummation of the Transaction. Accordingly, effective as of the close of business on January 1, 2024, Los Angeles Capital continues to manage an allocated portion of the fund. The terms of the new sub-advisory agreement with Los Angeles Capital are substantially identical to those of the former sub-advisory agreement with Los Angeles Capital. No material changes are expected to occur with respect to the management of Los Angeles Capital's allocated portion of the fund.

## I. PACE® Large Co Growth Equity Investments

Effective immediately, the Prospectuses and SAI are hereby revised as follows:

The section captioned "PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments Fund summary" and sub-captioned "Portfolio management team" on page 44 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, page 47 of the Class P

Prospectus and page 44 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by replacing the fourth bullet point of that section with the following:

• Polen—Dan Davidowitz, Portfolio Manager and Analyst, and Brandon Ladoff, Portfolio Manager and Head of Sustainable Investing, have been portfolio managers of the fund since 2021. Damon Ficklin, Head of Team, Portfolio Manager and Analyst, has served as a portfolio manager for the fund since January 2024.

The section captioned "Management" and sub-captioned "PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments" beginning on page 157 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, page 159 of the Class P Prospectus and page 149 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by adding the following as the last paragraph of that section:

Damon Ficklin, Head of Team, Portfolio Manager and Analyst, is portfolio manager for Polen's Focus Growth and Global Growth strategies, and a member of the investment team at Polen. Mr. Ficklin joined Polen in 2003. Prior to joining Polen, Mr. Ficklin spent one year as an equity analyst at Morningstar. Prior to that, he spent four years as a tax consultant at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.

The section captioned "Portfolio managers" and sub-captioned "PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments—J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc., GQG Partners LLC and Polen Capital Management, LLC." and sub-sub-captioned "Polen Capital Management, LLC" on page 200 of the SAI is revised by replacing the first paragraph that section in its entirety with the following:

Dan Davidowitz, Brandon Ladoff, and Damon Ficklin are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Polen's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information related to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023 (in the case of Messrs. Davidowitz and Ladoff) or November 30, 2023 (in the case of Mr. Ficklin):

The same section of the SAI is revised by inserting the following as the last charts of that section:

#### Dan Davidowitz

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	9	2,694
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$8,225	\$6,141	\$33,610
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$2,388

#### **Brandon Ladoff**

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	9	2,694
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$8,225	\$6,141	\$33,610
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$2,388

### Damon Ficklin

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	2	643
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$518	\$781	\$3,822
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$30	\$199

The same section of the SAI is revised by replacing the last paragraph of that section in its entirety with the following:

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of July 31, 2023, Messrs. Davidowitz and Ladoff did not own shares of the fund. As of November 30, 2023, Mr. Ficklin did not own shares of the fund.

### **II. PACE® International Equity Investments**

Effective immediately, the section captioned "Investment advisory arrangements" and sub-captioned "PACE International Equity Investments" on page 99 of the SAI is revised by replacing the second and third sentences of the second paragraph of that section with the following:

Los Angeles Capital is a California limited liability company founded in 2002 and is owned by key employees through its parent holding companies, LACM Holdings, Inc. and LACM Equity LLC (collectively, the "Parent Company"). Thomas D. Stevens, Chairman, holds a controlling equity interest in the Parent Company.

PLEASE BE SURE TO RETAIN THIS IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

© UBS 2024. All rights reserved. UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc.





## PACE® Select Advisors Trust

December 20, 2023

Supplement to the prospectuses relating to Class A and Class Y shares (the "Multi-Class Prospectus"), Class P shares (the "Class P Prospectus") and Class P2 shares (the "Class P2 Prospectus") (collectively, the "Prospectuses") and the Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"), each dated November 28, 2023.

#### Includes:

- PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments
- PACE® Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments

### Dear Investor,

The purpose of this supplement is to update certain information for series (each, a "fund") of PACE Select Advisors Trust (the "Trust").

First, this supplement updates certain information regarding the investment subadvisory arrangements for PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments, a series of the Trust. At the recommendation of UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. ("UBS AM"), the fund's manager, the Trust's Board of Trustees (the "Board") has terminated Huber Capital Management, LLC ("Huber") as subadvisor to the fund, effective as of the close of business on December 19, 2023. In addition, at the recommendation of UBS AM, the Board has appointed Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory"), and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") to serve as new subadvisors to the fund. Integrity and ARGA each assumed investment advisory responsibility with respect to a separate portion of the fund's portfolio effective on December 19, 2023.

Second, the purpose of this supplement is to update certain information regarding the investment advisory arrangements for PACE® Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments, a series of the Trust. Riverbridge Partners, LLC ("Riverbridge") has been a subadvisor to the fund since October 2005. Riverbridge entered into a transaction (the "Riverbridge Transaction") that provided for the sale of a majority equity interest in Riverbridge from Northill US Holdings Inc. to employees of Riverbridge, effective December 14, 2023. Subsequent to the closing of the Riverbridge Transaction, Riverbridge employees increased their ownership to over 70% of the company's equity, and Lincoln Peak Capital Management, LLC became a minority shareholder and owns the remaining equity interests in Riverbridge. The Riverbridge Transaction resulted in an assignment of the sub-advisory agreement between Riverbridge and UBS AM, with respect to the fund for purposes of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

In anticipation of the Riverbridge Transaction, and at the recommendation of UBS AM, the Board had approved a new sub-advisory agreement with Riverbridge to become effective upon the consummation of the Riverbridge Transaction. Accordingly, effective as of the close of business on December 14, 2023, Riverbridge continues to manage an allocated portion of the fund. The terms of the new sub-advisory agreement with Riverbridge are

substantially identical to those of the former sub-advisory agreement with Riverbridge. No material changes are expected to occur with respect to the management of Riverbridge's allocated portion of the fund.

### I. PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments

Effective immediately, the Prospectuses and SAI are hereby revised as follows:

All references to "Huber Capital Management, LLC" or "Huber" as a subadvisor to PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments in the Prospectuses and SAI are hereby deleted.

The section captioned "PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments Fund summary" and subcaptioned "Management process" on page 47 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, on page 50 of the Class P Prospectus and on page 47 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by adding the following as the last bullet points under the fourth paragraph of that section:

- A flexible value strategy that utilizes fundamental, bottom-up stock selection with top-down inputs considered as part of the sector allocation process.
- A disciplined valuation-focused strategy based on deep fundamental research.

The section captioned "PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments Fund summary" and subcaptioned "Risk/return bar chart and table" on page 48 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, on page 51 of the Class P Prospectus and on page 48 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by inserting the following as the second and third to last sentences of the first paragraph of that section:

Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory") assumed day-to-day management of a separate portion of the fund's assets on December 19, 2023. ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") assumed day-to-day management of a separate portion of the fund's assets on December 19, 2023.

The section captioned "PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments Fund summary" and subcaptioned "Investment manager and advisor(s)" on page 49 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, on page 52 of the Class P Prospectus and on page 49 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by replacing the second sentence of the first paragraph of that section with the following:

Sapience, Kayne Anderson Rudnick, Victory and ARGA serve as the fund's subadvisors.

The section captioned "PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments Fund summary" and subcaptioned "Portfolio management team" on page 49 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, on page 52 of the Class P Prospectus and on page 49 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by adding the following as the last bullet points of that section:

- Victory—Daniel G. Bandi, CFA, Chief Investment Officer, Daniel J. DeMonica, CFA, Senior Portfolio Manager, Adam I. Friedman, Senior Portfolio Manager, Joe A. Gilbert, CFA, Portfolio Manager, J. Bryan Tinsley, CFA, Portfolio Manager, and Michael P. Wayton, Portfolio Manager, have been portfolio managers of the fund since December 2023.
- ARGA—A. Rama Krishna, CFA, Chief Investment Officer, Sujith P. Kumar, Global Business Analyst, and Robert Mitchell, PhD, Global Business Analyst, have been portfolio managers of the fund since December 2023.

The section captioned "More information about the funds—PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments" and sub-captioned "Management process" beginning on page 101 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, beginning on page 105 of the Class P Prospectus and beginning on page 100 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by replacing the third sentence of the first paragraph of that section with the following:

Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("Kayne Anderson Rudnick"), Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory"), and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") currently serve as the fund's subadvisors.

# The same section of each Prospectus is revised by adding the following immediately prior to the second to last paragraph of that section:

In managing its segment of the fund's assets, Victory seeks out companies that appear to be undervalued according to certain financial measurements of their intrinsic net worth or business prospects. Victory employs a value-oriented approach that focuses on securities that offer value with improving investor sentiment. Victory finds these value-oriented investments by, among other things: (1) rigorously analyzing the company's financial characteristics and assessing the quality of the company's management; (2) considering comparative price-to-book, price-to-sales, and price-to-cash flow ratios; and (3) analyzing cash flows to identify stocks with the most attractive potential returns.

Victory regularly reviews its investments and will sell securities when it believes the securities are no longer attractive because (1) of a deterioration in rank of the security in accordance with Victory's process, (2) of price appreciation, (3) of a change in the fundamental outlook of the company or (4) other investments available are considered to be more attractive.

Victory's investment process integrates what the manager believes to be material ESG considerations into the research process as part of the overall investment mosaic. ESG integration is driven by taking into account material ESG risks which could impact investment returns, rather than being driven by specific ethical principles or norms. Victory utilizes data from third-party ESG research providers to assess ESG risks. ESG data and research can be inaccurate, based on limited inputs and subjective and thus presents risks. Victory's portfolio managers may still invest in securities which present ESG risks, including where the portfolio managers believe the potential compensation outweighs the risks identified.

In managing its segment of the fund's assets, ARGA invests in what it believes to be under-valued businesses based on long-term earnings power and dividend-paying capability. ARGA's investment approach is based on fundamental research and present value. ARGA believes investor sentiment and management behavior create recurring investment opportunities. ARGA's strategy is based on a view that, at times, companies face temporary challenges from macroeconomic, regulatory, industry or company-specific factors that impact fundamentals, and that although such factors are frequently transitory in nature, they can have a disproportionate adverse impact on a company's valuation. As these factors dissipate over a longer horizon and companies overcome these temporary setbacks, valuations recover. ARGA uses a dividend discount model to select stocks that trade at a discount to intrinsic value based on expected long-term earnings and dividends. ARGA limits downside risk through company stress tests, diversification across industries, geographies and currencies and adherence to portfolio construction guidelines that balance return and risk. ARGA considers economic conditions, company quality and environmental, social and governance matters that may magnify risk. As ARGA does not consider market indices, there may be periods when the strategy's performance fluctuates widely from market indices.

ARGA's investment process integrates material ESG considerations into the research process for all portfolio investments and portfolio holdings for which ESG data is available. ESG integration is driven by taking into account material sustainability and/or ESG risks which could impact investment returns, rather than being driven by specific ethical principles or norms. ARGA utilizes data from third-party ESG research providers to assess sustainability and/or ESG risks. ESG data and research can be inaccurate, based on limited inputs and subjective and thus presents risks. ARGA's portfolio managers may still invest in securities which present sustainability and/or ESG risks, including where the portfolio managers believe the potential compensation outweighs the risks identified.

The section captioned "Management" and sub-captioned "PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments" beginning on page 159 of the Multi-Class Prospectus, on page 161 of the Class P Prospectus and on page 151 of the Class P2 Prospectus is revised by replacing the first sentence of the first paragraph of that section with the following:

Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("Kayne Anderson Rudnick"), Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory") and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") serve as subadvisors for PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments.

## The same section of each Prospectus is revised by inserting the following as the last paragraphs of the sub-section:

Victory's principal address is 15935 La Cantera Parkway, San Antonio, TX 78256. As of November 30, 2023, Victory managed and advised assets totaling in excess of \$159.6 billion for individual and institutional clients.

Victory is a diversified global asset manager comprised of multiple investment teams, referred to as investment franchises, each of which utilizes an independent approach to investing. Integrity Asset Management ("Integrity") is the investment franchise responsible for the management of the fund.

Daniel G. Bandi is the Chief Investment Officer of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014 when Victory acquired Integrity Asset Management, LLC. From 2003-2014, Mr. Bandi was the Chief Investment Officer and a Principal of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity. Mr. Bandi is a CFA charterholder.

Daniel J. DeMonica is a Senior Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2003-2014, Mr. DeMonica was a Senior Portfolio Manager and a Principal of Integrity Asset Management LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity. Mr. DeMonica is a CFA charterholder.

Adam I. Friedman is a Senior Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2003-2014, Mr. Friedman was a Senior Portfolio Manager and a Principal of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity.

Joe A. Gilbert is a Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2003-2014, Mr. Gilbert was a Portfolio Manager of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity. Mr. Gilbert is a CFA charterholder.

Mirsat Nikovic is a Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2007-2014, Mr. Nikovic was a Portfolio Manager of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity.

J. Bryan Tinsley is a Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2003-2014, Mr. Tinsley was a Portfolio Manager of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity. Mr. Tinsley is a CFA charterholder.

Michael P. Wayton is a Portfolio Manager of Integrity and has been with Victory since 2014. From 2013-2014, Mr. Wayton was a Portfolio Manager of Integrity Asset Management, LLC. He is a member of the portfolio management teams of other funds managed by Integrity.

ARGA is an SEC-registered investment adviser based in the United States, located at 1010 Washington Boulevard, 6th Floor, Stamford, CT 06901. ARGA was founded in 2010 and manages global, international, US and emerging markets equity portfolios for institutional and qualified investors. As of November 30, 2023, ARGA managed approximately \$12.6 billion in assets. ARGA employs a team approach to portfolio management. As members of ARGA's Portfolio Construction Team ("PCT") for the ARGA US SMID Cap Equity Strategy, A. Rama Krishna, CFA, P. Sujith Kumar and Robert Mitchell, PhD, are jointly and primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund. The PCT serves as the decision-making body for the strategy and implements research conclusions/final portfolio decisions.

Mr. Krishna, CFA, Founder and Chief Investment Officer of ARGA, founded ARGA in 2010 and is a member of the PCT for the ARGA US SMID Cap Equity Strategy. Before founding ARGA in 2010, Mr. Krishna was President—International, Managing Principal, Member of Executive Committee, and Portfolio Manager at Pzena Investment Management in New York. In addition to launching and managing the US Large Cap Value strategy in his early years at Pzena, he led the development of the International Value and Global Value strategies, and comanaged the Emerging Markets Value strategy. Previously, Mr. Krishna was at Citigroup Asset Management, where he was Chief Investment Officer and Head of Institutional and International. He also represented the asset management business on the Citigroup Management Committee and managed the Global Emerging Markets Equity strategy. Before that, Mr. Krishna was Director of International Equity Research, Portfolio Manager—Global/International Equities, and Chief Investment Officer—Emerging Markets Equities at AllianceBernstein in New York, London and Tokyo. Earlier, he worked at Credit Suisse First Boston in New York, Tokyo and Singapore, first as Equity Research Analyst and later as Chief Investment Strategist and Director—Equity Research.

Mr. Kumar, Global Business Analyst/Research Manager, joined ARGA in 2010 and is a member of the PCT for the ARGA US SMID Cap Equity Strategy. Before joining ARGA, Mr. Kumar was Analyst at ICRA Ltd., a leading credit rating agency in India. At ICRA, he worked with the corporate ratings division, handling credit rating assignments across multiple industries including Auto Ancillaries, Hotels and Textiles.

Mr. Mitchell, PhD, Global Business Analyst, joined ARGA in 2010 and is a member of the PCT for the ARGA US SMID Cap Equity Strategy. Before joining ARGA in 2010, Mr. Mitchell was Director, Investor Relations at Citigroup, where he liaised with the investment community and handled quarterly releases and regulatory filings. From 2004 to 2009, Mr. Mitchell was Director, Investor Relations at Fannie Mae, conducting research and analysis. Previously, Mr. Mitchell was Equity Research Analyst, Financial Services at Citigroup Asset Management. Earlier, he was Strategy Consultant at Marakon Associates.

The section captioned "The funds and their investment policies" and sub-captioned "PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments" on page 11 of the SAI is revised by replacing the second sentence of the first paragraph of that section in its entirety with the following:

Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("KAR"), Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory") and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") serve as the fund's subadvisors.

The section captioned "Investment advisory arrangements" and sub-captioned "PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments" on page 98 of the SAI is revised by replacing the first sentence of the first paragraph of that section with the following:

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("KAR"), Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management ("Victory") and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays each of Sapience, KAR, Victory and ARGA a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages.

## The same section of the SAI is revised by adding the following as the final sentences of the last paragraph of that section:

ARGA is a limited partnership, which is principally owned by A. Rama Krishna, Founder and Chief Investment Officer, and entities related to Mr. Krishna.

Victory is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Victory Capital Holdings, Inc. ("VCH"). VCH is a publicly traded Delaware corporation. As of September 30, 2023, 26% of the equity interests in the firm are held by Crestview Partners, 19% of the equity interests in the firm are held by Victory employees and directors, 5% of the equity interests in the firm are held by Reverence Capital Partners, and 50% of the equity interests in the firm are held by other investors through the firm's public offering.

The section captioned "Proxy voting policies and procedures" and sub-captioned "PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments" beginning on page 129 of the SAI is revised by replacing the caption of that section with the following:

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments—Sapience Investments, LLC, Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC, Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management and ARGA Investment Management, LP

The same section of the SAI is revised by inserting the following as the final sub-sections of that section:

**Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management.** To assist Victory in making proxy-voting decisions, Victory has adopted a Proxy Voting Policy ("Victory Policy") that establishes voting guidelines ("Victory Proxy Voting Guidelines") with respect to certain recurring issues. The Victory Policy is reviewed on an annual basis by the Victory Proxy Committee ("Victory Proxy Committee") and revised when the Victory Proxy Committee determines that a change is appropriate. Voting under Victory's Policy may be executed through administrative screening per established guidelines with oversight by the Victory Proxy Committee or upon vote by a quorum of the Victory Proxy Committee. Victory delegates to ISS, an independent service provider, the non-discretionary administration of proxy voting, subject to oversight by the Victory Proxy Committee. In no circumstances shall ISS have the authority to vote proxies except in accordance with standing or specific instructions given to it by the Victory Proxy Committee.

Victory votes proxies in the best interests of the fund and its shareholders. This entails voting client proxies with the objective of increasing the long-term economic value of fund assets. The Victory Proxy Committee determines how proxies are voted by following established guidelines, which are intended to assist in voting proxies and are not considered to be rigid rules. The Victory Proxy Committee is directed to apply the guidelines as appropriate. On

occasion, however, a contrary vote may be warranted when such action is in the best interests of the fund. In such cases, Victory may consider, among other things:

- the effect of the proposal on the underlying value of the securities
- the effect on marketability of the securities
- the effect of the proposal on future prospects of the issuer
- the composition and effectiveness of the issuer's board of directors
- the issuer's corporate governance practices
- the quality of communications from the issuer to its shareholders

Victory may also take into account independent third-party, general industry guidance or other corporate governance review sources when making decisions. It may additionally seek guidance from other senior internal sources with special expertise on a given topic where it is appropriate. Victory generally votes on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration whether implementation of an ESG-related proposal is likely to enhance or protect shareholder value. The investment team's opinion concerning the management and prospects of the issuer may be taken into account in determining whether a vote for or against a proposal is in a fund's best interests. Insufficient information, onerous requests or vague, ambiguous wording may indicate that a vote against a proposal is appropriate, even when the general principal appears to be reasonable.

The following examples illustrate Victory's policy with respect to some common proxy votes. This summary is not an exhaustive list of all the issues that may arise or of all matters addressed in the Guidelines, and whether Victory supports or opposes a proposal will depend upon the specific facts and circumstances described in the proxy statement and other available information.

#### Directors

- Victory generally supports the election of directors in uncontested elections, except when there are issues of accountability, responsiveness, composition, and/or independence.
- Victory generally supports proposals for an independent chair taking into account factors such as the current board leadership structure, the company's governance practices, and company performance.
- Victory generally supports proxy access proposals that are in line with the market standards regarding the ownership threshold, ownership duration, aggregation provisions, cap on nominees, and do not contain any other unreasonably restrictive guidelines.
- Victory reviews contested elections on a case-by-case basis taking into account such factors as the company performance, particularly the long-term performance relative to the industry, the management track record, the nominee qualifications and compensatory arrangements, the strategic plan of the dissident and its critique of the current management, the likelihood that the proposed goals and objectives can be achieved, the ownership stakes of the relevant parties, and any other context that is particular to the company and the nature of the election.

## Capitalization & Restructuring

• Victory generally supports capitalization proposals that facilitate a corporate transaction that is also being supported and for general corporate purposes so long as the increase is not excessive and there are no issues of superior voting rights, company performance, previous abuses of capital, or insufficient justification for the need for additional capital.

### Mergers and Acquisitions

• Victory reviews mergers and acquisitions on a case-by-case basis to balance the merits and drawbacks of the transaction and factors such as valuation, strategic rationale, negotiations and process, conflicts of interest, and the governance profile of the company post-transaction.

### Compensation

- Victory reviews all compensation proposals for pay-for-performance alignment, with emphasis on long-term shareholder value, arrangements that risk pay for failure, independence in the setting of compensation, inappropriate pay to non-executive directors, and the quality and rationale of the compensation disclosure.
- Victory will generally vote FOR advisory votes on executive compensation ("say on pay") unless there is a pay-for-performance misalignment, problematic pay practice or non-performance based element, incentive for excessive risk-taking, options backdating, or a lack of compensation committee communication and/or responsiveness to shareholder concerns.
- Victory will vote case-by-case on equity based compensation plans taking into account factors such as the plan cost, the plan features, and the grant practices as well as any overriding factors that may have a significant negative impact on shareholder interests.

#### Social and Environmental Issues

• Victory will vote case-by-case on topics such as consumer and product safety, environment and energy, labor standards and human rights, workplace and board diversity, and corporate and political issues, taking into account factors such as the implementation of the proposal is likely to enhance or protect shareholder value, whether the company has already responded in an appropriate and sufficient manner to the issue raised, whether the request is unduly burdensome, and whether the issue is more appropriately or effectively handled through legislation or other regulations.

Occasionally, conflicts of interest arise between Victory's interests and those of a fund or another client. When this occurs, the Victory Proxy Committee must document the nature of the conflict and vote the proxy in accordance with the Victory Proxy Voting Guidelines unless such guidelines are judged by the Victory Proxy Committee to be inapplicable to the proxy matter at issue. In the event that the Victory Proxy Voting Guidelines are inapplicable or do not mitigate the conflict, Victory will seek the opinion of Victory's Chief Compliance Officer or consult with an external independent adviser. In the case of a Victory Proxy Committee member having a personal conflict of interest (e.g. a family member is on the board of the issuer), such member will abstain from voting.

**ARGA Investment Management, LP.** ARGA's objective in voting proxies is to maximize shareholder value and to vote proxies in a manner that reflects the best long-term, economic interest of its clients. In doing so, ARGA follows any voting guidelines issued by clients, so long as these guidelines are consistent with ARGA's duties under applicable law, including ERISA. ARGA's proxy voting guidelines are the same for all clients, as long as a client has delegated ARGA with the authority to vote proxies on their behalf.

ARGA has implemented extensive procedures to ensure all proxies are received, analyzed and voted in a timely manner. In addition to information derived from ARGA's in-depth research and ongoing company analyses, ARGA utilizes the services of a third party proxy advisory firm, Glass Lewis, to obtain supplementary research and impartial analysis prior to voting and to administer the proxy voting process. ARGA retains responsibility for instructing Glass Lewis how to vote and still applies its proxy voting guidelines when voting proxies on behalf of clients through Glass Lewis. This includes rejecting the advice of Glass Lewis in circumstances where ARGA determines doing so is in the best interest of clients.

### **Proxy Voting Guidelines**

The decision to vote in support or opposition of a proposal is based on the specific circumstances described in the proxy statement and other available information. Generally, ARGA votes in favor of routine proposals that increase shareholder value, improve the management of a company, and maintain or increase shareholder rights and influence over a company's board and management. Moral or social issues are generally voted based on the economic impact of the proposal. In cases where the economic impact is not clear, a vote to "abstain" may be appropriate. Financial and corporate governance issues take more time to consider and may be complicated by activities such as hostile takeovers and mergers. ARGA generally votes in favor of the following types of proposals:

- Election of competent, qualified directors that support the board's independence and ensures its diversity
- Reasonable incentive compensation plans for certain key employees and directors
- Mandatory retirement age for directors
- Confidential voting, cumulative voting, proposals to lower barriers to shareholder action
- Proposals to restore shareholder ability to remove directors with or without cause
- Appointment of external auditors that provide competent advice, avoid conflicts of interest and uphold the transparency and integrity of financial reporting
- Compensation plans that align executives and directors with long-term sustainability targets

ARGA generally votes against the following types of financial and corporate governance proposals:

- Board entrenchment proposals and anti-takeover measures, such as "poison pill" and "golden parachute" provisions
- Compensation plans that are not aligned with shareholder interest
- Limitations on shareholder ability to act, blank check preferred stock authorizations, eliminating cumulative voting rights, and proposals to adopt classified boards

ARGA generally votes for proposals that increase the level of oversight and improve environmental and social practices. For example:

- Appointments of directors/board level committees charged with oversight of environmental and social issues
- Increased disclosure and documentation of environmental and social policy
- Implementation of ESG targets that are deemed to have a positive long-term impact on company sustainability

ARGA generally votes against the following types of proposals:

- Policies that directly contravene industry environmental and social standards and that put a company at risk of litigation
- Policies that violate human rights legislation or are likely to have a detrimental impact on the safety of employees
- Decreased transparency and reporting.

#### Conflicts of Interest

ARGA's proxy voting policies provide guidelines for dealing with actual or potential conflicts of interest, when identified. These include informing clients and seeking their consent or instructions, or addressing the issue through other objective means, such as deferring to the recommendation of ARGA's independent third-party advisory firm, Glass Lewis.

Glass Lewis itself has implemented conflict management procedures to avoid and manage (if unavoidable) conflicts of interest arising between an issuer and Glass Lewis. For example, Glass Lewis requires any employee who serves as an executive or director of a public company to disclose the conflicts and abstain from any involvement in the research, analysis or making of any vote recommendations for such company.

### **Limitations on ARGA's Proxy Voting Obligations**

In certain situations, ARGA may not vote client proxies or may abstain from voting. For example:

- ARGA will not vote proxies of behalf of a client where the client has reserved the right to vote proxies itself or has delegated the right to vote to a third party.
- ARGA will not vote proxies on behalf of a client after the effective termination date of ARGA's investment advisory agreement with such client.
- ARGA may abstain from voting proxies in circumstances where ARGA determines doing so would have no identifiable economic benefit to the client, such as when the security is no longer held in the client's portfolio or when the value of the portfolio holdings is insignificant.
- ARGA may abstain from voting a client's proxy when the cost or disadvantage resulting from voting, in ARGA's judgment, outweighs the economic benefits of voting. For example, in some non-US jurisdictions, the sale of securities voted may be prohibited for some period of time, usually between the record date and meeting date ("share blocking"). In general, ARGA believes that the loss of investment flexibility resulting from share blocking outweighs the benefit to be gained by voting.
- ARGA does not offer a securities lending service. Proxies for securities on loan through securities lending programs will generally not be voted, as ARGA's clients (not ARGA) control these securities lending decisions (unless the client calls the securities back to permit the exercise of such rights).
- ARGA may not be able to vote proxies due to circumstances beyond ARGA's control such as a regional disaster, business continuity or cyber event involving ARGA, ARGA's proxy advisory firm or client custodians, which may prevent proxies from being voted on time, or errors and circumstances not attributable to, and beyond, ARGA's control

The section captioned "Portfolio managers" and sub-captioned "PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments—Sapience Investments, LLC, Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC and Huber Capital Management, LLC" beginning on page 201 of the SAI is revised by replacing the caption of that section with the following:

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments—Sapience Investments, LLC, Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC, Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management, and ARGA Investment Management, LP

The same section of the SAI is revised by inserting the following as the last two sub-sections of that section:

**Victory Capital Management Inc., through its business unit branded as Integrity Asset Management**Daniel G. Bandi, Daniel J. DeMonica, Adam I. Friedman, Joe A. Gilbert, J. Bryan Tinsley, and Michael P. Wayton are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Victory's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of November 30, 2023:

### Daniel G. Bandi:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	4	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,206.29	\$1,163.25	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

### Daniel J. DeMonica:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	5	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,264.49	\$1,198.31	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

## Adam I. Friedman:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	4	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,206.29	\$1,163.25	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

### Joe A. Gilbert:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	4	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,206.29	\$1,163.25	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

### J. Bryan Tinsley:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	4	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,206.29	\$1,163.25	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

## Michael P. Wayton:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	5	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,264.49	\$1,198.31	\$1,712.70
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$189.05	\$0	\$0

Potential conflicts of interest. Victory's portfolio managers are often responsible for managing one or more funds as well as other accounts, such as separate accounts, and other pooled investment vehicles, such as collective trust funds or unregistered hedge funds. A portfolio manager may manage other accounts which have materially higher fee arrangements than the fund and may, in the future, manage other accounts which have a performance-based fee. A portfolio manager also may make personal investments in accounts he or she manages or supports. The sideby-side management of the fund along with other accounts may raise potential conflicts of interest by incenting a portfolio manager to direct a disproportionate amount of: (1) their attention, (2) limited investment opportunities, such as less-liquid securities or initial public offering, and/or (3) desirable trade allocations, to such other accounts. In addition, certain trading practices, such as cross-trading between funds or between a fund and another account, raise conflict of interest issues. Victory has adopted numerous compliance policies and procedures, including a Code of Ethics, and brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, which seek to address the conflicts associated with managing multiple accounts for multiple clients. In addition, Victory has a designated Chief Compliance Officer (selected in accordance with the federal securities laws) and compliance staff whose activities are focused on monitoring the activities of Victory's investment franchises and employees in order to detect and address potential and actual conflicts of interest. However, there can be no assurance that the Victory's compliance program will achieve its intended result.

**Compensation.** Victory has designed the structure of its portfolio managers' compensation to (1) align portfolio managers' interests with those of the Victory's clients with an emphasis on long-term, risk-adjusted investment performance, (2) help Victory attract and retain high-quality investment professionals, and (3) contribute to Victory's overall financial success. Each of the portfolio managers receives a base salary plus an annual incentive bonus for managing the fund, separate accounts, other investment companies, other pooled investment vehicles and other accounts (including any accounts for which the Victory receives a performance fee) (together, "Accounts"). A portfolio manager's base salary is dependent on the manager's level of experience and expertise. Victory monitors each manager's base salary relative to salaries paid for similar positions with peer firms by reviewing data provided by various independent third-party consultants that specialize in competitive salary information. Such data, however, is not considered to be a definitive benchmark.

Each of Victory's investment franchises may earn incentive compensation based on a percentage of Victory's revenue attributable to fees paid by Accounts managed by the team. The chief investment officer or a senior member of each team, in coordination with Victory, determines the allocation of the incentive compensation earned by the team among the team's portfolio managers by establishing a "target" incentive for each portfolio manager based on the manager's level of experience and expertise in the manager's investment style. Individual performance is based on objectives established annually using performance metrics such as portfolio structure and positioning, research, stock selection, asset growth, client retention, presentation skills, marketing to prospective clients and contribution to Victory's philosophy and values, such as leadership, risk management and teamwork. The annual incentive bonus also factors in individual investment performance of each portfolio manager's portfolio or fund relative to a selected peer group(s). The overall performance results for a manager are based on the composite performance of all accounts managed by that manager on a combination of one-, three-, and five-year rolling performance periods as compared to the performance information of a peer group of similarly managed competitors.

Victory's portfolio managers may participate in the equity ownership plan of Victory's parent company. There is an ongoing annual equity pool granted to certain employees based on their contribution to the firm. Eligibility for participation in these incentive programs depends on the manager's performance and seniority.

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of October 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

## **ARGA Investment Management, LP**

A. Rama Krishna, P. Sujith Kumar and Robert Mitchell are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of ARGA's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of October 31, 2023:

### A. Rama Krishna:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	9	45
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	4	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,788	\$1,457	\$6,554
Assets Managed with Performance-based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$3,083	\$1,212	\$0

### Sujith Kumar:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	4	13
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$697	\$1,211	\$3,973
Assets Managed with Performance-based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$1,171	\$0

#### Robert Mitchell:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	4	29
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,092	\$243	\$2,424
Assets Managed with Performance-based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$3,083	\$41	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** ARGA's compliance procedures aim to identify and prevent potential conflicts of interest related to client, employee, and proprietary activities. Potential conflicts of interest include instances when ARGA desires to purchase or sell the same securities for the fund and other accounts, which could result, if such conflict is not managed properly, in unfair treatment to one account or another. Another potential conflict could occur if employees had knowledge of future ARGA trades and, on the basis of such information, made their own personal trades, which could harm the fund and other ARGA accounts.

In addition to managing a portion of the fund, ARGA manages other accounts on a discretionary basis (and where Mr. Krishna is one of a number of investors within certain commingled funds as well as certain proprietary partnerships) that use the valuation-based investment strategy utilized for the fund. ARGA expects to manage additional such accounts in the future. To avoid any incentive to favor one account over another in the allocation of investment opportunities (particularly where there are differing performance fee arrangements), ARGA has implemented strict fairness policies with respect to trading practices and allocation procedures. ARGA examines trade allocations among client portfolios regularly and confirms their consistency with ARGA's fiduciary obligation to allocate investment opportunities fairly. ARGA also regularly monitors dispersion of client account returns within the same investment strategy to verify that no preferential treatment has occurred. As expected, in instances such as clients directing trades through particular brokers, ARGA may place non-simultaneous trade orders for the fund and another client, which may affect the execution price of the security to the detriment of one or the other.

To ensure ARGA employees do not use knowledge of the fund's trading for personal gain, ARGA's access persons and their immediate family members living in the same household are subject to initial, quarterly, and annual brokerage account reporting and certification requirements with respect to brokerage or investment accounts over which they have a direct or indirect beneficial interest. Access persons, including their immediate family members living in the same household, contemplating the purchase or sale of any security or an interest in a private placement vehicle must obtain preclearance from ARGA. Access persons' brokerage statements and emails are reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure continued compliance with ARGA's policies on personal securities transactions.

While ARGA follows these procedures to eliminate potential conflicts of interest, there is no guarantee they will detect and prevent every situation where potential conflicts could arise. Investment personnel of the firm or its affiliates may be permitted to be commercially or professionally involved with an issuer of securities. Any potential conflicts of interest from such involvement would be monitored for compliance with ARGA's Code of Ethics.

**Compensation.** The goal of ARGA's compensation structure is to align the interests of investment professionals with those of its clients and the firm. Accordingly, ARGA rewards behavior by investment professionals that results in long-term success for its clients and the company.

Mr. Krishna has equity ownership in ARGA; accordingly, he is entitled to a share of the firm's profits. Mr. Krishna does not receive a base salary or performance bonus. ARGA compensates Mssrs. Kumar and Mitchell through a combination of base salary, performance bonus, and profit sharing. Base salary is a fixed amount that may change based on an annual review or market conditions. Bonus is determined by both individual performance and the financial success of the firm. Effective 2016, a portion of profits and value of the firm is shared with employees other than Mr. Krishna through the ARGA Commitment Plan. These employees comprise individuals across the firm who are key to delivering superior levels of excellence for ARGA's clients. Over the long term, ARGA expects bonus and profit sharing to make up the highest proportion of compensation. Where relevant at higher levels of individual compensation, a portion of both the bonus and profit sharing is likely to be deferred, thereby encouraging long-term retention of key employees.

ARGA formally reviews performance by each individual based on a framework that is relevant for the individual's area of responsibility and overall adherence to the firm's values. ARGA does not tie portfolio managers' compensation specifically to the performance of any portfolio relative to the portfolio's benchmark, as that could cause individuals to stray from ARGA's long-term, valuation-based investment discipline. For investment professionals, ARGA reviews both quantitative and fundamental factors. Quantitative factors may include productivity in terms of companies' research coverage and construction of global industry models. Fundamental factors focus on depth of company and industry research, quality of company models and embedded forecasts, contribution to discussions with company management, and ability to identify key business issues and paths to possible resolution. In addition to evaluating individuals on their own contribution, the firm assesses their commitment to the success of other ARGA employees and ARGA as a whole.

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of November 30, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

## **II. PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments**

Effective immediately, the section captioned "Investment advisory arrangements" and sub-captioned "PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments" beginning on page 98 of the SAI is revised by replacing the first and second sentences of the second paragraph of that section with the following:

Riverbridge is majority-owned by its employees. The remaining interests in the company are owned by Lincoln Peak Capital Management, LLC.

PLEASE BE SURE TO RETAIN THIS IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR FUTURE REFERENCE.

© UBS 2023. All rights reserved. UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc.





# PACE® Select Advisors Trust

Statement of Additional Information | November 28, 2023

787 Seventh Avenue New York, NY 10019

The following funds are series of PACE® Select Advisors Trust ("Trust"), a professionally managed open-end investment company.

	Class P	Class P2	Class A	Class Y
UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund	PCEXX	_	_	_
PACE® Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	PCGTX	PFPTX	PFXAX	PFXYX
PACE® Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	PCIFX	PIFTX	PIFAX	PIFYX
PACE® Strategic Fixed Income Investments	PCSIX	PSFTX	PBNAX	PSFYX
PACE® Municipal Fixed Income Investments	PCMNX	PMUTX	PMUAX	PMUYX
PACE® Global Fixed Income Investments	PCGLX	PGFTX	PWFAX	PWFYX
PACE® High Yield Investments	PHYPX	PHDTX	PHIAX	PHDYX
PACE® Large Co Value Equity Investments	PCLVX	PLVTX	PCPAX	PLVYX
PACE® Large Co Growth Equity Investments	PCLCX	PLATX	PLAAX	PLAYX
PACE® Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	PCSVX	PVETX	PEVAX	PVEYX
PACE® Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	PCSGX	PUMTX	PQUAX	PUMYX
PACE® International Equity Investments	PCIEX	PWITX	PWGAX	PWIYX
PACE® International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	PCEMX	PWETX	PWEAX	PWEYX
PACE® Global Real Estate Securities Investments	PREQX	PRPTX	PREAX	_
PACE® Alternative Strategies Investments	PASPX	PAPTX	PASIX	PASYX

All of the funds are diversified series of the Trust.

UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. ("UBS AM") serves as the manager and administrator for each fund and directly manages UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and a portion of PACE Alternative Strategies Investments' assets. Subject to the approval and oversight of the Trust's board of trustees ("board"), UBS AM selects and oversees subadvisors who provide advisory services for the funds. UBS Asset Management (US) Inc. ("UBS AM (US)") serves as the Trust's principal underwriter and selects broker-dealers for the sale of fund shares. UBS AM and UBS AM (US) are indirect wholly owned subsidiaries of UBS Group AG.

Portions of the funds' annual report to shareholders are incorporated by reference into this Statement of Additional Information ("SAI"). The annual report accompanies this SAI. You may obtain additional copies of the funds' annual report without charge by calling toll-free 1-800-647 1568.

This SAI is not a prospectus and should be read only in conjunction with the funds' current prospectuses, dated November 28, 2023. Different classes of shares and/or funds are offered by separate prospectuses. A copy of the relevant prospectus may be obtained by calling your Financial Advisor or by calling toll-free 1-800-647 1568. The prospectus also contains more complete information about the funds. You should read it carefully before investing.

Table of contents	Page
The funds and their investment policies	3
The funds' investments, related risks and limitations	16
Strategies using derivative instruments	62
Disclosure of portfolio holdings	73
Organization of the trust; trustees and officers; principal holders and management ownership of securities	80
Investment management, administration and principal underwriting arrangements	91
Portfolio managers	158
Portfolio transactions	237
Reduced sales charges, additional purchase, exchange and redemption information and other services	245
Valuation of shares	248
Taxes	250
Potential conflicts of interest	259
Other information	267
Financial statements	269
Appendix	A-1

## The funds and their investment policies

Except where noted, the investment objective and policies of each fund may be changed by the Trust's board without shareholder approval. As with other mutual funds, there is no assurance that a fund will achieve its investment objective.

As described further below, each fund (other than PACE Alternative Strategies Investments) will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in the type of investment suggested by its name.

The funds have not repeated the above noted parenthetical regarding borrowings each time a percentage test is recited below; however, the funds will interpret these name-related policies as if the following phrase appeared immediately after the words "net assets": "(plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes)." If subsequent to an investment, a fund's 80% policy is no longer met (e.g., a fund receives a very large influx of cash to invest from new shareholders), then, under normal circumstances, the fund's future investments will be made in a manner that will bring the fund's investments back in line with the 80% threshold.

**UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund** has an investment objective of current income consistent with preservation of capital and liquidity. The fund is a money market fund and seeks to maintain a stable price of \$1.00 per share. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in US government securities, including government securities subject to repurchase agreements. The fund's 80% policy is a "non-fundamental" policy. This means that this investment policy may be changed by the board without shareholder approval. However, the fund has also adopted a policy to provide its shareholders with at least 60 days' prior written notice of any change to the 80% investment policy. The fund may also invest in the securities of other investment companies that invest in these instruments. The fund invests in high quality money market instruments that have, or are deemed to have, remaining maturities of 13 months or less. Money market instruments generally are short-term debt obligations and similar securities. They also may include longer-term bonds that have variable interest rates or other special features that give them the financial characteristics of short-term debt. The fund may purchase participation interests in any of the securities in which it is permitted to invest. Participation interests are pro rata interests in securities held by others. The fund maintains a dollar-weighted average portfolio maturity of 60 days or less; the fund maintains a dollar-weighted average life for its portfolio of 120 days or less.

The board has determined that the fund will operate as a "government money market fund" under Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("Investment Company Act"). Therefore, in addition to the 80% policy referenced above, the fund has adopted a policy to invest 99.5% or more of its total assets in cash, government securities, and/or repurchase agreements that are collateralized fully (i.e., collateralized with cash and/or government securities). As a "government money market fund" under Rule 2a-7, the fund (1) is permitted to use the amortized cost method of valuation to seek to maintain a \$1.00 share price, and (2) is not subject to a liquidity fee on fund redemptions which might apply to other types of funds under certain circumstances. (In conformance with Rule 2a-7, the board has reserved its ability to change this policy with respect to liquidity fees, but such change would only become effective after shareholders were provided with specific advance notice of a change in the fund's policy and have the opportunity to redeem their shares in accordance with Rule 2a-7 before the policy change became effective.)

UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may purchase only those obligations that UBS AM determines, pursuant to procedures adopted by the board, present minimal credit risks as defined in Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act.

UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may purchase variable and floating rate securities with remaining maturities in excess of 397 calendar days issued by US government agencies or instrumentalities or guaranteed

by the US government. The yields on these securities are adjusted in relation to changes in specific rates, such as the prime rate, and different securities may have different adjustment rates. Certain of these obligations carry a demand feature that gives the fund the right to tender them back to a specified party, usually the issuer or a remarketing agent, prior to maturity. The fund's investment in these securities must comply with conditions established by the US Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under which they may be considered to have remaining maturities of 397 calendar days or less. The fund will purchase variable and floating rate securities of non-US government issuers that have remaining maturities of more than 397 calendar days only if the securities are subject to a demand feature exercisable within 397 calendar days or less and otherwise consistent with the fund's investment objective and policies. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Credit and liquidity enhancements."

Generally, UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may exercise demand features (1) upon a default under the terms of the underlying security, (2) to maintain its portfolio in accordance with its investment objective and policies or applicable legal or regulatory requirements or (3) as needed to provide liquidity to the fund in order to meet redemption requests. The ability of a bank or other financial institutional to fulfill its obligations under a letter of credit, guarantee or other liquidity arrangement might be affected by possible financial difficulties of its borrowers, adverse interest rate or economic conditions, regulatory limitations or other factors. The interest rate on floating rate or variable rate securities ordinarily is readjusted on the basis of the prime rate of the bank that originated the financing or some other index or published rate, such as the 90-day US Treasury bill rate, or is otherwise reset to reflect market rates of interest. Generally, these interest rate adjustments cause the market value of floating rate and variable rate securities to fluctuate less than the market value of fixed rate securities.

UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund will not acquire any illiquid investment (as defined below) if, immediately after the acquisition, the fund would have invested more than 5% of its total assets in illiquid investments. The fund also will comply with the daily and weekly liquidity requirements set forth in Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act and, as such, must maintain a portion of its assets in cash and securities that can readily be converted into cash, which may have a negative effect on yield. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis in accordance with Rule 18f-4 under the Investment Company Act ("Rule 18f-4"). The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies, including money market funds advised by UBS AM.

PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments has an investment objective of current income. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC ("PIMCO") serves as the fund's subadvisor. The fund invests in bonds of varying maturities but normally limits its portfolio "duration" to within +/- 50% of the effective duration of the fund's benchmark index, Bloomberg US Mortgage-Backed Securities Index, as calculated by the investment advisor. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in a diversified portfolio of mortgage-related fixed income instruments, including mortgage-backed securities (including mortgage pass-through securities and collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs"), commercial mortgage-backed securities, "to be announced" (or "TBA") securities and mortgage dollar rolls). The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy mortgage-related fixed income instruments that are represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in mortgage-related fixed income instruments.

The fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in other fixed income instruments, including corporate bonds and asset-backed securities of private issuers. Under normal circumstances, the fund's investments will be rated at least BBB by Standard & Poor's, a division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("S&P"), or Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's"), or equivalently rated by another nationally recognized statistical rating organization or, if unrated, determined by the investment advisor to be of comparable quality, and a maximum of 5% of the fund's net assets

may be invested in non-investment grade securities. The fund may invest in bonds that are assigned comparable ratings by another nationally recognized statistical rating organization (collectively, with Moody's and S&P, "Rating Agencies") and unrated bonds that its investment advisor determines are of comparable quality to rated securities in which the fund may invest. The fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in Yankee and Brady bonds.

PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments may invest in certain zero coupon securities that are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts. The SEC staff currently takes the position that "stripped" US government securities that are not issued through the US Treasury are not US government securities. The fund may not invest more than 5% of its net assets in any combination of interest-only, principal-only and inverse floating rate securities, including those that are not mortgage- or asset-backed securities. The fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in municipal bonds that are rated at least A by Moody's or S&P or assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency (or are unrated but deemed to be of comparable quality).

The fund also may engage in short selling with respect to securities issued by the US Treasury and certain "to be announced" or "TBA" securities coupon trades. TBA securities are mortgage-backed securities that usually are traded on a forward commitment basis with an approximate principal amount and no defined maturity date, issued or guaranteed by US government agencies and instrumentalities. The actual principal amount and maturity date of the securities are determined upon settlement when the specific mortgage pools are assigned. The fund limits the TBA securities that it sells short to those issued by the Governmental National Mortgage Association, the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation. The fund will not make short sales of securities or maintain a short position if doing so could create liabilities or require collateral deposits and segregation of assets of more than one-third of the value of its total assets.

PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments (as defined below). The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may engage in dollar rolls and reverse repurchase agreements for investment purposes to enhance its return. These transactions are considered borrowings. The fund may also borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in loan participations and assignments. These investments are generally subject to the fund's overall limitation on illiquid investments. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box."

PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments has an investment objective of current income, consistent with reasonable stability of principal. Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department ("BBH") currently serves as the fund's subadvisor. The fund invests in bonds of varying maturities. It normally limits its overall portfolio "duration" to within +/- 50% of the duration of the Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond Index, as calculated by the investment advisor. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in fixed income securities, which may be represented by derivatives or investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in fixed income securities. Such investments may include US government and foreign government bonds (including bonds issued by supranational and quasi-governmental entities and mortgage-backed securities), municipal fixed income investments (including tax-exempt municipal securities), corporate bonds (including mortgage- and asset-backed securities of private issuers, Eurodollar certificates of deposit, Eurodollar bonds and Yankee bonds) and bank loans (including loan participations and assignments). The fund may invest in bonds that are investment grade at the time of purchase. The fund may also invest, in the aggregate, up to 20% of its total assets (measured at the time of purchase) in (1) bonds that are below investment grade at the time of purchase (or unrated bonds of equivalent quality) (commonly known as "junk bonds"), (2) non-US dollar denominates.

nated securities, and (3) fixed income securities of issuers located in emerging markets. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies. The fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in tax-exempt municipal securities. The fund's investments may include certain zero coupon securities that are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts. The fund may not invest more than 5% of its net assets in any combination of interest-only, principal-only and inverse floating rate securities, including those that are not mortgage- or asset-backed securities. The fund's investments in bank loans may be subject to certain limitations, such as limitations on non-investment grade securities and illiquid investments. The fund may also invest in equity securities, such as preferred shares and securities convertible into stocks. The fund may, but is not required to, invest in derivatives for risk management purposes or to attempt to increase total returns.

PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may engage in dollar rolls and reverse repurchase agreements for investment purposes to enhance its return. These transactions are considered borrowings. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box."

PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments has an investment objective of total return consisting of income and capital appreciation. Pacific Investment Management Company LLC ("PIMCO"), Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC ("Neuberger Berman") and Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department ("BBH"), currently serve as the fund's subadvisors. The fund invests in bonds of varying maturities, but normally limits its portfolio "duration" to within +/- 50% of the effective duration of the fund's benchmark index, Bloomberg US Government/Credit Index, as calculated by the investment advisor. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in investment grade fixed income securities, which may be represented by derivatives or investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in fixed income securities. Such investments may include US government bonds, bonds that are backed by mortgages and other assets, bonds (including convertible bonds) of US and foreign private issuers, foreign government bonds (including bonds issued by supranational and quasi-governmental entities), foreign currency exchangerelated securities, repurchase agreements, municipals, structured notes, bank loans (including loan participations and assignments) and money market instruments (including commercial paper and certificates of deposit). The fund's investments in bank loans may be subject to certain limitations, such as limitations on non-investment grade securities and illiquid investments. The fund may also invest in equity securities, such as preferred shares and securities convertible into stocks. The fund may invest in commercial paper rated at least A-3 by S&P, Prime 3 by Moody's, assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency or, if unrated, determined by its investment advisor to be of comparable quality. The fund may not invest more than 5% of its net assets in any combination of interest-only, principal-only and inverse floating rate securities, including those that are not mortgage- or asset-backed securities. The fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in preferred securities. The fund may, but is not required to, invest in derivatives for risk management purposes or to attempt to increase total returns.

PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments also may invest up to 20% of its total assets in other fixed income instruments, including convertible securities, that are not investment grade. The fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in a combination of Yankee bonds, Eurodollar bonds and bonds denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign currency exposure (from non-US dollar-denominated securities or currencies) normally will be limited to 20% of the fund's total assets. The fund's investments may include Brady Bonds. The fund's investments also may include certain zero coupon securities that are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts, other debt securities sold with a discount and payment-in-kind securities. The fund may invest

up to 10% of its net assets in municipal bonds that are rated at least Baa by Moody's, BBB by S&P or assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency (or are unrated but deemed to be of comparable quality).

PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may engage in dollar rolls and reverse repurchase agreements for investment purposes to enhance the fund's return. These transactions are considered borrowings. The fund may also borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. These investments are generally subject to the fund's overall limitation on illiquid investments. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell securities short both "against the box" or without owning the security sold short.

**PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments** has an investment objective of high current income exempt from federal income tax. Insight North America LLC ("Insight") serves as the fund's subadvisor. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in municipal fixed income investments, the income from which is exempt from regular federal income taxes. The 80% policy adopted by the fund is a "fundamental" investment policy, and the fund may not deviate from this 80% policy without shareholder approval.

The fund invests principally in investment grade municipal bonds of varying maturities but normally maintains a portfolio "duration" of between three and seven years. The fund invests in municipal bonds rated at the time of purchase at least A, MIG-2 or Prime-2 by Moody's or A, SP-2 or A-2 by S&P, assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency or, if unrated, determined to be of comparable quality by its investment advisor, except that the fund may invest up to 15% of its total assets in municipal bonds that at the time of purchase are rated Baa by Moody's, BBB by S&P, assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency or, if unrated, are determined to be of comparable quality by its investment advisor. The fund also may invest without limit in private activity bonds and other municipal bonds that pay interest that is an item of tax preference (sometimes referred to as a "tax preference item") for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax ("AMT"), although the fund will endeavor to manage its portfolio so that no more than 25% of its interest income will be a tax preference item.

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments may not invest more than 25% of its total assets in municipal obligations whose issuers are located in the same state. The fund also may not invest more than 25% of its total assets in municipal obligations that are secured by revenues from a particular industry, except that it may invest up to 50% of its total assets in municipal bonds that are secured by revenues from public housing authorities and state and local housing finance authorities, including bonds secured or backed by the US Treasury or other US government-guaranteed securities. The fund may invest without limit in private activity bonds, including private activity bonds that are collateralized by letters of credit issued by banks having stockholders' equity in excess of \$100 million as of the date of their most recently published statement of financial condition. The fund may not invest more than 5% of its net assets in municipal leases, except that it may invest without limitation in (1) pre-refunded municipal leases that are collateralized by US government securities, and (2) insured municipal leases that are 100% guaranteed for timely interest and principal payment by a municipal bond insurer that is rated AAA by S&P, Aaa by Moody's, or assigned a comparable rating by another Rating Agency (or are unrated but deemed to be of comparable quality).

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The

funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest only up to 20% of its net assets in certain taxable securities to maintain liquidity. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies.

PACE Global Fixed Income Investments has an investment objective of high total return. J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. ("J.P. Morgan") serves as the fund's subadvisor. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in fixed income securities, which may be represented by derivatives. Such investments may include US government bonds, non-US government bonds (including bonds issued by supranational organizations and quasi-governmental entities) and bonds of US or non-US private issuers. The fund invests primarily in high-grade bonds, denominated in US dollars or non-US currencies, of governmental and private issuers. The fund's investments may include mortgage- and asset-backed securities. The fund normally invests in a minimum of four countries, including the United States. As of July 31, 2023, the fund was invested in more than 28 separate countries. Debt securities are considered high grade if they are rated A or better by S&P or Moody's or another Rating Agency or, if unrated, determined by the fund's subadvisor to be of comparable quality. The fund invests in bonds of varying maturities, but normally limits its portfolio "duration" to within +/- 50% of the effective duration of the fund's benchmark index, Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index, as calculated by the investment advisor. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy fixed income securities that are represented by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in fixed income securities.

PACE Global Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 10% of its total assets in high yield bonds of issuers domiciled in developed countries. Developed countries may include, for example, the countries that are members of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD"). "Domiciled," for these purposes, means companies (1) that are organized under the laws of a developed country, (2) for which the principal securities trading market is in a developed country or (3) that derive a significant proportion (at least 50%) of their revenues or profits from goods produced or sold, investments made or services performed in a developed country or that have at least 50% of their assets situated in such a country. High yield bonds include fixed income securities that are (1) rated below investment grade by Moody's (lower than a Baa rating) or S&P (lower than a BBB rating); (2) comparably rated by another rating agency; or (3) unrated, but deemed by the fund's portfolio managers to be of comparable quality to fixed income securities rated below investment grade by a Rating Agency. The fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in emerging market bonds (including bonds denominated in local emerging markets currencies), irrespective of their credit quality. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies. The fund's investments may include Brady Bonds. The fund's investments also may include certain zero coupon securities that are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts. The fund may, but is not required to, invest in derivatives for risk management purposes or to attempt to increase total returns.

PACE Global Fixed Income Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in structured foreign investments and loan participations and assignments. These investments are generally subject to the fund's overall limitation on illiquid investments, and in no event may the fund's investments in loan participations and assignments exceed 10% of its total assets. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box."

**PACE High Yield Investments** has an investment objective of total return. Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management Inc. ("NCRAM") is the fund's subadvisor. NCRAM uses "associated persons" employed by an affiliate of NCRAM, Nomura Asset Management U.K. Limited, in its provision of investment advisory services to the fund under a "participating affiliate" arrangement. The fund invests primarily in a professionally managed, diversified portfolio of fixed income securities that are rated below investment grade. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests

at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in high yield fixed income securities that are rated below investment grade or considered to be of comparable quality (commonly referred to as "junk bonds"). Such investments will include fixed income securities that are (1) rated below investment grade (lower than a Baa rating by Moody's or lower than a BBB rating by S&P); (2) comparably rated by another rating agency; or (3) unrated, but deemed by the fund's investment advisor to be of comparable quality to fixed income securities rated below Baa, BBB or a comparable rating by a Rating Agency. Such investments may be represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in such high yield fixed income securities. The fund normally limits its average "duration" to within +/- 50% of that of the ICE BofA Global High Yield Index, as calculated by the investment advisor. The fund may, but is not required to, invest in derivatives for risk management purposes or to attempt to increase total returns.

The fund may also invest in other instruments, including ETFs, that derive their value from such high yield fixed income securities.

PACE High Yield Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments, including investments that, at the time of purchase, are in default or whose issuers are the subject of bankruptcy proceedings. Such investment is highly speculative and involves significant risk. The fund may purchase these securities if the fund's investment advisor believes that these securities have a potential for capital appreciation.

The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may engage in dollar rolls and reverse repurchase agreements involving up to an aggregate of not more than 5% of its total assets for investment purposes to enhance its return. The fund may also borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in US and/or non-US senior secured bank loans (each of which may be denominated in foreign currencies), which may be in the form of loan participations and assignments. These investments are generally subject to the fund's overall limitation on illiquid investments. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box." The fund's investments may include Brady Bonds.

The fund's investments may be allocated across industries, investing in a range of high yield bonds, including corporate and distressed bonds, certain convertible securities, certain asset-backed securities, restricted securities, including private placement and Rule 144A securities, zero-coupon bonds, pay-in-kind securities and deferred payment securities. The fund may invest in global high yield fixed income instruments issued by corporations, limited liability companies or limited partnerships, other forms of enterprise and in sovereign and quasi-sovereign debt and debt-related investment instruments. These global high yield fixed income instruments may be fixed, variable or floating rate.

The fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in investment grade securities of private or government issuers, equity securities of lower-rated or comparable issuers (issuers whose debt securities are lower-rated or who the fund's investment advisor determines to be of comparable quality), money market instruments and municipal obligations. The fund may invest all or a portion of its total assets in securities of foreign issuers, including issuers in emerging market countries. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies.

The fund may implement various temporary or defensive strategies at times when its investment advisor determines that conditions in the markets make pursuing the fund's basic investment strategy inconsistent with the best interests of its shareholders. When unusual market or economic conditions occur, the fund may, for temporary defensive or liquidity purposes, invest up to 100% of its total assets in securities issued or guaranteed by the US government or its

agencies or instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances or other bank obligations, commercial paper, or other income securities deemed by UBS AM to be consistent with a defensive posture, or it may hold cash.

PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments has an investment objective of capital appreciation and dividend income. Wellington Management Company LLP ("Wellington"), Artisan Partners Limited Partnership ("Artisan Partners") and Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC ("Hotchkis & Wiley") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation and dividend income. The fund invests primarily in stocks of US companies that are believed to be undervalued. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in equity securities issued by large capitalization companies. Large capitalization companies means companies with a total market capitalization within the market capitalization range of the companies in the Russell 1000® Value Index at the time of purchase. The term "market capitalization" means the market value of a company's outstanding common stocks. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy equity securities issued by large capitalization companies that are represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities of large capitalization companies.

PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments may invest up to 10% of its total assets in convertible bonds that are not investment grade, but these securities must be rated at least BB by S&P, Ba by Moody's, assigned a comparable rating by another rating agency or, if unrated, determined to be of comparable quality by its investment advisor. Subject to its 80% investment requirement, the fund may invest in a broad range of equity securities of US issuers that are traded on major stock exchanges or in the over-the-counter market. The fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in non-US securities. Such securities may trade either within or outside the United States. "Non-US securities" generally means securities which are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States. Non-US securities that trade within the US may include American Depositary Receipts and stocks of non-US issuers listed on US exchanges. The fund also may invest in US government bonds and investment grade corporate bonds.

PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell securities short both "against the box" or without owning the security sold short.

PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments has an investment objective of capital appreciation. J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. ("J.P. Morgan"), GQG Partners LLC ("GQG") and Polen Capital Management, LLC ("Polen") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation. The fund invests primarily in stocks of companies that are believed to have substantial potential for capital growth. Dividend income is an incidental consideration in the subadvisors' selection of stocks for the fund. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in equity securities issued by large capitalization companies. Large capitalization companies means companies with a total market capitalization within the market capitalization range of the companies in the Russell 1000® Growth Index at the time of purchase. The term "market capitalization" means the market value of a company's outstanding common stocks. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy equity securities issued by large capitalization companies that are represented by derivatives, including swap agreements or futures contracts, or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities of large capitalization companies.

Subject to its 80% investment requirement, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments may invest in a broad range of equity securities of US issuers. The fund may invest up to 20% of its total assets in non-US securities which may trade either within or outside the United States. "Non-US securities" generally means securities which are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States. Non-US securities that trade within the US may include American Depositary Receipts and stocks of non-US issuers listed on US exchanges. The fund also may invest in US government bonds and investment grade corporate bonds.

PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in securities of other investment companies and may sell securities short "against the box."

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments has an investment objective of capital appreciation. Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("KAR") and Huber Capital Management LLC ("Huber Capital") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation. The fund invests primarily in stocks of companies that are believed to be undervalued or overlooked in the market-place. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in equity securities issued by small/medium capitalization companies. Small/medium capitalization companies means companies with a total market capitalization within the market capitalization range of the companies in the Russell 2500® Value Index at the time of purchase. The term "market capitalization" means the market value of a company's outstanding common stocks. The fund invests in stocks that generally have price-to-earnings ("P/E") ratios that are below the market average. The fund invests only in stocks that are traded on a major stock exchange or in the over-the-counter market. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy equity securities issued by small/medium capitalization companies that are represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities of small/medium capitalization companies. Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest only up to 20% of its net assets in US government bonds and investment grade corporate bonds.

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in non-US securities which may trade either within or outside the United States. "Non-US securities" generally means securities which are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States. Non-US securities that trade within the US may include American Depositary Receipts and stocks of non-US issuers listed on US exchanges. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box."

**PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments** has an investment objective of capital appreciation. Riverbridge Partners, LLC ("Riverbridge"), Calamos Advisors LLC ("Calamos") and Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc. ("Jacobs Levy") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation. The fund invests primarily in stocks of "emerging growth" companies that are believed to have potential for high future earnings growth relative to the overall market. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets in equity securities issued by small/medium capitalization companies. Small/medium capitalization companies means

companies with a total market capitalization within the market capitalization range of the companies in the Russell 2500® Growth Index at the time of purchase. The term "market capitalization" means the market value of a company's outstanding common stocks. Dividend income is an incidental consideration in the subadvisors' selection of investments for the fund. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy equity securities issued by small/medium capitalization companies that are represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities of small/medium capitalization companies.

Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest only up to 20% of its net assets in US government bonds and investment grade corporate bonds. The fund may invest up to 10% of its total assets in non-US securities which may trade either within or outside the United States. "Non-US securities" generally means securities which are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States. Non-US securities that trade within the US may include American Depositary Receipts and stocks of non-US issuers listed on US exchanges.

PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell short "against the box."

PACE International Equity Investments has an investment objective of capital appreciation. Mondrian Investment Partners Limited ("Mondrian"), Los Angeles Capital Management LLC ("Los Angeles Capital") and Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated ("Baird") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation. The fund invests primarily in stocks of companies that are domiciled in developed foreign countries and principally traded in Japanese, European, Pacific and Australian securities markets or traded in US securities markets, and a large part of its investments is usually denominated in foreign currencies. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in equity securities. Such investments may include common stocks, which may or may not pay dividends, and securities convertible into common stocks, of companies domiciled outside the United States. Such investments may be represented by derivatives or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities. "Domiciled," for these purposes, means companies (1) that are organized under the laws of a country other than the United States, (2) for which the principal securities trading market is in a country other than the United States or (3) that derive a significant proportion (at least 50%) of their revenues or profits from goods produced or sold, investments made or services performed in the respective country or that have at least 50% of their assets situated in such a country.

PACE International Equity Investments normally invests in the securities of issuers from three or more countries outside the United States and, under normal market conditions, its investments involve securities principally traded in at least 10 different countries. The fund's investment advisors give particular consideration to investments that are principally traded in Japanese, European, Pacific and Australian securities markets and to securities of foreign companies that are traded on US securities markets. The fund may also invest to a limited extent, in the stocks of companies in emerging markets, including Asia, Latin America and other regions where the markets may not yet fully reflect the potential of the developing economies. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies. The fund invests only in those markets where an investment advisor considers there to be an acceptable framework of market regulation and sufficient liquidity. The fund may also invest in non-investment grade convertible securities. These non-investment grade convertible securities may not be rated lower than B by S&P or Moody's, a comparable rating assigned by another rating agency or, if unrated, determined by the fund's investment advisors to be of comparable quality. The fund's

investments in emerging market securities and non-investment grade convertible securities, in the aggregate, may not exceed 10% of its total assets at the time of purchase. Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in US government bonds and investment grade bonds of US and non-US issuers. The fund may, but is not required to, invest in derivatives for risk management purposes or to attempt to increase total returns.

PACE International Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in structured foreign investments. The fund may invest in securities of other investment companies, including closed-end funds that invest in foreign markets, and may sell securities short both "against the box" or without owning the security sold short.

**PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments** has an investment objective of capital appreciation. William Blair Investment Management, LLC ("William Blair"), RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC ("Redwheel") and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, allocates the fund's assets among the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve capital appreciation. Under normal circumstances, the fund invests at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in equity securities that are tied economically to emerging market countries, which may include equity securities issued by companies domiciled in emerging market countries. Such investments may be represented by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in equity securities that are tied economically to emerging market countries. "Domiciled," for these purposes, means companies (1) that are organized under the laws of an emerging market country, (2) for which the principal securities trading market is in an emerging market country, (3) that derive a significant proportion (at least 50%) of their revenues or profits from goods produced or sold, investments made or services performed in the respective country, or (4) that have at least 50% of their assets situated in such a country. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies. A subadvisor may at times determine, based on its own analysis, that an economy included in the MSCI World Index should nonetheless be considered an emerging market country, in which case, that country would constitute an emerging market country for purposes of the fund's investments. The fund normally invests in the securities of issuers from three or more emerging market countries. As of July 31, 2023, the fund was invested in over 23 separate countries. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy equity securities that are tied economically to emerging market countries that are represented by derivatives.

Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest up to 20% of its net assets in bonds, including US government bonds, foreign government bonds and bonds of private US and non-US issuers, including convertible bonds. The fund's investments may include Brady Bonds. The fund's investments in bonds of private issuers are rated at the time of purchase at least A by S&P or Moody's, assigned a comparable rating by another rating agency or, if unrated, determined by the investment advisor to be of comparable quality, except that up to 10% of the fund's total assets may be invested in lower quality bonds, including convertible bonds. These lower quality bonds must, at the time of purchase, be rated at least C by S&P, assigned a comparable rating by another rating agency or determined by an investment advisor to be of comparable quality.

PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in structured for-

eign investments and loan participations and assignments. These investments are generally subject to the fund's overall limitation on illiquid investments, and in no event may the fund's investments in loan participations and assignments exceed 10% of its total assets. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies, including ETFs and closed-end funds that invest in foreign markets, and may sell short "against the box."

PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments has an investment objective of total return. Massachusetts Financial Services Company, doing business as MFS Investment Management ("MFS") serves as the fund's subadvisor. The fund invests primarily in real estate investment trusts ("REITs") and other real-estate related securities. Under normal market conditions, the fund will invest at least 80% of its net assets (plus the amount of any borrowing for investment purposes) in securities of companies in the real estate industry. Such securities may include common shares, preferred shares, initial public offerings and units of beneficial interest in real estate companies (inclusive of REITs). The fund will consider real estate securities to be those securities issued by companies principally engaged in the real estate industry, defined to mean those companies which (1) derive at least 50% of their revenues from the ownership, operation, development, construction, financing, management or sale of commercial, industrial or residential real estate and similar activities, or (2) invest at least 50% of their assets in such real estate. The fund may include as counting toward its 80% policy securities of companies in the real estate industry that are represented by derivatives, including swap agreements or futures contracts, or by investments in securities of other investment companies that invest primarily in securities of companies in the real estate industry.

The fund may invest in the securities of issuers located in a number of different countries throughout the world. Under normal market circumstances, the fund will maintain exposure to real estate related securities of issuers in the United States and in at least three countries outside the United States. The amount invested outside the United States may vary, and at any given time, the fund may have a significant exposure to non-US securities depending upon an subadvisor's investment decisions. "Non-US securities" in this context generally means securities which are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States.

The fund's other investments may include the following equity and fixed income securities and other instruments: non-investment grade bonds, government securities, asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities, credit and liquidity enhancements, original issue discount bonds (including zero coupon securities), payment-in-kind bonds, convertible bonds, warrants, auction rate and remarketed preferred stock, foreign and emerging market equity and debt securities (including Russian securities), foreign sovereign debt and structured foreign investments, currency-linked investments, repurchase agreements, reverse repurchase agreements, dollar rolls, exchange traded options, exchange-traded funds or investments in a company's initial public offering. The fund generally considers "emerging market countries" to be those countries not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies.

PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments. The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may also borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell securities short both "against the box" or without owning the security sold short.

The fund may implement various temporary or defensive strategies at times when its investment advisors determine that conditions in the markets make pursuing the fund's basic investment strategy inconsistent with the best interests of its shareholders. When unusual market or economic conditions occur, the fund may, for temporary defensive purposes, invest up to 100% of its total assets, or for liquidity purposes, invest up to 20% of its net assets, in investment grade fixed income securities (including short-term US government securities, investment grade

debt-instruments, money market instruments, including negotiable certificates of deposit, non-negotiable fixed time deposits, bankers' acceptances, commercial paper and floating rate notes), preferred stocks and repurchase agreements. Under normal circumstances, the fund may also hold significant amounts of its assets in cash.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments has an investment objective of long-term capital appreciation. Allspring Global Investments, LLC ("Allspring"), Aviva Investors Americas LLC ("Aviva"), PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd. ("PCJ"), Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC ("Kettle Hill"), DLD Asset Management, LP ("DLD"), Magnetar Asset Management LLC ("Magnetar") and Electron Capital Partners, LLC ("Electron") serve as the fund's subadvisors. UBS AM, subject to board oversight, directly manages a separate portion of the fund's assets and allocates the fund's assets among itself and the subadvisors who utilize investment strategies designed to achieve long-term capital appreciation. Aviva uses "associated persons" employed by an affiliate of Aviva, Aviva Investors Global Services Limited ("Aviva (UK)"), in its provision of investment advisory services to the fund under a "participating affiliate" arrangement. Such investment strategies are designed to have low correlation to traditional equity and fixed income asset classes. Subject to board approval, UBS AM may in the future allocate assets to additional subadvisors to employ additional strategies at any time. Such additional strategies may include, among others, fixed income arbitrage and convertible arbitrage equity strategies.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments has a broad investment mandate that permits the fund to use an extensive range of investment strategies and to invest in a wide spectrum of equity, fixed income and derivative investments in order to pursue its investment objective. The fund invests in securities of US and non-US companies of various market capitalizations.

The fund may, but is not required to, invest extensively in derivatives, including those that provide exposure to commodities and currencies.

Under normal circumstances, the fund may invest in a number of different countries throughout the world, including the United States. The fund may invest all or a portion of its total assets in non-US securities. "Non-US securities" generally means securities that are issued by a company that is organized under the laws of a country other than the United States where the principal trading market for the issuer's securities is in a country other than the United States. Such securities may trade either within or outside the United States. The fund may also invest in the securities of companies in emerging markets, including Russia, Asia, Latin America, and other regions where the markets may not yet fully reflect the potential of the developing economies. The fund generally considers emerging market countries to be those countries that are not included in the Morgan Stanley Capital International World Index of major world economies.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may invest in fixed income securities including high yield bonds, US government bonds, investment grade corporate bonds and sovereign debt of non-US governmental agencies (including emerging market debt). The fund's investments may also include certain zero coupon securities that are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts. The fund may invest up to 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments, including investments that, at the time of purchase, are in default or whose issuers are the subject of bankruptcy proceedings. Investment in these securities is highly speculative and involves significant risk. The fund may purchase these securities if a subadvisor believes that these securities have a potential for capital appreciation.

The fund may purchase securities on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis. The fund may lend its portfolio securities to qualified broker-dealers or institutional investors in an amount up to 33½% of its total assets. The fund may also borrow money from banks and through reverse repurchase agreements for temporary or emergency purposes, but not in excess of 10% of its total assets. The costs associated with borrowing may reduce the fund's net income. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Investment limitations of the funds" for more information regarding borrowings. The fund may invest in the securities of other investment companies and may sell securities short both "against the box" or without owning the security sold short.

The fund may implement various temporary or defensive strategies at times when a subadvisor determines that conditions in the markets make pursuing the fund's basic investment strategy inconsistent with the best interests of its shareholders. When unusual market or economic conditions occur, the fund may, for temporary defensive or liquidity purposes, invest up to 100% of its total assets in securities issued or guaranteed by the US government or its agencies or instrumentalities, certificates of deposit, bankers' acceptances or other bank obligations, commercial paper, or other income securities deemed by UBS AM to be consistent with a defensive posture, or it may hold cash.

## The funds' investments, related risks and limitations

The following supplements the information contained in the prospectus and above concerning the funds' investments, related risks and limitations. Except as otherwise indicated in the prospectus or SAI, the funds have established no policy limitations on their ability to use the investments or techniques discussed in these documents.

**Equity securities.** Equity securities include common stocks, most preferred stocks and securities that are convertible into them, including common stock purchase warrants and rights, equity interests in trusts, partnerships, joint ventures or similar enterprises and depositary receipts. Common stocks, the most familiar type, represent an equity (ownership) interest in a corporation.

Preferred stock has certain fixed income features, like a bond, but it is actually an equity security that is senior to a company's common stock. Convertible bonds may include debentures and notes that may be converted into or exchanged for a prescribed amount of common stock of the same or a different issuer within a particular period of time at a specified price or formula. Some preferred stock also may be converted into or exchanged for common stock. Depositary receipts typically are issued by banks or trust companies and evidence ownership of underlying equity securities.

While past performance does not guarantee future results, common stocks historically have provided the greatest long-term growth potential in a company. However, their prices generally fluctuate more than other securities and reflect changes in a company's financial condition and in overall market and economic conditions. A company's common stock is generally a riskier investment than its fixed income securities. Preferred stocks in which a fund may invest are sensitive to interest rate changes. The rights of preferred stocks on the distribution of a company's assets in the event of a liquidation are generally subordinate to the rights associated with a company's debt securities. It is possible that a fund may experience a substantial or complete loss on an individual equity investment. While this is possible with fixed income securities, it is less likely.

**Bonds.** Bonds are fixed or variable rate debt obligations, including bills, notes, debentures, money market instruments and similar instruments and securities. Mortgage- and asset-backed securities are types of bonds, and certain types of income-producing, non-convertible preferred stocks may be treated as bonds for investment purposes. Bonds generally are used by corporations, governments and other issuers to borrow money from investors. The issuer pays the investor a fixed or variable rate of interest and normally must repay the amount borrowed on or before maturity. Many preferred stocks and some bonds are "perpetual" in that they have no maturity date.

Bonds are subject to interest rate risk and credit risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will rise and that, as a result, bond prices will fall, lowering the value of a fund's investments in bonds. In general, bonds having longer durations are more sensitive to interest rate changes than are bonds with shorter durations. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer may be unable or unwilling to pay interest and/or principal on the bond. Credit risk can be affected by many factors, including adverse changes in the issuer's own financial condition or in economic conditions.

While assets in bond markets have grown rapidly in recent years, the capacity for traditional dealer counterparties to engage in fixed income trading has not kept pace and in some cases has decreased. For example, primary dealer

inventories of corporate bonds, which provide a core indication of the ability of financial intermediaries to "make markets," are at or near historic lows in relation to market size. This reduction in market-making capacity may be a persistent change, to the extent it is resulting from broader structural changes, such as fewer proprietary trading desks at broker-dealers and increased regulatory capital requirements. Because market makers provide stability to a market through their intermediary services, the significant reduction in dealer inventories could potentially lead to decreased liquidity and increased volatility in the fixed income markets. Such issues may be exacerbated during periods of economic uncertainty.

Opinions relating to the validity of municipal bonds and to the exemption of interest thereon from federal income tax and (when available) from treatment as a tax preference item are rendered by bond counsel to the respective issuing authorities at the time of issuance. None of the funds, their investment advisor(s) nor UBS AM reviews the proceedings relating to the issuance of municipal bonds or the basis for such opinions. An issuer's obligations under its municipal bonds are subject to the bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors (such as the federal bankruptcy laws) and federal, state and local laws that may be enacted that adversely affect the tax-exempt status of interest on the municipal bonds held by the fund or the exempt-interest dividends received by its shareholders, extend the time for payment of principal or interest, or both, or impose other constraints upon enforcement of such obligations. There is also the possibility that, as a result of litigation or other conditions, the power or ability of issuers to meet their obligations for the payment of principal of and interest on their municipal bonds may be materially and adversely affected.

Credit ratings; non-investment grade bonds. Moody's, S&P and other rating agencies are private services that provide ratings of the credit quality of bonds, including municipal bonds, and certain other securities. A description of the ratings assigned to corporate bonds by Moody's and S&P is included in the Appendix to this SAI. The process by which Moody's and S&P determine ratings for mortgage-backed securities includes consideration of the likelihood of the receipt by security holders of all distributions, the nature of the underlying assets, the credit quality of the guarantor, if any, and the structural, legal and tax aspects associated with these securities. Not even the highest such rating represents an assessment of the likelihood that principal prepayments will be made by obligors on the underlying assets or the degree to which such prepayments may differ from that originally anticipated, nor do such ratings address the possibility that investors may suffer a lower than anticipated yield or that investors in such securities may fail to recoup fully their initial investment due to prepayments.

Credit ratings attempt to evaluate the safety of principal and interest payments, but they do not evaluate the volatility of a bond's value or its liquidity and do not guarantee the performance of the issuer. Rating agencies may fail to make timely changes in credit ratings in response to subsequent events, so that an issuer's current financial condition may be better or worse than the rating indicates. There is a risk that rating agencies may downgrade a bond's rating. Subsequent to a bond's purchase by a fund, it may cease to be rated or its rating may be reduced below the minimum rating required for purchase by the fund. The funds may use these ratings in determining whether to purchase, sell or hold a security. It should be emphasized, however, that ratings are general and are not absolute standards of quality. Consequently, bonds with the same maturity, interest rate and rating may have different market prices.

In addition to ratings assigned to individual bond issues, the applicable subadvisor will analyze interest rate trends and developments that may affect individual issuers, including factors such as liquidity, profitability and asset quality. The yields on bonds are dependent on a variety of factors, including general money market conditions, general conditions in the bond market, the financial condition of the issuer, the size of the offering, the maturity of the obligation and its rating. There is a wide variation in the quality of bonds, both within a particular classification and between classifications. An issuer's obligations under its bonds are subject to the provisions of bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws affecting the rights and remedies of bond holders or other creditors of an issuer; litigation or other conditions may also adversely affect the power or ability of issuers to meet their obligations for the payment of interest and principal on their bonds.

Investment grade bonds are rated in one of the four highest rating categories by Moody's or S&P, comparably rated by another rating agency or, if unrated, determined by the applicable subadvisor to be of comparable quality. Moody's considers bonds rated Baa (its lowest investment grade rating) to have speculative characteristics. This means that changes in economic conditions or other circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity to make principal and interest payments than is the case for higher rated debt securities. Bonds rated D by S&P are in payment default or such rating is assigned upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action if payments on an obligation are jeopardized. Bonds rated C by Moody's are in the lowest rated class and can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of attaining any real investment standing. References to rated bonds in the prospectus or this SAI include bonds that are not rated by a rating agency but that the applicable subadvisor determines to be of comparable quality.

Non-investment grade bonds (commonly known as "junk bonds" and sometimes referred to as "high yield, high risk bonds") are rated Ba or lower by Moody's, BB or lower by S&P, comparably rated by another rating agency or, if unrated, determined by a fund's investment advisor to be of comparable quality. A fund's investments in non-investment grade bonds entail greater risk than its investments in higher rated bonds. Non-investment grade bonds are considered predominantly speculative with respect to the issuer's ability to pay interest and repay principal and may involve significant risk exposure to adverse conditions. Non-investment grade bonds generally offer a higher current yield than that available for investment grade issues; however, they involve greater risks, in that they are especially sensitive to adverse changes in general economic conditions and in the industries in which the issuers are engaged, to changes in the financial condition of the issuers and to price fluctuations in response to changes in interest rates. During periods of economic downturn or rising interest rates, highly leveraged issuers may experience financial stress that could adversely affect their ability to make payments of interest and principal and increase the possibility of default. In addition, such issuers may not have more traditional methods of financing available to them and may be unable to repay debt at maturity by refinancing.

The risk of loss due to default by such issuers is significantly greater because such securities frequently are unsecured by collateral and will not receive payment until more senior claims are paid in full.

The market for non-investment grade bonds, especially those of non-US issuers, has expanded rapidly in recent years. These securities are susceptible to greater risk when economic growth slows or reverses and when inflation increases or deflation occurs. In the past, many lower rated bonds experienced substantial price declines reflecting an expectation that many issuers of such securities might experience financial difficulties. As a result, the yields on lower rated bonds rose dramatically. However, those higher yields did not reflect the value of the income stream that holders of such securities expected. Rather, they reflected the risk that holders of such securities could lose a substantial portion of their value due to financial restructurings or defaults by the issuers. There can be no assurance that those declines will not recur.

The market for non-investment grade bonds generally is thinner and less active than that for higher quality securities, which may limit a fund's ability to sell such securities at fair value in response to changes in the economy or financial markets. Adverse publicity and investor perceptions, whether or not based on fundamental analysis, may also decrease the values and liquidity of non-investment grade bonds, especially in a thinly traded market.

**US government securities.** US government securities include direct obligations of the US Treasury (such as Treasury bills, notes or bonds) and obligations issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest (but not as to market value) by the US government, its agencies or its instrumentalities. These US government securities may include mortgage-backed securities issued or guaranteed by government agencies or government-sponsored enterprises that are not guaranteed or insured by the US government. Other US government securities may be backed by the full faith and credit of the US government or supported primarily or solely by the creditworthiness of the government-related issuer or, in the case of mortgage-backed securities, by pools of assets.

Securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities of the US government that are supported by the full faith and credit of the United States, such as securities issued by the Federal Housing Administration and the Government National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Mae"), present little credit risk. Other securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities sponsored by the US government that are supported only by the issuer's right to borrow from the US Treasury, subject to certain limitations, such as securities issued by Federal Home Loan Banks, and securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities sponsored by the US government that are supported only by the credit of the issuing agencies are subject to a greater degree of credit risk. The Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac") and the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae") historically were agencies sponsored by the US government that were supported by the credit of the issuing agencies and not backed by the full faith and credit of the United States. However, on September 7, 2008, due to the value of Freddie Mac's and Fannie Mae's securities falling sharply and concerns that the firms did not have sufficient capital to offset losses resulting from the mortgage crisis, the Federal Housing Finance Agency placed Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae into conservatorship. In addition to the conservatorship, the US government has taken various steps to provide additional financial support to Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. The actions of the US government are intended to assist Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae in maintaining a positive net worth and meeting their financial obligations. Although the US government provided financial support to such entities, no assurance can be given that it will always do so.

The future for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac is uncertain. Under a letter agreement between the The Federal Housing Finance Agency ("FHFA") (in its role as conservator) and the US Treasury, the FHFA is prohibited from removing its conservatorship of each enterprise until all litigation regarding the conservatorship has ended and each enterprise has retained equity capital levels equal to three percent of their total assets. It is unclear how long it will be before the FHFA will be able to remove its conservatorship of the enterprises under this letter agreement. The FHFA has indicated that the conservatorship of each enterprise will end when the director of FHFA determines that FHFA's plan to restore the enterprise to a safe and solvent condition has been completed. The FHFA's 2022 report to Congress on the conservatorships noted that, under amendments to the Enterprise Regulatory Capital Framework ("ERCF"), Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac published their first capital disclosures in the first quarter of 2023 and delivered their first capital plans to FHFA in May 2023. Should Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac be taken out of conservatorship, it is unclear whether the US Treasury would continue to enforce its rights or perform its obligations under the Senior Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement. It is also unclear how the capital structure of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac would be constructed post-conservatorship, and what effects, if any, the privatization of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac will have on their creditworthiness and guarantees of certain mortgage-backed securities. The ERCF requires Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, upon exit from conservatorship, to maintain higher levels of capital than prior to conservatorship to satisfy their risk-based capital requirements, leverage ratio requirements, and prescribed buffer amounts. Accordingly, should the FHFA take Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac out of conservatorship, there could be an adverse impact on the value of their securities which could cause a fund's investments to lose value. The US Congress continues to evaluate proposals to reduce the US government's role in the mortgage market and to wind down, restructure, consolidate, or privatize Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Should the US government adopt any such proposal, the value of a fund's investments in securities issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac would be impacted.

US government securities also include separately traded principal and interest components of securities issued or guaranteed by the US Treasury, which are traded independently under the Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal of Securities ("STRIPS") program. Under the STRIPS program, the principal and interest components are individually numbered and separately issued by the US Treasury.

Treasury inflation-indexed securities ("TIIS") are Treasury bonds on which the principal value is adjusted daily in accordance with changes in the Consumer Price Index. Interest on TIIS is payable semi-annually on the adjusted principal value. The principal value of TIIS would decline during periods of deflation, but the principal amount payable at maturity would not be less than the original par amount. If inflation is lower than expected while a fund holds a TIIS, the fund may earn less on the TIIS than it would on conventional Treasury bonds. Any increase in the principal value of TIIS is taxable in the year the increase occurs, even though holders do not receive cash representing the increase at that time. See "Taxes—Other information" below.

Any controversy or ongoing uncertainty regarding the status of negotiations in the US Congress to increase the statutory debt ceiling could increase the risk that the US government may default on payments on certain US government securities, including those held by a fund, which could have a material adverse impact on the fund. The long-term US credit rating has been subject to downgrades by multiple major credit rating agencies since 2011, in part as a result of disagreements within the US government over raising the debt ceiling to repay outstanding obligations, and similar situations in the future could increase volatility in both stock and bond markets, result in higher interest rates, lower prices of US Treasury securities and increase the costs of different kinds of debt. It is at least theoretically possible that under certain scenarios the US government could default on its debt, including US Treasuries. UBS AM cannot predict the effects of these or similar events in the future on the US economy and securities markets or on a fund's portfolio.

**Asset-backed securities.** Asset-backed securities have structural characteristics similar to mortgage-backed securities, as discussed in more detail below. However, the underlying assets are not first lien mortgage loans or interests therein but include assets such as motor vehicle installment sales contracts, other installment sales contracts, home equity loans, leases of various types of real and personal property and receivables from revolving credit (credit card) agreements. Such assets are securitized through the use of trusts or special purpose corporations. Payments or distributions of principal and interest may be guaranteed up to a certain amount and for a certain time period by a letter of credit or pool insurance policy issued by a financial institution unaffiliated with the issuer, or other credit enhancements may be present. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Credit and liquidity enhancements." The market for asset-backed securities is volatile, which may negatively impact market liquidity conditions, as is the case with mortgage-backed securities, explained below.

Mortgage-backed securities. Mortgage-backed securities represent direct or indirect interests in pools of underlying mortgage loans that are secured by real property. US government mortgage-backed securities are issued or guaranteed as to the payment of principal and interest (but not as to market value) by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or other government sponsored enterprises. Other domestic mortgage-backed securities are sponsored or issued by private entities, generally originators of and investors in mortgage loans, including savings associations, mortgage bankers, commercial banks, investment bankers and special purposes entities (collectively, "Private Mortgage Lenders"). Payments of principal and interest (but not the market value) of such private mortgage-backed securities may be supported by pools of mortgage loans or other mortgage-backed securities that are guaranteed, directly or indirectly, by the US government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities, or they may be issued without any government guarantee of the underlying mortgage assets but with some form of non-government credit enhancement. Foreign mortgage-backed securities may be issued by mortgage banks and other private or governmental entities outside the United States and are supported by interests in foreign real estate.

Mortgage-backed securities that are issued or guaranteed by the US government, its agencies or instrumentalities are not subject to the funds' industry concentration restrictions, by virtue of the exclusion from that test available to all US government securities. In the case of privately issued mortgage-related securities, the funds take the position that mortgage-related securities do not represent interests in any particular "industry" or group of industries.

Mortgage-backed securities may be composed of one or more classes and may be structured either as pass-through securities or collateralized debt obligations. Multiple-class mortgage-backed securities are referred to herein as "CMOs." Some CMOs are directly supported by other CMOs, which in turn are supported by mortgage pools. Investors typically receive payments out of the interest and principal on the underlying mortgages. The portions of these payments that investors receive, as well as the priority of their rights to receive payments, are determined by the specific terms of the CMO class. CMOs involve special risk and evaluating them requires special knowledge.

A major difference between mortgage-backed securities and traditional bonds is that interest and principal payments are made more frequently (usually monthly) and that principal may be repaid at any time because the underlying mortgage loans may be prepaid at any time. When interest rates go down and homeowners refinance their mortgages, mortgage-backed securities may be paid off more quickly than investors expect. When interest rates

rise, mortgage-backed securities may be paid off more slowly than originally expected. Changes in the rate or "speed" of these prepayments can cause the value of mortgage-backed securities to fluctuate rapidly.

Mortgage-backed securities also may decrease in value as a result of increases in interest rates and, because of prepayments, may benefit less than other bonds from declining interest rates. Reinvestments of prepayments may occur at lower interest rates than the original investment, thus adversely affecting a fund's yield. Actual prepayment experience may cause the yield of a mortgage-backed security to differ from what was assumed when a fund purchased the security. Prepayments at a slower rate than expected may lengthen the effective life of a mortgage-backed security. The value of securities with longer effective lives generally fluctuates more widely in response to changes in interest rates than the value of securities with shorter effective lives.

Investments in mortgage-backed securities may be subject to a high degree of credit risk, valuation risk and liquidity risk. These risks may be even higher with mortgage-backed securities supported by subprime mortgages.

CMO classes may be specially structured in a manner that provides any of a wide variety of investment characteristics, such as yield, effective maturity and interest rate sensitivity. As market conditions change, however, and particularly during periods of rapid or unanticipated changes in market interest rates, the attractiveness of the CMO classes and the ability of the structure to provide the anticipated investment characteristics may be significantly reduced. These changes can result in volatility in the market value, and in some instances reduced liquidity, of the CMO class.

Certain classes of CMOs and other mortgage-backed securities are structured in a manner that makes them extremely sensitive to changes in prepayment rates. Interest-only ("IO") and principal-only ("PO") classes are examples of this. IOs are entitled to receive all or a portion of the interest, but none (or only a nominal amount) of the principal payments, from the underlying mortgage assets. If the mortgage assets underlying an IO experience greater than anticipated principal prepayments, then the total amount of interest payments allocable to the IO class, and therefore the yield to investors, generally will be reduced. In some instances, an investor in an IO may fail to recoup all of its initial investment, even if the security is government issued or guaranteed or is rated AAA or the equivalent. Conversely, PO classes are entitled to receive all or a portion of the principal payments, but none of the interest, from the underlying mortgage assets. PO classes are purchased at substantial discounts from par, and the yield to investors will be reduced if principal payments are slower than expected. Some IOs and POs, as well as other CMO classes, are structured to have special protections against the effects of prepayments. These structural protections, however, normally are effective only within certain ranges of prepayment rates and thus will not protect investors in all circumstances. Inverse floating rate CMO classes also may be extremely volatile. These classes pay interest at a rate that decreases when a specified index of market rates increases and vice versa. Any CMO or multi-class pass through structure that includes planned amortization class ("PAC") securities must also have support tranches—known as support bonds, companion bonds or non-PAC bonds—which lend or absorb principal cash flows to allow the PAC securities to maintain their stated maturities and final distribution dates within a range of actual prepayment experience. These support tranches are subject to a higher level of maturity risk compared to other mortgage-related securities, and usually provide a higher yield to compensate investors. If principal cash flows are received in amounts outside a pre-determined range such that the support bonds cannot lend or absorb sufficient cash flows to the PAC securities as intended, the PAC securities are subject to heightened maturity risk. Consistent with a fund's investment objectives and policies. A fund may invest in various tranches of CMO bonds, including support bonds.

The market for privately issued mortgage-backed securities is smaller and less liquid than the market for US government mortgage-backed securities. Foreign mortgage-backed securities markets are substantially smaller than US markets but have been established in several countries, including Germany, Denmark, Sweden, Canada and Australia, and may be developed elsewhere. Foreign mortgage-backed securities generally are structured differently than domestic mortgage-backed securities, but they normally present substantially similar investment risks as well as the other risks normally associated with foreign securities.

In the past, in certain market environments, the value and liquidity of many mortgage-backed securities declined sharply due primarily to increases in interest rates. There can be no assurance that such declines will not recur. The market value of certain mortgage-backed securities, including IO and PO classes of mortgage-backed securities, can be extremely volatile, and these securities may become illiquid. A fund's subadvisor seeks to manage its investments in mortgage-backed securities so that the volatility of its portfolio, taken as a whole, is consistent with its investment objective. Management of portfolio duration is an important part of this. However, computing the duration of mortgage-backed securities is complex. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Duration." If a fund's subadvisor does not compute the duration of mortgage-backed securities correctly, the value of its portfolio may be either more or less sensitive to changes in market interest rates than intended. In addition, if market interest rates or other factors that affect the volatility of securities held by a fund change in ways that its subadvisor does not anticipate, the fund's ability to meet its investment objective may be reduced.

On June 3, 2019, under the Federal Housing Finance Agency's "Single Security Initiative", Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac started issuing uniform mortgage-backed securities ("UMBS"). The Single Security Initiative seeks to align the characteristics of certain Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac mortgage-based securities and to support the overall liquidity in certain markets. In addition, Freddie Mac has offered investors the opportunity to exchange outstanding legacy mortgage-backed securities for mirror UMBS. The effects that the Single Security Initiative may have on the market and other mortgage-backed securities are uncertain.

More information concerning these mortgage-backed securities and the related risks of investments therein is set forth below. New types of mortgage-backed securities are developed and marketed from time to time and, consistent with its investment limitations, a fund expects to invest in those new types of mortgage-backed securities that its subadvisor believes may assist it in achieving its investment objective. Similarly, a fund may invest in mortgage-backed securities issued by new or existing governmental or private issuers other than those identified herein.

Ginnie Mae certificates—Ginnie Mae guarantees certain mortgage pass-through certificates ("Ginnie Mae certificates") that are issued by Private Mortgage Lenders and that represent ownership interests in individual pools of residential mortgage loans. These securities are designed to provide monthly payments of interest and principal to the investor. Timely payment of interest and principal is backed by the full faith and credit of the US government. Each mortgagor's monthly payments to his lending institution on his residential mortgage are "passed through" to certificateholders such as the funds. Mortgage pools consist of whole mortgage loans or participations in loans. The terms and characteristics of the mortgage instruments are generally uniform within a pool but may vary among pools. Lending institutions that originate mortgages for the pools are subject to certain standards, including credit and other underwriting criteria for individual mortgages included in the pools.

Fannie Mae certificates—Fannie Mae facilitates a national secondary market in residential mortgage loans insured or guaranteed by US government agencies and in privately insured or uninsured residential mortgage loans (sometimes referred to as "conventional mortgage loans" or "conventional loans") through its mortgage purchase and mortgage-backed securities sales activities. Fannie Mae issues guaranteed mortgage pass-through certificates ("Fannie Mae certificates"), which represent pro rata shares of all interest and principal payments made and owed on the underlying pools. Fannie Mae guarantees timely payment of interest and principal on Fannie Mae certificates. Obligations issued by Fannie Mae historically have been supported only by the credit of the issuer, but currently the agency is placed into conservatorship by the US government. The effect that this conservatorship will have on the entity and its guarantee is uncertain. Although the US government and its agencies provide financial support to the entity, no assurances can be given that they will always do so.

Freddie Mac certificates—Freddie Mac also facilitates a national secondary market for conventional residential and US government-insured mortgage loans through its mortgage purchase and mortgage-backed securities sales activities. Freddie Mac issues two types of mortgage pass-through securities: mortgage participation certificates ("PCs") and guaranteed mortgage certificates ("GMCs"). Each PC represents a pro rata share of all interest and principal payments made and owed on the underlying pool. Freddie Mac generally guarantees timely monthly payment of

interest on PCs and the ultimate payment of principal, but it also has a PC program under which it guarantees timely payment of both principal and interest. GMCs also represent a pro rata interest in a pool of mortgages. These instruments, however, pay interest semi-annually and return principal once a year in guaranteed minimum payments. Obligations issued by Freddie Mac historically have been supported only by the credit of the issuer, but currently the agency is placed into conservatorship by the US government. The effect that this conservatorship will have on the entity and its guarantee is uncertain. Although the US government and its agencies provide financial support to the entity, no assurances can be given that they will always do so.

Private mortgage-backed securities—Mortgage-backed securities issued by Private Mortgage Lenders are structured similarly to CMOs issued or guaranteed by Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. Such mortgage-backed securities may be supported by pools of US government or agency insured or guaranteed mortgage loans or by other mortgage-backed securities issued by a government agency or instrumentality, but they generally are supported by pools of conventional (i.e., non-government guaranteed or insured) mortgage loans. Since such mortgage-backed securities normally are not guaranteed by an entity having the credit standing of Ginnie Mae, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, they normally are structured with one or more types of credit enhancement. See "The funds' investments, related risks and limitations—Mortgage-backed securities—Types of credit enhancement." These credit enhancements do not protect investors from changes in market value.

Collateralized mortgage obligations and multi-class mortgage pass-throughs—CMOs are debt obligations that are collateralized by mortgage loans or mortgage pass-through securities (collectively, "Mortgage Assets"). CMOs may be issued by Private Mortgage Lenders or by government entities such as Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. Multi-class mortgage pass-through securities are interests in trusts that are comprised of Mortgage Assets and that have multi-ple classes similar to those in CMOs. Unless the context indicates otherwise, references herein to CMOs include multi-class mortgage pass-through securities. Payments of principal of, and interest on, the Mortgage Assets (and in the case of CMOs, any reinvestment income thereon) provide the proceeds to pay the debt service on the CMOs or to make scheduled distributions on the multi-class mortgage pass-through securities.

In a CMO, a series of bonds or certificates is issued in multiple classes. Each class of CMO, also referred to as a "tranche," is issued at a specific fixed or floating coupon rate and has a stated maturity or final distribution date. Principal prepayments on the Mortgage Assets may cause CMOs to be retired substantially earlier than their stated maturities or final distribution dates. Interest is paid or accrued on all classes of a CMO (other than any PO class) on a monthly, quarterly or semi-annual basis. The principal and interest on the Mortgage Assets may be allocated among the several classes of a CMO in many ways. In one structure, payments of principal, including any principal prepayments, on the Mortgage Assets are applied to the classes of a CMO in the order of their respective stated maturities or final distribution dates so that no payment of principal will be made on any class of the CMO until all other classes having an earlier stated maturity or final distribution date have been paid in full. In some CMO structures, all or a portion of the interest attributable to one or more of the CMO classes may be added to the principal amounts attributable to such classes, rather than passed through to certificateholders on a current basis, until other classes of the CMO are paid in full.

Parallel pay CMOs are structured to provide payments of principal on each payment date to more than one class. These simultaneous payments are taken into account in calculating the stated maturity date or final distribution date of each class, which, as with other CMO structures, must be retired by its stated maturity date or final distribution date but may be retired earlier.

Some CMO classes are structured to pay interest at rates that are adjusted in accordance with a formula, such as a multiple or fraction of the change in a specified interest rate index, so as to pay at a rate that will be attractive in certain interest rate environments but not in others. For example, an inverse floating rate CMO class pays interest at a rate that increases as a specified interest rate index decreases but decreases as that index increases. For other CMO classes, the yield may move in the same direction as market interest rates—i.e., the yield may increase as rates increase and decrease as rates decrease—but may do so more rapidly or to a greater degree. The market value of

such securities generally is more volatile than that of a fixed rate obligation. Such interest rate formulas may be combined with other CMO characteristics. For example, a CMO class may be an inverse IO class, on which the holders are entitled to receive no payments of principal and are entitled to receive interest at a rate that will vary inversely with a specified index or a multiple thereof.

Types of credit enhancement—To lessen the effect of failures by obligors on Mortgage Assets to make payments, mortgage-backed securities may contain elements of credit enhancement. Such credit enhancement falls into two categories: (1) liquidity protection and (2) loss protection. Loss protection relates to losses resulting after default by an obligor on the underlying assets and collection of all amounts recoverable directly from the obligor and through liquidation of the collateral. Liquidity protection refers to the provision of advances, generally by the entity administering the pool of assets (usually the bank, savings association or mortgage banker that transferred the underlying loans to the issuer of the security), to ensure that the receipt of payments on the underlying pool occurs in a timely fashion. Loss protection ensures ultimate payment of the obligations on at least a portion of the assets in the pool. Such protection may be provided through guarantees, insurance policies or letters of credit obtained by the issuer or sponsor, from third parties, through various means of structuring the transaction or through a combination of such approaches. A fund will not pay any additional fees for such credit enhancement, although the existence of credit enhancement may increase the price of a security. Credit enhancements do not provide protection against changes in the market value of the security. Examples of credit enhancement arising out of the structure of the transaction include "senior-subordinated securities" (multiple class securities with one or more classes subordinate to other classes as to the payment of principal thereof and interest thereon, with the result that defaults on the underlying assets are borne first by the holders of the subordinated class), creation of "spread accounts" or "reserve funds" (where cash or investments, sometimes funded from a portion of the payments on the underlying assets, are held in reserve against future losses) and "over-collateralization" (where the scheduled payments on, or the principal amount of, the underlying assets exceed that required to make payment of the securities and pay any servicing or other fees). The degree of credit enhancement provided for each issue generally is based on historical information regarding the level of credit risk associated with the underlying assets. Delinquency or loss in excess of that anticipated could adversely affect the return on an investment in such a security.

Special characteristics of mortgage- and asset-backed securities—The yield characteristics of mortgage- and asset-backed securities differ from those of traditional debt securities. Among the major differences are that interest and principal payments are made more frequently, usually monthly, and that principal may be prepaid at any time because the underlying mortgage loans or other obligations generally may be prepaid at any time. Prepayments on a pool of mortgage loans are influenced by a variety of economic, geographic, social and other factors, including changes in mortgagors' housing needs, job transfers, unemployment, mortgagors' net equity in the mortgaged properties and servicing decisions. Generally, however, prepayments on fixed-rate mortgage loans will increase during a period of falling interest rates and decrease during a period of rising interest rates. Similar factors apply to prepayments on asset-backed securities, but the receivables underlying asset-backed securities generally are of a shorter maturity and thus are less likely to experience substantial prepayments. Such securities, however, often provide that for a specified time period the issuers will replace receivables in the pool that are repaid with comparable obligations. If the issuer is unable to do so, repayment of principal on the asset-backed securities may commence at an earlier date. Mortgage- and asset-backed securities may decrease in value as a result of increases in interest rates and may benefit less than other fixed-income securities from declining interest rates because of the risk of prepayment.

The rate of interest on mortgage-backed securities is lower than the interest rates paid on the mortgages included in the underlying pool due to the annual fees paid to the servicer of the mortgage pool for passing through monthly payments to certificateholders and to any guarantor, and due to any yield retained by the issuer. Actual yield to the holder may vary from the coupon rate, even if adjustable, if the mortgage-backed securities are purchased or traded in the secondary market at a premium or discount. In addition, there is normally some delay between the time the issuer receives mortgage payments from the servicer and the time the issuer makes the payments on the mortgage-backed securities, and this delay reduces the effective yield to the holder of such securities.

Yields on pass-through securities are typically quoted by investment dealers and vendors based on the maturity of the underlying instruments and the associated average life assumption. The average life of pass-through pools varies with the maturities of the underlying mortgage loans. A pool's term may be shortened by unscheduled or early payments of principal on the underlying mortgages. Because prepayment rates of individual pools vary widely, it is not possible to predict accurately the average life of a particular pool. In the past, a common industry practice was to assume that prepayments on pools of fixed rate 30-year mortgages would result in a 12-year average life for the pool. At present, mortgage pools, particularly those with loans with other maturities or different characteristics, are priced on an assumption of average life determined for each pool. In periods of declining interest rates, the rate of prepayment tends to increase, thereby shortening the actual average life of a pool of mortgage-related securities. Conversely, in periods of rising interest rates, the rate of prepayment tends to decrease, thereby lengthening the actual average life of the pool. However, these effects may not be present, or may differ in degree, if the mortgage loans in the pools have adjustable interest rates or other special payment terms, such as a prepayment charge. Actual prepayment experience may cause the yield of mortgage-backed securities to differ from the assumed average life yield. Reinvestment of prepayments may occur at lower interest rates than the original investment, thus adversely affecting a fund's yield.

Adjustable rate mortgage and floating rate mortgage-backed securities—Adjustable rate mortgage securities are mortgage-backed securities (sometimes referred to as "ARMs") that represent a right to receive interest payments at a rate that is adjusted to reflect the interest earned on a pool of mortgage loans bearing variable or adjustable rates of interest. Floating rate mortgage-backed securities are classes of mortgage-backed securities that have been structured to represent the right to receive interest payments at rates that fluctuate in accordance with an index but that generally are supported by pools comprised of fixed-rate mortgage loans. Because the interest rates on ARMs and floating rate mortgage-backed securities are reset in response to changes in a specified market index, the values of such securities tend to be less sensitive to interest rate fluctuations than the values of fixed-rate securities. As a result, during periods of rising interest rates, ARMs generally do not decrease in value as much as fixed rate securities. Conversely, during periods of declining rates, ARMs generally do not increase in value as much as fixed rate securities. ARMs represent a right to receive interest payments at a rate that is adjusted to reflect the interest earned on a pool of ARM loans. These mortgage loans generally specify that the borrower's mortgage interest rate may not be adjusted above a specified lifetime maximum rate or, in some cases, below a minimum lifetime rate. In addition, certain ARM loans specify limitations on the maximum amount by which the mortgage interest rate may adjust for any single adjustment period. These mortgage loans also may limit changes in the maximum amount by which the borrower's monthly payment may adjust for any single adjustment period. If a monthly payment is not sufficient to pay the interest accruing on the ARM, any such excess interest is added to the mortgage loan ("negative amortization"), which is repaid through future payments. If the monthly payment exceeds the sum of the interest accrued at the applicable mortgage interest rate and the principal payment that would have been necessary to amortize the outstanding principal balance over the remaining term of the loan, the excess reduces the principal balance of the ARM loan. Borrowers under these mortgage loans experiencing negative amortization may take longer to build up their equity in the underlying property and may be more likely to default.

ARM loans also may be subject to a greater rate of prepayments in a declining interest rate environment. For example, during a period of declining interest rates, prepayments on these mortgage loans could increase because the availability of fixed mortgage loans at competitive interest rates may encourage mortgagors to "lock-in" at a lower interest rate. Conversely, during a period of rising interest rates, prepayments on ARM loans might decrease. The rate of prepayments with respect to ARM loans has fluctuated in recent years.

The rates of interest payable on certain ARM loans, and therefore on certain ARM securities, are based on indices, such as the one-year constant maturity Treasury rate, that reflect changes in market interest rates. Others are based on indices, such as the 11th District Federal Home Loan Bank Cost of Funds Index, that tend to lag behind changes in market interest rates. The values of ARM securities supported by ARM loans that adjust based on lagging indices tend to be somewhat more sensitive to interest rate fluctuations than those reflecting current interest rate levels,

although the values of such ARM securities still tend to be less sensitive to interest rate fluctuations than fixed-rate securities.

Floating rate mortgage-backed securities are classes of mortgage-backed securities that have been structured to represent the right to receive interest payments at rates that fluctuate in accordance with an index but that generally are supported by pools comprised of fixed-rate mortgage loans. As with ARM securities, interest rate adjustments on floating rate mortgage-backed securities may be based on indices that lag behind market interest rates. Interest rates on floating rate mortgage-backed securities generally are adjusted monthly. Floating rate mortgage-backed securities are subject to lifetime interest rate caps, but they generally are not subject to limitations on monthly or other periodic changes in interest rates or monthly payments.

Collateralized debt obligations. The funds may invest in collateralized bond obligations ("CBOs"), collateralized loan obligations ("CLOs"), other collateralized debt obligations ("CDOs") and other similarly structured securities. CBOs, CLOs and other CDOs are types of asset-backed securities. A CBO is a trust which is often backed by a diversified pool of fixed income securities. The collateral can be from many different types of fixed income securities such as high yield debt, residential privately issued mortgage-related securities, trust preferred securities and emerging market debt. A CLO is a trust typically collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, among others, domestic and foreign senior secured loans, senior unsecured loans, and subordinate corporate loans, including loans that may be rated below investment grade or equivalent unrated loans. Other CDOs are trusts backed by other types of assets representing obligations of various parties. CBOs, CLOs and other CDOs may charge management fees and administrative expenses.

For both CBOs and CLOs, the cashflows from the trust are split into two or more portions, called tranches, varying in risk and yield. The riskiest portion is the "equity" tranche which bears the bulk of defaults from the bonds or loans in the trust and serves to protect the other, more senior tranches from default in all but the most severe circumstances. Since it is partially protected from defaults, a senior tranche from a CBO trust or CLO trust typically have higher ratings and lower yields than their underlying securities, and can be rated investment grade. Despite the protection from the equity tranche, CBO or CLO tranches can experience substantial losses due to actual defaults, increased sensitivity to defaults due to collateral default and disappearance of protecting tranches, market anticipation of defaults, as well as aversion to CBO or CLO securities as a class.

The risks of an investment in a CDO depend largely on the type of the collateral securities and the class of the CDO in which a fund invests. Normally, CBOs, CLOs and other CDOs are privately offered and sold, and thus, are not registered under the securities laws. As a result, investments in CDOs may be characterized by the funds as illiquid investments, however an active dealer market may exist for CDOs allowing a CDO to qualify for Rule 144A transactions. In addition to the normal risks associated with fixed income securities discussed elsewhere in this SAI and the funds' prospectuses (e.g., interest rate risk and default risk), CDOs carry additional risks including, but are not limited to, the risk that: (1) distributions from collateral securities may not be adequate to make interest or other payments; (2) the quality of the collateral may decline in value or default; (3) the funds may invest in CDOs that are subordinate to other classes; and (4) the complex structure of the security may not be fully understood at the time of investment and may produce disputes with the issuer or unexpected investment results.

Some of the loans in which a fund may invest or to which a fund may gain exposure through its investments in CDOs, CLOs, or other types of structured securities may be covenant-lite loans, which impose fewer or less restrictive constraints on the borrower than certain other types of loans. Covenant-lite loans generally do not include terms that allow the lender to monitor the performance of the borrower and declare a default or force a borrower into bankruptcy restructuring if certain quantitative criteria related to the borrower's financial condition are breached. Under such loans, lenders typically must rely on covenants that restrict a company from incurring additional debt or engaging in certain actions, in each case generally subject to certain exceptions, which exceptions may be broader or more extensive in covenant-lite loans relative to certain other types of loans. Such covenants can

only be breached by an affirmative action of the borrower, rather than by a deterioration in the borrower's financial condition. Accordingly, a fund may have fewer rights against a borrower when it invests in or has exposure to covenant-lite loans and, accordingly, may have a greater risk of loss on such investments as compared to investments in or exposure to loans with additional or more traditional covenants.

**Credit and liquidity enhancements.** A fund may invest in securities that have credit or liquidity enhancements or may purchase these types of enhancements in the secondary market. Such enhancements may be structured as demand features that permit the fund to sell the instrument at designated times and prices. These credit and liquidity enhancements may be backed by letters of credit or other instruments provided by banks or other financial institutions whose credit standing affects the credit quality of the underlying obligation. Changes in the credit quality of these financial institutions could cause losses to a fund and affect its share price. The credit and liquidity enhancements may have conditions that limit the ability of a fund to use them when the fund wishes to do so.

**Investing in non-US securities.** Investing in non-US securities may involve more risks than investing in US securities. Investments in non-US securities involve risks relating to political, social and economic developments abroad, as well as risks resulting from the differences between the regulations to which US and non-US issuers and markets are subject. These risks may include expropriation or nationalization of assets, confiscatory or punitive taxation, withholding taxes on interest and/or dividends, limitations on the use of or transfer of fund assets, political or social instability, military action, and diplomatic developments, including sanctions imposed by other countries or governmental entities. Moreover, individual non-US economies may differ favorably or unfavorably from the US economy in such respects as growth of gross domestic product, rate of inflation, currency depreciation, capital reinvestment, resource self-sufficiency and balance of payments position. In those European countries that are using the Euro as a common currency unit, individual national economies may be adversely affected by the inability of national governments to use monetary policy to address their own economic or political concerns.

Securities of non-US issuers may not be registered with the SEC, and the issuers thereof may not be subject to its reporting requirements. Accordingly, there may be less publicly available information concerning non-US issuers of securities held by a fund than is available concerning US companies. Non-US companies are not generally subject to uniform accounting, auditing and financial reporting standards or to other regulatory requirements comparable to those applicable to US companies.

Securities of many non-US companies may be less liquid and their prices more volatile than securities of comparable US companies. A fund, therefore, may encounter difficulty in obtaining market quotations for purposes of valuing its portfolio and calculating its net asset value. From time to time non-US securities may be difficult to liquidate rapidly without significantly depressing the price of such securities. Foreign markets have different clearance and settlement procedures, and in certain markets there have been times when settlements have failed to keep pace with the volume of securities transactions, making it difficult to conduct such transactions. Delays in settlement could result in temporary periods when some of a fund's assets are uninvested and no return is earned thereon. The inability of a fund to make intended security purchases due to settlement problems could cause the fund to miss attractive investment opportunities. Inability to dispose of a portfolio security due to settlement problems could result either in losses to the fund due to subsequent declines in the value of such portfolio security or, if the fund has entered into a contract to sell the security, could result in possible liability to the purchaser. Non-US securities trading practices, including those involving securities settlement where fund assets may be released prior to receipt of payment, may expose a fund to increased risk in the event of a failed trade or the insolvency of a foreign broker-dealer. Legal remedies for defaults and disputes may have to be pursued in non-US courts, whose procedures differ substantially from those of US courts.

The costs of investing outside the United States frequently are higher than those attributable to investing in the United States. This is particularly true with respect to emerging markets. For example, the cost of maintaining custody of non-US securities often exceeds custodian costs for domestic securities, and transaction and settlement

costs of foreign investing frequently are higher than those attributable to domestic investing. Costs associated with the exchange of currencies also make non-US investing more expensive than domestic investing.

A fund may invest in non-US securities by purchasing depositary receipts, including ADRs, European Depositary Receipts ("EDRs") and Global Depositary Receipts ("GDRs"), or other securities convertible into securities of issuers based in non-US countries. These securities may not necessarily be denominated in the same currency as the securities into which they may be converted. ADRs are receipts typically issued by a US bank or trust company evidencing ownership of the underlying securities. They generally are in registered form, are denominated in US dollars and are designed for use in the US securities markets. EDRs are European receipts evidencing a similar arrangement, may be denominated in other currencies and are designed for use in European securities markets. GDRs are similar to EDRs and are designed for use in several international financial markets. For purposes of each fund's investment policies, depositary receipts generally are deemed to have the same classification as the underlying securities they represent. Thus, a depositary receipt representing ownership of common stock will be treated as common stock.

ADRs are publicly traded on exchanges or over-the-counter in the United States and are issued through "sponsored" or "unsponsored" arrangements. In a sponsored ADR arrangement, the non-US issuer assumes the obligation to pay some or all of the depositary's transaction fees, whereas under an unsponsored arrangement, the non-US issuer assumes no obligations, and the depositary's transaction fees are paid directly by the ADR holders. In addition, less information is available in the United States about an unsponsored ADR than about a sponsored ADR.

Eurodollar bonds and Yankee bonds are types of US dollar denominated non-US securities. Eurodollar bonds are US dollar denominated bonds that are held outside the United States, primarily in Europe. Yankee bonds are US dollar denominated bonds of non-US issuers that are sold primarily in the United States.

The funds that invest outside the United States anticipate that their brokerage transactions involving non-US securities of companies headquartered in countries other than the United States will be conducted primarily on the principal exchanges of such countries. Although each fund will endeavor to achieve the best net results in effecting its portfolio transactions, transactions on non-US exchanges are usually subject to fixed commissions that are generally higher than negotiated commissions on US transactions. There is generally less government supervision and regulation of exchanges and brokers in non-US countries than in the United States.

Investment income and gains on certain non-US securities in which the funds may invest may be subject to non-US withholding or other taxes that could reduce the return on these securities. Tax conventions between the United States and certain non-US countries, however, may reduce or eliminate the amount of non-US taxes to which the funds would be subject. In addition, substantial limitations may exist in certain countries with respect to the funds' ability to repatriate investment capital or the proceeds of sales of securities.

The risk of investing in Europe may be heightened due to a June 2016 referendum in which the citizens of the United Kingdom ("UK") decided to exit the European Union ("EU") (referred to as "Brexit"). On January 31, 2020, the UK officially withdrew from the EU, and effective January 1, 2021, the UK and the EU reached an agreement on the terms of their trading relationship, which principally relates to the trading of goods. The UK and EU are expected to continue discussing matters not covered by the trade agreement, such as financial services. While it is not possible to determine the precise impact these events may have on the fund, during this period and beyond, the impact on the UK and European economies and the broader global economy could be significant, and result in negative impacts, such as increased volatility and illiquidity, and potentially lower economic growth on markets in the UK, Europe and globally, which may adversely affect the value of the fund's investments. In addition, if one or more countries were to exit the EU or abandon the use of the euro as a currency, the value of investments tied to those countries or the euro could decline significantly and unpredictably.

Uncertainty regarding the policies of the US government, including with regard to the imposition of trade tariffs, embargoes or other restrictions or limitations on trade, could lead to further disruption in the global markets. Trends

and historical events do not imply, forecast or predict future events, and past performance is not necessarily indicative of future results. There can be no assurance that the assumptions made or the beliefs and expectations currently held by UBS AM will prove correct, and actual events and circumstances may vary significantly.

**Foreign currency risks.** Currency risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates may reduce the US dollar value of a fund's foreign investments. If the value of a foreign currency rises against the value of the US dollar, the value of a fund's investments that are denominated in, or linked to, that currency will increase. Conversely, if the value of a foreign currency declines against the value of the US dollar, the value of those fund investments will decrease. These changes may have a significant impact on the value of fund shares. In some instances, a fund may use derivative strategies to hedge against changes in foreign currency value. (See "Strategies using derivative instruments," below.) However, opportunities to hedge against currency risk may not exist in certain markets, particularly with respect to emerging market currencies, and even when appropriate hedging opportunities are available, a fund may choose not to hedge against currency risk.

Generally, currency exchange rates are determined by supply and demand in the foreign exchange markets and the relative merits of investments in different countries. In the case of those European countries that use the Euro as a common currency unit, the relative merits of investments in the common market in which they participate, rather than the merits of investments in the individual country, will be a determinant of currency exchange rates. Currency exchange rates also can be affected by the intervention of the US and foreign governments or central banks, the imposition of currency controls, speculation, devaluation or other political or economic developments inside and outside the United States.

Each fund values its assets daily in US dollars, and funds that hold foreign currencies do not intend to convert them to US dollars on a daily basis. From time to time a fund may convert foreign currency to US dollars or hold its foreign currencies as "foreign currency call accounts" at foreign branches of foreign or domestic banks. These accounts bear interest at negotiated rates and are payable upon relatively short demand periods. If a bank became insolvent, a fund could suffer a loss of some or all of the amounts deposited.

The value of the assets of a fund as measured in US dollars may be affected favorably or unfavorably by fluctuations in currency rates and exchange control regulations. Further, a fund may incur costs in connection with conversions between various currencies. Currency exchange dealers realize a profit based on the difference between the prices at which they are buying and selling various currencies. Thus, a dealer normally will offer to sell a foreign currency to a fund at one rate, while offering a lesser rate of exchange should a fund desire immediately to resell that currency to the dealer. A fund may conduct its currency exchange transactions either on a spot (i.e., cash) basis at the spot rate prevailing in the foreign currency exchange market, or through entering into forward, futures or options contracts to purchase or sell foreign currencies or through other transactions.

**Emerging market investments.** The special risks of investing in foreign securities are heightened in emerging markets. For example, many emerging market currencies have experienced significant devaluations relative to the US dollar in the past. Emerging market countries typically have economic and political systems that are less fully developed and can be expected to be less stable than those of developed countries. Emerging market countries may have policies that restrict investment by foreigners, and there is a higher risk of government expropriation or nationalization of private property. The possibility of low or nonexistent trading volume in the securities of companies in emerging markets also may result in a lack of liquidity and in price volatility. Issuers in emerging markets typically are subject to a greater degree of change in earnings and business prospects than are companies in more developed markets.

Investment and repatriation restrictions—Foreign investment in the securities markets of several emerging market countries is restricted or controlled to varying degrees. These restrictions may limit a fund's investment in these countries and may increase its expenses. For example, certain countries may require governmental approval prior to investments by foreign persons in a particular company or industry sector or limit investment by foreign persons to

only a specific class of securities of a company, which may have less advantageous terms (including price) than securities of the company available for purchase by nationals. Certain countries may restrict or prohibit investment opportunities in issuers or industries deemed important to national interests. In addition, the repatriation of both investment income and capital from some emerging market countries is subject to restrictions, such as the need for certain government consents. Even where there is no outright restriction on repatriation of capital, the mechanics of repatriation may affect certain aspects of a fund's operations. These restrictions may in the future make it undesirable to invest in the countries to which they apply. In addition, if there is a deterioration in a country's balance of payments or for other reasons, a country may impose restrictions on foreign capital remittances abroad. A fund could be adversely affected by delays in, or a refusal to grant, any required governmental approval for repatriation, as well as by the application to it of other restrictions on investments.

If, because of restrictions on repatriation or conversion, a fund were unable to distribute substantially all of its net investment income and capital gains within applicable time periods, the fund would be subject to federal income and/or excise taxes that would not otherwise be incurred and could cease to qualify for the favorable tax treatment afforded to regulated investment companies under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code"). If it did cease to qualify for that treatment, it would become subject to federal income tax on all of its income and net gains. See "Taxes—Qualification as a Regulated Investment Company," below.

Differences between the US and emerging market securities markets—Most of the securities markets of emerging market countries have substantially less volume than the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"), and equity securities of most companies in emerging market countries are less liquid and more volatile than equity securities of US companies of comparable size. Some of the stock exchanges in emerging market countries are in the earliest stages of their development. As a result, security settlements may in some instances be subject to delays and related administrative uncertainties. Many companies traded on securities markets in emerging market countries are smaller, newer and less seasoned than companies whose securities are traded on securities markets in the United States. Investments in smaller companies involve greater risk than is customarily associated with investing in larger companies. Smaller companies may have limited product lines, markets or financial or managerial resources and may be more susceptible to losses and risks of bankruptcy. Additionally, market-making and arbitrage activities are generally less extensive in such markets, which may contribute to increased volatility and reduced liquidity of such markets. Accordingly, each of these markets may be subject to greater influence by adverse events generally affecting the market, and by large investors trading significant blocks of securities, than is usual in the United States. To the extent that an emerging market country experiences rapid increases in its money supply and investment in equity securities for speculative purposes, the equity securities traded in that country may trade at price-earnings multiples higher than those of comparable companies trading on securities markets in the United States, which may not be sustainable.

Government supervision of emerging market securities markets; legal systems—There is also less government supervision and regulation of securities exchanges, listed companies and brokers in emerging market countries than exists in the United States, which may result in greater potential for fraud or market manipulation. In addition, less information may be available to a fund than with respect to investments in the United States. Further, in certain countries, less information may be available to a fund than to local market participants. Brokers in other countries may not be as well capitalized as those in the United States, so that they are more susceptible to financial failure in times of market, political or economic stress.

Social, political and economic factors—Many emerging market countries may be subject to a greater degree of social, political and economic instability than is the case in the United States. Any change in the leadership or policies of these countries may halt the expansion of or reverse any liberalization of foreign investment policies now occurring. Such instability may result from, among other things, the following: (1) authoritarian governments or military involvement in political and economic decision making, and changes in government through extraconstitutional means; (2) popular unrest associated with demands for improved political, economic and social conditions; (3) internal insurgencies and terrorism; (4) hostile relations with neighboring countries; and (5) ethnic, religious and racial disaffection. Such social, political and economic instability could significantly disrupt the financial

markets in those countries and elsewhere and could adversely affect the value of a fund's assets. In addition, there may be the possibility of asset expropriations or future confiscatory levels of taxation affecting a fund.

The economies of many emerging markets are heavily dependent upon international trade and are accordingly affected by protective trade barriers and the economic conditions of their trading partners, principally the United States, Japan, China and the European Union. The enactment by the United States or other principal trading partners of protectionist trade legislation, reduction of foreign investment in the local economies and general declines in the international securities markets could have a significant adverse effect upon the securities markets of these countries. In addition, the economies of some countries are vulnerable to weakness in world prices for their commodity exports, including crude oil. A country whose exports are concentrated in a few commodities could be vulnerable to a decline in the international price of such commodities.

From time to time, certain of the companies in which certain funds expect to invest may operate in, or have dealings with, countries subject to sanctions or embargoes imposed by the US Government and the United Nations and/or countries identified by the US Government as state sponsors of terrorism. A company may suffer damage to its reputation if it is identified as a company which operates in, or has dealings with, countries subject to sanctions or embargoes imposed by the US Government and the United Nations and/or countries identified by the US Government as state sponsors of terrorism. Economic sanctions could also, among other things, effectively restrict or eliminate a fund's ability to purchase or sell securities or groups of securities for a substantial period of time, and may make a fund's investments in such securities harder to value.

Financial information and legal standards—Issuers in emerging market countries generally are subject to accounting, auditing and financial standards and requirements that differ, in some cases significantly, from those applicable to US issuers. In particular, the assets and profits appearing on the financial statements of an emerging market issuer may not reflect its financial position or results of operations in the way they would be reflected had the financial statements been prepared in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles. In addition, for an issuer that keeps accounting records in local currency, inflation accounting rules may require, for both tax and accounting purposes, that certain assets and liabilities be restated on the issuer's balance sheet in order to express items in terms of currency of constant purchasing power. Inflation accounting may indirectly generate losses or profits. Consequently, financial data may be materially affected by restatements for inflation and may not accurately reflect the real condition of those issuers and securities markets. Also, securities brokers and dealers in other countries may not be as well capitalized as those in the United States, so that they are more susceptible to financial failure in times of market, political or economic stress.

In addition, existing laws and regulations are often inconsistently applied. As legal systems in some of the emerging market countries develop, foreign investors may be adversely affected by new laws and regulations, changes to existing laws and regulations and preemption of local laws and regulations by national laws. In circumstances where adequate laws exist, it may not be possible to obtain swift and equitable enforcement of the law.

**Investments in China.** There are special risks associated with investments in China (including Chinese companies listed on US and Hong Kong exchanges), Hong Kong and Taiwan, including exposure to currency fluctuations, less liquidity, expropriation, confiscatory taxation, nationalization and exchange control regulations (including currency blockage). Inflation and rapid fluctuations in inflation and interest rates have had, and may continue to have, negative effects on the economy and securities markets of China, Hong Kong and Taiwan. In addition, investments in Taiwan and Hong Kong could be adversely affected by their respective political and economic relationship with China. China, Hong Kong and Taiwan are deemed by the investment manager to be emerging markets countries, which means an investment in these countries has more heightened risks than general foreign investing due to a lack of established legal, political, business and social frameworks and accounting standards or auditor oversight in these countries to support securities markets as well as the possibility for more widespread corruption and fraud. In addition, the standards for environmental, social and corporate governance matters in China, Hong Kong and Taiwan tend to be lower than such standards in more developed economies. There may be significant obstacles to

obtaining information necessary for investigations into or litigation against companies located in or operating in China and shareholders may have limited legal remedies.

Certain securities issued by companies located or operating in China, such as China A-shares, are subject to trading restrictions, quota limitations and less market liquidity. Significant portions of the Chinese securities markets may become rapidly illiquid, as Chinese issuers have the ability to suspend the trading of their equity securities, and have shown a willingness to exercise that option in response to market volatility and other events. The liquidity of Chinese securities may shrink or disappear suddenly and without warning as a result of adverse economic, market or political events, or adverse investor perceptions, whether or not accurate.

Export growth continues to be a major driver of China's rapid economic growth. As a result, a reduction in spending on Chinese products and services, a slowdown in the housing construction and development markets, institution of tariffs or other trade barriers, trade or political disputes with China's major trading partners, or a downturn in any of the economies of China's key trading partners may have an adverse impact on the Chinese economy. Trade disputes may trigger a significant reduction in international trade, the oversupply of certain manufactured goods, substantial price reductions of goods and possible failure of individual companies and/or large segments of China's export industry, which could have a negative impact on the fund's performance. Events such as these and their consequences are difficult to predict and it is unclear whether further tariffs may be imposed or other escalating actions may be taken in the future.

Additionally, developing countries, such as those in Greater China, may subject a fund's investments to a number of tax rules, and the application of many of those rules may be uncertain. Moreover, China has implemented a number of tax reforms in recent years, and may amend or revise its existing tax laws and/or procedures in the future, possibly with retroactive effect. Changes in applicable Chinese tax law could reduce the after-tax profits of the funds, directly or indirectly, including by reducing the after-tax profits of companies in China in which a fund invests. Chinese taxes that may apply to the fund's investments include income tax or withholding tax on dividends, interest or gains earned by the fund, business tax and stamp duty. Uncertainties in Chinese tax rules could result in unexpected tax liabilities for the fund.

In December 2020, the US Congress passed the Holding Foreign Companies Accountable Act ("HFCAA"). The HFCAA provides that after three consecutive years of determinations by the US Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") that positions taken by authorities in the People's Republic of China obstructed the PCAOB's ability to inspect and investigate registered public accounting firms in mainland China and Hong Kong completely, the companies audited by those firms would be subject to a trading prohibition on US markets. On August 26, 2022, the PCAOB signed a Statement of Protocol with the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the Ministry of Finance of the People's Republic of China to grant the PCAOB access to inspect and investigate registered public accounting firms in mainland China and Hong Kong completely, consistent with US law. To the extent the PCAOB remains unable to inspect audit work papers and practices of PCAOB-registered accounting firms in China with respect to their audit work of US reporting companies, such inability may impose significant additional risks associated with investments in China. Further, to the extent a fund invests in the securities of a company whose securities become subject to a trading prohibition, the fund's ability to transact in such securities, and the liquidity of the securities, as well as their market price, would likely be adversely affected.

**Variable interest entities.** A fund's investments in emerging markets may also include investments in US- or Hong Kong-listed issuers that have entered into contractual relationships with a China-based business and/or individuals/entities affiliated with the business structured as a variable interest entity ("VIE"). Instead of directly owning the equity interests in a Chinese company, the listed company has contractual arrangements with the Chinese company, which are expected to provide the listed company with exposure to the China-based company. These arrangements are often used because of Chinese governmental restrictions on non-Chinese ownership of companies in certain industries in China. By entering into contracts with the listed company that sells shares to US

investors, the China-based companies and/or related individuals/entities indirectly raise capital from US investors without distributing ownership of the China-based companies to US investors.

Even though the listed company does not own any equity in the China-based company, the listed company expects to exercise power over and obtain economic rights from the China-based company based on the contractual arrangements. All or most of the value of an investment in these companies depends on the enforceability of the contracts between the listed company and the China-based entity (and/or related persons). If the parties to the contractual arrangements do not meet their obligations as intended or there are effects on the enforceability of these arrangements from changes in Chinese law or practice, the listed company may lose control over the China-based company, and investments in the listed company's securities may suffer significant economic losses.

The contractual arrangements permit the listed issuer to include the financial results of the China-based entity as a consolidated subsidiary. The listed company often is organized in a jurisdiction other than the United States or China (e.g., the Cayman Islands), which likely will not have the same disclosure, reporting, and governance requirements as the United States.

Risks associated with such investments include the risk that the Chinese government could determine at any time and without notice that the underlying contractual arrangements on which control of the China-based entity is based violate Chinese law, which may result in a significant loss in the value of an investment in a listed company that uses a VIE structure; that a breach of the contractual agreements between the listed company and the China-based entity (and/or related persons) will likely be subject to Chinese law and jurisdiction, which raises questions about whether and how the listed company or its investors could seek recourse in the event of an adverse ruling as to its contractual rights; and that investments in the listed company may be affected by conflicts of interest and duties between the legal owners of the China-based entity and the stockholders of the listed company, which may adversely impact the value of investments of the listed company.

China A-shares (PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments). The Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect program and the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect program (together, the "Stock Connect Program") are subject to quota limitations and an investor cannot purchase and sell the same security on the same trading day, which may restrict the fund's ability to invest in China A-shares through the Stock Connect Program and to enter into or exit trades on a timely basis. The Shanghai and Shenzhen markets may be open at a time when the Stock Connect Program is not trading, with the result that prices of China A-shares may fluctuate at times when the fund is unable to add to or exit its position. Only certain China A-shares are eligible to be accessed through the Stock Connect Program. Such securities may lose their eligibility at any time, in which case they could be sold but could no longer be purchased through the Stock Connect Program. Because the Stock Connect Program (particularly with respect to the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) is in its early stages, the actual effect on the market for trading China A-shares with the introduction of large numbers of foreign investors is currently unknown. The Stock Connect Program is subject to regulations promulgated by regulatory authorities for the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and their respective clearinghouses and regulators. Any of these authorities may issue further regulations or restrictions, such as limitations on redemptions or suspension of trading, may adversely impact the Stock Connect Program, if the authorities believe it necessary to assure orderly markets or for other reasons. There is no quarantee that all three exchanges will continue to support the Stock Connect Program in the future.

Investments in China A-shares may not be covered by the securities investor protection programs of the exchanges and, without the protection of such programs, will be subject to the risk of default by the broker. In the event that the depository of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange defaulted, the fund may not be able to recover fully its losses from the depository or may be delayed in receiving proceeds as part of any recovery process. In addition, because all trades on the Stock Connect Program in respect of eligible China A-shares must be settled in Renminbi ("RMB"), the Chinese currency, the fund investing through the Stock Connect Program must have timely access to a reliable supply of offshore RMB, which cannot be guaranteed.

Investments made through the Stock Connect Program are subject to trading, clearance and settlement procedures that are relatively untested in China, which could pose risks to the fund. Securities purchased via the Stock Connect Program will be held in China in book-entry form in the name of Hong Kong's clearinghouse as nominee for all Stock Connect investors. The fund's ownership interest in Stock Connect securities will not be reflected directly and will instead only be reflected on the books of its Hong Kong sub-custodian. It is possible, therefore, that the fund's ability to exercise its rights as a shareholder and to pursue claims against the issuer of China A-shares may be limited because the nominee structure has not been tested in Chinese courts. In addition, the fund may not be able to participate in corporate actions affecting China A-shares held through the Stock Connect Program due to time constraints or for other operational reasons. Finally, Chinese law has not historically recognized the concept of beneficial ownership; while Chinese regulators and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange have issued clarifications and guidance supporting the concept of beneficial ownership via the Stock Connect Program, the interpretation of beneficial ownership in the People's Republic of China ("PRC") by regulators and courts may continue to evolve.

Trades on the Stock Connect Program are subject to certain requirements prior to trading. If these requirements are not completed prior to the market opening, a fund cannot sell the shares on that trading day. In addition, these requirements may limit the number of brokers that a fund may use to execute trades. If an investor holds 5% or more of the total shares issued by a China-A share issuer, the investor must return any profits obtained from the purchase and sale of those shares if both transactions occur within a six-month period. If the fund holds 5% or more of the total shares of a China-A share issuer through its Stock Connect Program investments, its profits may be subject to these limitations. All accounts managed by UBS AM and/or its affiliates and, separately, all accounts managed by a subadvisor will be aggregated for purposes of this 5% limitation, which makes it more likely that the fund's profits may be subject to these limitations.

Per circulars issued by the Ministry of Finance of China, the State Administration of Taxation of China and the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the funds are expected to be temporarily exempt from the Chinese withholding tax ("WHT") on capital gains on trading in A-shares. There is no indication as to how long the temporary exemption will remain in effect. Accordingly, the funds may be subject to such taxes in the future. If the funds expect such WHT on trading in A-shares to be imposed, they reserve the right to establish a reserve for such tax, although they currently do not do so. If a fund establishes such a reserve but is not ultimately subject to the tax, shareholders who redeemed or sold their shares while the reserve was in place will effectively bear the tax and may not benefit from the later release, if any, of the reserve. Conversely, if a fund does not establish such a reserve but ultimately is subject to the tax, shareholders who redeemed or sold their shares prior to the tax being withheld, reserved or paid will have effectively avoided the tax, even if they benefited from the trading that precipitated the fund's payment of it. Investors should note that such provision may be excessive or inadequate to meet actual WHT liabilities (which could include interest and penalties) on the fund's investments. As a result, investors may be advantaged or disadvantaged depending on the final rules of the relevant PRC tax authorities.

China Bond Connect (PACE Global Fixed Income Investments). The fund's investments in bonds issued by the Chinese government and certain other PRC-based entities traded on the China interbank bond market through the Bond Connect program (the "Bond Connect Program") are subject to order, clearance and settlement procedures that are relatively untested in the PRC, which could pose risks to the fund. The Bond Connect Program is only available on days when markets in both the PRC and Hong Kong are open. The PRC markets may be open at a time when the Bond Connect Program is not trading, with the result that prices of investments purchased through the Bond Connect Program will be held on behalf of ultimate investors (such as the fund) via a book entry omnibus account in the name of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority Central Money Markets Unit maintained with either the China Central Depository & Clearing Co. ("CDCC") or the Shanghai Clearing House ("SCH"), each a PRC-based custodian. The fund's ownership interest will only be reflected on the books of its Hong Kong sub-custodian. This recordkeeping system also subjects the fund to various risks, such as the risk of settlement delays, the risk of counterparty default of the Hong Kong sub-custodian and the risk that the fund may have a limit-

ed ability to enforce rights as a bondholder. While the ultimate investors hold a beneficial interest in the securities purchased through the Bond Connect Program, the mechanisms that beneficial owners may use to enforce their rights are untested and courts in the PRC have limited experience in applying the concept of beneficial ownership. As a result, the fund may not be able to participate in corporate actions affecting its rights as a bondholder, such as timely payment of distributions, due to time constraints or for other operational reasons. Transactions through the Bond Connect Program are settled in Chinese Renminbi ("RMB") and investors must have timely access to a reliable supply of RMB in Hong Kong to effect such transactions, which cannot be guaranteed. Securities purchased through Bond Connect generally may not be sold, purchased or otherwise transferred other than through Bond Connect in accordance with applicable rules.

A primary feature of Bond Connect is the application of the home market's laws and rules applicable to investors in Chinese fixed-income instruments. Therefore, the fund's investments in securities through the Bond Connect Program are generally subject to PRC law, securities regulations, listing rules, policies and other restrictions. Changes in such laws, regulations, rules or policies in relation to the Bond Connect Program or the PRC bond markets generally may restrict or otherwise affect the fund's investments or returns. Such securities may lose their eligibility at any time, in which case they could be sold but could no longer be purchased through Bond Connect. The fund will not benefit from access to Hong Kong investor compensation funds, which are designed to protect against defaults of trades, when investing through Bond Connect.

The Bond Connect program is relatively new and may be subject to further interpretation and guidance and future developments may restrict or otherwise affect the fund's investments or returns. There can be no assurance that further regulations will not affect the availability of securities in the Bond Connect Program, the frequency of redemptions or other limitations. Because the Bond Connect Program is in its early stages, the actual effect on the market for trading in the underlying securities with the introduction of large numbers of foreign investors is currently unknown. The necessary trading, settlement and information technology systems for the Bond Connect Program are also relatively new and are continuing to evolve. In the event that the relevant systems do not function properly, trading through Bond Connect could be disrupted. In addition, the application and interpretation of the laws and regulations of Hong Kong and the PRC, and the rules, policies or guidelines published or applied by relevant regulators and exchanges in respect of the Bond Connect program are uncertain, and they may have an adverse effect on the fund's performance. These risks may be heightened by the underdeveloped state of the PRC's investment and banking systems in general.

Investments in Chinese military-industrial complex companies. A series of executive orders issued between November 2020 and June 2021 prohibit US persons from engaging in any transaction in publicly-traded securities of companies identified by the US Government as "Chinese military-industrial complex companies" or in instruments that are derivative of, or are designed to provide investment exposure to, such securities. The prohibitions in the executive orders, although targeted in scope, apply to transactions involving securities of some of the largest companies in China, including companies involved in the aerospace, shipbuilding, construction, surveillance technology and technology sectors. The orders contain a limited exception for transactions by US persons that are made solely for the purpose of divesting from such restricted securities for a one year period after a company is added to the relevant sanctions list. Certain securities that are or become designated as prohibited securities may have less liquidity as a result of such designation and the market price of such prohibited securities may decline, potentially causing losses to the funds. In addition, the market for securities of other Chinese-based issuers may also be negatively impacted, resulting in reduced liquidity and price declines. It is uncertain how these prohibitions will affect the funds or their investments and whether any future similar prohibitions will be enacted.

**Investments in Russian securities.** Following Russia's invasion of Ukraine in February 2022, the United States and other governments have imposed significant sanctions on certain Russian companies and Russia more broadly. In particular, US sanctions prohibit any "new investment" in Russia which is defined to include any new purchases of Russian securities. US persons also are required to freeze securities issued by certain Russian entities identified on the List of Specially Designated Nationals, which includes several large publicly traded Russian banks and other com-

panies. Russia has issued various countermeasures that affect the ability of non-Russian persons to trade in Russian securities. These developments have significantly impacted the value and liquidity of Russian securities as well as the ability of a fund to buy, sell, receive, or deliver those securities. They also have impacted the value of the ruble and the Russian economy in general. It is possible that the United States and other governments may impose even more significant sanctions against Russia if the Ukraine invasion continues.

**Foreign sovereign debt.** Sovereign debt includes bonds that are issued by foreign governments or their agencies, instrumentalities or political subdivisions or by foreign central banks. Sovereign debt also may be issued by quasi-governmental entities that are owned by foreign governments but are not backed by their full faith and credit or general taxing powers. Investment in sovereign debt involves special risks. The issuer of the debt or the governmental authorities that control the repayment of the debt may be unable or unwilling to repay principal and/or interest when due in accordance with the terms of such debt, and the funds may have limited legal recourse in the event of a default.

Sovereign debt differs from debt obligations issued by private entities in that, generally, remedies for defaults must be pursued in the courts of the defaulting party. Legal recourse is therefore somewhat diminished. Political conditions, especially a sovereign entity's willingness to meet the terms of its debt obligations, are of considerable significance. Also, there can be no assurance that the holders of commercial bank debt issued by the same sovereign entity may not contest payments to the holders of sovereign debt in the event of default under commercial bank loan agreements.

A sovereign debtor's willingness or ability to repay principal and interest due in a timely manner may be affected by, among other factors, its cash flow situation, the extent of its foreign reserves, the availability of sufficient foreign exchange on the date a payment is due, the relative size of the debt service burden to the economy as a whole, the sovereign debtor's policy toward principal international lenders, such as the International Monetary Fund ("IMF") or the World Bank, and the political constraints to which a sovereign debtor may be subject. Sovereign debtors may also be dependent on expected disbursements from foreign governments, multilateral agencies and others abroad to reduce principal and interest arrearages on their debt. The commitment on the part of these governments, agencies and others to make such disbursements may be conditioned on a sovereign debtor's implementation of economic reforms and/or economic performance and the timely service of such debtor's obligations. Failure to implement such reforms, achieve such levels of economic performance or repay principal or interest when due may result in the cancellation of such third party commitments to lend funds to the sovereign debtor, which may further impair such debtor's ability or willingness to service its debts in a timely manner. A country whose exports are concentrated in a few commodities could be vulnerable to a decline in the international price of such commodities. Increased protectionism on the part of a country's trading partners, or political changes in those countries, could also adversely affect its exports. Such events could diminish a country's trade account surplus, if any, or the credit standing of a particular local government or agency. Another factor bearing on the ability of a country to repay sovereign debt is the level of the country's international reserves. Fluctuations in the level of these reserves can affect the amount of foreign exchange readily available for external debt payments and, thus, could have a bearing on the capacity of the country to make payments on its sovereign debt.

The occurrence of political, social or diplomatic changes in one or more of the countries issuing sovereign debt could adversely affect the funds' investments. Political changes or a deterioration of a country's domestic economy or balance of trade may affect the willingness of countries to service their sovereign debt.

With respect to sovereign debt of emerging market issuers, investors should be aware that certain emerging market countries are among the largest debtors to commercial banks and foreign governments. Some emerging market countries have from time to time declared moratoria on the payment of principal and interest on external debt.

Uncertainty surrounding the level and sustainability of sovereign debt of certain countries that are part of the European Union, including Greece, Spain, Portugal, Ireland and Italy, has increased volatility in the financial markets.

In addition, some emerging market countries have experienced difficulty in servicing their sovereign debt on a timely basis which led to defaults on certain obligations and the restructuring of certain indebtedness. Restructuring arrangements have included, among other things, reducing and rescheduling interest and principal payments by negotiating new or amended credit agreements or converting outstanding principal and unpaid interest to Brady Bonds (discussed below), and obtaining new credit to finance interest payments. Holders of sovereign debt, including the funds, may be requested to participate in the rescheduling of such debt and to extend further loans to sovereign debtors. The interests of holders of sovereign debt could be adversely affected in the course of restructuring arrangements or by certain other factors referred to below. Furthermore, some of the participants in the secondary market for sovereign debt may also be directly involved in negotiating the terms of these arrangements and may, therefore, have access to information not available to other market participants. Obligations arising from past restructuring agreements may affect the economic performance and political and social stability of certain issuers of sovereign debt. There is no bankruptcy proceeding by which sovereign debt on which a sovereign has defaulted may be collected in whole or in part.

Foreign investment in certain sovereign debt is restricted or controlled to varying degrees. These restrictions or controls may at times limit or preclude foreign investment in such sovereign debt and increase the costs and expenses of a fund. Certain countries in which a fund may invest require governmental approval prior to investments by foreign persons, limit the amount of investment by foreign persons in a particular issuer, limit the investment by foreign persons only to a specific class of securities of an issuer that may have less advantageous rights than the classes available for purchase by domiciliaries of the countries or impose additional taxes on foreign investors. Certain issuers may require governmental approval for the repatriation of investment income, capital or the proceeds of sales of securities by foreign investors. In addition, if a deterioration occurs in a country's balance of payments the country could impose temporary restrictions on foreign capital remittances. A fund could be adversely affected by delays in, or a refusal to grant, any required governmental approval for repatriation of capital, as well as by the application to the fund of any restrictions on investments. Investing in local markets may require a fund to adopt special procedures, seek local government approvals or take other actions, each of which may involve additional costs to the fund.

Brady Bonds—Brady Bonds are sovereign bonds issued under the framework of the Brady Plan, an initiative announced by former US Treasury Secretary Nicholas F. Brady in 1989 as a mechanism for debtor nations to restructure their outstanding external commercial bank indebtedness. In restructuring its external debt under the Brady Plan framework, a debtor nation negotiates with its existing bank lenders as well as multilateral institutions such as the IMF. The Brady Plan framework, as it has developed, contemplates the exchange of commercial bank debt for newly issued Brady Bonds. Brady Bonds may also be issued in respect of new money being advanced by existing lenders in connection with the debt restructuring. The World Bank and the IMF support the restructuring by providing funds pursuant to loan agreements or other arrangements which enable the debtor nation to collateralize the new Brady Bonds or to repurchase outstanding bank debt at a discount.

Brady Bonds have been issued only in recent years, and accordingly do not have a long payment history. Agreements implemented under the Brady Plan often have been designed to achieve debt and debt-service reduction through specific options negotiated by a debtor nation with its creditors. As a result, the financial packages offered by each country differ. The types of options have included the exchange of outstanding commercial bank debt for bonds issued at 100% of face value of such debt, which carry a below-market stated rate of interest (generally known as par bonds), bonds issued at a discount from the face value of such debt (generally known as discount bonds), bonds bearing an interest rate which increases over time and bonds issued in exchange for the advancement of new money by existing lenders. Regardless of the stated face amount and stated interest rate of the various types of Brady Bonds, a fund expects to purchase Brady Bonds in which the price and yield to the investor reflect market conditions at the time of purchase.

Certain Brady Bonds have been collateralized as to principal due at maturity by US Treasury zero coupon bonds with maturities equal to the final maturity of such Brady Bonds. Collateral purchases are financed by the IMF, the World

Bank and the debtor nations' reserves. In the event of a default with respect to collateralized Brady Bonds as a result of which the payment obligations of the issuer are accelerated, the US Treasury zero coupon obligations held as collateral for the payment of principal will not be distributed to investors, nor will such obligations be sold and the proceeds distributed. The collateral will be held by the collateral agent until the scheduled maturity of the defaulted Brady Bonds, which will continue to be outstanding, at which time the face amount of the collateral will equal the principal payments that would have then been due on the Brady Bonds in the normal course. Interest payments on Brady Bonds may be wholly uncollateralized or may be collateralized by cash or high grade securities in amounts that typically represent between 12 and 18 months of interest accruals on these instruments, with the balance of the interest accruals being uncollateralized.

Brady Bonds are often viewed as having several valuation components: (1) the collateralized repayment of principal, if any, at final maturity, (2) the collateralized interest payments, if any, (3) the uncollateralized interest payments and (4) any uncollateralized repayment of principal at maturity (these uncollateralized amounts constitute the "residual risk"). In light of the residual risk of Brady Bonds and, among other factors, the history of defaults with respect to commercial bank loans by public and private entities of countries issuing Brady Bonds, investments in Brady Bonds are to be viewed as speculative. A fund may purchase Brady Bonds with no or limited collateralization and will be relying for payment of interest and (except in the case of principal collateralized Brady Bonds) repayment of principal primarily on the willingness and ability of the foreign government to make payment in accordance with the terms of the Brady Bonds.

**Structured foreign investments.** This term generally refers to interests in US and foreign entities organized and operated solely for the purpose of securitizing or restructuring the investment characteristics of foreign securities. This type of securitization or restructuring usually involves the deposit with or purchase by a US or foreign entity, such as a corporation or trust, of specified instruments (such as commercial bank loans or Brady Bonds) and the issuance by that entity of one or more classes of securities backed by, or representing interests in, the underlying instruments. The cash flow on the underlying instruments may be apportioned among the newly issued structured foreign investments to create securities with different investment characteristics such as varying maturities, payment priorities and interest rate provisions, and the extent of the payments made with respect to structured foreign investments is often dependent on the extent of the cash flow on the underlying instruments.

Structured foreign investments frequently involve no credit enhancement. Accordingly, their credit risk generally will be equivalent to that of the underlying instruments. In addition, classes of structured foreign investments may be subordinated to the right of payment of another class. Subordinated structured foreign investments typically have higher yields and present greater risks than unsubordinated structured foreign investments. Structured foreign investments are typically sold in private placement transactions, and there currently is no active trading market for structured foreign investments.

Participation notes. Certain funds, including PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments, may invest in participation notes ("P-notes"). P-notes are participation interest notes that are issued by banks or broker-dealers and are designed to offer a return linked to a particular underlying equity, debt, currency or market. When the P-note matures, the issuer will pay to, or receive from, the purchaser the difference between the nominal value of the underlying instrument at the time of purchase and that instrument's value at maturity. The holder of a P-note that is linked to a particular underlying security or instrument may be entitled to receive any dividends paid in connection with that underlying security or instrument, but typically does not receive voting rights as it would if it directly owned the underlying security or instrument. P-notes involve transaction costs. Investments in P-notes involve the same risks associated with a direct investment in the underlying securities, instruments or markets that they seek to replicate. In addition, there can be no assurance that there will be a trading market for a P-note or that the trading price of a P-note will equal the underlying value of the security, instrument or market that it seeks to replicate. Due to liquidity and transfer restrictions, the secondary markets on which a P-note is traded may be less liquid than the market for other securities, or may be completely illiquid, which may also affect the ability of a fund to accurately value a P-note. P-notes typically constitute general unsecured contractual obligations of the banks or

broker-dealers that issue them, which subjects a fund that holds them to counterparty risk (and this risk may be amplified if a fund purchases P-notes from only a small number of issuers).

**Structured notes.** Structured notes are derivative debt securities, the interest rate and/or principal of which is determined by an unrelated indicator. The value of the principal of and/or interest on structured notes is determined by reference to changes in the return, interest rate or value at maturity of a specific asset, reference rate or index (the "reference instrument") or the relative change in two or more reference instruments. The interest rate or the principal amount payable upon maturity or redemption may be increased or decreased, depending upon changes in the applicable reference instruments. Structured notes may be positively or negatively indexed, so that an increase in value of the reference instrument may produce an increase or a decrease in the interest rate or value of the structured note at maturity. In addition, changes in the interest rate or the value of the structured note at maturity may be calculated as a specified multiple of the change in the value of the reference instrument; therefore, the value of such note may be very volatile. Structured notes may entail a greater degree of market risk than other types of debt securities because the investor bears the risk of the reference instrument. Structured notes may also be more volatile, less liquid and more difficult to accurately price than less complex securities or more traditional debt securities.

**Credit-linked securities.** Credit-linked securities are debt securities that represent an interest in a pool of, or are otherwise collateralized by, one or more corporate debt obligations or credit default swaps on corporate debt or bank loan obligations. Such debt obligations may represent the obligations of one or more corporate issuers. A fund has the right to receive periodic interest payments from the issuer of the credit-linked security (usually the seller of the underlying credit default swap(s)) at an agreed-upon interest rate, and a return of principal at the maturity date. The value of a credit-linked security will typically increase or decrease with any change in the value of the underlying debt obligations, if any, held by the issuer and/or the credit default swaps.

A fund bears the risk of loss of its principal investment and the periodic interest payments expected to be received for the duration of its investment in the credit-linked security in the event that one or more of the underlying corporate debt obligations or credit default swaps go into default or otherwise become non-performing. In addition, the fund bears the risk that the issuer of the credit-linked security will default or become bankrupt. In such an event, the fund may have difficulty being repaid, or fail to be repaid, the principal amount of its investment and the remaining periodic interest payments thereon. Depending on the nature of the collateral, the fund's investment in these securities may also be subject to the risks associated with derivative instruments generally, including among others credit/default risk, interest rate risk, counterparty risk and leverage risk. Most credit-linked securities are structured as Rule 144A securities so that they may be freely traded among institutional buyers. However, the market for credit-linked securities may be, or suddenly can become, illiquid, and changes in liquidity may result in significant, rapid and unpredictable changes in the prices for credit-linked securities.

**Currency-linked investments.** The principal amount of securities that are indexed to specific foreign currency exchange rates may be adjusted up or down (but not below zero) at maturity to reflect changes in the exchange rate between two currencies. A fund may experience loss of principal due to these adjustments.

**Zero coupon and other OID securities; PIK securities.** Zero coupon securities are securities on which no periodic interest payments are made but instead are sold at a deep discount from their face value. The buyer of these securities receives a rate of return by the gradual appreciation of the security, which results from the fact that it will be paid at face value on a specified maturity date. There are many types of zero coupon securities. Some are issued in zero coupon form, including Treasury bills, notes and bonds that have been stripped of (separated from) their unmatured interest coupons (unmatured interest payments) and receipts or certificates representing interests in such stripped debt obligations and coupons. Others are created by brokerage firms that strip the coupons from interest-paying bonds and sell the principal and the coupons separately.

Other securities that are sold with original issue discount ("OID") (i.e., the difference between the issue price and the value at maturity) may provide for some interest to be paid prior to maturity. In addition, payment-in-kind ("PIK") securities pay interest in additional securities, not in cash. OID and PIK securities usually trade at a discount from their face value.

Zero coupon securities are generally more sensitive to changes in interest rates than debt obligations of comparable maturities that make current interest payments. This means that when interest rates fall, the value of zero coupon securities rises more rapidly than securities paying interest on a current basis. However, when interest rates rise, their value falls more dramatically. Other OID securities and PIK securities also are subject to greater fluctuations in market value in response to changing interest rates than bonds of comparable maturities that make current distributions of interest in cash.

Because federal tax law requires that accrued OID and "interest" on PIK securities be included currently in a fund's income (see "Taxes—Other information" below), a fund might be required to distribute as a dividend an amount that is greater than the total amount of cash it actually receives. These distributions would have to be made from a fund's cash assets or, if necessary, from the proceeds of sales of portfolio securities. A fund would not be able to purchase additional securities with cash used to make these distributions, and its current income and the value of its shares would ultimately be reduced as a result.

Certain zero coupon securities are US Treasury notes and bonds that have been stripped of their unmatured interest coupon receipts or interests in such US Treasury securities or coupons. The staff of the SEC currently takes the position that "stripped" US government securities that are not issued through the US Treasury are not US government securities. This technique is frequently used with US Treasury bonds to create CATS (Certificate of Accrual Treasury Securities), TIGRs (Treasury Income Growth Receipts) and similar securities.

Convertible securities. A convertible security is a bond, preferred stock or other security that may be converted into or exchanged for a prescribed amount of common stock of the same or a different issuer within a particular period of time at a specified price or formula. A convertible security entitles the holder to receive interest or dividends until the convertible security matures or is redeemed, converted or exchanged. Convertible securities have unique investment characteristics in that they generally (1) have higher yields than common stocks, but lower yields than comparable non-convertible securities, (2) are less subject to fluctuation in value than the underlying stock because they have fixed income characteristics and (3) provide the potential for capital appreciation if the market price of the underlying common stock increases. While no securities investment is without some risk, investments in convertible securities generally entail less risk than the issuer's common stock. However, the extent to which such risk is reduced depends in large measure upon the degree to which the convertible security sells above its value as a fixed income security.

A convertible security may be subject to redemption at the option of the issuer at a price established in the convertible security's governing instrument. If a convertible security held by a fund is called for redemption, the fund will be required to permit the issuer to redeem the security, convert it into underlying common stock or sell it to a third party.

**Trust preferred securities.** Trust preferred securities have the characteristics of both subordinated debt and preferred stock. Generally, trust preferred securities are issued by a trust that is wholly-owned by a financial institution or other corporate entity, typically a bank holding company. The financial institution creates the trust and owns the trust's common securities. The trust uses the sale proceeds of its preferred securities to purchase subordinated debt issued by the financial institution. The financial institution uses the proceeds from the subordinated debt sale to increase its capital while the trust receives periodic interest payments from the financial institution for holding the subordinated debt. The trust uses the funds received to make dividend payments to the holders of the trust preferred securities. The primary advantage of this structure is that the trust preferred securities are treated by the financial institution as debt securities for tax purposes and as equity for the calculation of capital requirements.

Trust preferred securities typically bear a market rate coupon comparable to interest rates available on debt of a similarly rated issuer. Typical characteristics include long-term maturities, early redemption by the issuer, periodic fixed or variable interest payments, and maturities at face value. Holders of trust preferred securities have limited voting rights to control the activities of the trust and no voting rights with respect to the financial institution. The market value of trust preferred securities may be more volatile than those of conventional debt securities. Trust preferred securities may be issued in reliance on Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("Securities Act") and subject to restrictions on resale. There can be no assurance as to the liquidity of trust preferred securities and the ability of holders, such as a fund, to sell their holdings. The condition of the financial institution can be looked at to identify the risks of the trust preferred securities as the trust typically has no business operations other than to issue the trust preferred securities. If the financial institution defaults on interest payments to the trust, the trust will not be able to make dividend payments to holders of its securities, such as a fund.

Under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, the appropriate federal banking agencies are required to establish risk-based capital and leverage capital requirements for bank holding companies and savings and loan holding companies that are not less than the generally applicable requirements for insured depository institutions under the agencies' prompt corrective action regulations. This limitation will be phased in over time, and certain securities may be grandfathered and certain institutions may be exempt. Subject to these exemptions, when this provision is implemented, trust preferred securities issued by bank holding companies and savings and loan holding companies will not be eligible for inclusion as a component of Tier 1 capital (see below).

Master limited partnerships. Master limited partnerships ("MLPs") are limited partnerships in which ownership units may be publicly traded on national security exchanges. Generally, an MLP is operated under the supervision of one or more managing general partners and the limited partners (such as a fund when it invests in an MLP) are not involved in the day-to-day management of the partnership. There may be fewer corporate protections afforded investors in an MLP than investors in a corporation. MLPs that concentrate in a particular industry or region are subject to risks associated with such industry or region. MLPs holding credit-related investments are subject to interest rate risk and the risk of default on payment obligations by debt issuers. Investments held by MLPs may be considered to be illiquid and subject to regulatory limitations on investments in illiquid investments. MLP units may trade infrequently and in limited volume, and they may be subject to abrupt or erratic price movements.

**Bank capital securities.** Bank capital securities are issued by banks to help fulfill their regulatory capital requirements. There are two types of bank capital: Tier 1 (or core capital) and Tier 2 (or supplementary capital). Tier 1 capital often takes the form of trust preferred securities. Tier 2 capital includes cumulative preferred stock and noncumulative preferred stock where the dividend is reset periodically based, in whole or in part, on the bank's current credit standing. Preferred stock must be perpetual or have an original maturity date of not less than 20 years. Tier 2 capital may be callable and has a cumulative interest deferral feature. This means that under certain conditions the issuer bank can withhold payment of interest until a later date. However, such deferred payments generally earn interest.

**Warrants.** Warrants are securities permitting, but not obligating, holders to subscribe for other securities. Warrants do not carry with them the right to dividends or voting rights with respect to the securities that they entitle their holder to purchase, and they do not represent any rights in the assets of the issuer. As a result, warrants may be considered more speculative than certain other types of investments. In addition, the value of a warrant does not necessarily change with the value of the underlying securities, and a warrant ceases to have value if it is not exercised prior to its expiration date.

**Loans, loan participations and assignments.** Secured or unsecured fixed or floating rate loans ("Loans") are interests in amounts owed by a corporate, governmental, or other borrower to financial institutions ("Lenders") or lending syndicates. Lenders and purchasers of Loans depend primarily upon the creditworthiness of the borrower for payment of interest and repayment of principal. If scheduled interest or principal payments are not made, the value of the instrument may be adversely affected. Loans that are fully secured provide more protections than an

unsecured Loan in the event of failure to make scheduled interest or principal payments. However, there is no assurance that the liquidation of collateral from a secured Loan would satisfy the borrower's obligation, or that the collateral could be liquidated. Indebtedness of borrowers whose creditworthiness is poor involves substantially greater risks and may be highly speculative. Borrowers that are in bankruptcy or restructuring may never pay off their indebtedness, or may pay only a small fraction of the amount owed. Direct indebtedness of foreign countries also involves a risk that the governmental entities responsible for the repayment of the debt may be unable, or unwilling, to pay interest and repay principal when due.

The market for Loans may be subject to irregular trading activity, wide bid/ask spreads and extended trade settlement periods that may be longer than seven days. This extended settlement process can (i) increase the counterparty credit risk borne by a fund; (ii) leave a fund unable to timely act with respect to Loans it has agreed to purchase; (iii) delay a fund from realizing the proceeds of a sale of a Loan; (iv) inhibit a fund's ability to re-sell a Loan that it has agreed to purchase if conditions change (leaving the fund more exposed to price fluctuations); (v) prevent a fund from timely collecting principal and interest payments; and (vi) expose a fund to adverse tax or regulatory consequences. To the extent the extended Loan settlement process gives rise to short-term liquidity needs, such as the need to satisfy redemption requests, a fund may hold cash, sell investments or temporarily borrow from banks or other lenders.

Investments in "Loans" arranged through private negotiations between a borrowing corporation, government or other entity and one or more "Lenders" may be in the form of participations ("Participations") in Loans or assignments ("Assignments") of all or a portion of Loans from third parties. These instruments may be secured or unsecured. Participations typically result in a fund's having a contractual relationship only with the Lender, not with the borrower. A fund has the right to receive payments of principal, interest and any fees to which it is entitled only from the Lender selling the Participation and only upon receipt by the Lender of the payments from the borrower. In connection with purchasing Participations, a fund generally has no direct right to enforce compliance by the borrower with the terms of the loan agreement relating to the Loan, nor any rights of set-off against the borrower, and a fund may not directly benefit from any collateral supporting the Loan in which it has purchased the Participation. As a result, a fund assumes the credit risk of both the borrower and the Lender that is selling the Participation. In the event of the insolvency of the selling Lender, the fund may be treated as a general creditor of that Lender and may not benefit from any set-off between the Lender and the borrower. A fund will acquire Participations only if its subadvisor determines that the selling Lender is creditworthy.

When a fund purchases Assignments from Lenders, it acquires direct rights against the borrower on the Loan. In an Assignment, the fund is entitled to receive payments directly from the borrower and, therefore, does not depend on the selling bank to pass these payments onto the fund. However, because Assignments are arranged through private negotiations between potential assignees and assignors, the rights and obligations acquired by a fund as the purchaser of an Assignment may differ from, and be more limited than, those held by the assigning Lender.

Investments in Loans may involve additional risks. For example, if a Loan is foreclosed, the original Lender and the purchasing fund could become part owner of any collateral, and would bear the costs and liabilities associated with owning and disposing of the collateral. In addition, it is conceivable that under emerging legal theories of lender liability, a fund that purchased an interest in the Loan could be held liable as a co-lender. Loans may also involve a risk of insolvency of the lending bank or other intermediary.

A Loan is often administered by a bank or other financial institution that acts as agent for all holders. The agent administers the terms of the Loan, as specified in the loan agreement. Unless, under the terms of the Loan or other indebtedness, the purchaser has direct recourse against the borrower, the purchaser may have to rely on the agent to apply appropriate credit remedies against a borrower. If assets held by the agent for the benefit of a purchaser were determined to be subject to the claims of the agent's general creditors, the purchaser might incur certain costs and delays in realizing payment on the Loan or Participation and could suffer a loss of principal or interest.

In certain circumstances, Loans may not be deemed to be securities, and in the event of fraud or misrepresentation by a borrower or an arranger, Lenders will not have the protection of the anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws, as would be the case for bonds or stocks. Instead, in such cases, Lenders generally rely on the contractual provisions in the loan agreement itself, and common-law fraud protections under applicable state law.

Investments in Loans may be relatively illiquid. In addition, Assignments and Participations are generally not registered under the Securities Act and may be subject to restrictions on transferability, and thus may be subject to a fund's limitation on illiquid investments. Because there may be no liquid market for such securities, such securities may be sold only to a limited number of institutional investors. The lack of a liquid secondary market could have an adverse impact on the value of such securities and on a fund's ability to dispose of particular Assignments or Participations when necessary to meet the fund's liquidity needs or in response to a specific economic event, such as a deterioration in the creditworthiness of the borrower.

Certain lending transactions may include letters of credit, revolving credit facilities, or other standby financing commitments that obligate the original Lender or purchasing fund to make additional cash payments on demand. These commitments may have the effect of requiring the original Lender or purchasing fund to increase its investment in a borrower at a time when it would not otherwise have done so, even if the borrower's condition makes it unlikely that the amount will ever be repaid.

Temporary and defensive investments; money market investments. Each fund may invest in money market investments for temporary or defensive purposes, to reinvest cash collateral from its securities lending activities or as part of its normal investment program. In addition, if UBS AM selects a new subadvisor to manage all or part of a fund's investments, the fund may increase its money market investments to facilitate the transition to the investment style and strategies of the new subadvisor. Money market investments include, among other things, (1) securities issued or guaranteed by the US government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities, (2) debt obligations of banks, savings and loan institutions, insurance companies and mortgage bankers, (3) commercial paper and notes, including those with variable and floating rates of interest, (4) debt obligations of foreign branches of US banks, US branches of foreign banks, and foreign branches of foreign banks, (5) debt obligations issued or guaranteed by one or more foreign governments or any of their foreign political subdivisions, agencies or instrumentalities, including obligations of supranational entities, (6) bonds issued by foreign issuers, (7) repurchase agreements and (8) securities of other investment companies that invest exclusively in money market instruments and similar private investment vehicles. Only those funds that may trade outside the United States may invest in money market instruments that are denominated in foreign currencies.

LIBOR discontinuance or unavailability risk. Certain of the funds' investments and payment obligations may be (or previously were) based on the London Interbank Offer Rate ("LIBOR"). LIBOR was a leading floating benchmark used in loans, notes, derivatives and other instruments or investments. As a result of benchmark reforms, publication of most LIBOR settings has ceased. Some LIBOR settings continue to be published, but only on a temporary, synthetic and non-representative basis. Regulated entities have generally ceased entering into new LIBOR contracts in connection with regulatory guidance or prohibitions. A fund may continue to invest in instruments that continue to reference LIBOR or otherwise use LIBOR reference rates due to favorable liquidity or pricing, however, new LIBOR assets may no longer be available.

Regulators and market participants have been working together to identify or develop successor reference rates and necessary adjustments to associate spreads (i.e., the amounts above the relevant reference rates paid by borrowers in the market) (if any). Replacement rates that have been identified include the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), which is intended to replace US dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of overnight borrowings through repurchase agreement transactions collateralized with US Treasury securities, and the Sterling Overnight Index Average Rate ("SONIA"), which is intended to replace GBP LIBOR and measures the overnight interest rate paid by banks for unsecured transactions in the sterling market, although other replacement rates could be adopted by market participants. Additionally, legislation relating to the discontinuation of LIBOR and the use of replacement

rates has been proposed or adopted at the state and federal levels. At this time, it is not possible to predict the effect of the establishment of SOFR, SONIA or any other replacement rates.

Additionally, industry trade associations and participants are focusing on the transition mechanisms by which reference rates (including LIBOR) and spreads (if any) in existing contracts or instruments may be amended, whether through market-wide protocols, fallback contractual provisions, bespoke negotiations or amendments or otherwise. Various pieces of legislation, including enacted legislation from the states of New York and Alabama and the US Congress, may have affected the transition of LIBOR-based instruments as well by permitting trustees and calculation agents to transition instruments without effective LIBOR fallback language to a successor reference rate. Such pieces of legislation also include safe harbors from liability, which may limit the recourse a holder may have if the successor reference rate does not fully compensate that holder for the transition of an instrument from LIBOR. It is uncertain what impact any such legislation may have. Notwithstanding the foregoing, some instruments continue to use synthetic LIBOR settings. These instruments may transition to another floating rate index after LIBOR ceases to be published. The LIBOR transition may have an impact on the value and liquidity of all floating rate instruments.

Alteration of the terms of a debt instrument or a modification of the terms of other types of contracts to replace LIBOR or another interbank offered rate ("IBOR") with a new reference rate could result in a taxable exchange and the realization of income and gain/loss for US federal income tax purposes. The Internal Revenue Service has issued final regulations regarding the tax consequences of the transition from IBOR to a new reference rate in debt instruments and non-debt contracts. Under the final regulations, alteration or modification of the terms of a debt instrument to replace an operative rate that uses a discontinued IBOR with a qualified rate (as defined in the final regulations) including true up payments equalizing the fair market value of contracts before and after such IBOR transition, to add a qualified rate as a fallback rate to a contract whose operative rate uses a discontinued IBOR or to replace a fallback rate that uses a discontinued IBOR with a qualified rate would not be taxable. The Internal Revenue Service may provide additional guidance, with potential retroactive effect.

At this time, it is not possible to exhaustively identify or predict the effect of any changes to reference rates, any establishment of alternative reference rates or any other reforms to reference rates. The elimination of LIBOR or reforms to the determination or supervision of reference rates may affect the value, liquidity or return on, and may cause increased volatility in markets for, certain fund investments and may result in costs incurred in connection with closing out positions and entering into new trades, adversely impacting a fund's overall financial condition or results of operations. In the event that a floating rate benchmark is discontinued, UBS AM and/or its affiliates may have discretion to determine a successor or substitute reference rate, including any price or other adjustments to account for differences between the successor or substitute reference rate and the previous rate. Such successor or substitute reference rate and any adjustments selected may negatively impact the fund's investments, performance or financial condition, and may expose the fund to additional tax, accounting and regulatory risks.

Investments in other investment companies. Subject to the provisions of any rules and regulations under the Investment Company Act or any exemptive orders issued thereunder, securities of other investment companies may be acquired by each fund to the extent that such purchases are consistent with that fund's investment objectives and restrictions and are permitted under the Investment Company Act. Section 12(d)(1) of the Investment Company Act requires that, as determined immediately after a purchase is made, (1) not more than 5% of the value of a fund's total assets will be invested in the securities of any one investment company, (2) not more than 10% of the value of the fund's total assets will be invested in securities of investment companies as a group and (3) not more than 3% of the outstanding voting stock of any one investment company will be owned by the fund. Certain exceptions to these limitations may apply. A fund may invest in securities issued by other registered investment companies advised by UBS AM or otherwise, including other series of the Trust and exchange-traded funds, beyond the above percentage maximums pursuant to rules promulgated by the SEC, including Rule 12d1-4 under the Investment Company Act. As a shareholder of another investment company, a fund would bear, along with other shareholders, its pro rata portion of the other investment company's expenses, including advisory fees. These expenses would be in addition to the expenses that such a fund would bear in a connection with its own operations.

The funds are permitted to invest in shares of other investment companies to the extent permitted by Rule 12d1-4.

UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may invest in securities of other money market funds and certain securities of closed-end investment companies, subject to limitations imposed by the Investment Company Act. The fund's investments in certain private investment vehicles are not subject to the Investment Company Act restrictions described above. As a shareholder of another investment company, the fund would bear, along with other shareholders, its pro rata portion of the other investment company's expenses, including advisory fees. These expenses would be in addition to the expenses that the fund would bear in connection with its own operations. The fund may invest in the securities of other money market funds when UBS AM believes that (1) the amounts to be invested are too small or are available too late in the day to be effectively invested in other money market instruments, (2) shares of other money market funds otherwise would provide a better return than direct investment in other money market instruments or (3) such investments would enhance the fund's liquidity.

Illiquid investments. The term "illiquid investments" includes any investment that a fund reasonably expects cannot be sold or disposed of in current market conditions in seven calendar days or less without the sale or disposition significantly changing the market value of the investment, as classified by a fund and as determined pursuant to the Investment Company Act and applicable rules and regulations thereunder. In classifying investments as illiquid, a fund will use information obtained after reasonable inquiry and take into account relevant market, trading, and investment-specific considerations, as well as applicable SEC guidance. A fund reviews liquidity classifications at least monthly, and more frequently if changes in relevant market, trading, and investment-specific considerations are reasonably expected to materially affect one or more of its investments' classifications. The assets used as cover for over-the-counter options written by a fund will be considered illiquid unless the over-the-counter options are sold to qualified dealers who agree that the fund may repurchase them at a maximum price to be calculated by a formula set forth in the option agreements. The cover for an over-the-counter option written subject to this procedure would be considered illiquid only to the extent that the maximum repurchase price under the formula exceeds the intrinsic value of the option. Under current SEC guidelines, interest-only and principal-only classes of mortgagebacked securities generally are considered illiquid. However, interest-only and principal-only classes of fixed-rate mortgage-backed securities issued by the US government or one of its agencies or instrumentalities will not be considered illiquid if a fund's advisor has determined that they are liquid pursuant to quidelines established by the board. A fund may not be able to readily liquidate its illiquid investments and may have to sell other investments if necessary to raise cash to meet its obligations. The lack of a liquid secondary market for illiquid investments may make it more difficult for a fund to assign a value to those investments for purposes of valuing its portfolio and calculating its net asset value.

Restricted securities are not registered under the Securities Act and may be sold only in privately negotiated or other exempted transactions or after a Securities Act registration statement has become effective. Where registration is required, a fund may be obligated to pay all or part of the registration expenses and a considerable period may elapse between the time of the decision to sell and the time a fund may be permitted to sell a security under an effective registration statement. If, during such a period, adverse market conditions were to develop, a fund might obtain a less favorable price than that which prevailed when it decided to sell.

Not all restricted securities are illiquid. If a fund holds foreign securities that are freely tradable in the country in which they are principally traded, they generally are not considered illiquid, even if they are restricted in the United States. In addition, a large institutional market has developed for many US and foreign securities that are not registered under the Securities Act. Institutional investors generally will not seek to sell these instruments to the general public but instead will often depend either on an efficient institutional market in which such unregistered securities can be readily resold or on an issuer's ability to honor a demand for repayment. Therefore, the fact that there are contractual or legal restrictions on resale to the general public or certain institutions is not dispositive of the liquidity of such investments.

Institutional markets for restricted securities also have developed as a result of Rule 144A under the Securities Act, which establishes a "safe harbor" from the registration requirements of the Securities Act for resales of certain securities to qualified institutional buyers. These markets include automated systems for the trading, clearance and settlement of unregistered securities of US and non-US issuers, such as the PORTAL System sponsored by the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (previously, the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc.) ("FINRA"). An insufficient number of qualified institutional buyers interested in purchasing Rule 144A-eligible restricted securities held by a fund, however, could affect adversely the marketability of such portfolio securities, and the fund might be unable to dispose of them promptly or at favorable prices.

The board has delegated the function of making day-to-day determinations of liquidity to UBS AM and/or each fund's subadvisor pursuant to guidelines approved by the board. UBS AM and/or a fund's subadvisor takes into account a number of factors in reaching liquidity decisions, which may include (1) the frequency of trades for the security, (2) the number of dealers that make quotes, or are expected to make quotes, for the security, (3) the number of dealers that have undertaken to make a market in the security, (4) the number of other potential purchasers, (5) the nature of the security and how trading is effected (e.g., the time needed to sell the security, how bids are solicited and the mechanics of transfer) and (6) the existence of demand features or similar liquidity enhancements. UBS AM and/or a fund's subadvisor monitors the liquidity of restricted securities in its portfolio and reports periodically on such decisions to the board. No fund may acquire any illiquid investment if, immediately after the acquisition, the fund would have invested more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments that are assets.

In making determinations as to the liquidity of municipal lease obligations purchased by certain funds, UBS AM and/or a fund's subadvisor distinguishes between direct investments in municipal lease obligations (or participations therein) and investments in securities that may be supported by municipal lease obligations or certificates of participation therein. Since these municipal lease obligation-backed securities are based on a well-established means of securitization, UBS AM and the funds' subadvisors do not believe that investing in such securities presents the same liquidity issues as direct investments in municipal lease obligations.

UBS AM and (where applicable) a fund's subadvisor monitor each fund's overall holdings of illiquid investments. If a fund's holdings of illiquid investments exceed its limitation on illiquid investments for any reason (such as a particular investment becoming illiquid, changes in the relative market values of liquid and illiquid portfolio investments or shareholder redemptions), UBS AM and the applicable subadvisor will consider what action would be in the best interests of a fund and its shareholders. Such action may include engaging in an orderly disposition of investments to reduce a fund's holdings of illiquid investments. However, a fund is not required to dispose of illiquid investments under these circumstances.

**Repurchase agreements.** Each fund may enter into repurchase agreements. Repurchase agreements are transactions in which a fund purchases securities or other obligations from a bank or securities dealer (or its affiliate) and simultaneously commits to resell them to the counterparty at an agreed-upon date or upon demand and at a price reflecting a market rate of interest unrelated to any coupon rate or maturity of the purchased obligations. Securities or other obligations subject to repurchase agreements may have maturities in excess of 13 months. A fund maintains custody of the underlying obligations prior to their repurchase, either through its regular custodian or through a special "tri-party" custodian or sub-custodian that maintains separate accounts for both the fund and its counterparty. Thus, the obligation of the counterparty to pay the repurchase price on the date agreed to or upon demand is, in effect, secured by such obligations. Each fund considers a repurchase agreement having more than seven days remaining to maturity an illiquid investment and will not enter into such repurchase agreement if, as a result, the fund would have invested more than 15% of its net assets in illiquid investments that are assets. A fund may utilize a put feature to limit the maturity of repurchase agreements it enters into.

Repurchase agreements are securities, and may be treated as "Government Securities" as defined in the Investment Company Act, if fully collateralized with such securities, for purposes of the tax diversification requirements that must be met for each fund to qualify for pass-through treatment under the Code. Accordingly, each fund will limit

the value of its repurchase agreements on each of the quarterly testing dates to ensure compliance with Subchapter M of the Code.

Repurchase agreements carry certain risks not associated with direct investments in securities, including a possible decline in the market value of the underlying obligations. If their value becomes less than the repurchase price, plus any agreed-upon additional amount, the counterparty must provide additional collateral so that at all times the collateral is at least equal to the repurchase price plus any agreed-upon additional amount. The difference between the total amount to be received upon repurchase of the obligations and the price that was paid by a fund upon acquisition is accrued as interest and included in its net investment income. Repurchase agreements involving obligations other than US government securities (such as commercial paper, corporate bonds, mortgage loans and equities) may be subject to special risks and may not have the benefit of certain protections in the event of the counterparty's insolvency. Moreover, repurchase agreements secured by obligations that are not eligible for direct investment under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act or a fund's investment strategies and limitations, may require a fund to promptly dispose of such collateral if the seller or guarantor becomes insolvent. If the seller or guarantor becomes insolvent, a fund may suffer delays, costs and possible losses in connection with the disposition of collateral. Such an insolvency may result in a loss to the extent that the value of the purchased securities or other assets decreases during the delay or that value has otherwise not been maintained at an amount equal to the repurchase price. Each fund intends to enter into repurchase agreements only in transactions with counterparties believed by UBS AM and the applicable subadvisor to present minimal credit risks.

**Reverse repurchase agreements.** Reverse repurchase agreements involve the sale of securities held by a fund subject to its agreement to repurchase the securities at an agreed-upon date or upon demand and at a price reflecting a market rate of interest. Reverse repurchase agreements are subject to each fund's limitation on borrowings and may be entered into only with banks or securities dealers or their affiliates.

Reverse repurchase agreements involve the risk that the buyer of the securities sold by a fund might be unable to deliver them when that fund seeks to repurchase. If the buyer of securities under a reverse repurchase agreement files for bankruptcy or becomes insolvent, the buyer or trustee or receiver may receive an extension of time to determine whether to enforce a fund's obligation to repurchase the securities, and the fund's use of the proceeds of the reverse repurchase agreement may effectively be restricted pending such decision. As described in further detail below, under the SEC's rule related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and certain other transactions by registered investment companies, when a fund trades reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions, including certain tender option bonds, it needs to aggregate the amount of indebtedness associated with the reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions with the aggregate amount of any other senior securities representing indebtedness when calculating the fund's asset coverage ratio or treat all such transactions as derivatives transactions. Reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions aggregated with other indebtedness do not need to be included in the calculation of whether a fund is a limited derivatives user, but for funds subject to the value-at-risk ("VaR") testing requirement, reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions must be included for purposes of such testing whether treated as derivatives transactions or not. A fund that is a money market fund may only transact in reverse repurchase agreements for temporary purposes or with a bank, aggregating the amount of indebtedness associated with such reverse repurchase agreements with the aggregate amount of any other senior securities representing indebtedness when calculating the fund's asset coverage ratio. See "Strategies using derivative instruments—General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments."

**Counterparty risk.** Each fund may be exposed to the risk that a counterparty to a transaction may not be willing or able to perform its obligations under the relevant contract, including due to its financial failure or insolvency, and the related risks of having concentrated exposure to such a counterparty. To help lessen those risks, UBS AM, a subadvisor, and/or its affiliates, as applicable, subject to the supervision of the board and UBS AM, monitors and evaluates the creditworthiness of the parties with which a fund does business.

**Operations risk.** Each fund is subject to the risk that a fund may not be able to complete a transaction in the manner or at the time desired or other potential operational issues because of difficulties with the settlement process or other functions related to the processing of securities transactions. Such risks may arise from factors such as processing errors, human errors, inadequate or failed internal or external processes and controls, failures in systems and technology, documentation issues, changes in personnel and errors caused by third-party service providers.

When-issued and delayed delivery securities. Each fund may purchase securities on a "when-issued" basis or may purchase or sell securities for delayed delivery to or by a fund later than the normal settlement date at a stated price and yield. When-issued securities include TBA ("to be announced") securities. TBA securities, which are usually mortgage-backed securities, are purchased on a forward commitment basis with an approximate principal amount and no defined maturity date. The actual principal amount and maturity date are determined upon settlement when the specific mortgage pools are assigned. A fund generally would not pay for such securities or start earning interest on them until they are received. However, when a fund undertakes a when-issued or delayed delivery obligation, it immediately assumes the risks of ownership, including the risks of price fluctuation. Failure of the issuer to deliver a security purchased by a fund on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis may result in the fund's incurring a loss or missing an opportunity to make an alternative investment. A fund's when-issued and delayed delivery purchase commitments could cause its net asset value per share to be more volatile. In addition, recently finalized rules of FINRA include mandatory margin requirements that will require each fund to post collateral in connection with its TBA transactions. There is no similar requirement applicable to each fund's TBA counterparties. The required collateralization of TBA trades could increase the cost of TBA transactions to each fund and impose added operational complexity.

A security purchased on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis is recorded as an asset on the commitment date and is subject to changes in market value, generally based upon changes in the level of interest rates. Thus, fluctuation in the value of the security from the time of the commitment date will affect a fund's net asset value. A fund's when-issued and delayed delivery purchase commitments could cause its net asset value per share to be more volatile.

A fund may sell the right to acquire the security prior to delivery if its subadvisor deems it advantageous to do so, which may result in a gain or loss to the fund.

Under the SEC's rule related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and certain other transactions by registered investment companies, a money market fund, such as UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, cannot rely on the rule to use such instruments, with a limited exception for investments in certain whenissued, forward-settling and non-standard settlement cycle securities transactions (the "Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision"). Under the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision, a fund will be permitted to invest in a security on a when-issued or forward-settling basis, or with a non-standard settlement cycle, and the transaction will be deemed not to involve a senior security (as defined under Section 18(g) of the Investment Company Act), provided that, (i) the fund intends to physically settle the transaction and (ii) the transaction will settle within 35 days of its trade date. A money market fund, such as UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, will only be permitted to engage in such transactions in compliance with the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision. A fund that is not a money market fund may otherwise engage in when-issued, forward-settling and non-standard settlement cycle securities transactions that do not meet the conditions of the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision so long as the fund treats any such transaction as a "derivatives transaction" for purposes of compliance with the rule. These requirements may limit the ability of a fund to invest in securities on a when-issued or forward-settling basis, or with a non-standard settlement cycle, as part of its investment strategies. See "Strategies using derivative instruments—General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments."

**Roll transactions.** In a dollar roll, a fund sells mortgage-backed or other securities for delivery on the next regular settlement date for those securities and, simultaneously, contracts to purchase substantially similar securities for delivery on a later settlement date. Dollar rolls are subject to a fund's limitation on borrowings. Certain of the funds

may invest in TBA securities (as described above) and may also engage in TBA and Treasury "roll" transactions. A TBA roll transaction is a strategy whereby the investment advisor decides to sell one TBA security and buy another TBA security due at a later date (Treasury roll transactions differ in that the underlying securities are US Treasury securities). TBA rolls are not subject to a fund's limitation on borrowing. Treasury rolls may be subject to a fund's limitation on borrowing, if characterized as financing trades by the applicable subadvisor. A fund will may only enter into such transactions in compliance with the SEC's rule related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions. See "Strategies using derivative instruments—General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments."

**Types of municipal bonds.** PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments may invest in a variety of municipal bonds, as described below. Certain other funds also may invest to a limited extent in municipal bonds from time to time.

Municipal bonds—Municipal bonds are obligations that are issued by states, municipalities, public authorities or other issuers and that pay interest that is exempt from federal income tax in the opinion of issuer's counsel. The two principal classifications of municipal bonds are "general obligation" and "revenue" bonds. General obligation bonds are secured by the issuer's pledge of its full faith, credit and taxing power for the payment of principal and interest. Revenue bonds are payable only from the revenues derived from a particular facility or class of facilities or, in some cases, from the proceeds of a special excise tax or other specific revenue source such as from the user of the facility being financed. Municipal bonds also include "moral obligation" bonds, which are normally issued by special purpose authorities. For these bonds, a government unit is regarded as morally obligated to support payment of the debt service, which is usually subject to annual budget appropriations. Various types of municipal bonds are described in the following sections.

Municipal securities and issuers of municipal securities may be more susceptible to downgrade, default, and bankruptcy as a result of recent periods of economic stress. Factors contributing to the economic stress may include: lower property tax collections as a result of lower home values, lower sales tax revenue as a result of reduced consumer spending, lower income tax revenue as a result of higher unemployment rates, and budgetary constraints of local, state and federal governments upon which issuers of municipal securities may be relying for funding. In addition, as certain municipal securities may be secured or guaranteed by banks and other institutions, the risk to a fund could increase if the banking, insurance or other parts of the financial sector suffer an economic downturn and/or if the credit ratings of the institutions issuing the guarantee are downgraded or at risk of being downgraded by a national rating organization. Such a downward revision or risk of being downgraded may have an adverse effect on the market prices of the securities and thus the value of a fund's investment. Further, a state, municipality, public authority or other issuers of municipal securities may file for bankruptcy, which may significantly affect the value of the securities issued by such issuers and therefore the value of a fund's investment. During the recent economic downturn, several municipalities have filed for bankruptcy protection or have indicated that they may seek bankruptcy protection in the future.

Municipal securities are also subject to the risk that the perceived increase in the likelihood of default or downgrade among municipal issuers as a result of recent market conditions could result in increased illiquidity, volatility and credit risk. In addition, certain municipal issuers may be unable to access the market to sell securities or, if able to access the market, may be forced to issue securities at much higher rates. Should these municipal issuers fail to sell bonds when and at the rates projected, these entities could experience significantly increased costs and a weakened overall cash position in the current fiscal year and beyond. These events could also result in decreased investment opportunities for a fund and lower investment performance.

Municipal lease obligations—Municipal bonds include municipal lease obligations, such as leases, installment purchase contracts and conditional sales contracts, and certificates of participation therein. Municipal lease obligations are issued by state and local governments and authorities to purchase land or various types of equipment or facilities and may be subject to annual budget appropriations. The fund generally invests in municipal lease obligations through certificates of participation.

Although municipal lease obligations do not constitute general obligations of the municipality for which its taxing power is pledged, they ordinarily are backed by the municipality's covenant to budget for, appropriate and make the payments due under the lease obligation. The leases underlying certain municipal lease obligations, however, provide that lease payments are subject to partial or full abatement if, because of material damage or destruction of the leased property, there is substantial interference with the lessee's use or occupancy of such property. This "abatement risk" may be reduced by the existence of insurance covering the leased property, the maintenance by the lessee of reserve funds or the provision of credit enhancements such as letters of credit.

Certain municipal lease obligations contain "non-appropriation" clauses, which provide that the municipality has no obligation to make lease or installment purchase payments in future years unless money is appropriated for such purpose on a yearly basis. Some municipal lease obligations of this type are insured as to timely payment of principal and interest, even in the event of a failure by the municipality to appropriate sufficient funds to make payments under the lease. Insurance does not guarantee the price of the municipal lease obligations or the share price of any fund. The credit rating of an insured municipal lease obligation reflects the credit rating of the insurer, based on its claims paying ability. The insurance feature is intended to reduce financial risk, but the cost of such insurance and the restrictions on investments imposed by the guidelines in the municipal insurance policy will result in a reduction in the yield on the insured municipal lease obligations purchased by the fund. However, in the case of an uninsured municipal lease obligation, the fund's ability to recover under the lease in the event of a non-appropriation or default will be limited solely to the repossession of leased property without recourse to the general credit of the leasee, and disposition of the property in the event of foreclosure might prove difficult.

Certain municipal lease obligations may be pre-refunded. A pre-refunded municipal lease obligation involves the deposit by the insurer of US government securities or cash with a trustee in an escrow account so the trustee may use these assets to pay all interest and principal of the municipal lease obligation.

Industrial development bonds ("IDBs") and private activity bonds ("PABs")—IDBs and PABs are issued by or on behalf of public authorities to finance various privately operated facilities, such as airport or pollution control facilities. These obligations are considered municipal bonds if the interest paid thereon is exempt from regular federal income taxes in the opinion of the bond issuer's counsel. IDBs and PABs are in most cases revenue bonds and thus are not payable from the unrestricted revenues of the issuer. The credit quality of IDBs and PABs is usually directly related to the credit standing of the user of the facilities being financed. IDBs issued after August 15, 1986 generally are considered PABs, and to the extent the fund invests in such PABs, shareholders generally will be required to include a portion of their exemptinterest dividends from the fund in calculating their liability for the AMT. See "Taxes—Information about PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments" below. The fund may invest more than 25% of its net assets in IDBs and PABs.

Taxable municipal bonds—Although most municipal bonds are exempt from federal income tax, some municipal bonds are not. Taxable municipal bonds may include Build America Bonds, which were created pursuant to the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 ("ARRA") to offer an alternative form of financing to state and local governments whose primary means for accessing the capital markets had been through the issuance of tax-exempt municipal bonds. Build America Bonds are a type of municipal bond and thus are subject to many of the characteristics (except tax characteristics) and risks as other municipal bonds.

Under ARRA, an issuer of a Build America Bond is entitled to receive payments from the US Treasury Department over the life of the Build America Bond equal to 35% of the interest paid (or 45% of the interest paid in the case of a Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond). For example, if a state or local government were to issue a Build America Bond at a 10% taxable interest rate, the US Treasury Department would make a payment directly to the issuing government of 3.5% of that interest (or 4.5% in the case of a Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond). Thus, the state or local government's net borrowing cost would be 6.5% or 5.5%, respectively, on a bond that pays 10% interest. In other cases, holders of a Build America Bond receive a 35% or 45% tax credit, respectively. Although a large portion of the borrowing costs of Build America Bonds are subsidized by the US government, Build America Bonds are subject to state and federal income tax.

Pursuant to ARRA, the issuance of new Build America Bonds ceased on December 31, 2010. There can be no assurance that Build America Bonds will continue to be actively traded, and Build America Bonds may be subject to certain risks associated with municipal bonds generally, such as economic difficulty of the issuing municipality or bankruptcy proceedings. Outstanding Build America Bonds as of the program's expiration date continue to be eligible for the federal interest rate subsidy or tax credit, which continues for the life of the Build America Bonds; however, no bonds issued following such expiration date will be eligible for federal payment or tax credit. Because Build America Bonds are a relatively new form of municipal financing and are subject modifications through future legislation, it is possible that a market for such bonds will decline in value, causing Build America Bonds to experience greater illiquidity than other municipal bonds and causing a portfolio of a fund that holds such bonds to decline in value, possibly more than if it held other types of municipal bonds.

Floating rate and variable rate obligations—Floating rate and variable rate obligations are municipal bonds that bear interest at rates that are not fixed but that vary with changes in specified market rates or indices. The interest rate on floating rate or variable rate securities ordinarily is readjusted on the basis of the prime rate of the bank that originated the financing or some other index or published rate, such as the 90-day US Treasury bill rate, or is otherwise reset to reflect market rates of interest. Generally, these interest rate adjustments cause the market value of floating rate and variable rate municipal securities to fluctuate less than the market value of fixed rate obligations. Accordingly, as interest rates decrease or increase, the potential for capital appreciation or capital depreciation is less than for fixed rate obligations. Floating rate or variable rate obligations typically permit the holder to demand payment of principal from the issuer or remarketing agent at par value prior to maturity and may permit the issuer to prepay principal, plus accrued interest, at its discretion after a specified notice period. Frequently, floating rate or variable rate obligations and/or the demand features thereon are secured by letters of credit or other credit support arrangements provided by banks or other financial institutions, the credit standing of which affects the credit quality of the obligations. Changes in the credit quality of these institutions could cause losses to the fund and adversely affect its share price.

A demand feature gives the fund the right to sell the securities to a specified party, usually a remarketing agent, on a specified date. A demand feature is often backed by a letter of credit from a bank or a guarantee or other liquidity support arrangement from a bank or other financial institution. As discussed under "Participation interests," to the extent that payment of an obligation is backed by a letter of credit, guarantee or other liquidity support that may be drawn upon demand, such payment may be subject to that institution's ability to satisfy that commitment.

Participation interests—Participation interests are interests in municipal bonds, including IDBs, PABs and floating and variable rate obligations, that are owned by banks. These interests carry a demand feature permitting the holder to tender them back to the bank, which demand feature generally is backed by an irrevocable letter of credit or guarantee of the bank. The credit standing of such bank affects the credit quality of the participation interests.

A participation interest gives the fund an undivided interest in a municipal bond owned by a bank. The fund has the right to sell the instruments back to the bank. Such right generally is backed by the bank's irrevocable letter of credit or guarantee and permits the fund to draw on the letter of credit on demand, after specified notice, for all or any part of the principal amount of the fund's participation interest plus accrued interest. Generally, the fund expects to exercise the demand under the letters of credit or other guarantees (1) upon a default under the terms of the underlying bond, (2) to maintain the fund's portfolio in accordance with its investment objective and policies or (3) as needed to provide liquidity to the fund in order to meet redemption requests. The ability of a bank to fulfill its obligations under a letter of credit or guarantee might be affected by possible financial difficulties of its borrowers, adverse interest rate or economic conditions, regulatory limitations or other factors. The fund's investment advisor will monitor the pricing, quality and liquidity of the participation interests held by the fund, and the credit standing of banks issuing letters of credit or guarantees supporting such participation interests on the basis of published financial information reports of rating services and bank analytical services.

Tender option bonds—Tender option bonds represent interests in long-term municipal bonds sold by a bank subject to a "tender option" that gives the purchaser the right to tender them to the bank at par plus accrued interest at designated times (the "tender option"). The tender option may be exercisable at intervals ranging from bi-weekly to semi-annually, and the interest rate on the bonds is typically reset at the end of the applicable interval in an attempt to cause the bonds to have a market value that approximates their par value. The tender option generally would not be exercisable in the event of a default on, or significant downgrading of, the underlying municipal bonds. Therefore, the fund's ability to exercise the tender option will be affected by the credit standing of both the bank involved and the issuer of the underlying securities.

Certain regulations could impact the tender option bonds in which a fund invests. In particular, Section 619 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the rules thereunder (the "Volcker Rule") has impacted tender option bond programs. These rules have the effect of restricting banking entities from: (i) acting as a sponsor or acquiring interests in the trusts used to hold a municipal bond in the creation of tender option bond trusts; and (ii) servicing or maintaining relationships with existing programs involving such trusts to the same extent and in the same capacity as existing programs. As a result, these rules may adversely affect the tender option bond market and, more broadly, the municipal bond market.

Put bonds—A put bond is a municipal bond that gives the holder the unconditional right to sell the bond back to the issuer or a remarketing agent at a specified price and exercise date, which is typically well in advance of the bond's maturity date. The obligation to purchase the bond on the exercise date may be supported by a letter of credit or other credit support arrangement from a bank, insurance company or other financial institution, the credit standing of which affects the credit quality of the obligation.

If the put is a "one time only" put, the fund ordinarily will either sell the bond or put the bond, depending upon the more favorable price. If the bond has a series of puts after the first put, the bond will be held as long as, in the judgment of its subadvisor, it is in the best interest of the fund to do so. There is no assurance that the issuer of a put bond acquired by a fund will be able to repurchase the bond upon the exercise date, if the fund chooses to exercise its right to put the bond back to the issuer.

Tax-exempt commercial paper and short-term municipal notes—Municipal bonds include tax-exempt commercial paper and short-term municipal notes, such as tax anticipation notes, bond anticipation notes, revenue anticipation notes and other forms of short-term loans. Such notes are issued with a short-term maturity in anticipation of the receipt of tax funds, the proceeds of bond placements and other revenues.

Inverse floaters—The fund may invest in municipal bonds on which the rate of interest varies inversely with interest rates on other municipal bonds or an index. Such obligations include components of securities on which interest is paid in two separate parts—an auction component, which pays interest at a market rate that is set periodically through an auction process or other method, and a residual component, or "inverse floater," which pays interest at a rate equal to the difference between the rate that the issuer would have paid on a fixed-rate obligation at the time of issuance and the rate paid on the auction component. The market value of an inverse floater will be more volatile than that of a fixed-rate obligation and, like most debt obligations, will vary with changes in interest rates.

Because the interest rate paid to holders of inverse floaters is generally determined by subtracting the interest rate paid to holders of auction components from a fixed amount, the interest rate paid to holders of inverse floaters will decrease as market rates increase and increase as market rates decrease. Moreover, the extent of the increases and decreases in the market value of inverse floaters may be larger than comparable changes in the market value of an equal principal amount of a fixed rate municipal bond having similar credit quality, redemption provisions and maturity. In a declining interest rate environment, inverse floaters can provide the fund with a means of increasing or maintaining the level of tax-exempt interest paid to shareholders.

Mortgage subsidy bonds—The fund also may purchase mortgage subsidy bonds that are normally issued by special purpose public authorities. In some cases the repayment of such bonds depends upon annual legislative appropriations; in other cases repayment is a legal obligation of the issuer, and, if the issuer is unable to meet its obligations, repayment becomes a moral commitment of a related government unit (subject, however, to such appropriations). The types of municipal bonds identified above and in the prospectus may include obligations of issuers whose revenues are primarily derived from mortgage loans on housing projects for moderate to low income families.

Standby commitments—The fund may acquire standby commitments pursuant to which a bank or other municipal bond dealer agrees to purchase securities that are held in the fund's portfolio or that are being purchased by the fund at a price equal to (1) the acquisition cost (excluding any accrued interest paid on acquisition), less any amortized market premium or plus any accrued market or original issue discount, plus (2) all interest accrued on the securities since the last interest payment date or the date the securities were purchased by the fund, whichever is later. The fund may acquire such commitments under unusual market conditions to facilitate portfolio liquidity.

The fund may enter into standby commitments only with those banks or other dealers that, in the opinion of its subadvisor, present minimal credit risk. The fund's right to exercise standby commitments is unconditional and unqualified. A standby commitment is not transferable by the fund, although it could sell the underlying securities to a third party at any time. The fund may pay for standby commitments either separately in cash or by paying a higher price for the securities that are acquired subject to such a commitment (thus reducing the yield to maturity otherwise available for the same securities). The acquisition of a standby commitment does not ordinarily affect the valuation or maturity of the underlying municipal bonds. Standby commitments acquired by the fund are valued at zero in determining net asset value. Whether the fund paid directly or indirectly for a standby commitment, its cost would be treated as unrealized depreciation and is amortized over the period the commitment is held by the fund.

**Duration.** Duration is a measure of the expected life of a bond on a present value basis. Duration incorporates the bond's yield, coupon interest payments, final maturity and call features into one measure and is one of the fundamental tools used by the applicable subadvisor in portfolio selection and yield curve positioning of a fund's investments in bonds. Duration was developed as a more precise alternative to the concept "term to maturity." Traditionally, a bond's "term to maturity" has been used as a proxy for the sensitivity of the security's price to changes in interest rates (which is the "interest rate risk" or "volatility" of the security). However, "term to maturity" measures only the time until the scheduled final payment on the bond, taking no account of the pattern of payments prior to maturity.

Duration takes the length of the time intervals between the present time and the time that the interest and principal payments are scheduled or, in the case of a callable bond, expected to be made, and weights them by the present values of the cash to be received at each future point in time. For any bond with interest payments occurring prior to the payment of principal, duration is always less than maturity. For example, depending on its coupon and the level of market yields, a Treasury note with a remaining maturity of five years might have a duration of 4.5 years. For mortgage-backed and other securities that are subject to prepayments, put or call features or adjustable coupons, the difference between the remaining stated maturity and the duration is likely to be much greater.

Duration allows a subadvisor to make certain predictions as to the effect that changes in the level of interest rates will have on the value of a fund's portfolio of bonds. For example, when the level of interest rates increases by 1%, a debt security having a positive duration of three years generally will decrease in value by approximately 3%. Thus, if a subadvisor calculates the duration of a fund's portfolio of bonds as three years, it normally would expect the portfolio to change in value by approximately 3% for every 1% change in the level of interest rates. However, various factors, such as changes in anticipated prepayment rates, qualitative considerations and market supply and demand, can cause particular securities to respond somewhat differently to changes in interest rates than indicated in the above example. Moreover, in the case of mortgage-backed and other complex securities, duration calculations are estimates and are not precise. This is particularly true during periods of market volatility. Accordingly, the

net asset value of a fund's portfolio of bonds may vary in relation to interest rates by a greater or lesser percentage than indicated by the above example.

Futures, options and options on futures have durations that, in general, are closely related to the duration of the securities that underlie them. Holding long futures or call option positions will lengthen portfolio duration by approximately the same amount as would holding an equivalent amount of the underlying securities. Short futures or put options have durations roughly equal to the negative duration of the securities that underlie these positions, and have the effect of reducing portfolio duration by approximately the same amount as would selling an equivalent amount of the underlying securities.

There are some situations in which the standard duration calculation does not properly reflect the interest rate exposure of a security. For example, floating and variable rate securities often have final maturities of ten or more years; however, their interest rate exposure corresponds to the frequency of the coupon reset. Another example where the interest rate exposure is not properly captured by the standard duration calculation is the case of mortgage-backed securities. The stated final maturity of such securities is generally 30 years, but current prepayment rates are critical in determining the securities' interest rate exposure. In these and other similar situations, a subadvisor will use more sophisticated analytical techniques that incorporate the economic life of a security into the determination of its duration and, therefore, its interest rate exposure.

Lending of portfolio securities. Each fund is authorized to lend its portfolio securities to broker-dealers or institutional investors that UBS AM deems qualified. Lending securities enables a fund to earn additional income, but could result in a loss or delay in recovering these securities. The borrower of a fund's portfolio securities must maintain acceptable collateral with that fund's custodian (or a sub-custodian or a special "tri-party" custodian) in an amount, marked to market daily, at least equal to the market value of the securities loaned, plus accrued interest and dividends. Acceptable collateral is limited to cash and US government securities. Each fund may reinvest any cash collateral in money market investments or other short-term liquid investments, including other investment companies. PACE International Equity Investments may also use the cash collateral it receives from its securities lending activity to finance its short selling activity, subjecting the fund to the risk that the counterparty holding this cash collateral may fail to return it promptly (e.g., in the event of a bankruptcy). In determining whether to lend securities to a particular broker-dealer or institutional investor, UBS AM or a lending agent subject to UBS AM direction and oversight will consider, and during the period of the loan will monitor, all relevant facts and circumstances, including the creditworthiness of the borrower. Each fund will retain authority to terminate any of its loans at any time. Each fund may pay reasonable fees in connection with a loan and may pay the borrower or placing broker a negotiated portion of the interest earned on the reinvestment of cash held as collateral. A fund will receive amounts equivalent to any interest, dividends or other distributions on the securities loaned. Each fund will seek to retain ownership of loaned securities to exercise beneficial rights, such as voting and subscription rights, when retaining such rights is considered to be in the fund's interest and operationally reasonably practicable.

State Street Bank & Trust Company ("State Street") has been approved to serve as lending agent for each fund and receives fees, including a fee based on the returns earned on each fund's investment of the cash received as collateral for the loaned securities, for such services. Additionally, State Street has been approved to engage a third party bank as a special "tri-party" custodian for securities lending arrangements.

**Short sales "against the box."** Each fund (other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments) may engage in short sales of securities it owns or has the right to acquire at no added cost through conversion or exchange of other securities it owns (short sales "against the box"). To make delivery to the purchaser in a short sale, the executing broker borrows the securities being sold short on behalf of a fund, and that fund is obligated to replace the securities borrowed at a date in the future. When a fund sells short, it establishes a margin account with the broker effecting the short sale and deposits collateral with the

broker. Each fund incurs transaction costs, including interest expense, in connection with opening, maintaining and closing short sales "against the box."

A fund might make a short sale "against the box" to hedge against market risks when its subadvisor believes that the price of a security may decline, thereby causing a decline in the value of a security owned by the fund or a security convertible into or exchangeable for a security owned by the fund. In such case, any loss in a fund's long position after the short sale should be reduced by a corresponding gain in the short position. Conversely, any gain in the long position after the short sale should be reduced by a corresponding loss in the short position. The extent to which gains or losses in the long position are reduced will depend upon the amount of the securities sold short relative to the amount of the securities a fund owns, either directly or indirectly, and in the case where a fund owns convertible securities, changes in the investment values or conversion premiums of such securities.

A fund may only enter into such transactions in compliance with the SEC's rule related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions. See "Strategies using derivative instruments—General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments."

**Short sales.** PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments (with respect to securities issued by the US Treasury and TBA securities coupon trades), PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments, PACE International Equity Investments, PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may engage in short sale transactions in which the fund sells a security it does not own (or does not have the right to acquire at no added cost).

PACE International Equity Investments may also invest the proceeds received upon the initial sale of the security, resulting in leverage and increasing each fund's return and loss potential.

Each fund must borrow the security to make delivery to the buyer.

Each fund incurs transaction costs, including dividend expense, borrowing costs and interest expenses in connection with opening, maintaining and closing short sales. There is also the risk that the counterparty to a short sale transaction may fail to honor its contract terms, causing a loss to a fund.

PACE International Equity Investments may also engage in short sale transactions that are effected through the custodian and may deliver cash received in connection with its securities lending activity to the custodian as collateral to secure the short sale transactions. This option may subject each fund to a heightened risk that the custodian would fail to return the fund's cash collateral. UBS AM regularly monitors the custodian's credit profile and has negotiated certain contractual terms with the custodian that obligate the custodian to return a fund's cash collateral under certain circumstances. However, there is no assurance that the custodian would be able to satisfy this obligation.

Because PACE International Equity Investments and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments are multi-managed and have the ability to engage in short sales, one subadvisor may take a short position and another a long position in the same security.

A fund will incur a loss as a result of the short sale if the price of the security increases between the date of the short sale and the date on which the fund replaces the borrowed security, and a fund will realize a gain if the security declines in price between those same dates (PACE International Equity Investments is subject to the risk of additional losses if it elects to invest the proceeds received from the initial short sale, and that investment declines in value). The amount of any gain will be decreased, and the amount of any loss increased, by the amount of any premium, dividends or interest a fund is required to pay in connection with the short sale. Because a fund's loss on a short sale arises from increases in the value of the security sold short, such loss, like the potential increase in price of

the security sold short, is theoretically unlimited. In addition, a fund's securities held long could decline in value at the same time the value of the security sold short increases, thereby increasing the fund's potential for loss.

A fund may only enter into such transactions in compliance with the SEC's rule related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions. See "Strategies using derivative instruments—General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments."

Real estate industry. Although PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments will not invest directly in real estate, it will invest in the real estate industry. Therefore, an investment in PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments is subject to certain risks associated with the direct ownership of real estate and with the real estate industry in general. These risks include, among others: possible declines in the value of real estate; risks related to general and local economic conditions; possible lack of availability of mortgage financings; variations in rental income, neighborhood values or the appeal of property to tenants; interest rates; overbuilding; extended vacancies of properties; increases in competition, property taxes and operating expenses; changes in zoning laws; costs resulting from the clean-up of, and liability to third parties for damages resulting from, environmental problems; casualty or condemnation losses; uninsured damages from floods, earthquakes or other natural disasters; limitations on and variations in rents; changes in interest rates; and acts of terrorism, war or other acts of violence. The real estate industry is particularly sensitive to economic downturns. The values of securities of companies in the real estate industry may go through cycles of relative under-performance and out-performance in comparison to equity securities markets in general.

Real estate investment trusts. PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments, PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments, PACE International Equity Investments, PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments, PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may invest in REITs. REITs pool investors' funds for investment, primarily in income producing real estate or real estate-related loans or interests. The pooled vehicle, typically a trust, then issues shares whose value and investment performance are dependent upon the investment performance of the underlying real estate-related investments. A REIT is not taxed on income distributed to its shareholders or unitholders if it complies with regulatory requirements relating to its organization, ownership, assets and income, and with a regulatory requirement that it distribute to its shareholders or unitholders at least 90% of its taxable income for each taxable year. Generally, REITs can be classified as Equity REITs, Mortgage REITs or Hybrid REITs. Equity REITs invest the majority of their assets directly in real property and derive their income primarily from rents and capital gains from appreciation realized through property sales. Equity REITs are further categorized according to the types of real estate securities they own, e.g., apartment properties, retail shopping centers, office and industrial properties, hotels, health-care facilities, manufactured housing and mixed-property types. Mortgage REITs invest the majority of their assets in real estate mortgages and derive their income primarily from interest payments. Hybrid REITs combine the characteristics of both Equity REITs and Mortgage REITs.

A shareholder, by investing in REITs indirectly through a fund, will bear not only the shareholder's proportionate share of the expenses of the fund, but also, indirectly, the management expenses of the underlying REITs. REITs may be affected by changes in the value of their underlying properties and by defaults by borrowers or tenants. Mortgage REITs may be affected by the quality of the credit extended.

Furthermore, REITs are dependent on specialized management skills. Some REITs may have limited diversification and may be subject to risks inherent in investments in a limited number of properties, in a narrow geographic area, or in a single property type. REITs depend generally on their ability to generate cash flow to make distributions to shareholders or unitholders, and may be subject to defaults by borrowers and to self-liquidations. In addition, the performance of a REIT may be affected by its failure to qualify for tax-free pass-through of income, or the REIT's failure to maintain exemption from registration under the Investment Company Act.

**Initial public offerings.** Several of the funds may purchase shares issued as part of, or a short period after, a company's initial public offering ("IPO"), and may dispose of those shares shortly after their acquisition. The purchase of

shares issued in IPOs exposes a fund to the risks associated with organizations that have little operating history as public companies, as well as to the risks associated with the sectors of the market in which the issuer operates. The market for IPO shares has been volatile, and share prices of newly-public companies have fluctuated significantly over short periods of time.

**Special purpose acquisition companies.** PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments may invest in stock, warrants, and other securities of special purpose acquisition companies ("SPACs") or similar special purpose entities that pool funds to seek potential acquisition opportunities. A SPAC is typically a publicly traded company that raises funds through an IPO for the purpose of acquiring or merging with another company to be identified subsequent to the SPAC's IPO. The securities of a SPAC are often issued in "units" that include one share of common stock and one right or warrant (or partial right or warrant) conveying the right to purchase additional shares or partial shares. Unless and until a transaction is completed, a SPAC generally invests its assets (less a portion retained to cover expenses) in US government securities, money market funds and similar investments. If an acquisition or merger that meets the requirements for the SPAC is not completed within a pre-established period of time, the invested funds are returned to the SPAC's shareholders, less certain permitted expenses, and any rights or warrants issued by the SPAC will expire worthless.

Because SPACs and similar entities are in essence blank check companies without operating history or ongoing business other than seeking acquisitions, the value of their securities is particularly dependent on the ability of the entity's management to identify and complete a profitable acquisition. Some SPACs may pursue acquisitions or mergers only within certain industries or regions, which may further increase the volatility of their securities' prices. In addition to purchasing publicly traded SPAC securities, a fund may invest in SPACs through additional financings via securities offerings that are exempt from registration under the federal securities laws (restricted securities). No public market will exist for these restricted securities unless and until they are registered for resale with the SEC, and such securities may be considered illiquid and/or be subject to restrictions on resale. It may also be difficult to value restricted securities issued by SPACs.

An investment in a SPAC is subject to a variety of risks, including that (i) a portion of the funds raised by the SPAC for the purpose of effecting an acquisition or merger may be expended prior to the transaction for payment of taxes and other expenses; (ii) prior to any acquisition or merger, a SPAC's assets are typically invested in US government securities, money market funds and similar investments whose returns or yields may be significantly lower than those of a fund's other investments; (iii) a fund generally will not receive significant income from its investments in SPACs (both prior to and after any acquisition or merger) and, therefore, a fund's investments in SPACs will not significantly contribute to a fund's distributions to shareholders; (iv) attractive acquisition or merger targets may become scarce if the number of SPACs seeking to acquire operating businesses increases; (v) an attractive acquisition or merger target may not be identified at all, in which case the SPAC will be required to return any remaining monies to shareholders; (vi) if an acquisition or merger target is identified, a fund may elect not to participate in, or vote to approve, the proposed transaction or a fund may be required to divest its interests in the SPAC, due to regulatory or other considerations, in which case a fund may not reap any resulting benefits; (vii) the warrants or other rights with respect to the SPAC held by a fund may expire worthless or may be redeemed by the SPAC at an unfavorable price; (viii) any proposed merger or acquisition may be unable to obtain the requisite approval, if any, of SPAC shareholders and/or antitrust and securities regulators; (ix) under any circumstances in which a fund receives a refund of all or a portion of its original investment (which typically represents a pro rata share of the proceeds of the SPAC's assets, less any applicable taxes), the returns on that investment may be negligible, and a fund may be subject to opportunity costs to the extent that alternative investments would have produced higher returns; (x) to the extent an acquisition or merger is announced or completed, shareholders who redeem their shares prior to that time may not reap any resulting benefits; (xi) a fund may be delayed in receiving any redemption or liquidation proceeds from a SPAC to which it is entitled; (xii) an acquisition or merger once effected may prove unsuccessful and an investment in the SPAC may lose value; (xiii) an investment in a SPAC may be diluted by additional later offerings of interests in the SPAC or by other investors exercising existing rights to purchase shares of the SPAC; (xiv) only a thinly traded market for shares of or interests in a SPAC may develop, or there may be no market at all, leaving a

fund unable to sell its interest in a SPAC or to sell its interest only at a price below what a fund believes is the SPAC interest's intrinsic value; and (xv) the values of investments in SPACs may be highly volatile and may depreciate significantly over time.

**Cyber security risk.** As the use of technology has become more prevalent in the course of business, the funds, like other business organizations, have become more susceptible to operational, information security and related risks through breaches in cybersecurity. In general, cybersecurity failures or breaches of a fund or its service providers or the issuers of securities in which a fund invests may result from deliberate attacks or unintentional events and may arise from external or internal sources. Cybersecurity breaches may involve unauthorized access to a fund's digital information systems (e.g., through "hacking" or malicious software coding), but may also result from outside attacks such as denial-of-service attacks (i.e., efforts to make network services unavailable to intended users). Cybersecurity failures or breaches affecting a fund's investment advisor or any other service providers (including, but not limited to, fund accountants, custodians, transfer agents and financial intermediaries) have the ability to cause disruptions and impact business operations, potentially resulting in financial losses, interference with a fund's ability to calculate its net asset value, impediments to trading, the inability of fund shareholders to transact business, destruction to equipment and systems, violations of applicable privacy and other laws, regulatory fines, penalties, reputational damage, reimbursement or other compensation costs, and/or additional compliance costs. In addition, substantial costs may be incurred in order to prevent any cybersecurity breaches in the future.

While UBS AM has established business continuity plans in the event of, and risk management systems to prevent, such cybersecurity breaches, there are inherent limitations in such plans and systems including the possibility that certain risks have not been identified. Furthermore, UBS AM does not directly control the cybersecurity plans and systems put in place by the funds' other service providers or any other third parties whose operations may affect a fund or its shareholders. A fund and its shareholders could be negatively impacted as a result.

**Distressed securities risk.** Distressed securities frequently do not produce income while they are outstanding, and may require the fund to bear certain extraordinary expenses in order to protect and recover its investment. Distressed securities are subject to greater risk of loss of income and principal than higher rated securities and are considered speculative. The prices of distressed securities are likely to be more sensitive to adverse economic changes or individual issuer developments than higher rated securities. During an economic downturn or substantial period of rising interest rates, distressed security issuers may experience financial stress that would adversely affect their ability to service their principal and interest payment obligations, to meet their projected business goals or to obtain additional financing.

**Limited capitalization risk.** The risk that securities of smaller capitalization companies tend to be more volatile and less liquid than securities of larger capitalization companies. This can have a disproportionate effect on the market price of smaller capitalization companies and affect the fund's ability to purchase or sell these securities. In general, smaller capitalization companies are more vulnerable than larger companies to adverse business or economic developments and they may have more limited resources.

**Market risk.** Market risks, including political, regulatory, market, economic and social developments, and developments that impact specific economic sectors, industries or segments of the market, can affect the value and liquidity of the funds' investments. In addition, turbulence in financial markets and reduced liquidity in equity and/or fixed-income markets may negatively affect the funds. Global economies and financial markets are becoming increasingly interconnected, and conditions and events in one country, region or financial market may adversely impact issuers in a different country, region or financial market. Events such as war, acts of terrorism, natural disasters, recessions, rapid inflation, the imposition of international sanctions, pandemics or other public health threats could also significantly impact a fund and its investments. These risks may be magnified if certain events or developments adversely interrupt the global supply chain, and could affect companies worldwide.

Recent examples include pandemic risks related to the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19") and the aggressive measures taken worldwide in response by (i) governments, including closing borders, restricting travel and imposing prolonged quarantines of, or similar restrictions on, large populations, and (ii) businesses, including forced or voluntary closures, changes to operations and reductions of staff. The effects of COVID-19 have contributed to increased volatility in global financial markets and may affect certain countries, regions, companies, industries and market sectors more dramatically than others. The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and any other outbreak of an infectious disease or serious environmental or public health concern could have, a significant negative impact on economic and market conditions, could exacerbate pre-existing political, social and economic risks in certain countries or regions and could trigger a prolonged period of global economic slowdown, which may impact the funds. It is not known how long the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will, or future impacts of other significant events would, last or the severity thereof. To the extent a fund is overweight in certain countries, regions, companies, industries or market sectors, such positions will increase the risk of loss from adverse developments affecting those countries, regions, companies, industries or sectors.

Money market fund regulatory risk. The SEC adopted changes to the rules that govern SEC registered money market funds in July 2023. These changes include, among other things: (1) substantially increasing the required minimum levels of liquid assets a fund must hold; (2) allowing government money market funds to engage in certain practices in order to maintain a stable NAV in a negative interest rate environment; and (3) enhancing reporting requirements for all money market funds. These changes have a phase in period with significant changes taking effect on April 2, 2024. These changes may affect the performance, yield, and operating expenses of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund.

Low or negative interest rates. In a low or negative interest rate environment, debt instruments may trade at negative yields, which means the purchaser of the instrument may receive at maturity less than the total amount invested. In addition, in a negative interest rate environment, if a bank charges negative interest, instead of receiving interest on deposits, a depositor must pay the bank fees to keep money with the bank. To the extent a fund holds a negatively-yielding debt instrument or has a bank deposit with a negative interest rate, a fund would generate a negative return on that investment.

In the past, certain European countries and Japan have pursued negative interest rate policies, and there is the possibility that negative interest rate policies might be pursued in the United States at some point in the future. In a low or negative interest rate environment, some investors may seek to reallocate assets to other income-producing assets, such as investment-grade and higher-yield debt instruments, or equity investments that pay a dividend, absent other market risks that may make such alternative investments unattractive. This increased demand for higher yielding assets may cause the price of such instruments to rise while triggering a corresponding decrease in yield over time, thus reducing the value of such alternative investments. In addition, a move to higher yielding investments may cause investors, including a fund (to the extent permitted by its investment objective and strategies), to seek fixed-income investments with longer maturities and/or potentially reduced credit quality in order to seek the desired level of yield. These considerations may limit the funds' ability to locate fixed-income instruments containing the desired risk/return profile.

With regard to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, a low or negative interest rate environment could impact the fund's ability to maintain a stable \$1.00 share price. If the fund has a negative gross yield as a result of negative interest rates, it may reduce the number of shares outstanding on a pro rata basis through reverse stock splits, negative dividends or other mechanisms to seek to maintain a stable \$1.00 price per share, to the extent permissible by applicable law and its organizational documents. The use of such measures is also subject to certain determinations by the fund's board and disclosure requirements, and may have tax implications for the fund and its shareholders. Alternatively, the fund may discontinue using the amortized cost method of valuation to maintain a stable \$1.00 price per share and establish a fluctuating net asset value per share rounded to four decimal places by using available market quotations or equivalents.

The funds and the PACE Select Advisors Program, Other Programs and Brokerage Platforms. Participants in the PACE<sup>SM</sup> Select Advisors Program and certain other advisory programs (the "Class P Programs"), and investors transacting through certain brokerage platforms, may purchase Class P shares of the funds. Investors seeking to purchase shares of the funds individually and apart from the Class P Programs may do so by purchasing Class A or Class Y shares of the funds. Because of the ongoing connection between the funds and the Class P Programs, individual funds may be managed in part based upon how they function within the overall Class P Programs. For example, certain funds may be less likely to invest defensively (e.g., by holding cash instruments) in certain market environments because exposure to more conservative investments may be obtained elsewhere through other funds in the Class P Programs. Additionally, a substantial amount of the funds' assets are held through a single intermediary (i.e., UBS Financial Services Inc.), and recommendations made by this intermediary (or other intermediaries) to redeem fund shares could adversely affect the remaining fund shareholders, by reducing a fund's liquidity and/or increasing its transaction and tax costs. These factors may be particularly of interest for those investing outside of the Class P Programs.

Clients of a fee-based program or other advisory programs in which UBS AM exercises investment discretion and for which clients pay UBS AM a fee, or pay an affiliate of UBS AM a fee and UBS AM receives compensation, to participate in such programs, institutional clients with which UBS AM or its affiliates has signed a separate investment management agreement, pursuant to which such clients pay an advisory fee, and other registered investment companies managed by UBS AM that pay a management fee at the investing/acquiring fund level, may purchase Class P2 shares of the funds.

## Investment limitations of the funds

**Fundamental investment limitations.** The following investment limitations cannot be changed for a fund without the affirmative vote of the lesser of (a) more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities or (b) 67% or more of the outstanding voting securities present at a shareholders' meeting if more than 50% of the outstanding voting securities are represented at the meeting in person or by proxy. If a percentage restriction is adhered to at the time of an investment or transaction, a later increase or decrease in percentage resulting from changing values of portfolio securities or amount of total assets will not be considered a violation of any of the following limitations. With regard to the borrowings limitation in fundamental limitation number 4, the funds will comply with the applicable restrictions of Section 18 of the Investment Company Act.

Under the investment restrictions adopted by the funds:

- (1) Each fund shall be a "diversified company" as that term is defined in the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
  - The following interpretation applies to, but is not a part of, this fundamental restriction: mortgage- and asset-backed securities will not be considered to have been issued by the same issuer by reason of the securities having the same sponsor, and mortgage- and asset-backed securities issued by a finance or other special purpose subsidiary that are not guaranteed by the parent company will be considered to be issued by a separate issuer from the parent company.
- (2) Each fund, other than PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments and PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments, will not "concentrate" its investments in a particular industry, except as permitted under the Investment Company Act, as interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
  - The following interpretation applies to, but is not a part of, this fundamental limitation: Except as noted above, a fund will not purchase any security if, as a result of that purchase, 25% or more of the fund's total assets

would be invested in securities of issuers having their principal business activities in the same industry, except that this limitation does not apply to securities issued or guaranteed by the US government, its agencies and instrumentalities or to municipal securities. In addition, (a) US banking (including US finance subsidiaries of non-US banks) and non-US banking will be considered to be different industries; (b) asset-backed securities will be grouped in industries based upon their underlying assets and not treated as constituting a single, separate industry; and (c) taxable municipal securities will not be considered municipal securities for purposes of this industry concentration limitation. This limitation is also interpreted with respect to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund so as not to apply to that fund's investments in certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances of domestic branches of US banks.

PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments will concentrate in real estate related securities. In addition, the interpretation of municipal securities set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph will also apply to PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments.

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments will concentrate in municipal fixed income securities, the income from which is exempt from regular federal income tax.

- (3) Each fund may borrow money to the extent permitted under the Investment Company Act, as amended, as may be interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
- (4) Each fund may issue senior securities to the extent permitted under the Investment Company Act, as may be interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
- (5) Each fund may make loans, to the extent permitted under the Investment Company Act, as may be interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
- (6) A fund will not purchase or sell real estate or real estate limited partnership interests, except that it may purchase and sell securities that are collateralized by or otherwise related to interests in real estate and securities of companies that deal in real estate or interests therein.
- (7) Each fund may not purchase or sell physical commodities unless acquired as a result of owning securities or other instruments, but the fund may purchase, sell or enter into financial options and futures, forward and spot currency contracts, swap transactions and other financial contracts or derivative instruments, to the extent permitted under the Investment Company Act and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, as may be interpreted, modified or applied by government or regulatory authorities having jurisdiction, from time to time, to provide greater flexibility.
- (8) A fund will not act as an underwriter of securities, except that a fund may acquire restricted securities under circumstances in which, if the securities were sold, the fund might be deemed to be an underwriter for purposes of the Securities Act.

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments' investment policy of investing at least 80% of its net assets in municipal fixed income securities, the income from which is exempt from regular federal income tax, may not be changed without approval of the fund's shareholders.

**Non-fundamental investment limitations.** The following investment restrictions are non-fundamental and may be changed by the vote of the board without shareholder approval. If a percentage restriction is adhered to at the

time of an investment or transaction, a later increase or decrease in percentage resulting from changing values of portfolio securities or amount of total assets will not be considered a violation of any of the following limitations.

- (1) A fund may not purchase securities of other investment companies, except to the extent permitted by the Investment Company Act in the open market at no more than customary brokerage commission rates. This limitation does not apply to securities received or acquired as dividends, through offers of exchange or as a result of reorganization, consolidation or merger.
- (2) A fund will not pledge, hypothecate, mortgage, or otherwise encumber its assets, except to secure permitted borrowings or in connection with its use of forward contracts, futures contracts, options, swaps, caps, collars and floors.
- (3) A fund will not purchase securities on margin, except that a fund may obtain any short-term credits necessary for the clearance of purchases and sales of securities. For each fund except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, for purposes of this restriction, the deposit or payment of initial or variation margin in connection with futures contracts or options on futures contracts will not be deemed to be a purchase of securities on margin.

With the exception of PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments, each fund's investment policy of investing at least 80% of its net assets in the type of investment suggested by its name may be changed by the fund's board without shareholder approval. However, each fund has also adopted a policy to provide its shareholders with at least 60 days' prior written notice of any change to the 80% investment policy. (PACE Alternative Strategies Investments is not required to adopt an 80% investment policy and has not done so.)

In addition to each fund's investment policies and restrictions, UBS AM may adopt certain additional internal investment criteria which may further restrict fund investments, such as internal UBS AM policies limiting or prohibiting investments in businesses that engage in certain types of weapons manufacturing, natural resource activities or are identified as failing to meet certain criteria put forth by the United Nations or other global organizations (including "sanctions" lists).

## Strategies using derivative instruments

**General description of derivative instruments.** Each fund (other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund) is authorized to use a variety of financial instruments ("Derivative Instruments"), including certain options, futures contracts (sometimes referred to as "futures"), options on futures contracts, forwards and swap transactions. For funds that are permitted to trade outside the United States, UBS AM or the applicable subadvisor also may use forward currency contracts, non-deliverable forwards, foreign currency options and futures and options on foreign currency futures. A fund may enter into transactions involving one or more types of Derivative Instruments under which the full value of its portfolio is at risk. Under normal circumstances, with the exception of PACE Alternative Strategies Investments, each fund's use of these instruments will place at risk a much smaller portion of its assets. The particular Derivative Instruments used by the funds are described below.

A fund might not use any Derivative Instruments or strategies, and there can be no assurance that using any strategy will succeed. If UBS AM or a subadvisor is incorrect in its judgment on market values, interest rates or other economic factors in using a Derivative Instrument or strategy, a fund may have lower net income and a net loss on the investment.

Options on securities and foreign currencies—A call option is a short-term contract pursuant to which the purchaser of the option, in return for a premium, has the right to buy the security or currency underlying the option at a

specified price at any time during the term of the option or at specified times or at the expiration of the option, depending on the type of option involved. The writer of the call option, who receives the premium, has the obligation, upon exercise of the option during the option term, to deliver the underlying security or currency against payment of the exercise price. A put option is a similar contract that gives its purchaser, in return for a premium, the right to sell the underlying security or currency at a specified price during the option term or at specified times or at the expiration of the option, depending on the type of option involved. The writer of the put option, who receives the premium, has the obligation, upon exercise of the option during the option term, to buy the underlying security or currency at the exercise price.

Options on securities indices—A securities index assigns relative values to the securities included in the index and fluctuates with changes in the market values of those securities. A securities index option operates in the same way as a more traditional securities option, except that exercise of a securities index option is effected with cash payment and does not involve delivery of securities. Thus, upon exercise of a securities index option, the purchaser will realize, and the writer will pay, an amount based on the difference between the exercise price and the closing price of the securities index. However, it is possible for the option to expire worthless, in which case the purchaser will realize a loss and the writer will realize a gain.

Securities index futures contracts—Securities index futures contracts are agreements pursuant to which one party agrees to accept, and the other party agrees to make, delivery of an amount of cash equal to a specified dollar amount times the difference between the securities index value at the close of trading of the contract and the price at which the futures contract is originally struck. No physical delivery of the securities comprising the index is made. Futures contracts are traded on exchanges with a clearinghouse. Generally, contracts are closed out prior to the expiration date of the contract.

Futures contracts—Futures contracts are agreements to buy or sell a security, currency or other asset for a set price on a future date. Futures contracts are traded on exchanges with a clearinghouse. Although such futures contracts by their terms call for actual delivery or acceptance of bonds or currency, in most cases the contracts are closed out before the settlement date without the making or taking of delivery.

Options on futures contracts—Options on futures contracts are similar to options on securities or currency, except that an option on a futures contract gives the purchaser the right, in return for the premium, to assume a position in a futures contract (a long position if the option is a call and a short position if the option is a put), rather than to purchase or sell a security or currency, at a specified price at any time during the option term or at specified times or at the expiration of the option. Upon exercise of the option, the delivery of the futures position to the holder of the option will be accompanied by delivery of the accumulated balance that represents the amount by which the market price of the futures contract exceeds, in the case of a call, or is less than, in the case of a put, the exercise price of the option on the future. The writer of an option, upon exercise, will assume a short position in the case of a call and a long position in the case of a put.

Non-deliverable forwards ("NDF")—An NDF provides for a cash-settled forward foreign exchange contract, where on the settlement date, the profit or loss at the time is calculated by taking the difference between the contracted exchange rate and the spot foreign exchange rate on an agreed upon notional amount of funds. For a discussion of the risk factors please refer to the "Forward currency contracts" section below.

Forward currency contracts—A forward currency contract involves an obligation to purchase or sell a specific currency at a specified future date, which may be any fixed number of days from the contract date agreed upon by the parties, at a price set at the time the contract is entered into.

Swap agreements—A fund may enter into swap agreements, including credit, total return equity, interest rate, index, currency rate and variance swap agreements. Swap agreements can be less liquid and more difficult to value than other investments. Swap agreements are entered into primarily by institutional investors for periods ranging

from one day to more than a year. In a standard swap transaction, two parties agree to exchange the returns earned on specific assets, such as the returns on, or increase in value of, a particular dollar amount invested at a particular interest rate, in a particular foreign currency, or in a "basket" of securities representing a particular index or other group of securities. Because its cash flows are based in part on changes in the value of the reference asset, a total return swap's market value will vary with changes in that reference asset. In addition, a fund may experience delays in payment or loss if the counterparty fails to perform under the contract.

Commodity-linked derivatives—PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may invest in commodity-linked derivatives. Investments in commodity-linked derivative instruments may subject the fund to greater volatility than investments in traditional securities. The value of commodity-linked derivative instruments may be affected by overall market movements and other factors affecting the value of a particular industry or commodity, such as weather, disease, embargoes, or political and regulatory developments. A fluctuation in the price of the commodity underlying the commodity-linked derivative instrument may cause the fund to lose money.

**General description of strategies using Derivative Instruments.** A fund may use Derivative Instruments for risk management purposes to attempt to hedge its portfolio and also to attempt to enhance income or return or realize gains and to manage the duration of its bond portfolio. In addition, a fund may use Derivative Instruments to adjust its exposure to different asset classes or to maintain exposure to stocks or bonds while maintaining a cash balance for fund management purposes (such as to provide liquidity to meet anticipated shareholder sales of fund shares and for fund operating expenses). In addition to the foregoing, PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may use Derivative Instruments for efficient asset allocation and in pursuit of the fund's investment objective.

Hedging strategies can be broadly categorized as "short hedges" and "long hedges." A short hedge is a purchase or sale of a Derivative Instrument intended partially or fully to offset potential declines in the value of one or more investments held in a fund's portfolio. Thus, in a short hedge a fund takes a position in a Derivative Instrument whose price is expected to move in the opposite direction of the price of the investment being hedged. For example, a fund might purchase a put option on a security to hedge against a potential decline in the value of that security. If the price of the security declined below the exercise price of the put, a fund could exercise the put and thus limit its loss below the exercise price to the premium paid plus transaction costs. In the alternative, because the value of the put option can be expected to increase as the value of the underlying security declines, a fund might be able to close out the put option and realize a gain to offset the decline in the value of the security.

Conversely, a long hedge is a purchase or sale of a Derivative Instrument intended partially or fully to offset potential increases in the acquisition cost of one or more investments that a fund intends to acquire. Thus, in a long hedge, a fund takes a position in a Derivative Instrument whose price is expected to move in the same direction as the price of the prospective investment being hedged. For example, a fund might purchase a call option on a security it intends to purchase in order to hedge against an increase in the cost of the security. If the price of the security increased above the exercise price of the call, a fund could exercise the call and thus limit its acquisition cost to the exercise price plus the premium paid and transactions costs. Alternatively, a fund might be able to offset the price increase by closing out an appreciated call option and realizing a gain.

A fund may purchase and write (sell) straddles on securities or indices of securities. A long straddle is a combination of a call and a put option purchased on the same security or on the same futures contract, where the exercise price of the put is equal to the exercise price of the call. A fund might enter into a long straddle when its subadvisor believes it likely that the prices of the securities will be more volatile during the term of the option than the option pricing implies. A short straddle is a combination of a call and a put written on the same security where the exercise price of the put is equal to the exercise price of the call. A fund might enter into a short straddle when its subadvisor believes it unlikely that the prices of the securities will be as volatile during the term of the option as the option pricing implies.

Derivative Instruments on securities often are used to hedge against price movements in one or more particular securities positions that a fund owns or intends to acquire. Derivative Instruments on stock indices, in contrast, generally are used to hedge against price movements in broad equity market sectors in which a fund has invested or expects to invest. Derivative Instruments on bonds may be used to hedge either individual securities or broad fixed income market sectors. Income strategies using Derivative Instruments may include the writing of covered options to obtain the related option premiums.

Income strategies using Derivative Instruments may include the writing of covered options to obtain the related option premiums. Return or gain strategies may include using Derivative Instruments to increase or decrease a fund's exposure to different asset classes without buying or selling the underlying instruments. A fund also may use derivatives to simulate full investment by the fund while maintaining a cash balance for fund management purposes (such as to provide liquidity to meet anticipated shareholder sales of fund shares and for fund operating expenses).

The use of Derivative Instruments is subject to applicable regulations of the SEC, the several options and futures exchanges upon which they are traded and the US Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC"). For example, in October 2020, the SEC adopted Rule 18f-4 under the Investment Company Act related to the use of derivatives, reverse repurchase agreements and certain other transactions by registered investment companies. The rule requires funds to trade derivatives and other transactions that create future payment or delivery obligations subject to a value-at-risk ("VaR") leverage limit and derivatives risk management program and reporting requirements. Generally, these requirements apply unless a fund satisfies a "limited derivatives users" exception. Under the rule, when a fund trades reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions, including certain tender option bonds, it needs to aggregate the amount of indebtedness associated with the reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions with the aggregate amount of any other senior securities representing indebtedness when calculating the fund's asset coverage ratio or treat all such transactions as derivatives transactions. Reverse repurchase agreements or similar financing transactions aggregated with other indebtedness do not need to be included in the calculation of whether a fund satisfies the limited derivatives users exception, but for funds subject to the VaR testing requirement, reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions must be included for purposes of such testing whether treated as derivatives transactions or not. The SEC also provided guidance in connection with the rule regarding the use of securities lending collateral that may limit the funds' securities lending activities. A fund that is a money market fund may only transact in reverse repurchase agreements and similar financing transactions for temporary purposes or with a bank, aggregating the amount of indebtedness associated with such transactions with the aggregate amount of any other senior securities representing indebtedness when calculating the fund's asset coverage ratio. In addition, under the rule, a fund (including a money market fund) is permitted to invest in a security on a when-issued or forward-settling basis, or with a non-standard settlement cycle, and the transaction will be deemed not to involve a senior security, provided that (i) the fund intends to physically settle the transaction and (ii) the transaction will settle within 35 days of its trade date (the "Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision"). A fund (other than a money market fund) may otherwise engage in when-issued, forward-settling and non-standard settlement cycle securities transactions that do not meet the conditions of the Delayed-Settlement Securities Provision so long as the fund treats any such transaction as a "derivatives transaction" for purposes of compliance with the rule. Furthermore, under the rule, a fund is permitted to enter into an unfunded commitment agreement, and such unfunded commitment agreement will not be subject to the asset coverage requirements under the 1940 Act, if the fund reasonably believes, at the time it enters into such agreement, that it will have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its obligations with respect to all such agreements as they come due. These requirements may increase the cost of a fund's investments and cost of doing business. In addition, a fund's ability to use Derivative Instruments may be limited by tax considerations. See "Taxes—Other Information."

In addition to the products, strategies and risks described below and in the prospectus, UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor may discover additional opportunities in connection with Derivative Instruments and with hedging, income, return and gain strategies. These new opportunities may become available as regulatory authorities broaden the range of permitted transactions and as new Derivative Instruments and techniques are developed. UBS AM or the

applicable subadvisor may use these opportunities for a fund to the extent that they are consistent with the fund's investment objective and permitted by its investment limitations and applicable regulatory authorities. The funds' prospectus or SAI will be supplemented to the extent that new products or techniques involve materially different risks than those described below or in the prospectus.

**Special risks of strategies using Derivative Instruments.** The use of Derivative Instruments involves special considerations and risks, as described below. Risks pertaining to particular Derivative Instruments are described in the sections that follow.

- (1) Successful use of most Derivative Instruments depends upon the ability of UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor to predict movements of the overall securities, interest rate or currency exchange markets, which requires different skills than predicting changes in the prices of individual securities. While UBS AM and the applicable subadvisors are experienced in the use of Derivative Instruments, there can be no assurance that any particular strategy adopted will succeed. The value of Derivative Instruments may rise or fall more rapidly than other investments and are subject to risk of potential adverse market movements or changes in market volatility. It is possible for a fund to lose more than the amount it invested in the Derivative Instruments.
- (2) There might be imperfect correlation, or even no correlation, between price movements of a Derivative Instrument and price movements of the investments that are being hedged. For example, if the value of a Derivative Instrument used in a short hedge increased by less than the decline in value of the hedged investment, the hedge would not be fully successful. Such a lack of correlation might occur due to factors affecting the markets in which Derivative Instruments are traded, rather than the value of the investments being hedged. The effectiveness of hedges using Derivative Instruments on indices will depend on the degree of correlation between price movements in the index and price movements in the securities being hedged.
- (3) Hedging strategies, if successful, can reduce risk of loss by wholly or partially offsetting the negative effect of unfavorable price movements in the investments being hedged. However, hedging strategies can also reduce opportunity for gain by offsetting the positive effect of favorable price movements in the hedged investments. For example, if a fund entered into a short hedge because UBS AM or the applicable subadvisor projected a decline in the price of a security in that fund's portfolio, and the price of that security increased instead, the gain from that increase might be wholly or partially offset by a decline in the price of the Derivative Instrument. Moreover, if the price of the Derivative Instrument declined by more than the increase in the price of the security, the fund could suffer a loss. In either such case, the fund would have been in a better position had it not hedged at all.
- (4) As described below, a fund might be required to make margin and settlement payments when it takes positions in Derivative Instruments involving obligations to third parties (i.e., Derivative Instruments other than purchased options). If the fund was unable to close out its positions in such Derivative Instruments, it might be required to continue to make such payments until the positions expired or matured. These requirements might impair a fund's ability to sell a portfolio security or make an investment at a time when it would otherwise be favorable to do so, or require that the fund sell a portfolio security at a disadvantageous time. A fund's ability to close out a position in a Derivative Instrument prior to expiration or maturity depends on the existence of a liquid secondary market or, in the absence of such a market, the ability and willingness of a counterparty to enter into a transaction closing out the position. Therefore, there is no assurance that any hedging position can be closed out at a time and price that is favorable to a fund.
- (5) Derivative Instruments are also subject to counterparty risk, operations risk, and legal risk (including risk of insufficient documentation, insufficient capacity or authority of counterparty, or legality or enforceability of a contract). Regulation relating to a fund's use of Derivative Instruments could potentially limit or impact the fund's

ability to invest in Derivative Instruments, limit the fund's ability to employ certain strategies that use Derivative Instruments and/or adversely affect the value of Derivative Instruments and the fund's performance.

**Options.** The funds may purchase put and call options, and write (sell) put or call options on securities in which they invest and related indices. Funds that may invest outside the United States also may purchase put and call options and write options on foreign currencies. The purchase of call options may serve as a long hedge, and the purchase of put options may serve as a short hedge. In addition, a fund may also use options to attempt to enhance return or realize gains by increasing or reducing its exposure to an asset class without purchasing or selling the underlying securities. Writing covered put or call options can enable a fund to enhance income by reason of the premiums paid by the purchasers of such options. Writing covered call options serves as a limited short hedge, because declines in the value of the hedged investment would be offset to the extent of the premium received for writing the option. However, if the security appreciates to a price higher than the exercise price of the call option, it can be expected that the option will be exercised and the affected fund will be obligated to sell the security at less than its market value. Writing covered put options serves as a limited long hedge because increases in the value of the hedged investment would be offset to the extent of the premium received for writing the option. However, if the security depreciates to a price lower than the exercise price of the put option, it can be expected that the put option will be exercised, and the fund will be obligated to purchase the security at more than its market value. The securities used as cover for over-the-counter options written by a fund would be considered illiquid to the extent described under "The funds' investment policies, related risks and restrictions—Illiquid securities."

The value of an option position will reflect, among other things, the current market value of the underlying investment, the time remaining until expiration, the relationship of the exercise price to the market price of the underlying investment, the historical price volatility of the underlying investment and general market conditions. Options normally have expiration dates of up to nine months. Generally, over-the-counter options on bonds are European-style options. This means that the option can only be exercised immediately prior to its expiration. This is in contrast to American-style options that may be exercised at any time. There are also other types of options that may be exercised on certain specified dates before expiration. Options that expire unexercised have no value.

A fund may effectively terminate its right or obligation under an option by entering into a closing transaction. For example, a fund may terminate its obligation under a call or put option that it had written by purchasing an identical call or put option; this is known as a closing purchase transaction. Conversely, a fund may terminate a position in a put or call option it had purchased by writing an identical put or call option; this is known as a closing sale transaction. Closing transactions permit a fund to realize profits or limit losses on an option position prior to its exercise or expiration.

The funds may purchase and write both exchange-traded and over-the-counter options. Currently, many options on equity securities are exchange-traded. Exchange markets for options on bonds and foreign currencies exist but are relatively new, and these instruments are primarily traded on the over-the-counter market. Exchange-traded options in the United States are issued by a clearing organization affiliated with the exchange on which the option is listed that, in effect, guarantees completion of every exchange-traded option transaction. In contrast, over-the-counter options are contracts between a fund and its counterparty (usually a securities dealer or a bank) with no clearing organization guarantee. Thus, when a fund purchases or writes an over-the-counter option, it relies on the counterparty to make or take delivery of the underlying investment upon exercise of the option. Failure by the counterparty to do so would result in the loss of any premium paid by the fund as well as the loss of any expected benefit of the transaction.

The funds' ability to establish and close out positions in exchange-listed options depends on the existence of a liquid market. The funds intend to purchase or write only those exchange-traded options for which there appears to be a liquid secondary market. However, there can be no assurance that such a market will exist at any particular time. Closing transactions can be made for over-the-counter options only by negotiating directly with the counter-

party, or by a transaction in the secondary market if any such market exists. Although the funds will enter into over-the-counter options only with counterparties that are expected to be capable of entering into closing transactions with the funds, there is no assurance that a fund will in fact be able to close out an over-the-counter option position at a favorable price prior to expiration. In the event of insolvency of the counterparty, a fund might be unable to close out an over-the-counter option position at any time prior to its expiration.

If a fund were unable to effect a closing transaction for an option it had purchased, it would have to exercise the option to realize any profit. The inability to enter into a closing purchase transaction for a covered put or call option written by the fund could cause material losses because the fund would be unable to sell the investment used as cover for the written option until the option expires or is exercised.

A fund may purchase and write put and call options on indices in much the same manner as the more traditional options discussed above, except the index options may serve as a hedge against overall fluctuations in a securities market (or market sector) rather than anticipated increases or decreases in the value of a particular security.

**Limitations on the use of options.** The funds' use of options (other than PACE Alternative Strategies Investments and PACE High Yield Investments) is governed by the following guidelines, which can be changed by the board without shareholder vote:

- (1) A fund may purchase a put or call option, including any straddle or spread, only if the value of its premium, when aggregated with the premiums on all other options held by the fund, does not exceed 5% of its total assets.
- (2) The aggregate value of securities underlying put options written by a fund, determined as of the date the put options are written, will not exceed 50% of its net assets.
- (3) The aggregate premiums paid on all options (including options on securities, foreign currencies and stock or bond indices and options on futures contracts) purchased by a fund that are held at any time will not exceed 20% of the fund's net assets

**Futures.** The funds may purchase and sell securities index futures contracts, interest rate futures contracts, debt security index futures contracts and (for those funds that invest outside the United States) foreign currency futures contracts. A fund may also purchase and write put and call options on futures in which it is allowed to invest. The purchase of futures or call options thereon can serve as a long hedge, and the sale of futures or the purchase of put options thereon can serve as a short hedge. Writing covered call options on futures contracts can serve as a limited short hedge, and writing covered put options on futures contracts can serve as a limited long hedge, using a strategy similar to that used for writing options on securities or indices. In addition, a fund may purchase or sell futures contracts or purchase options thereon to increase or reduce its exposure to an asset class without purchasing or selling the underlying securities, either as a hedge or to enhance return or realize gains.

Futures strategies also can be used to manage the average duration of a fund's bond portfolio. If a fund's subadvisor wishes to shorten the average duration of its portfolio, the fund may sell a futures contract or a call option thereon, or purchase a put option on that futures contract. If a fund's subadvisor wishes to lengthen the average duration of its bond portfolio, the fund may buy a futures contract or a call option thereon, or sell a put option thereon.

A fund may also write put options on futures contracts while at the same time purchasing call options on the same futures contracts in order synthetically to create a long futures contract position. Such options would have the same strike prices and expiration dates. A fund will engage in this strategy only when it is more advantageous to a fund than is purchasing the futures contract.

No price is paid upon entering into a futures contract. Instead, at the inception of a futures contract, a fund is required to deposit with the futures commission merchant ("FCM") through whom the transaction was effected "initial margin" consisting of cash, obligations of the United States or obligations fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States. Margin must also be deposited when writing a call option on a futures contract, in accordance with applicable exchange rules. Unlike margin in securities transactions, initial margin on futures contracts does not represent a borrowing, but rather is in the nature of a performance bond or good-faith deposit that is returned to a fund at the termination of the transaction if all contractual obligations have been satisfied. Under certain circumstances, such as periods of high volatility, a fund may be required by an exchange to increase the level of its initial margin payment, and initial margin requirements might be increased generally in the future by regulatory action.

Subsequent "variation margin" payments are made to and from the futures broker daily as the value of the futures position varies, a process known as "marking to market." Variation margin does not involve borrowing, but rather represents a daily settlement of each fund's obligations to or from a futures broker. When a fund purchases an option on a futures contract, the premium paid plus transaction costs is all that is at risk. In contrast, when a fund purchases or sells a futures contract or writes a call option thereon, it is subject to daily variation margin calls that could be substantial in the event of adverse price movements. If a fund has insufficient cash to meet daily variation margin requirements, it might need to sell securities at a time when such sales are disadvantageous.

Holders and writers of futures contracts and options on futures can enter into offsetting closing transactions, similar to closing transactions on options, by selling or purchasing, respectively, an instrument identical to the instrument held or written. Positions in futures and options on futures may be closed only on an exchange or board of trade that provides a secondary market. The funds intend to enter into futures transactions only on exchanges or boards of trade where there appears to be a liquid secondary market. However, there can be no assurance that such a market will exist for a particular contract at a particular time.

Under certain circumstances, futures exchanges may establish daily limits on the amount that the price of a future or related option can vary from the previous day's settlement price; once that limit is reached, no trades may be made that day at a price beyond the limit. Daily price limits do not limit potential losses because prices could move to the daily limit for several consecutive days with little or no trading, thereby preventing liquidation of unfavorable positions.

If a fund were unable to liquidate a futures or related options position due to the absence of a liquid secondary market or the imposition of price limits, it could incur substantial losses. A fund would continue to be subject to market risk with respect to the position. In addition, except in the case of purchased options, a fund would continue to be required to make daily variation margin payments.

Certain characteristics of the futures market might increase the risk that movements in the prices of futures contracts or related options might not correlate perfectly with movements in the prices of the investments being hedged. For example, all participants in the futures and related options markets are subject to daily variation margin calls and might be compelled to liquidate futures or related options positions whose prices are moving unfavorably to avoid being subject to further calls. These liquidations could increase price volatility of the instruments and distort the normal price relationship between the futures or options and the investments being hedged. Also, because initial margin deposit requirements in the futures market are less onerous than margin requirements in the securities markets, there might be increased participation by speculators in the futures markets. This participation also might cause temporary price distortions. In addition, activities of large traders in both the futures and securities markets involving arbitrage, "program trading" and other investment strategies might result in temporary price distortions.

**Foreign currency hedging strategies—special considerations.** Each fund that may invest outside the United States may use options and futures on foreign currencies, as described above, and forward currency contracts, as

described below, to hedge against movements in the values of the foreign currencies in which the fund's securities are denominated. In addition, these funds may use these strategies to adjust exposure to different currencies or to maintain an exposure to foreign currencies while maintaining a cash balance for fund management purposes (or in anticipation of future investments). Such currency hedges can protect against price movements in a security a fund owns or intends to acquire that are attributable to changes in the value of the currency in which it is denominated. Such hedges do not, however, protect against price movements in the securities that are attributable to other causes. Each fund that may invest outside the United States may use non-deliverable forwards, as described below, and may also enter into foreign currency strategies for purposes of risk management, efficient asset allocation and in pursuit of the fund's investment objectives.

A fund might seek to hedge against changes in the value of a particular currency for multiple reasons, including when no Derivative Instruments on that currency are available or such Derivative Instruments are considered expensive. In such cases, the fund may hedge against price movements in that currency by entering into transactions using Derivative Instruments on another currency or a basket of currencies, the value of which UBS AM or its subadvisor believes will have a positive correlation to the value of the currency being hedged. In addition, a fund may use forward currency contracts to shift exposure to foreign currency fluctuations from one country to another. For example, if a fund owned securities denominated in a foreign currency and UBS AM or its subadvisor believed that currency would decline relative to another currency, it might enter into a forward contract to sell an appropriate amount of the first foreign currency, with payment to be made in the second foreign currency. Transactions that use two foreign currencies are sometimes referred to as "cross hedging." Use of a different foreign currency magnifies the risk that movements in the price of the Derivative Instrument will not correlate or will correlate unfavorably with the foreign currency being hedged. A fund may also use foreign currency options and foreign currency forward contracts to increase exposure to a foreign currency.

The value of Derivative Instruments on foreign currencies depends on the value of the underlying currency relative to the US dollar. Because foreign currency transactions occurring in the interbank market might involve substantially larger amounts than those involved in the use of such Derivative Instruments, a fund could be disadvantaged by having to deal in the odd-lot market (generally consisting of transactions of less than \$1 million) for the underlying foreign currencies at prices that are less favorable than for round lots.

There is no systematic reporting of last sale information for foreign currencies or any regulatory requirement that quotations available through dealers or other market sources be firm or revised on a timely basis. Quotation information generally is representative of very large transactions in the interbank market and thus might not reflect odd-lot transactions where rates might be less favorable. The interbank market in foreign currencies is a global, round-the-clock market. To the extent the US options or futures markets are closed while the markets for the underlying currencies remain open, significant price and rate movements might take place in the underlying markets that cannot be reflected in the markets for the Derivative Instruments until they reopen.

Settlement of Derivative Instruments involving foreign currencies might be required to take place within the country issuing the underlying currency. Thus, a fund might be required to accept or make delivery of the underlying foreign currency in accordance with any US or foreign regulations regarding the maintenance of foreign banking arrangements by US residents and might be required to pay any fees, taxes and charges associated with such delivery assessed in the issuing country.

**Non-deliverable forward ("NDF") and forward currency contracts.** Each fund that may invest outside the United States may enter into NDF and forward currency contracts to purchase or sell foreign currencies for a fixed amount of US dollars or another foreign currency. Such transactions may serve as long hedges—for example, a fund may purchase a currency contract to lock in the US dollar price of a security denominated in a foreign currency that the fund intends to acquire. Currency contract transactions may also serve as short hedges—for example, a fund may sell a currency contract to lock in the US dollar equivalent of the proceeds from the anticipated sale of a securi-

ty denominated in a foreign currency. Each fund that may invest outside the United States may also enter into NDF currency contracts (and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments may also enter into forward currency contracts) for purposes of risk management, efficient asset allocation and in pursuit of the fund's investment objective.

The cost to a fund of engaging in currency contracts varies with factors such as the currency involved, the length of the contract period and the market conditions then prevailing. Because currency contracts are usually entered into on a principal basis, no fees or commissions are involved. When a fund enters into an NDF currency contract, it relies on the ability of a counterparty to pay any difference between the contracted exchange rate and the spot foreign exchange rate at the maturity of the contract. When a fund enters into a forward currency contract, it relies on the counterparty to make or take delivery of the underlying currency at the maturity of the contract. Failure by the counterparty to do so would result in the loss of any expected benefit of the transaction.

Similar to futures contracts, parties to currency contracts may be able to enter into offsetting closing transactions, similar to closing transactions on futures, by entering into an instrument identical to the instrument purchased or sold, but in the opposite direction. Secondary markets generally do not exist for currency contracts, with the result that closing transactions generally can be made for currency contracts only by negotiating directly with the counterparty. Thus, there can be no assurance that a fund will in fact be able to close out a currency contract at a favorable price prior to maturity. In addition, in the event of insolvency of the counterparty, a fund might be unable to close out a forward currency contract at any time prior to maturity. In either event, the fund would continue to be subject to market risk with respect to the position and would continue to be required to maintain any required margin in connection with the transaction.

The precise matching of currency contract amounts and the value of the securities involved generally will not be possible because the value of such securities, measured in the foreign currency, will change after the currency contract has been established. Thus, a fund might need to purchase or sell foreign currencies in the spot (cash) market to the extent such foreign currencies are not covered by forward contracts. The projection of short-term currency market movements is extremely difficult, and the successful execution of a short-term hedging strategy is highly uncertain.

**Swap transactions.** A fund may enter into swap transactions, which include swaps, caps, floors and collars relating to interest rates, currencies, securities or other instruments. Swap agreements may be negotiated bilaterally and traded over-the-counter between two parties or, in some instances, must be transacted through a FCM and cleared through a clearinghouse that serves as a central counterparty. Certain standardized swaps are also subject to exchange trading. Although central clearing and exchange trading is expected to decrease counterparty risk and increase liquidity compared to bilaterally negotiated swaps, central clearing and exchange trading does not eliminate counterparty risk or illiquidity risk entirely.

Interest rate swaps involve an agreement to exchange payments that are based, for example, on variable and fixed rates of interest and that are calculated on the basis of a specified amount of principal (the "notional principal amount") for a specified period of time. Interest rate cap and floor transactions involve an agreement in which one party agrees to make payments to the counterparty when a designated market interest rate goes above (in the case of a cap) or below (in the case of a floor) a designated level on predetermined dates or during a specified time period. Interest rate collar transactions involve an agreement between two parties in which payments are made when a designated market interest rate either goes above a designated ceiling level or goes below a designated floor level on predetermined dates or during a specified time period. Currency swaps, caps, floors and collars are similar to interest rate swaps, caps, floors and collars, but they are based on currency exchange rates rather than interest rates.

A fund may use interest rate swaps, caps, floors and collars (1) to enhance return or realize gains, or (2) as a hedge on either an asset-based or liability-based basis, depending on whether it is hedging its assets or its liabilities. Interest rate swap transactions are subject to risks comparable to those described above with respect to other hedging strategies.

Equity swaps or other swaps relating to securities or other instruments (such as features or indices) are also similar, but they are based on changes in the value of the underlying securities or instruments. For example, an equity swap might involve an exchange of the value of a particular security or securities index in a certain notional amount for the value of another security or index or for the value of interest on that notional amount at a specified fixed or variable rate.

A fund may take either a long or a short position in credit default swap agreements on a single security or instrument. In a long position, the fund would make periodic payments to the counterparty in return for credit protection and would receive the full notional amount, or "par value" of the reference obligation in the event of default during the term of the transaction. If the fund takes a long position and no event of default occurs, it will lose its investment (i.e., the periodic payments) and recover nothing. In a short position, the fund receives a fixed rate of income throughout the term of the contract, which typically is between six months and five years, provided that there is no default event. If an event of default occurs, a fund in a short position must pay the counterparty the full notional value of the reference obligation. In addition, there may be disputes between the buyer and seller of a credit default swap agreement or within the swaps market as a whole as to whether a credit event has occurred or what the payment should be. Such disputes could result in litigation or other delays, and the outcome could be adverse for the buyer or seller. Credit default swap transactions involve greater risks than those associated with a direct investment in the reference obligation.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments, PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments, PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments and PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments also may invest in unfunded credit default swaps that are based on an index of credit default swaps (sometimes referred to as a "CDX" transaction). These instruments allow an investor to obtain the same investment exposure as an investor who invests in an individual credit default swap, but with the added benefit of diversification as the credit default swap is based on an index of credits (represented by credit default swap agreements) rather than on a single credit. PACE Alternative Strategies Investments, PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments, PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments and PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments may take either a long or a short position in unfunded CDX instruments. An investor in a CDX instrument may structure its investment to obtain exposure to different "tranches" representing different levels of credit risk of the issuers underlying the swaps in an index. Certain CDX are subject to mandatory central clearing and exchange trading which may reduce counterparty credit risk and increase liquidity compared to other credit default swap or CDX transactions.

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments, PACE Global Fixed Income Investments and PACE High Yield Investments may also invest in unfunded CDX instruments but are only permitted to take long positions with respect to such instruments. This means that these funds may only invest in CDX instruments to receive payment in the event of a default of one or more of the credits represented in the CDX index.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments, PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments and PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments also may invest in variance swaps. Variance swaps are over-the-counter agreements which allow the fund to take positions on market volatility, as measured by an index or reference rate. The fund may take the position that market volatility will exceed an agreed upon volatility strike amount. If this in fact occurs at the termination of the swap agreement, the fund will receive a payment based upon the amount by which the realized volatility level exceeds the volatility strike amount. Conversely, if realized volatility falls short of the volatility strike amount, the fund will make a payment to the other counterparty instead. The fund may also take the opposite position, that is, that market volatility will fall short of an agreed upon volatility strike amount.

A fund will usually enter into swaps on a net basis, where the fund receives or pays, as the case may be, only the net amount of the two payments (other than credit default swaps where the Fund is the protection seller).

A fund will enter into swap transactions only with banks and recognized swap dealers believed by its subadvisor to present minimal credit risk in accordance with guidelines established by the board. If there is a default by the other party to such a transaction, a fund will have to rely on its contractual remedies (which may be limited by bankrupt-cy, insolvency or similar laws) pursuant to the agreements related to the transaction.

Cleared swaps are transacted through FCMs with the clearinghouse serving as a central counterparty. Funds post initial and variation margin in connection with cleared swap transactions through their clearing member FCMs. Central clearing is expected to decrease counterparty risk and increase liquidity compared to over-the-counter swaps. However, central clearing does not eliminate counterparty risk or illiquidity risk entirely. In addition, the margin required for cleared swaps may be in excess of the collateral required under a similar over-the-counter swap, and regulators have imposed certain minimum margin requirements on over-the-counter swaps. Certain cleared swaps are also traded and executed on trading facilities, which may increase market transparency and liquidity but may require a fund to incur increased expenses to access the same types of swaps. Rules adopted in 2012 also require centralized reporting of detailed information about cleared and uncleared swaps and publication of certain swap data. Reporting of swap data may result in greater market transparency, but these rules place potential additional administrative obligations on these funds.

## Disclosure of portfolio holdings

Policies and procedures generally. UBS AM and the funds' board have adopted portfolio holdings disclosure policies and procedures to govern the disclosure of the portfolio holdings of a fund. UBS AM and each fund's chief compliance officer also considered actual and potential material conflicts that could arise in such circumstances between the interests of fund shareholders, on the one hand, and those of a fund's manager, subadvisor(s), distributor, or any affiliated person of a fund, its manager, subadvisor(s) or its distributor, on the other. Each fund's disclosures policy with respect to the release of portfolio holdings information is to release only such information consistent with applicable legal requirements and the fiduciary duties owed to shareholders. Subject to the limited exceptions described below, each fund's portfolio holdings will not be made available to anyone outside of UBS AM or a subadvisor unless and until the information has been made available to all shareholders or the general public in a manner consistent with the spirit and terms of this policy. A description of the type and frequency of portfolio holdings that are disclosed to the public is contained in the funds' prospectuses, as they may be updated from time to time

After giving due consideration to such matters and after the exercise of their fiduciary duties and reasonable business judgment, UBS AM and the funds' board determined that each fund has a legitimate business purpose for disclosing portfolio holdings to certain persons/entities and that the policies and procedures are reasonably designed to ensure that disclosure of portfolio holdings and information about portfolio holdings is in the best interests of fund shareholders and appropriately address the potential for material conflicts of interest.

UBS AM's procedures require that UBS AM Legal and/or Compliance Departments address any material conflicts of interest regarding a disclosure of portfolio holdings and determine whether a disclosure of a fund's portfolio holdings is for a legitimate business purpose and in the best interests of the fund's shareholders prior to the Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the fund or the UBS AM Legal and/or Compliance Departments authorizing the disclosure of portfolio holdings. The UBS AM Legal and/or Compliance Departments will periodically review how each fund's portfolio holdings are being disclosed to and used by, if at all, service providers, UBS AM affiliates and certain fiduciaries, and broker-dealers to ensure that such disclosure and use is for legitimate

fund business reasons and consistent with the best interests of the fund's shareholders. Each fund's subadvisor(s) have agreed to follow the policies and procedures adopted by UBS AM and the funds with respect to disclosure of the funds' portfolio holdings.

**Board oversight.** The funds' board exercises continuing oversight of the disclosure of fund portfolio holdings by (i) overseeing the implementation and enforcement by the funds' chief compliance officer of the portfolio holdings disclosure policies and procedures and the funds' policies and procedures regarding the misuse of inside information, (ii) considering reports and recommendations by the chief compliance officer concerning any material compliance matters (as defined in Rule 38a-1 under the Investment Company Act and Rule 206(4)-7 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 ("Advisers Act")) that may arise in connection with any policies governing portfolio holdings, and (iii) considering whether to approve or ratify any amendment to any policies governing portfolio holdings. UBS AM and the funds' board reserve the right to amend a fund's policies and procedures regarding the disclosure of portfolio holdings at any time and from time to time, subject to the approval of the funds' board.

Complete portfolio holdings—disclosure to service providers subject to confidentiality and trading restrictions. UBS AM and/or a fund's subadvisor(s) for legitimate business purposes, may disclose a fund's complete portfolio holdings at times it deems necessary and appropriate to rating and ranking organizations, financial printers, proxy voting service providers, pricing information vendors, derivatives collateral managers, third-parties that deliver analytical, statistical or consulting services, custodians or a redeeming party's custodian or transfer agent as necessary in connection with redemptions in kind, and other third parties that provide services (collectively, "Service Providers") to UBS AM, a fund's subadvisors, and/or a fund.

Disclosure of complete portfolio holdings to a Service Provider is conditioned on the Service Provider being subject to a duty of confidentiality, including a duty not to trade on the basis of any material nonpublic information pursuant to the terms of the service agreement between the Service Provider and a fund or UBS AM, or the terms of the confidentiality agreement. The frequency with which complete portfolio holdings may be disclosed to a Service Provider, and the length of lag, if any, between the date of information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the Service Provider, is determined based on the facts and circumstances, including, without limitation, the nature of the portfolio holdings information to be disclosed, the risk of harm to a fund and its shareholders, and the legitimate business purposes served by such disclosure. Disclosure of complete portfolio holdings to a Service Provider must be authorized by a Trust officer or the General Counsel, Deputy General Counsel or an Associate General Counsel within the Legal and Compliance Departments of UBS AM.

Complete portfolio holdings—disclosure to UBS AM and/or subadvisor affiliates and certain fiduciaries subject to confidentiality and trading restrictions. A fund's complete portfolio holdings may be disclosed between and among the following persons (collectively, "Affiliates and Fiduciaries"), subject to authorization by the Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary or by an attorney in the Legal and Compliance Departments of UBS AM, for legitimate business purposes within the scope of their official duties and responsibilities, subject to such persons' continuing duty of confidentiality and duty not to trade on the basis of any material nonpublic information, as such duties are imposed under UBS AM's and/or a subadvisor's code of ethics, a fund's policies and procedures regarding the prevention of the misuse of inside information, by agreement or under applicable laws, rules and regulations: (i) persons who are subject to the codes of ethics or the policies and procedures regarding the prevention of the misuse of inside information; (ii) an investment advisor, a subadvisor, distributor, administrator, sub-administrator, transfer agent, custodian or securities lending agent to a fund; (iii) an accounting firm, an auditing firm or outside legal counsel retained by UBS AM, a subadvisor, or a fund; (iv) a subadvisor to whom complete portfolio holdings are disclosed for due diligence purposes when the advisor is in merger or acquisition talks with a fund's current advisor; (v) a newly hired investment advisor or subadvisor to whom complete portfolio holdings are disclosed prior to the time it commences its duties; and (vi) custodians and other third parties as necessary in connection with redemptions in kind of a fund's shares.

The frequency with which complete portfolio holdings may be disclosed between and among Affiliates and Fiduciaries, and the length of the lag, if any, between the date of the information and the date on which the information is disclosed between and among the Affiliates and Fiduciaries, is determined by such fund officer or the General Counsel or Associate General Counsel within the Legal Department of UBS AM based on the facts and circumstances, including, without limitation, the nature of the portfolio holdings information to be disclosed and the risk of harm to a fund and its shareholders, and the legitimate business purposes served by such disclosure.

Complete and partial portfolio holdings—arrangements to disclose to Service Providers, Fiduciaries and Other Third Parties. As of the date of this SAI, the specific Service Providers, Affiliates, Fiduciaries and other third parties with whom the funds have arrangements to provide portfolio holdings in advance of their release to the general public in the course of performing or to enable them to perform services for the funds or for other reasons as specified below, are:

- State Street, each fund's custodian, accounting agent, securities lending agent and sub-administrator, receives portfolio holdings information daily on a real-time basis in connection with the custodian, fund accounting, securities lending, valuation, derivatives collateral management and sub-administration services it provides to the funds.
- Ernst & Young LLP, each fund's independent registered public accounting firm, receives portfolio holdings information on an annual and semiannual basis for financial reporting purposes. There is a 25-day lag between the date of portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to Ernst & Young LLP for semiannual reporting purposes. Ernst & Young LLP also receives portfolio holdings information annually at year-end for audit purposes. In this case, there is no lag between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to Ernst & Young LLP. In addition, Ernst & Young LLP receives holdings twice a year for fiscal income and excise tax provision reporting purposes with a 25-day lag time.
- Bloomberg L.P., which provides analytical services, receives portfolio holdings information on a quarterly basis with a 60-day lag. The rating agencies of Morningstar and Lipper also receive portfolio holdings information on a quarterly basis so that each fund may be included in each rating agency's industry reports and other materials. There is a 60-day lag between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the rating agencies.
- Bloomberg Finance L.P. receives daily portfolio holdings for each Fund at the end of each day in connection with its provision of services related to liquidity risk management.
- A limited number of financial printers used by each fund to print and file its annual and semiannual shareholder reports and other regulatory materials. There is at least a two week lag between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the printer.
- ISS Securities Class Action Services, LLC receives portfolio holdings information on a monthly basis on a 6-day lag in connection with proxy voting and class action claims processing services provided to the funds.
- The rating agency of Standard & Poor's receives portfolio holdings information on a weekly basis so that a fund may be included in the rating agency's industry reports and other materials. There is a 6-day lag between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the rating agency.
- RiskMetrics Solutions LLC receives daily portfolio holdings in connection with its provision of services related to risk management, including derivatives risk management.

- With respect to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, the rating agency of Moody's receives portfolio holdings information approximately 5 days after the end of each month so that the funds may be included in the rating agency's industry reports and other materials. There is an approximately 5-day lag between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the rating agency.
- With respect to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, International Data Corporation receives portfolio holdings information daily on a real-time basis in connection with providing pricing information for the funds' portfolio securities.
- With respect to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, Thomson Reuters receives portfolio holdings information weekly on a real-time basis in connection with providing pricing information for the funds' portfolio securities.

In addition, UBS AM and certain subadvisors disclose their portfolio holding information to the following parties on a daily basis or other periodic basis as specified below:

- Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., which performs certain operational functions.
- FactSet Research Systems Inc., which provides analytical services.
- Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. ("Broadridge"), which provides proxy voting services.
- Glass, Lewis & Co., which provides proxy voting services.
- Institutional Shareholder Services, which provides proxy voting services.
- RiskMetrics Group, which provides proxy voting services.
- State Street, which performs certain operational functions.
- Markit WSO Corporation, which performs certain operational functions.
- BNY Mellon Asset Servicing, which performs certain operational functions.
- HSBC Securities Services Ltd., which performs certain operational functions.
- Accenture, which performs certain operational functions.
- MSCI, Inc., which provides analytical services.
- Financial Tracking, LLC, which provides certain operational and compliance functions.
- Investment Technology Group, Inc., which provides analytical services.
- Vastardis Fund Services L.P., which provides consulting services, including shadow compliance monitoring.
- BNP Paribas Securities Services, which provides back office administration.
- Wilshire Associates Inc., which provides analytical services.
- Reuters Group, which provides analytical services.

- Thomson Financial, which provides analytical services.
- Bloomberg L.P., which provides analytical services.
- Macgregor XIP, which provides software services of trade order management systems.
- Eze Castle, which provides software services.
- Financial Information Network, which provides investment advisory accounting services.
- Advent Software, Inc., which provides investment advisory accounting services.
- Electra Information Systems, which provides investment advisory accounting services.
- Evare, which provides investment advisory accounting services.
- Cogent Consulting, which provides commission tracking services.
- Citco Fund Services (USA) Inc., which provides middle office services.
- Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, which provides analytical services.
- Nirvana Financial Solutions, Inc., which provides software services.
- Investment Company Institute ("ICI"), the national association of US investment companies, including mutual funds, closed-end funds, exchange-traded funds and unit investment trusts, receives portfolio holdings information about UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund on a monthly basis in order to compile and analyze industry data. There may be a delay of up to approximately 5 business days between the date of the portfolio holdings information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the Investment Company Institute.
- The ICI receives portfolio holdings information relating to each month of a quarter on a quarterly basis for public policy research and advocacy purposes. There is a 60-day lag between the end of a quarter and the date on which the information is disclosed to the ICI.
- PACE Alternative Strategies Investments is subject to CFTC and National Futures Association ("NFA") reporting requirements due to its status as a commodity pool for which UBS AM is registered as a commodity pool operator. PACE Alternative Strategies Investments supplies portfolio holdings information on a monthly basis with no lag time after the close of the month to data aggregating service providers to facilitate reporting to the CFTC/NFA.
- KPMG LLP, the manager of certain investors in the funds, and RVK, Inc., a compliance consultant of KPMG LLP, also receive certain non-public holdings information on a monthly basis with an approximately 8-day lag in order to facilitate compliance with the auditor independence requirements to which KPMG LLP is subject.
- Marketing Spectrum receives portfolio holdings information no earlier than three weeks after the close of a fiscal annual or semi-annual period in connection with its preparation of a draft "letter to shareholders" for inclusion in annual and semi-annual shareholder reports.

Certain subadvisors also disclose their portfolio holding information on a weekly or quarterly basis to Investment Technology Group, Inc., which provides analytical services.

Complete and partial portfolio holdings—disclosure to certain shareholders subject to confidentiality and trading restrictions. UBS AM may make available a fund's complete non-public portfolio holdings, as of the most recent month-end, no sooner than eight business days after the month-end for the purpose of assisting a shareholder to comply with the shareholder's legal or other regulatory obligations. UBS AM may release the non-public portfolio holdings to a shareholder of a fund if: (i) the shareholder requests the non-public portfolio holdings for the purpose of assisting the shareholder in complying with the shareholder's legal or other regulatory obligations; (ii) the disclosure of the non-public portfolio holdings is consistent with the fund's legitimate business purpose; and (iii) the shareholder (and, if applicable, the shareholder's service provider) executes a written confidentiality agreement whereby the shareholder (and, if applicable, the shareholder's service provider) agrees not to disclose the non-public portfolio holdings information to third parties and not to purchase or sell any portfolio securities listed in the non-public portfolio holdings in reliance on the non-public portfolio holdings information.

Disclosure to a shareholder of a fund of the non-public portfolio holdings information must be authorized in writing by the Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the fund or by an attorney in the UBS AM Legal and Compliance Departments.

Complete and partial portfolio holdings—disclosure to broker-dealers in the normal course of managing fund assets. A subadvisor, administrator or custodian for a fund may, for legitimate business purposes within the scope of their official duties and responsibilities, disclose portfolio holdings (whether partial portfolio holdings or complete portfolio holdings) and other investment positions comprising a fund to one or more broker-dealers during the course of, or in connection with, normal day-to-day securities and derivatives transactions with or through such broker-dealers subject to the broker-dealer's legal obligation not to use or disclose material nonpublic information concerning a fund's portfolio holdings, other investment positions, securities transactions or derivatives transactions without the consent of the Treasurer, Assistant Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary of a fund, or an attorney in the UBS AM Legal and Compliance Department. No fund has given its consent to any such use or disclosure and no person or agent of UBS AM or any subadvisor is authorized to give such consent except as approved by a fund's board. In the event consent is given to disclose portfolio holdings to a broker-dealer, the frequency with which the portfolio holdings may be disclosed to a broker-dealer, and the length of the lag, if any, between the date of the information and the date on which the information is disclosed to the broker-dealer, is to be determined based on the facts and circumstances, including, without limitation, the nature of the portfolio holdings information to be disclosed, and the risk of harm to a fund and its shareholders, and the legitimate fund business purposes served by such disclosure.

Complete and partial portfolio holdings—disclosure as required by applicable law. Fund portfolio holdings and other investment positions comprising a fund may be disclosed to any person as required by applicable laws, rules and regulations. Examples of such required disclosure include, but are not limited to, disclosure of fund portfolio holdings (i) in a filing or submission with the SEC or another domestic or foreign regulatory body, (ii) in connection with seeking recovery on defaulted bonds in a federal bankruptcy case, (iii) in connection with a lawsuit or (iv) as required by court order, subpoena or similar process (e.g., arbitration proceeding). The UBS AM Legal Department must authorize the disclosure of portfolio holdings information when required for a legal or regulatory purpose. The UBS AM Legal Department may not be able to prevent or place restrictions on the disclosure of a fund's portfolio holdings when compelled by law or regulation to provide such information, even if the UBS AM Legal Department determines that such disclosure may not be in the best interest of fund shareholders or that a material conflict of interest is present or appears to be present. However, the UBS AM Legal Department will attempt to monitor the use of any fund portfolio holdings information disclosed as required by law or regulation.

**Disclosure of non-material information.** Policies and procedures regarding non-material information permit UBS AM, subadvisors, fund officers, fund portfolio managers, and other senior officers of UBS AM Fund Treasury, UBS AM Legal and Compliance Departments, and anyone employed by or associated with UBS AM who has been authorized by the UBS AM Legal and Compliance Departments' representatives (collectively, "Approved

Representatives") to disclose any views, opinions, judgments, advice or commentary, or any analytical, statistical, performance or other information, in connection with or relating to a fund or its portfolio holdings and/or other investment positions (collectively, "commentary and analysis") or any changes in the portfolio holdings of a fund that occurred after the most recent calendar-quarter end (or, in the case of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, after the most recent monthly public posting of portfolio holdings) ("recent portfolio changes") to any person if such information does not constitute material nonpublic information and complies with the portfolio holdings disclosure policies and procedures described above.

An Approved Representative must make a good faith determination whether the information constitutes material nonpublic information, which involves an assessment of the particular facts and circumstances. UBS AM and the subadvisors believe that in most cases recent portfolio changes that involve a few or even several securities in a diversified portfolio or commentary and analysis would be immaterial and would not convey any advantage to a recipient in making an investment decision concerning a fund. Nonexclusive examples of commentary and analysis about a fund include (i) the allocation of the fund's portfolio holdings and other investment positions among various asset classes, sectors, industries and countries, (ii) the characteristics of the fund's portfolio holdings and other investment positions, (iii) the attribution of fund returns by asset class, sector, industry and country, and (iv) the volatility characteristics of the fund. An Approved Representative may in its sole discretion determine whether to deny any request for information made by any person, and may do so for any reason or no reason.

"Approved Representatives" include persons employed by or associated with UBS AM who have been authorized by the Legal and Compliance Departments of UBS AM to disclose recent portfolio changes and/or commentary and analysis in accordance with the applicable policies and procedures.

**Prohibitions on disclosure of portfolio holdings.** No person is authorized to disclose fund portfolio holdings or other investment positions (whether online at http://www.ubs.com, in writing, by fax, by e-mail, orally or by other means) except in accordance with the applicable policies and procedures. In addition, no person is authorized to make disclosure pursuant to these policies and procedures if such disclosure is otherwise unlawful under the antifraud provisions of the federal securities laws (as defined in Rule 38a-1 under the Investment Company Act). Furthermore, UBS AM and/or any subadvisor in its sole discretion, may determine not to disclose portfolio holdings or other investment positions comprising a fund to any person who could otherwise be eligible to receive such information under the applicable policies and procedures, or may determine to make such disclosures publicly as provided by the policies and procedures.

**Prohibitions on receipt of compensation or other consideration.** The portfolio holdings disclosure policies and procedures prohibit a fund, its subadvisor and any other person to pay or receive any compensation or other consideration of any type for the purpose of obtaining disclosure of fund portfolio holdings or other investment positions. "Consideration" includes any agreement to maintain assets in a fund or in other investment companies or accounts managed by the subadvisor or by any affiliated person of the subadvisor.

Please see the prospectus regarding the posting of information regarding certain top equity holdings after calendar-month ends.

## Organization of the trust; trustees and officers; principal holders and management ownership of securities

The Trust was organized on September 9, 1994 as a statutory trust under the laws of the State of Delaware and currently has fifteen operating series. The Trust has authority to establish additional series and to issue an unlimited number of shares of beneficial interest of each existing or future series, par value \$0.001 per share.

The Trust is governed by a board of trustees, which oversees each fund's operations and which is authorized to establish additional series. Each trustee serves an indefinite term of office. The tables below show, for each trustee (sometimes referred to as a "board member") and executive officer, his or her name, address and age, the position held with the Trust, the length of time served as a trustee or officer of the Trust, the trustee's or officer's principal occupations during the last five years, the number of funds in the UBS fund complex overseen by the trustee or for which a person served as an officer, and other directorships held by such trustee.

Independent Trustees					
Name, address, and age	Position(s) held with trust	Term of office <sup>1</sup> and length of time served	Principal occupation(s) during past 5 years	Number of portfolios in fund complex overseen by trustee	Other directorships held by trustee
Heather R. Higgins; 64 c/o Keith A. Weller, Fund Secretary UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. One North Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606	Trustee and Chair of the Board of Trustees	Since 2005 (Trustee); since September 2023 (Chair of the Board of Trustees)	Mrs. Higgins is the president and director of The Randolph Foundation (charitable foundation) (since 1991). Mrs. Higgins also serves (or has served) on the boards of several non-profit charitable groups, including the Independent Women's Forum (chairman) and the Philanthropy Roundtable (vice chairman). She also serves on the board of the Hoover Institution (from 2001 to 2007 and since 2009).	Mrs. Higgins is a director or trustee of 7 investment companies (consisting of 41 portfolios) for which UBS AM or an affiliate serves as investment advisor or manager.	None
Richard R. Burt; 76 McLarty Associates 900 17th Street, N.W. 8th Floor Washington, D.C. 20006	Trustee	Since 2001	Mr. Burt is a managing partner of McLarty Associates (a consulting firm) (since 2007). He was chairman of IEP Advisors (international investments and consulting firm) until 2009.	Mr. Burt is a trustee of 4 investment companies (consisting of 38 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.	None

Name, address, and age	Position(s) held with trust	Term of office <sup>1</sup> and length of time served	Principal occupation(s) during past 5 years	Number of portfolios in fund complex overseen by trustee	Other directorships held by trustee
Bernard H. Garil; 83 6754 Casa Grande Way Delray Beach, FL 33446	Trustee	Since 2005	Mr. Garil is retired (since 2001). He was a managing director at PIMCO Advisory Services (from 1999 to 2001) where he served as president of closed-end funds and vice-president of the variable insurance product funds advised by OpCap Advisors (until 2001).	Mr. Garil is a trustee of 4 investment companies (consisting of 38 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.	Mr. Garil is also a trustee for the Brooklyn College Foundation, Inc. (charitable foundation).
Virginia G. Breen; 59 c/o Keith A. Weller Fund Secretary UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. One North Wacker Drive Chicago, IL 60606	Trustee	Since July 2023	Ms. Breen is a private investor and board member of certain entities (as listed herein).	Ms. Breen is a director or trustee of 7 investment companies (consisting of 41 portfolios) for which UBS AM or an affiliate serves as investment advisor or manager.	Director of: Paylocity Holding Corp.; UBS A&Q Fund Complex (3 funds); the Neuberger Berman Private Equity Registered Funds (21 funds); certain funds in the Calamos Fund Complex (31 funds). Former Director of JLL Income Property Trust, Inc. (from 2004 to June 2023) and Tech and Energy Transition Corporation (2021 to March 2023).
David R. Malpass; 67 c/o Keith A. Weller Fund Secretary UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. One North Wacker Drive Chicago, IL 60606	Trustee	Since July 2023	Mr. Malpass served as President of the World Bank Group from 2019 to 2023. Prior to that, he served as US Treasury Undersecretary for International Affairs (2017—2019) (Mr. Malpass also had previously served as a trustee of the funds from 2014 until 2017, when he entered public service.)	Mr. Malpass is a trustee of 4 investment companies (consisting of 38 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.	In his role as President of the World Bank Group, Mr. Malpass was President of, and Chairman of the Boards and Administrative Councils of, the following: International Bank for Reconstruction and Development; International Development Association; International Finance Corporation; Multilateral Investment Guarantee Agency; and International Centre for Settlement of Investment Disputes. In his role as Undersecretary of the US Treasury, Mr. Malpass was also on the boards of Overseas Private Investment Corporation (the US Government's development finance institution until it merged with another government entity in 2019) and Millennium Challenge Corporation (a US foreign aid agency).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Each trustee holds office for an indefinite term.

Officers			
Name, address, and age	Position(s) held with Trust	Term of office <sup>1</sup> and length of time served	Principal occupation(s) during past 5 years
Rose Ann Bubloski <sup>4</sup> ; 55	Vice President and Assistant Treasurer	Since 2011	Ms. Bubloski is a director (since 2012) (prior to which she was an associate director (from 2008 to 2012)) and a senior manager of fund accounting—US (previously named product control and investment support) of UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. and/or UBS Asset Management (US) Inc. ("UBS AM—Americas region"). Ms. Bubloski is vice president and assistant treasurer of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Franklin P. Dickson <sup>4</sup> ; 45	Vice President	Since 2017	Mr. Dickson is an associate director (since 2015) and tax compliance manager (since 2017) (prior to which he was a product controller (from 2015 to 2017)) of fund accounting—US (previously named product control and investment support) of UBS AM—Americas region. Mr. Dickson is a vice president of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Mark E. Carver <sup>2</sup> ; 60	President	Since October 2023	Mr. Carver is an executive director and senior member of UBS AM's Americas Products team (since rejoining UBS AM in 2022). In addition to his fund board relations and governance role, he serves as a regional strategic product shelf manager, including UBS AM's strategic product alignment with UBS Financial Services Inc. Mr. Carver previously served in the role of president of the funds from 2010 to 2018 before moving to a senior product role at UBS Financial Services Inc. until 2020. Before rejoining UBS AM, Mr. Carver served in a consulting capacity for FLX Networks, a firm serving both the asset management and wealth management industries. He is president of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Mark F. Kemper <sup>3</sup> ; 65	Vice President and Assistant Secretary	Since 2004 and 2019, respectively	Mr. Kemper is a managing director (since 2006) and senior legal advisor (since January 2023). Most recently, Mr. Kemper has held senior Legal and Compliance positions at UBS AM—Americas Region including general counsel (2004 through 2019 and 2021 to 2023) (prior to which he was senior legal counsel (2019-2020 and 2021)), Interim Head of Asia Pacific Legal (2020-2021) and Interim Head of Compliance and Operational Risk Control (2019) of UBS AM—Americas region. He has been assistant secretary of UBS AM—Americas region (since 2022) (prior to which he was secretary (from 2004 until 2022) and assistant secretary of UBS Asset Management Trust Company (since 1993). Mr. Kemper is vice president and assistant secretary of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager. Mr. Kemper is employed by UBS Business Solutions US LLC (since 2017).
Joanne M. Kilkeary <sup>4</sup> ; 55	Vice President, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer	Since 1999 (Vice President); since 2017 (Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer)	Ms. Kilkeary is an executive director (since 2013) (prior to which she was a director (from 2008 to 2013)) and head of fund accounting—US (since 2020) (prior to which she was head of regulatory, tax, audit and board governance for product control and investment support (from 2017 until 2020)) (prior to which she was a senior manager of registered fund product control of UBS AM—Americas region (from 2004-2017)). Ms. Kilkeary is a vice president, treasurer and principal accounting officer of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.

Name, address, and age	Position(s) held with Trust	Term of office <sup>1</sup> and length of time served	Principal occupation(s) during past 5 years
Mabel Lung <sup>2</sup> ; 65	Vice President	Since 2016	Ms. Lung is a managing director and portfolio manager of Multi-Component Portfolios of UBS AM—Americas region, which she joined in 1995. Ms. Lung is a vice president of one investment company (consisting of 15 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Leesa Merrill <sup>3</sup> ; 44	Chief Compliance Officer	Since 2022	Ms. Merrill is an executive director (since March 2023) (prior to which she was a director (from 2014 until March 2023) and served as head of compliance risk (from 2020 to 2022) (prior to which she was a senior compliance officer (from 2004 until 2020) for UBS AM—Americas region. Ms. Merrill serves as chief compliance officer of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM or one of its affiliates serves as investment advisor or manager.
Robert Sabatino <sup>3</sup> ; 50	Vice President	Since 2001	Mr. Sabatino is a managing director (since 2010) (prior to which he was an executive director (from 2007 to 2010)), global head of liquidity portfolio management (since 2015), head of US taxable money markets (from 2009 to 2015), and portfolio manager of UBS AM—Americas region in the short duration fixed income group (since 2000). Mr. Sabatino is a vice president of three investment companies (consisting of 37 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Eric Sanders <sup>2</sup> ; 58	Vice President and Assistant Secretary	Since 2005	Mr. Sanders is a director and associate general counsel with UBS Business Solutions US LLC (since 2017) and also with UBS AM—Americas region (since 2005). Mr. Sanders is a vice president and assistant secretary of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Philip Stacey <sup>3</sup> ; 38	Vice President and Assistant Secretary	Since 2018	Mr. Stacey is a managing director (since March 2023, prior to which he was an executive director (from 2019 until March 2023)) and Head of Legal—UBS AM—Americas region (since January 2023) prior to which he was Head of Derivatives and Trading Legal and associate general counsel (from 2017 through December 2022) with UBS Business Solutions US LLC and also with UBS AM—Americas region (since 2015). Mr. Stacey is a vice president and assistant secretary of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
David Walczak³; 40	Vice President	Since 2016	Mr. Walczak is an executive director (since 2016), head of US taxable money markets (since 2015) and portfolio manager of UBS AM—Americas region. Mr. Walczak is a vice president of three investment companies (consisting of 37 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.
Keith A. Weller <sup>3</sup> ; 62	Vice President and Secretary	Since 1995 and 2019, respectively	Mr. Weller is an executive director (since 2005), deputy general counsel (since 2019) and Head of Registered Funds Legal (since 2022) (prior to which he was senior associate general counsel) with UBS Business Solutions US LLC (since 2017) and also with UBS AM—Americas region (since 2005) and has been an attorney with affiliated entities since 1995). Mr. Weller is a vice president and secretary of 6 investment companies (consisting of 49 portfolios) for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager and is also involved with other funds for which UBS AM or an affiliate serves as investment advisor or administrator.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Officers are appointed by the trustees and serve at the pleasure of the board. <sup>2</sup> This person's business address is 787 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10019. <sup>3</sup> This person's business address is One North Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606. <sup>4</sup> This person's business address is 1000 Harbor Boulevard, Weehawken, NJ 07086.

Information about trus	stee ownership of fund shares		
Trustee	Fund	Dollar range of equity securities in funds¹	Aggregate dollar range of equity securities in all registered investment companies overseen by trustee for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager <sup>1</sup>
Independent trustees			
Heather R. Higgins	PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	\$50,001 - \$100,000	Over \$100,000
	PACE International Equity Investments	\$50,001 - \$100,000	
	PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	\$50,001 - \$100,000	
Richard R. Burt	None	None	None
Bernard H. Garil	PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	Over \$100,000	Over \$100,000
	PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	Over \$100,000	
	PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	\$50,001 - \$100,000	
Virginia G. Breen*	None	None	None

None

None

None

David R. Malpass\*

#### Leadership structure and qualifications of the board of trustees

The board is responsible for oversight of the funds. The board is currently composed of five trustees, all of whom are not "interested persons" of the funds as that term is defined by the Investment Company Act ("Independent Trustees"). The board members have selected Mrs. Higgins, an Independent Trustee, to act as chair of the board. The chair of the board's role is to preside at all meetings of the board and generally to act as a liaison with service providers, officers, attorneys and other trustees between meetings. The chair may also perform such other functions as may be delegated by the board from time to time. The board has established an Audit Committee and a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to assist the board in the oversight and direction of the business and affairs of the funds, and from time to time may establish ad hoc committees, informal working groups or designate one or more members to review and address the policies and practices of the funds or to liaise with the funds' Chief Compliance Officer or service providers, including staff of UBS AM, with respect to certain specified matters. The board meets at regularly scheduled meetings five times throughout the year. In addition, the trustees may meet in-person or by telephone at special meetings or on an informal basis at other times. Each committee meets as appropriate to conduct the oversight functions delegated to the committee by the board and reports its findings to the board. The board and Audit Committee conduct annual assessments of their oversight function and structure. The Independent Trustees have also engaged independent legal counsel to assist them in performing their oversight responsibilities. The trustees have determined that the board's leadership and committee structure is appropriate because it allows the board to exercise informed and independent judgment over the matters under its purview and to allocate areas of responsibility among committees of Independent Trustees and the full board in a manner that enhances the full board's oversight.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Information regarding ownership is as of December 31, 2022, unless otherwise noted.

<sup>\*</sup> Information for Ms. Breen and Mr. Malpass is as of July 31, 2023.

The funds have engaged UBS AM to manage the funds on a day-to-day basis. The board is responsible for overseeing UBS AM and other service providers in the operations of the funds in accordance with the Investment Company Act, applicable state and other laws, and the funds' charters. The board reviews, on an ongoing basis, the funds' performance, operations and investment strategies and techniques. The board also conducts reviews of UBS AM and its role in running the operations of the funds.

The board has concluded that, based on each trustee's experience, qualifications, attributes or skills on an individual basis and in combination with those of the other trustees, each trustee should serve as a trustee. In determining that a particular trustee is qualified to serve as a trustee, the board has considered a variety of criteria, none of which, in isolation, was controlling. The board believes that, collectively, the trustees have balanced and diverse experience, skills, attributes and qualifications, which allow the board to operate effectively in governing the funds and protecting the interests of shareholders. Among the attributes common to all trustees are their ability to review critically, evaluate, question and discuss information provided to them, to interact effectively with other board members. UBS AM, other service providers, counsel and the independent registered public accounting firm, and to exercise effective business judgment in the performance of their duties as trustees. In addition, the board has taken into account the actual service and commitment of the trustees during their tenure in concluding that each should continue to serve. A trustee's ability to perform his or her duties effectively may have been attained through a trustee's educational background or professional training; business, consulting, public service or academic positions; experience from service as a trustee of the funds, other funds in the fund complex, other investment funds, public companies, or nonprofit entities or other organizations; and/or other life experiences. Set forth below is a brief discussion of the specific experience, qualifications, attributes or skills of each trustee that led the board to conclude that he or she should serve as a trustee.

Amb. Burt has served as a board member of the Trust and as a director/trustee of the other funds in the fund complex for over two decades, including as a member and/or chair of various board committees. Amb. Burt has many years experience in advising companies regarding international investment and risk management. Amb. Burt has served on the boards of directors of The Central Europe, Russia and Turkey Fund, Inc., The European Equity Fund, Inc. and The New Germany Fund, Inc. (and served as a member of each such fund's audit, nominating and governance committees) and has served as a director on other corporate boards. Prior to joining McLarty Associates in 2007, Amb. Burt was chairman of Diligence Inc. (information and risk management firm). Amb. Burt was the chief negotiator in the Strategic Arms Reduction Talks with the former Soviet Union (1989-1991) and the US Ambassador to the Federal Republic of Germany (1985-1989). He had also been a partner of McKinsey & Company (management consulting firm).

Mr. Garil and Mrs. Higgins were elected as directors/trustees of the funds in the fund complex during 2005-2006. Mr. Garil and Mrs. Higgins also serve as members and/or chairs of various board committees.

Mr. Garil has over four decades of experience in the fund management business and for much of that time he served as an executive of a fund adviser and as a member of the boards of funds, trust companies, and non-profit organizations, including OFI Trust Company and the Leukemia & Lymphoma Society. He began his career at the US Securities and Exchange Commission.

Mrs. Higgins has experience as a portfolio manager for a major US trust bank and has held senior executive positions and/or directorships at several major charitable organizations.

Ms. Breen became a trustee effective July 2023. She has more than 25 years of experience in the financial services industry. She also has experience serving on boards of other entities, including other investment companies.

Mr. Malpass became a trustee effective July 2023. In his role as President and Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors of the World Bank Group, Mr. Malpass led the Bank Group's public and private sector operations to a record \$122.6 billion in commitments in fiscal year 2023, including record investments in climate finance, pandemic preparedness, and debt sustainability. In addition to having been the President of the World Bank Group, he served

as US Treasury Undersecretary for International Affairs and has held various other government positions. He was also Chief Economist at Bear, Stearns & Co. Mr. Malpass also had previously served as a trustee of the funds from 2014 until 2017, when he entered public service.

Additional details about each trustee's professional experience is included above in the table in the section captioned "Organization of the Trust; trustees and officers; principal holders and management ownership of securities." That table contains information regarding other directorships currently held by board members.

#### Risk oversight

The funds are subject to a number of risks, including investment, liquidity, compliance, operational and valuation risks, among others. Risk oversight forms part of the board's general oversight of the funds' investment program and operations and is addressed as part of various regular board and committee activities. Day-to-day risk management with respect to the funds is the responsibility of UBS AM or other service providers (depending on the nature of the risk), subject to supervision by UBS AM. Each of UBS AM and other service providers have their own independent interest in risk management and their policies and methods of risk management may differ from the funds' and each other's in the setting of priorities, the resources available or the effectiveness of relevant controls. As a result, the board recognizes that it is not possible to identify all of the risks that may affect the funds or to develop processes and controls to eliminate or mitigate their occurrence or effects, and that some are simply beyond any control of the funds or UBS AM, their affiliates or other service providers. As part of its regular oversight of the funds, the board, directly or through a committee, reviews reports from, among others, management, the funds' Chief Compliance Officer, its independent registered public accounting firm, counsel, and internal auditors for UBS AM or its affiliates, as appropriate, regarding risks faced by the fund and UBS AM's risk oversight programs. The board has appointed a Chief Compliance Officer who oversees the implementation and testing of the funds' compliance program and reports to the board regarding compliance matters for the funds and their service providers; the board has designated one of its members to liaise with the Chief Compliance Officer between board meetings to assure that significant compliance issues identified by the Chief Compliance Officer will be brought to the attention of the full board in a timely and appropriate manner. The board may, at any time and in its discretion, change the manner in which it conducts risk oversight.

#### Committees

The Trust has an Audit Committee and a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The members of the Audit Committee are currently the Independent Trustees. Virginia G. Breen is chairperson of the Audit Committee. The following Independent Trustees are members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee: Richard R. Burt (chairman), Heather R. Higgins and Bernard H. Garil.

The Audit Committee is responsible for, among other things: (i) overseeing the scope of the funds' audit, (ii) overseeing the funds' accounting and financial reporting policies, practices and internal controls; (iii) approving, and recommending to the board for ratification, the selection, appointment, retention or termination of the funds' independent registered public accounting firm, as well as determining the compensation thereof. In furtherance of its duties, the Audit Committee also is responsible for, among other things: obtaining assurance from the funds' independent registered public accounting firm of its independence and discussing any disclosed relationships or services that may diminish the objectivity and independence of the independent registered public accounting firm; inquiring as to the funds' qualification under Subchapter M of the Code and the amounts distributed and reported to shareholders; reviewing with the independent registered public accounting firm any problems or difficulties with the audit; and reporting to the full board and making recommendations as it deems necessary or appropriate. Although the Audit Committee has the responsibilities described above, it is not responsible for planning or conducting the funds' audit or determining whether the funds' financial statements are complete and accurate and are in accordance with US generally accepted accounting principles. Absent actual knowledge to the contrary, Audit Committee members are entitled to rely on the accuracy of the information they receive from persons within and outside the fund.

The Audit Committee normally meets in conjunction with regular board meetings, or more frequently as called by its chairperson. During the Trust's fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, the Audit Committee held five meetings.

The Trust's board has also established a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee that acts pursuant to a written charter. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for, among other things, selecting, evaluating and recommending to the board candidates to be nominated as additional Independent Trustees; making recommendations to the board with respect to compensation of board and committee members; performing an annual evaluation of the board and its committees; reporting on such evaluation to the board; and performing such other corporate governance functions as the board may authorize. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held five meetings during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider nominees recommended by shareholders if a vacancy among the Independent Trustees occurs. In order to recommend a nominee, a shareholder should send a letter to the chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, Mr. Richard R. Burt, care of the Secretary of the Trust at UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc., UBS Tower, One North Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606, and indicate on the envelope "Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee." The shareholder's letter should state the nominee's name and should include the nominee's resumé or curriculum vitae, and must be accompanied by a written consent of the individual to stand for election if nominated for the board and to serve if elected by shareholders.

### Information about Independent Trustee ownership of securities issued by UBS AM or any company controlling, controlled by or under common control with UBS AM

As of December 31, 2022, the Independent Trustees and their immediate family members did not own any securities issued by UBS AM or any company controlling, controlled by or under common control with UBS AM.

#### Compensation

Each Independent Trustee receives, in the aggregate from the UBS AM funds he or she oversees, an annual retainer of \$255,000. The chairperson of the board receives annually an additional \$75,000; the chairperson of the Audit Committee receives annually an additional \$35,000; and the chairperson of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives annually an additional \$25,000. In addition, a board member who undertakes a special assignment to provide assistance in coordinating the board's oversight of compliance matters, contract reconsideration matters or corporate restructuring matters (currently Heather R. Higgins, Bernard H. Garil and David R. Malpass, respectively) receives an additional \$25,000. The foregoing fees are allocated among all such funds as follows: (i) one-half of the expense is allocated pro rata based on the funds' relative net assets at the end of the calendar quarter preceding the date of payment; and (ii) one-half of the expense is allocated according to the number of such funds. No officer, director or employee of UBS AM or any of its affiliates presently receives any compensation from the funds for acting as a board member or officer. All board members are reimbursed for expenses incurred in attending meetings.

The table below includes certain information relating to the compensation of the Trust's current board members and the compensation of those board members from all funds for which UBS AM or an affiliate served as an investment advisor or manager during the periods indicated.

Name of person, position <sup>1</sup>	Aggregated compensation from the trust <sup>2</sup>	Total compensation from the trust and the fund complex <sup>3</sup>
Alan S. Bernikow, Trustee	\$79,670	\$341,250
Richard R. Burt, Trustee	62,241	280,000
Bernard H. Garil, Trustee	62,241	280,000
Heather R. Higgins, Trustee <sup>4</sup>	62,241	349,000
Virginia G. Breen, Trustee <sup>4</sup>	0	89,000
David R. Malpass, Trustee	0	0

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Only Independent Trustees were compensated by the funds for which UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Represents total fees paid to each trustee during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023.

#### Principal holders and management ownership of securities

As of November 1, 2023 trustees and officers owned in the aggregate less than 1% of the outstanding shares of any class of any fund.

As of November 1, 2023, the following shareholders were shown in the Trust's records as owning more than 5% of any class of a fund's shares. Except as listed below, the Trust does not know of any other person who owns beneficially 5% or more of any class of a fund's shares:

Percentage of shares

Fund	Name and address <sup>1</sup>	beneficially owned as of November 1, 2023
PACE Alternative Strategies	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	9.28%
Investments Class A	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Linda J. Soldo	5.12%
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	95.09%
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments Class A	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	6.58%
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	99.43%
PACE Global Real Estate	Charles Schwab & Co Inc.	13.43%
Securities Investments Class A	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	22.53%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Donna L Wray	12.19%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Robert A Berk & Cynthia Carten Berk	1.63%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Four Minus One, LLC	5.66%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Tracey Davis	8.47%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Daniel Ray Stone	6.87%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Sandra L Boisvert	5.46%
PACE High Yield Investments	Raymond James & Assoc. Inc.	7.08%
Class A	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO The Dorothy M Baker Revocable Trust	8.08%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Ellen Goldman	9.09%

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Represents fees paid during the calendar year ended December 31, 2022 to each Independent Trustee by: (a) 4 investment companies in the case of Messrs. Bernikow, Burt and Garil; (b) 7 investment companies in the case of Mrs. Higgins; and (c) 3 investment companies in the case of Ms. Breen, for which UBS AM or one of its affiliates served as investment advisor or manager. Mr. Malpass was appointed as Trustee in July 2023 and therefore did not receive any fees paid during the calendar year ended December 31, 2022 from investment companies for which UBS AM or one of its affiliates served as investment advisor or manager. No fund within the UBS fund complex has a bonus, pension, profit sharing or retirement plan.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup>Mrs. Higgins and Ms. Breen also serve on the boards of other registered investment companies for which an affiliate of UBS AM serves as investment advisor or manager.

### Percentage of shares beneficially owned as of

Fund	Name and address <sup>1</sup>	November 1, 2023	
PACE High Yield Investments Class Y	Meyer Feldberg	99.58%	
PACE High Yield Investments Class P2	UBS Global Allocation Fund	100.0%	
PACE Intermediate Fixed	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	8.31%	
Income Investments Class A	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Carolyn Gregory TTEE	5.16%	
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Virginia Gregory TTEE	5.16%	
PACE Intermediate Fixed	Pershing LLC	89.78%	
Income Investments Class Y	Raymond James & Assoc. Inc.	9.33%	
PACE International Emerging	Wells Fargo Clearing Svcs. LLC	6.50%	
Markets Equity Investments	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	9.41%	
Class A	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Miriam Levitt	5.03%	
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	99.42%	
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments Class P2	UBS Global Allocation Fund	9.20%	
PACE International Equity Investments Class A	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	5.96%	
PACE International Equity Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	96.96%	
PACE International Equity Investments Class P2	UBS Global Allocation Fund	100.00%	
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments Class A	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	6.15%	
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	99.94%	
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments Class A	Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC	5.17%	
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	98.21%	
PACE Mortgage-Backed	Pershing LLC	25.36%	
Securities Fixed Income Investments Class Y	Empower Trust FBO Employee Benefits Clients 401K	39.20%	
	Empower Annuity Insurance FBO Future Funds II	28.35%	
	Empower Trust FBO Employee Benefits Clients 401K-FG	5.90%	

## Percentage of shares beneficially owned as of

Fund	Name and address <sup>1</sup>	November 1, 2023
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments Class A	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Mary Susan Olcott	6.39%
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments Class Y	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Ada Jane Guyton & James Michael Haas	78.97%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Shannon D Wallace & Jody Wallace	21.03%
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments Class Y	LPL Financial	100.0%
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments Class A	Merrill Lynch Financial Data Services	8.43%
PACE Small/Medium Co Value	Stifel, Nicolaus & Co. Inc.	19.87%
Equity Investments Class Y	LPL Financial	5.17%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Charles Alan Ainsworth	31.19%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Wanda Lange-Horne	14.50%
	UBS Financial Services Inc. FBO Michael H Massie	23.32%
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments Class A	Thomas Michael Quinn and Christine M Brown Quin	in 15.36%
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments Class Y	Pershing LLC	99.32%

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup>The shareholders listed may be contacted c/o UBS Asset Management (US) Inc., Compliance Department, 787 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10019.

# Investment management, administration and principal underwriting arrangements

Investment management and administration arrangements. UBS AM acts as the investment manager and administrator to the Trust pursuant to an agreement with the Trust ("Management and Administration Agreement"). Under the Management and Administration Agreement, UBS AM, subject to the supervision of the Trust's board and in conformity with the stated policies of the Trust, manages both the investment operations of the Trust and the composition of the funds. UBS AM is authorized to enter into advisory agreements for investment advisory services ("Advisory Agreements") in connection with the management of the funds. UBS AM is responsible for monitoring the investment advisory services furnished pursuant to the Advisory Agreements. UBS AM reviews the performance of all subadvisors and makes recommendations to the board with respect to the retention and renewal of Advisory Agreements. In connection therewith, UBS AM keeps certain books and records of the Trust. UBS AM also administers the Trust's business affairs and, in connection therewith, furnishes the Trust with office facilities, together with those ordinary clerical and bookkeeping services that are not furnished by the Trust's custodian and its transfer and dividend disbursing agent. The management services of UBS AM under the Management and Administration Agreement are not exclusive to the Trust, and UBS AM is free to, and does, render management services to others.

As specified in the prospectuses, each fund pays fees to UBS AM for management and administrative services, based on annual percentage rates of the fund's average daily net assets.

The following table shows the fees earned (or accrued) by UBS AM and the portions of those fees waived by UBS AM for the fiscal periods indicated.

Management and administration

	and rec expens fee rei	fees earned accoupments, if se reimbursemes waived and mbursements fiscal years en	(or accrued) any, of prior ents, before /or expense , by UBS AM	fees rein	ment and ad waived and nbursements scal years en	or expense by UBS AM
Fund	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021
UBS Government Money Marke Investments Fund	et \$3,766,530	\$ 767,110	\$ 744,684	\$1,705,152	\$1,184,375	\$1,618,817
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	1,234,611	1,889,747	2,072,564	491,056	812,525	715,453
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	1,273,772	1,609,361	1,759,112	605,838	772,038	619,450
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	2,629,702	3,955,646	4,232,742	451,278	1,001,116	663,904
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	1,170,686	1,633,527	1,714,318	175,984	300,927	339,602
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	1,310,452	2,168,497	2,431,936	442,167	850,296	823,913

Management and administration fees earned (or accrued) and recoupments, if any, of prior expense reimbursements, before fees waived and/or expense reimbursements, by UBS AM for fiscal years ended July 31,

Management and administration fees waived and/or expense reimbursements by UBS AM for fiscal years ended July 31,

Fund	2023	2022	2021	2023	2022	2021
PACE High Yield Investments	\$1,503,662	\$2,155,783	\$2,197,057	\$ 349,902	\$ 564,859	\$ 551,348
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	6,552,692	8,215,158	7,693,757	25,387	_	
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	6,116,611	8,855,960	9,403,289	237,113	104,858	182,807
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	2,706,389	3,649,845	3,602,981	98,353	4	_
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	2,345,984	3,397,138	3,797,032	121,570	2	381
PACE International Equity Investments	6,677,177	8,485,018	8,599,518	657,376	505,713	275,524
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	3,027,900	3,925,582	4,406,113	818,918	1,192,318	558,218
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	579,402	844,869	793,911	390,677	373,322	444,669
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	5,021,783	6,075,040	6,380,890	1,139,709	1,177,319	506,485

In connection with its management of the business affairs of the Trust, UBS AM bears the following expenses:

- (1) the salaries and expenses of all of its and the Trust's personnel and the fees and expenses of trustees who are interested persons by reason of affiliation with UBS AM or the Trust's subadvisors;
- (2) expenses incurred by UBS AM or by the Trust in connection with managing the ordinary course of the Trust's business, other than those assumed by the Trust as described below; and
- (3) the fees payable to each subadvisor (other than UBS AM) pursuant to the Advisory Agreements.

Under the terms of the Management and Administration Agreement, each fund bears all expenses incurred in its operation that are not specifically assumed by UBS AM or the fund's subadvisor(s). General expenses of the Trust not readily identifiable as belonging to a fund or to the Trust's other series are allocated among series by or under the direction of the board in such manner as the board deems to be fair and equitable. Expenses borne by each fund include the following (or a fund's share of the following): (1) the cost (including brokerage commissions, applicable taxes, and, with respect to short sales, any interest expense or any other cost) of securities purchased or sold by a fund and any losses incurred in connection therewith, (2) fees payable to and expenses incurred on behalf of a fund by UBS AM, (3) organizational expenses, including the organizational and other expenses incurred in connection with the initial offering of any new share classes of a fund or the initial offering of a new fund, (4) filing fees and expenses relating to the registration and qualification of a fund's shares and the Trust under federal and state securities laws and maintenance of such registration and qualifications, (5) fees and salaries payable to trustees who

are not interested persons (as defined in the Investment Company Act) by reason of affiliation with UBS AM or any of UBS AM's affiliates, UBS AM or the subadvisors, (6) all expenses incurred in connection with trustees' services, including travel expenses, (7) taxes (including any income or franchise taxes) and governmental fees, (8) costs of any liability, uncollectible items of deposit and other insurance or fidelity bonds, (9) any costs, expenses or losses arising out of a liability of or claim for damages or other relief asserted against the Trust or a fund for violation of any law, (10) legal, accounting and auditing expenses, including legal fees of special counsel for those Trustees of the Trust who are not interested persons of the Trust by reason of affiliation with UBS AM or any of UBS AM's affiliates, (11) charges of custodians, transfer agents and other agents, (12) costs of preparing share certificates, (13) expenses of setting in type and printing prospectuses and supplements thereto, statements of additional information and supplements thereto, reports and proxy materials for existing shareholders, and costs of mailing such materials to existing shareholders, (14) any extraordinary expenses (including fees and disbursements of counsel) incurred by the Trust or a fund, (15) fees, voluntary assessments and other expenses incurred in connection with membership in investment company organizations, (16) costs of mailing and tabulating proxies and costs of meetings of shareholders, the board and any committees thereof, (17) the cost of investment company literature and other publications provided to trustees and officers and (18) costs of mailing, stationery and communications equipment.

Under the Management and Administration Agreement, UBS AM will not be liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss suffered by a fund in connection with the performance of the contract, except a loss resulting from willful misfeasance, bad faith or gross negligence on the part of UBS AM in the performance of its duties or from reckless disregard of its duties and obligations thereunder. The Management and Administration Agreement terminates automatically upon its assignment and is terminable at any time without penalty by the board or by vote of the holders of a majority of a fund's outstanding voting securities, on 60 days' written notice to UBS AM or by UBS AM on 60 days' written notice to the fund.

The funds and UBS AM have entered into a written fee waiver/expense reimbursement agreement pursuant to which UBS AM is contractually obligated through November 30, 2024 with respect to Class P2 to waive (i) its management fees in an amount equal to the portion of the management fees UBS AM retains after payment by UBS AM of any sub-advisory fees, and (ii) its administrative services fees in an amount equal to the portion of the administrative services fees UBS AM retains after payment by UBS AM of any sub-administration fees and charges paid to third parties. The fee waiver/expense reimbursement agreement may be terminated by the funds' board at any time and also will terminate automatically upon the expiration or termination of the funds' advisory contract with UBS AM. These management fee waivers will not be subject to any recoupment provisions.

UBS AM is contractually obligated to waive all or a portion of its investment management and administration fees and/or to reimburse the funds for certain operating expenses of Class A, Class Y and Class P in order to maintain the total annual operating expenses of each such class (excluding expenses attributable to (1) dividend expense, borrowing costs and interest expense relating to short sales, and (2) investment in other investment companies, interest, taxes, brokerage commissions, expenses related to shareholders' meetings and extraordinary expenses) through November 30, 2024 at a level not to exceed certain specified amounts as shown in the chart below. UBS AM is also contractually obligated to waive its management fees for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund in an amount equal to 0.13% of the fund's average daily net assets through November 30, 2024. Each fund will repay UBS AM for any such waived fees/reimbursed expenses during the three-year period following the period during which UBS AM waived fees or reimbursed expenses, to the extent that repayment can be made without causing the operating expenses of the fund or class during a year in which repayment is made to exceed these expense caps.

For any period during which UBS Financial Services Inc. relies on and UBS AM operates under the Department of Labor individual Prohibited Transaction Exemption 96-59 ("PTE 96-59"), UBS AM has entered into a written fee waiver agreement with PACE Alternative Strategies Investments to waive the incremental investment advisory fees it retains due to its management of a portion of the fund's assets (i.e., investing in other unaffiliated pooled invest-

ment vehicles and index futures). For any period during which UBS Financial Services Inc. does not rely on and UBS AM does not operate under PTE 96-59, UBS AM will not be contractually obligated to waive its management fees for PACE Alternative Strategies Investments in the manner described in the foregoing sentence. These management fee waivers will not be subject to any recoupment provisions.

The amounts of the expense caps for each fund and each share class are shown in the table below, and are current as of the date of this SAI; the table also shows, for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, UBS AM's fee waivers/expense reimbursements (which may be subject to repayment by the funds through July 31, 2026) and recoupments.

Fund	Class A expense cap	Class Y expense cap	Class P expense cap	Class P2 expense cap	Fee waivers/ expense reimbursement	Recoupments
UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund	N/A	N/A	0.60%	N/A	\$ 10,258	\$210,154
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	0.97%	0.72%	0.72	N/A	491,056	_
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	0.86	0.61	0.61	N/A	605,838	_
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	0.90	0.65	0.65	N/A	451,278	_
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	0.82	0.57	0.57	N/A	175,984	_
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	1.03	0.87	0.84	N/A	442,167	_
PACE High Yield Investments	1.06	0.88	0.88*	N/A	291,369	
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	1.14	0.89	0.89	N/A	25,387	_
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	1.13	0.88	0.88	N/A	237,113	_
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	1.29	1.04	1.04	N/A	98,353	_
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	1.33	1.08	1.08	N/A	121,570	_
PACE International Equity Investments	1.25	1.00	1.00	N/A	631,174	_
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	1.45	1.20	1.20	N/A	681,828	_
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	1.45	N/A	1.20	N/A	390,677	_
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	1.83	1.58	1.58	N/A	882,784	

<sup>\*</sup> The expense cap shown for Class P of PACE High Yield Investments above is effective as of August 1, 2023. Prior to August 1, 2023, the expense cap for Class P of this fund was 0.91%.

Effective July 1, 2013, UBS Financial Services Inc. voluntarily agreed to waive a portion of the fee that it would otherwise have received from BNY Mellon Investment Servicing (US) Inc. ("BNY Mellon") with respect to UBS Govern-

ment Money Market Investments Fund so that BNY Mellon would correspondingly reduce the fees it would have charged to that fund. Given that for a portion of the prior fiscal year UBS AM had voluntarily undertaken to reduce its fees and/or reimburse expenses, and when such amount exceeded the reduction in BNY Mellon's fees, the net effect of BNY Mellon's pass through of the waiver by UBS Financial Services Inc. was to partially reduce the amount that UBS AM would have otherwise voluntarily waived/reimbursed. Voluntary fee waiver/expense reimbursement arrangements may end at any time.

With respect to UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, UBS AM may also voluntarily waive fees and/or reimburse expenses from time to time. Once started, there is no guarantee that UBS AM would continue to voluntarily waive an additional portion of its fees and/or reimburse expenses.

UBS AM has entered into a Sub-Administration Contract with State Street to provide accounting, portfolio valuation and certain sub-administrative services for the funds. UBS AM pays State Street for the services it provides under the Sub-Administration Contract.

The funds have entered into a Service Agreement with State Street to provide certain regulatory support services to the funds, including: (i) CFTC exclusion filing services and other services, as applicable; (ii) website posting of required information for money market funds and Form N-MFP and Form N-CR filing services; and (iii) Form N-PORT and Form N-CEN preparation and filing services. The funds pay State Street a fee at an agreed-upon rate for the services it provides under the Service Agreement. Under the Service Agreement, for the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the funds paid fees in the amounts of \$190,833, \$284,492 and \$244,333, respectively.

**Investment advisory arrangements.** As noted in the prospectus, subject to the monitoring of UBS AM and, ultimately, the board, each subadvisor manages the securities held by the fund it serves in accordance with the fund's stated investment objective and policies, makes investment decisions for the fund and places orders to purchase and sell securities on behalf of the fund.

Each Advisory Agreement provides that it will terminate in the event of its assignment (as defined in the Investment Company Act) or upon the termination of the Management and Administration Agreement. Each Advisory Agreement may be terminated by the Trust upon not less than 30 days' written notice (as specified in a specific Advisory Agreement). Each Advisory Agreement may be terminated by UBS AM or the subadvisor upon not less than 120 days' written notice. Each Advisory Agreement provides that it will continue in effect for a period of more than two years from its execution only so long as such continuance is specifically approved at least annually in accordance with the requirements of the Investment Company Act.

Under the Advisory Agreements, the subadvisors shall not be liable for any error of judgment or mistake of law or for any loss suffered by a fund in connection with the performance of the contract, except a loss resulting from will-ful misfeasance, bad faith, or gross negligence on the part of the subadvisors in the performance of their duties or from reckless disregard of their duties and obligations thereunder. Each investment advisor has agreed to its fees as described herein. By virtue of the management, monitoring and administrative functions performed by UBS AM, and the fact that subadvisors are not required to make decisions regarding the allocation of assets among the major sectors of the securities markets, each subadvisor serves in a subadvisory capacity to the fund. Subject to the monitoring by UBS AM and, ultimately, the board, each subadvisor's responsibilities are limited to managing all or a designated portion of the securities held by the fund it serves in accordance with the fund's stated investment objective and policies, making investment decisions for the fund and placing orders to purchase and sell securities on behalf of the fund.

#### **PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with Pacific Investment Management Company LLC ("PIMCO"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays PIMCO a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal years ended

July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$449,081, \$588,249 and \$649,188, respectively, which represented approximately 0.20%, 0.19% and 0.20%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

PIMCO is a limited liability company that is a majority owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

#### **PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department ("BBH"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays BBH a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$436,646, \$366,872 and \$396,822, respectively, which represented approximately 0.19%, 0.12% and 0.12%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

BBH is wholly owned by the partners of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., a New York limited partnership.

#### **PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Pacific Investment Management Company LLC ("PIMCO"), Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC ("Neuberger Berman") and Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department ("BBH"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays PIMCO, Neuberger Berman and BBH a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$1,085,872, \$1,630,634 and \$1,748,780, respectively, which represented approximately 0.22%, 0.25% and 0.25%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

PIMCO is a limited liability company that is a majority owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

Neuberger Berman is a registered investment adviser and an indirect subsidiary of Neuberger Berman Group LLC ("NBG"). NBG is a holding company that through its subsidiaries provides a broad range of global asset management services. NBG's voting equity is owned by NBSH Acquisition LLC ("NBSH"). NBSH is owned by current and former employees, directors and consultants and, in certain instances, their permitted transferees.

BBH is wholly owned by the partners of Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., a New York limited partnership.

#### **PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with Insight North America LLC ("Insight"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays Insight a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$375,425, \$451,705 and \$467,864, respectively, which represented approximately 0.16%, 0.15% and 0.15%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Insight is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Bank of New York Mellon Corporation.

#### PACE Global Fixed Income Investments

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. ("J.P. Morgan"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays J.P. Morgan a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$327,613, \$433,699 and \$486,387, respectively, which represented approximately 0.15%, 0.15% and 0.15%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

J.P. Morgan is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., a bank holding company and global financial services firm. J.P. Morgan may be identified in marketing materials by its marketing name, JPMorgan Asset Management.

#### **PACE High Yield Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management Inc. ("NCRAM"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays NCRAM a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$636,767, \$773,682 and \$786,580, respectively, which represented approximately 0.30%, 0.29% and 0.29%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

NCRAM is 99% owned by Nomura Holding America Inc. The ultimate parent is Nomura Holdings, Inc., a publicly traded company, which owns the remaining 1% of NCRAM.

#### **PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Wellington Management Company LLP ("Wellington"), Artisan Partners Limited Partnership ("Artisan Partners") and Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC ("Hotchkis & Wiley"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays each of Wellington, Artisan Partners and Hotchkis & Wiley a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued aggregate investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$2,517,541, \$3,242,018 and \$2,978,237, respectively, which represented approximately 0.29%, 0.30% and 0.29%, respectively, of the fund's net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Wellington is wholly owned by the partners of Wellington Management Group LLP, a Massachusetts limited liability partnership. Artisan Partners is majority-owned by Artisan Partners Holdings LP and managed by its general partner, Artisan Investments GP LLC, a Delaware limited liability company wholly-owned by Artisan Partners Holdings LP. Artisan Partners Holdings LP is a limited partnership organized under the laws of Delaware whose sole general partner is Artisan Partners Asset Management Inc., a publicly traded Delaware corporation.

Hotchkis & Wiley is a limited liability company, the primary members of which are HWCap Holdings, a limited liability company whose members are current and former employees of Hotchkis & Wiley, and Stephens—H&W, LLC, a limited liability company whose primary member is SF Holding Corp., which is a diversified holding company.

#### PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc. ("J.P. Morgan"), GQG Partners LLC ("GQG") and Polen Capital Management, LLC ("Polen"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays each of J.P. Morgan, GQG and Polen a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued aggregate investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$1,888,947, \$2,684,925 and \$2,868,763, respectively, which represented approximately 0.24%, 0.24% and 0.24%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

J.P. Morgan is a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & Co., a bank holding company and global financial services firm. J.P. Morgan may be identified in marketing materials by its marketing name, JPMorgan Asset Management.

GQG, a Delaware limited liability company founded in 2016, is an SEC registered investment adviser. GQG is a subsidiary of GQG Partners Inc., a Delaware corporation that is listed on the Australian Securities Exchange. The majority owner of GQG Partners Inc. is QVFT, LLC, which is controlled by Rajiv Jain, GQG's Chairman and Chief Investment Officer.

Polen is an independently controlled, employee-managed firm, structured as a limited liability company. Currently, 72% of the ownership interests in the firm are held by employees through investment in Polen Capital Holdings LP, 20% of the ownership interests are held by iM Global Partner and 8% of the ownership interests are held by Polen Family Holdings Inc., with each of iM Global Partner and Polen Family Holdings Inc. holding a passive interest in the firm. From a regulatory perspective, Stan C. Moss, Dan Davidowitz, and Damon Ficklin are control persons. Control is not tied to any type of ownership interest in Polen Capital Management, LLC. However, on a day-to-day basis, the Operating Committee, chaired by Stan Moss and generally comprised of the heads of each business unit, collaborates to lead the firm.

#### PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Sapience Investments, LLC ("Sapience"), Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC ("KAR") and Huber Capital Management LLC ("Huber Capital"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays Sapience, KAR and Huber Capital a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued aggregate investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$1,206,618, \$1,604,482 and \$1,580,970, respectively, which represented approximately 0.36%, 0.35% and 0.35%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Sapience is an independent, majority employee-owned investment management boutique with Estancia Capital Partners, L.P. partnering as a minority stakeholder in the firm. Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Virtus Investment Partners, Inc., a publicly traded asset management company. Huber Capital is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huber Capital Holdings LLC, a holding company. Huber Capital is 100% indirectly owned by its employees, with Joseph Huber, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Investment Officer, as its majority owner.

#### PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Riverbridge Partners, LLC ("Riverbridge"), Calamos Advisors LLC ("Calamos") and Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc. ("Jacobs Levy"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays Riverbridge, Calamos and Jacobs Levy a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued aggregate investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$1,058,679, \$1,536,296 and \$1,752,457, respectively, which represented approximately 0.36%, 0.36% and 0.37%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Riverbridge is majority-owned by Northill US Holdings, Inc., part of the Northill Capital Group. The remaining interests in the company are employee owned. Calamos is organized as a Delaware limited liability company and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Calamos Investments LLC ("CILLC"). Calamos Asset Management, Inc. ("CAM") is the sole manager of CILLC. As of July 31, 2023, approximately 22% of the outstanding interests of CILLC is owned by CAM and approximately 78% of CILLC is owned by Calamos Partners LLC ("CPL") and John P. Calamos, Sr. CPL is owned by Calamos Family Partners, Inc. ("CFP") and John S. Koudounis. CFP is beneficially owned by members of the Calamos family, including John P. Calamos, Sr.

Jacobs Levy is organized as a New Jersey corporation and is wholly owned by Bruce Jacobs and Kenneth Levy, each a Principal, Portfolio Manager, Co-Chief Investment Officer and Co-Director of Research of the firm, and with each owning 50% of the firm's equity.

#### **PACE International Equity Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Mondrian Investment Partners Limited ("Mondrian"), Los Angeles Capital Management LLC ("Los Angeles Capital") and Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated ("Baird"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays Mondrian, Los Angeles Capital and Baird a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$2,062,122, \$2,643,499 and \$2,657,254, respectively, which represented approximately 0.28%, 0.28% and 0.27%, respectively, of the fund's net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Mondrian is a limited company organized under the laws of the United Kingdom. Mondrian is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mondrian Investment Partners Holdings Limited and is controlled by members of Mondrian's management. Los Angeles Capital is a California limited liability company founded in 2002 and is owned by key employees through its parent holding companies, LACM Holdings, Inc. and LACM Equity LLC (collectively, the "Parent Company"). Thomas D. Stevens, Chairman, and Hal Reynolds, Co-Chief Investment Officer, hold a controlling equity interest in the Parent Company. Baird is 100% owned by Baird Financial Corporation ("BFC"). BFC is 100% owned by Baird Financial Group, Inc.

#### **PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with William Blair Investment Management, LLC ("William Blair"), RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC ("Redwheel") and ARGA Investment Management, LP ("ARGA"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays William Blair, Redwheel and ARGA a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$1,810,970, \$2,153,556 and \$2,239,535, respectively, which represented approximately 0.60%, 0.60% and 0.56%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

William Blair is a limited liability company that is 100% owned by WBC Holdings, L.P., a limited partnership. The affairs of William Blair are controlled by the general partner of WBC Holdings, L.P., WBC GP, L.L.C., which in turn is controlled by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is comprised of Brent Gledhill, Cissie Citardi, Stephanie Braming, Peter Dalrymple, Ryan DeVore, Matthew Zimmer, Beth Satterfield, and Anu Sharma. Redwheel is a US domiciled limited liability company and is 100% owned by RWC (US) LLC ("RWC LLC"). RWC LLC is 100% owned by RWC Partners Limited ("RWC Partners"). RWC Partners is comprised of an intermediate parent company and a number of subsidiary companies. RWC Partners is a 100% owned subsidiary of RWC Partners Midco Limited ("RWC Midco"), which itself is a 100% owned subsidiary of RWC Partners Holdings Limited ("RWC Holdings"). Both RWC Midco and RWC Holdings are Guernsey based holding companies which are registered for tax in the UK. RWC Holdings is majority-owned by its affiliates' current and former employees and minority-owned by Lincoln Peak Capital LLC. ARGA is a limited partnership and is principally owned by A. Rama Krishna, Founder and Chief Investment Officer, and entities related to Mr. Krishna.

#### **PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreement for this fund with Massachusetts Financial Services Company, doing business as MFS Investment Management ("MFS"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays MFS a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets. For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$307,807, \$448,644 and \$407,830, respectively, which represented

approximately 0.43%, 0.42% and 0.41%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

MFS is a subsidiary of Sun Life of Canada (US) Financial Services Holdings, Inc., which in turn is an indirect, majority-owned subsidiary of Sun Life Financial Inc. (a diversified financial services company).

#### **PACE Alternative Strategies Investments**

Under the current Advisory Agreements for this fund with Allspring Global Investments, LLC ("Allspring"), Aviva Investors Americas LLC ("Aviva"), PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd. ("PCJ"), Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC ("Kettle Hill"), DLD Asset Management, LP ("DLD"), Magnetar Asset Management LLC ("Magnetar") and Electron Capital Partners, LLC ("Electron"), UBS AM (not the fund) pays Allspring, Aviva, PCJ, Kettle Hill, DLD, Magnetar and Electron a fee based on the fund's average daily net assets that each manages (UBS AM receives no additional compensation from the fund for allocating a portion of its assets to other unaffiliated pooled investment vehicles and index futures).

For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS AM paid or accrued aggregate investment advisory fees to the fund's subadvisor(s) of \$2,650,642, \$3,247,544 and \$3,436,501, respectively, which represented approximately 0.74%, 0.75% and 0.75%, respectively, of the fund's average net assets. The accrued investment advisory fees and percentages above reflect the fee schedule(s) in effect during the periods.

Allspring Investments is a direct and wholly owned subsidiary of Allspring Global Investments Holdings LLC, a holding company owned by certain private funds of GTCR LLC and of Reverence Capital Partners, L.P. Prior to November 1, 2021, Allspring was known as Wells Capital Management Incorporated and was a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo Asset Management Holdings, LLC, which was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Wells Fargo & Company.

Aviva is a wholly-owned, direct subsidiary of Aviva Investors North America Holdings, Inc., which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aviva Investors Holdings Ltd., which in turn is a subsidiary of Aviva plc.

PCJ is a partnership with the members of the PCJ investment team owning 49.75% of the firm's equity and Connor, Clark and Lunn Financial Group Ltd. owning 50.25% of the firm's equity.

Andrew Y. Kurita is the Managing Member and owner of Kettle Hill. Bryan Kiss, CFO and Afroz Qadeer, CEO are also owners of the firm.

DLD is a Delaware limited partnership that is majority owned by Mark Friedman, the firm's founder and Chief Investment Officer. TriGran Ventures, LLC owns a minority interest in DLD.

Magnetar is wholly owned and controlled by Magnetar Capital Partners LP ("MCP"), which is controlled by Supernova Management LLC, by virtue of its status as general partner of MCP. MCP is the sole member of a group of affiliated alternative asset managers, including Magnetar.

Electron employees own 100% of Electron Capital Partners, LLC. Approximately 75% of Electron is owned by Jos Shaver, with the remaining 25% indirectly owned by Ran Zhou, Neil Choi and Jeff Zheng.

**Process for selection of subadvisors.** In selecting subadvisors for the funds, UBS AM, together with UBS Financial Services Inc., looks for those firms who they believe are best positioned to deliver strong, consistent performance in a particular investment style or market capitalization range, while managing risk appropriately.

After a thorough initial review of potential advisors, the selection process includes quantitative and qualitative analysis to narrow the list of candidates. The rigorous review, using stringent qualifying standards, incorporates statistical measures of performance, including:

- Investment returns over short- and long-term periods
- Risk-adjusted performance
- Performance relative to the market index that serves as the benchmark for the investment style

The next phase includes office visits and extensive interviews. On the qualitative side, the following areas are examined:

- Investment philosophy and discipline
- Adherence to investment style
- Experience and continuity of key personnel
- Client service capabilities
- Size and financial stability

In some instances, it is determined that more competitive and/or consistent returns can be better achieved by hiring multiple subadvisors for an individual fund, each specializing in a particular market segment and management style.

The final phase is the ongoing monitoring of subadvisor performance to ensure that the standards set by the initial phases remain intact throughout the life of a fund. PACE fund subadvisors can be considered for replacement if they are judged to no longer meet the standards that led to their original selection among other reasons. The result of this comprehensive approach is access to a select group of subadvisors.

**Transfer agency related services.** UBS Financial Services Inc. provides certain services pursuant to a delegation of authority from BNY Mellon, the funds' transfer agent, and is compensated for these services by BNY Mellon, not the fund.

For the fiscal years ended July 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, UBS Financial Services Inc. received from BNY Mellon, not the funds, \$3,442,257, \$3,834,750 and \$4,210,749, respectively, of the total transfer agency and related services fees paid by the funds to BNY Mellon.

**Principal underwriting arrangements.** UBS AM (US), 787 Seventh Avenue, New York, NY 10019 and One North Wacker Drive, Chicago, IL 60606, acts as the principal underwriter of each class of shares of the funds pursuant to a principal underwriting contract with the Trust ("Principal Underwriting Contract") which requires UBS AM (US) to use its best efforts, consistent with its other businesses, to sell shares of the funds. Shares of the funds are offered continuously. UBS AM (US) enters into selling agreements with other broker-dealers (affiliated and non-affiliated) and with other financial institutions to authorize them to sell the funds' shares. Each fund (other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments) has Class A, Class Y, Class P and Class P2 shares established. UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund has only Class P shares established.

Under a separate plan pertaining to the Class A shares of each fund adopted by the Trust in the manner prescribed by Rule 12b-1 under the Investment Company Act (the "Plan"), each fund pays UBS AM (US) a service fee, accrued daily and payable monthly, at the annual rate of 0.25% of the average daily net assets of Class A shares. There is no distribution/service plan with respect to the funds' Class P, Class P2 or Class Y shares, and the funds pay no service or distribution fees with respect to these classes of shares.

UBS AM (US) uses the service fees under the Plan for Class A shares primarily to pay broker-dealers for shareholder servicing, currently at the annual rate of 0.25% of the aggregate investment amounts maintained in each fund by each broker-dealer. Each broker-dealer then compensates its financial advisors for shareholder servicing that they perform and offsets its own expenses in servicing and maintaining shareholder accounts, including related overhead expenses.

UBS AM (US) receives the proceeds of the initial sales charge paid when Class A shares are bought and of the contingent deferred sales charge paid upon sales of Class A shares. These proceeds also may be used to cover distribution expenses.

The Plan and the Principal Underwriting Contract specify that each fund must pay service fees to UBS AM (US) for its service-related activities, not as reimbursement for specific expenses incurred. Therefore, even if the expenses of UBS AM (US) for a fund exceed the service fees it receives, the fund will not be obligated to pay more than those fees. On the other hand, if the expenses of UBS AM (US) are less than such fees, it will retain its full fees and realize a profit. Annually, the board reviews the Plan and the expenses of UBS AM (US) for Class A shares of a fund separately from the expenses attributable to the other classes of shares of the funds.

Among other things, the Plan provides that (1) UBS AM (US) will submit to the board at least quarterly, and the board members will review, reports regarding all amounts expended under the Plan and the purposes for which such expenditures were made, (2) the Plan will continue in effect only so long as it is approved at least annually, and any material amendment thereto is approved, by the board, including those board members who are not "interested persons" of the Trust and who have no direct or indirect financial interest in the operation of the Plan or any agreement related to the Plan, acting in person at a meeting called for that purpose, (3) payments by a fund under the Plan shall not be materially increased without the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding voting securities of the relevant class of the fund and (4) while the Plan remains in effect, the selection and nomination of board members who are not "interested persons" of the Trust shall be committed to the discretion of the board members who are not "interested persons" of the Trust.

In reporting amounts expended under the Plans to the board members, UBS AM (US) allocates expenses attributable to the sale of each class of a fund's shares to such class based on the ratio of sales of shares of such class to the sales of all other classes of shares. The fees paid by one class of a fund's shares will not be used to subsidize the sale of any other class of fund shares.

The funds paid (or accrued) the following service fees to UBS AM (US) under the Plan during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023:

	Class A
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	\$ 51,433
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	21,314
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	26,499
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	69,912
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	45,309
PACE High Yield Investments	8,304

Class A
\$223,003
103,338
39,336
48,327
54,065
8,506
625
10,665

UBS AM (US) estimates that it and its affiliates incurred shareholder service-related and distribution-related expenses with respect to the funds during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, as set forth below.

PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$182,939
Amortization of commissions	_
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	606
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	110,878
Service fees paid to financial advisors	21,667
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$203,451
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	279
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	146,897
Service fees paid to financial advisors	9,705
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$220,167
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	200
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	253,692
Service fees paid to financial advisors	11,170

PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$181,080
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	290
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	91,668
Service fees paid to financial advisors	29,518
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$186,545
Amortization of commissions	<u> </u>
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	631
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	116,657
Service fees paid to financial advisors	22,840
PACE High Yield Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$174,660
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	50
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	104,880
Service fees paid to financial advisors	3,519
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	
Class A Marketing and advertising	\$317,598
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	1,240
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	339,881
Service fees paid to financial advisors	93,977
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	
Class A Marketing and advertising	\$335,084
Amortization of commissions	_
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	613
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	368,995
Service fees paid to financial advisors	43,436

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$201,393
Amortization of commissions	_
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	230
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	136,689
Service fees paid to financial advisors	16,544
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$205,800
Amortization of commissions	<del>_</del>
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	278
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	139,575
Service fees paid to financial advisors	20,290
PACE International Equity Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$312,536
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	601
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	322,380
Service fees paid to financial advisors	22,783
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	
Class A Marketing and advertising	¢202.22E
Amortization of commissions	\$202,325
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	131,044
Service fees paid to financial advisors	3,593
Service rees paid to ilitaricial advisors	3,353
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	
Class A	¢452.727
Marketing and advertising	\$153,727
Amortization of commissions	
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	10
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	20,806
Service fees paid to financial advisors	262

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	
Class A	
Marketing and advertising	\$237,565
Amortization of commissions	_
Printing of prospectuses and SAIs	86
Branch network costs allocated and interest expense	86,429
Service fees paid to financial advisors	4,495

"Marketing and advertising" includes various internal costs allocated by UBS AM (US) to its effort at distributing the funds shares. These internal costs encompass office rent, salaries and other overhead expenses of various departments and areas of operations of UBS AM (US). "Branch network costs allocated and interest expense" consist of an allocated portion of the expenses of various departments involved in the distribution of the funds shares, including the retail branch system of UBS Financial Services Inc., the primary dealer for the funds' shares during this period, and "service fees paid to financial advisors" represents compensation paid by UBS Financial Services Inc. to its financial advisors.

In approving the overall system of distribution for each fund, the board considered several factors, including that the multiple class structure would facilitate sales of fund shares outside the PACE Select Advisors Program and would (1) enable investors to choose the purchasing option best suited to their individual situation, thereby encouraging current shareholders to make additional investments in the fund and attracting new investors and assets to the fund to the benefit of the fund and its shareholders, (2) facilitate distribution of the funds' shares and (3) maintain the competitive position of the fund in relation to other funds that have implemented or are seeking to implement similar distribution arrangements.

In approving the Plan, the board considered all the features of the distribution system for each fund and classes of shares and the anticipated benefits to the funds (and, as appropriate, each class of the fund) and its shareholders, including, as relevant, (1) the conditions under which different combinations of initial sales charges, contingent deferred sales charges, service fees and distribution fees would be imposed and the amount of such charges, (2) the belief of UBS AM (US) that the different combinations of initial sales charges, contingent deferred sales charges, service fees and distribution fees would be attractive to broker-dealers and financial advisors, as well as to investors, resulting in greater growth of the fund than might otherwise be the case, (3) the extent to which fund shareholders might benefit from economies of scale resulting from growth in the fund's assets and shareholder account size and the potential continued growth and/or preventing further erosion of the funds' assets, (4) the services provided to the fund, each class and the shareholders by UBS AM (US) pursuant to the Principal Underwriting Contract, (5) as applicable, the services provided by broker-dealers pursuant to each selling agreement and dealer agreement with UBS AM (US); (6) distribution-related costs and expenses incurred by UBS AM (US) and/or UBS Financial Services Inc. and (7) the benefit to the fund and its shareholders of the fund being available as an exchange vehicle for shares of the corresponding class of other funds for which UBS AM (US) serves as principal underwriter.

With respect to the Plan, the board considered all compensation that UBS AM (US) would receive under the Plan and the Principal Underwriting Contract, including service fees and, as applicable, initial sales charges, distribution fees and contingent deferred sales charges. The board also considered the benefits that would accrue to UBS AM (US) under the Plan in that UBS AM (US) or an affiliate would receive service, distribution, management and administration fees that are calculated based upon a percentage of the average net assets of a fund, which fees would increase if the Plan were successful and the fund attained and maintained significant asset levels.

Under the Principal Underwriting Contract between the Trust and UBS AM (US) for the Class A shares for the periods set forth below, UBS AM (US) earned the following approximate amounts of sales charges and retained the following approximate amounts, net of concessions to dealers, primarily UBS Financial Services Inc.

	For the years ended July 3		
	2023	2022	2021
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments			
Class A	4.0	4.0	4.0
Earned	\$0	\$0	\$0
Retained	0	0	С
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	C
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	C
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE High Yield Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	C
Retained	0	0	0

Fund

Fund			
		For the years en	
	2023	2022	2021
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	\$0	\$0	\$0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE International Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments			
Class A			
Earned	0	0	0
Retained	0	0	0

UBS AM (US) earned and retained contingent deferred sales charges paid upon certain redemptions of shares for the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023 as set forth below.

Fund	Class A
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	\$0
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	0
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	0
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	0
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	0

Fund	Class A
PACE High Yield Investments	\$0
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	0
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	0
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	0
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	0
PACE International Equity Investments	0
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	0
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	0
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	0

UBS AM (US) may make cash and non-cash payments to affiliated and unaffiliated broker-dealers and other financial intermediaries (collectively, "Financial Intermediaries") that engage in selling efforts on behalf of the funds, subject to the internal policies and procedures of UBS AM (US). The source of such payments may come from 12b-1 fees collected from a fund and/or from UBS AM (US)'s own resources (including through transfers from affiliates). Payments made out of UBS AM (US)'s own resources are often referred to as "revenue sharing". Revenue sharing payments generally are based on the value of fund shares sold as a result of such selling efforts although they could take other forms (such as, without limitation, ticket charges or "trail" fees for servicing shareholder accounts). Revenue sharing payments are negotiated by UBS AM (US) and may also be based on such other factors as the Financial Intermediary's ability to attract and retain assets, the quality and quantity of the services provided by the Financial Intermediary, the Financial Intermediary's relationship with UBS AM (US) or the reputation of the Financial Intermediary.

Revenue sharing payments are made by UBS AM (US) out of its own resources (and not out of fund assets). The value of a shareholder's investment in a fund and the return on that investment will be unaffected by these revenue sharing payments. The source of revenue sharing payments may come from transfers from other UBS entities, such as UBS AM. UBS AM (US) may pay Financial Intermediaries a finder's fee for a variety of reasons, including (1) where UBS AM (US) is paying shareholder servicing fees or making other payments to a separate Financial Intermediary that makes shares available to others, (2) where the assets in an account reach a certain threshold or (3) where a Financial Intermediary provides marketing support or access to sales platforms or personnel.

UBS AM (US) provides Financial Intermediaries with sales literature and advertising materials relating to the registered investment companies advised by UBS AM. UBS AM (US) also shares expenses with Financial Intermediaries for costs incurred in hosting seminars for employees and clients of Financial Intermediaries, subject to UBS AM (US)'s internal policies and procedures governing payments for such seminars. These seminars may take place at UBS AM (US)'s headquarters or other appropriate locations and may include reimbursement of travel expenses (i.e., transportation, lodging and meals) of employees of Financial Intermediaries in connection with training and education seminars. Subject to UBS AM (US)'s internal policies and procedures, UBS AM (US) may provide any or all of the following to employees of Financial Intermediaries and their guest(s): (i) an occasional meal, a sporting event or theater ticket or other comparable entertainment; (ii) gifts of less than \$100 per person per year; and/or (iii) UBS AM (US)'s promotional items of nominal value (golf balls, shirts, etc.). In addition, Financial Intermediaries may maintain omnibus accounts and/or have similar arrangements with UBS AM (US) and may be paid by UBS AM (US) for providing subtransfer agency and other services. Financial Intermediaries may be paid a sub-transfer agency or related fee out of fund assets similar to that which a fund otherwise would have paid the funds' transfer agent.

**Additional compensation to affiliated broker-dealer.** UBS AM or UBS AM (US) pays its affiliate, UBS Financial Services Inc., the following additional compensation in connection with the sale of fund shares through UBS Financial Services Inc. in consideration of distribution, marketing support and other services:

- annual rate of 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in each fund (except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund) to be paid on a quarterly basis (although UBS Financial Services Inc. may choose not to receive such payments, or receive a reduced amount, on assets held in certain type of accounts or wrap fee advisory programs).
- Annual rate of up to 0.05% (5 basis points) of the value of the net assets invested in UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund (excluding assets attributable to retirement accounts held in discretionary programs at UBS Financial Services Inc.) to be paid on a guarterly basis.

UBS Financial Services Inc. charges a minimum of \$75,000 per calendar year with respect to the funds (except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund) and certain other investment companies managed by UBS AM for distribution, marketing support and other services.

The foregoing payments are made by UBS AM or UBS AM (US) out of their own resources. Such payments are often referred to as "revenue sharing."

**Additional compensation to financial institution(s).** As of November 28, 2023, the unaffiliated financial institutions that UBS AM (US) anticipates will receive additional compensation (as described in the prospectus) from UBS AM (US) or UBS AM, from their own resources, include:

Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC ("Morgan Stanley")

With respect to Fund Shares, UBS AM (US), as per written agreement between both parties, shall pay Morgan Stanley at an annual rate of 0.01% to 0.10% of each Fund, applied to customer domestic Fund assets held in brokerage and advisory accounts at Morgan Stanley, based on the management fee of each Fund as determined by Morgan Stanley. Certain types of qualified accounts and fund types are excluded from this fee calculation.

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated ("Merrill Lynch")

With respect to Fund Shares, UBS AM (US), as per written agreement between both parties, pays Merrill Lynch additional compensation as follows: (i) a fee of 0.25% (25 basis points) of the value of Gross Sales of Fund Shares; and (ii) an annual fee of 0.10% (10 basis points) of the aggregate average daily net asset value of Fund Shares held by Merrill Lynch customers for more than one year (including Fund Shares exchanged for Fund Shares of the funds for certain other funds in the UBS fund complex).

"Fund Shares" for the purposes of the Merrill Lynch agreement mean all classes of shares of the funds and certain other funds in the UBS fund complex where Merrill Lynch or any of its affiliates is the record owner or is broker-dealer of record, except (i) shares held in retirement or other benefit accounts under the record-keeping management of Merrill Lynch Retirement Group for which fees are payable by UBS AM to Merrill Lynch pursuant to a services agreement (i.e., not including IRA or similar accounts), and (ii) shares held through Merrill Lynch investment advisory programs. Fund Shares that are no longer held through such Merrill Lynch retirement accounts or investment advisory programs but continue to be held by Merrill Lynch customers will cease to be excluded from the definition of Fund Shares. "Gross Sales" for the purposes of the Merrill Lynch agreement mean all sales of Fund Shares in which Merrill Lynch or any of its affiliates is record owner or broker-dealer of record, excluding sales of Fund Shares resulting from reinvestment of distributions and exchanges of Fund Shares within the UBS fund complex.

Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and Raymond James Financial Services, Inc. (collectively, "Raymond James")

With respect to Class A, Class P and Class Y qualifying shares (shares sold through Raymond James), UBS AM (US), as per a written agreement between the parties, pays Raymond James quarterly at the annual rate of 0.17% of the average daily value of all qualifying shares of Fund assets. In addition, UBS AM (US) agrees to pay Raymond James \$15 per purchase (buy) transaction for clients in select account types which are made available without the imposition of a sales charge, transaction or trade charge by Raymond James. The foregoing payments are subject to a minimum payment to Raymond James of \$15,000 per year.

Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC, Wells Fargo Advisors Financial Network, LLC, First Clearing, LLC (collectively, "Wells Fargo")

With respect to Fund Shares, UBS AM (US), per written agreement between said parties, pays Wells Fargo additional compensation as follows: (i) an annual fee of 0.13% (13 basis points), payable quarterly, on the total assets under management for any fund or funds held by Wells Fargo's customers or (ii) \$250,000, whichever is greater. "Fund Shares" for purposes of the Wells Fargo agreement means all classes of shares of the funds and certain other funds in the UBS Fund complex where Wells Fargo is the broker-dealer of record. This applies to both retail and advisory assets but does not apply to advisory fee based ERISA accounts. It does apply, however, to individual retirement accounts not covered by ERISA.

The foregoing payments are made by UBS AM (US) out of its own resources. Such payments are often referred to as "revenue sharing."

You should ask your Financial Intermediary about any payment it receives from the underwriter and any services provided.

**Securities lending.** Pursuant to an agreement between the funds and State Street, the funds may lend their securities through State Street as securities lending agent to certain qualified borrowers (the "Securities Lending Agreement"). As securities lending agent of the funds, State Street administers the funds' securities lending program. These services include arranging the securities loans with approved borrowers and collecting fees and rebates due to the funds. State Street also collects and maintains collateral intended to secure the obligations of each borrower and marks to market daily the value of loaned securities. If a borrower defaults on a loan, State Street is authorized to exercise contractual remedies on behalf of the funds and, pursuant to the terms of the Securities Lending Agreement, has agreed to indemnify the funds for certain losses, which exclude losses associated with collateral reinvestment. State Street may also, in its capacity as securities lending agent, invest cash received as collateral in pre-approved investments in accordance with the Securities Lending Agreement. State Street, in its capacity as securities lending agent of the funds, is authorized to engage a third party bank as a special "tri-party" custodian for securities lending arrangements and enter into a separate custodial undertaking with each applicable borrower under the funds' securities lending program. State Street maintains records of loans made and income derived therefrom and makes available such records that the funds deem necessary to monitor the securities lending program.

For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, the following funds earned income and incurred the following costs and expenses as a result of their securities lending activities:

Fund	Gross income from securities lending activities	Fees paid to Securities Lending Agent from a revenue split	Fees paid for any cash collateral management service (including fees deducted from a pooled cash collateral reinvestment vehicle) not included in the revenue split
PACE Intermediate Fixed			
Income Investments	\$216,826	\$ 7,226	\$1,609
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	629,925	29,720	4,464
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	15,896	252	112
PACE High Yield Investments	5,580	792	48
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	152,971	8,421	708
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	2,634	60	24
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity	202.472	12.057	2 114
Investments PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity	302,472	12,857	2,114
Investments	210,892	9,291	1,738
PACE International Equity Investments	844,134	45,706	3,399
PACE International Emerging Markets			
Equity Investments	281,709	4,756	2,134
PACE Global Real Estate			
Securities Investments	112,541	2,062	861

	Rebate (paid to	Aggregate fees/ compensation for securities	Net income from securities lending
Fund	borrower)	lending activities	activities
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	\$179,117	\$187,952	\$ 28,874
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	476,944	511,127	118,798
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	14,524	14,888	1,008
PACE High Yield Investments	1,581	2,421	3,159
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	110,152	119,281	33,690
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	2,310	2,394	240
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	236,081	251,051	51,421
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity	230,061	231,031	31,421
Investments	162,782	173,811	37,081
PACE International Equity Investments	614,500	663,605	180,529
PACE International Emerging Markets			
Equity Investments	255,830	262,720	18,989
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	101,359	104,282	8,259

**Bank line of credit.** Each fund, other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, participates with other funds managed or advised by UBS AM in a \$185 million committed credit facility with State Street ("Committed Credit Facility"), to be utilized for temporary financing until the settlement of sales or purchases of portfolio securities, the repurchase or redemption of shares of the funds at the request of shareholders and other temporary or emergency purposes. Under the Committed Credit Facility arrangement, the Funds have agreed to pay commitment fees on the average daily balance of the Committed Credit Facility not utilized. Commitment fees are allocated among the Funds in the Committed Credit Facility as follows: 50% of the allocation is based on the relative asset

size of Funds and the other 50% of the allocation is based on utilization. For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, the following Funds had borrowings as follows:

	Average daily amount of			Weighted average
Portfolio	borrowing outstanding	Days outstanding	Interest expense	annualized interest rate
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	\$ 1,042,636	1	\$ 150	5.180%
PACE High Yield Investments	1,189,542	17	3,136	5.583
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	11,570,442	13	2,087	3.680
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	4,337,665	17	11,549	5.638
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	1,518,575	18	3,299	4.345
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	1,160,839	42	7,278	5.374
PACE International Equity Investments	1,596,399	167	42,470	5.735
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity				
Investments	1,292,370	128	26,011	5.661
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	515,174	3	244	5.680
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	657,914	14	1,219	4.765

At July 31, 2023, PACE International Equity Investments, and PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments had outstanding borrowings of \$439,886 and \$524,717, respectively.

**Proxy voting policies and procedures.** The Trust's board believes that the voting of proxies on securities held by a fund is an important element of the overall investment process. As such, the board has delegated the responsibility to vote such proxies to UBS AM and each fund's subadvisor(s), as applicable, subject to the continuing oversight of the board. Following is a summary of the proxy voting policies of UBS AM and each subadvisor to each fund.

You may obtain information about the funds' proxy voting decisions, without charge, online on the funds' website (http://www.ubs.com/us/en/asset-management/individual-investors-and-financial-advisors/products/ii\_pace.html) or on the EDGAR database on the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov) for the most recent 12-month period ending June 30 for which an SEC filing has been made.

### UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments—UBS AM

UBS AM's proxy voting policy is based on its belief that voting rights have economic value and should be treated accordingly. Good corporate governance should in the long term, lead towards better corporate performance and improved shareholder value. Generally, UBS AM expects the boards of directors of companies issuing securities held by its clients to act in the service of the shareholders, view themselves as stewards of the company, exercise good judgment and practice diligent oversight of the management of the company. A commitment to acting in as transparent a manner as possible is fundamental to good governance. While there is no absolute set of standards that determine appropriate corporate governance under all circumstances, and no set of values that will guarantee ethical board behavior, there are certain principles, which UBS AM considers is appropriate to protect the economic value of its clients' investments. UBS AM may delegate to an independent proxy voting and research service the authority to exercise the voting rights associated with certain client holdings. Any such delegation shall be made with the direction that the votes be exercised in accordance with UBS AM's proxy voting policy.

When UBS AM's view of a company's management is favorable, UBS AM generally supports current management initiatives. When UBS AM's view is that changes to the management structure would probably increase shareholder value, UBS AM may not support existing management proposals. If management's performance has been questionable,

UBS AM may abstain or vote against specific proxy proposals. In general, UBS AM generally exercises voting rights in accordance with the following principles: (1) with respect to board structure, (a) an effective chair is key, (b) the roles of chair and chief executive officer should be separated, (c) board members should have appropriate and diverse experience and be capable of providing good judgment and diligent oversight of management, (d) the board should include executive and non-executive members; and (2) with respect to board responsibilities, (a) the whole board should be fully involved in endorsing strategy and in all major strategic decisions, (b) the non-executive directors should provide a challenging but positive environment for the executive directors and (c) the board should ensure that at all times (i) appropriate management succession plans are in place; (ii) the interests of executives and shareholders are aligned and the financial audit is independent and accurate; (iii) the brand and reputation of the company is protected and enhanced; (iv) a constructive dialogue with shareholders is encouraged; and (v) it receives all the information necessary to hold management accountable. UBS AM exercises its voting rights in accordance with overarching rationales outlined by its proxy voting policies and procedures that are based on the principles described above.

The proxy voting policy includes guidelines regarding environmental, social, and corporate governance ("ESG") factors during the exercise of voting rights on behalf of UBS AM's clients, such as the funds. Underlying UBS AM's voting and ESG guidelines are two fundamental objectives: (1) acting in the best financial interest of clients and enhancing the long-term value of their investments; and (2) promoting best practice in corporate governance and ensuring that portfolio companies are sustainable and successful.

UBS AM has implemented procedures designed to address a conflict of interest in voting a particular proxy proposal, which may arise as a result of its or its affiliates' client relationships, marketing efforts or banking, investment banking and broker/dealer activities. To address such conflicts, UBS AM has imposed information barriers between it and its affiliates who conduct banking, investment banking and broker/dealer activities and has implemented procedures to prevent business, sales and marketing issues from influencing its proxy votes. Whenever UBS AM becomes aware of a conflict with respect to a particular proxy, a vote normally will be cast in line with UBS AM's proxy voting policy. If it is identified that this action would not be in the best interests of UBS AM's clients, and under certain circumstances, the relevant internal UBS AM committee may be required to review and resolve the manner in which such proxy is voted.

### PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments—Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

**Policy Statement:** PIMCO adopted a written proxy voting policy ("Proxy Policy") as required by Rule 206(4)-6 under the Advisers Act. The Proxy Policy is intended to foster PIMCO's compliance with its fiduciary obligations and applicable law. The Proxy Policy applies to any voting or consent rights with respect to securities held in accounts over which PIMCO has discretionary voting authority. The Proxy Policy is designed in a manner reasonably expected to ensure that voting and consent rights are exercised in the best interests of PIMCO's clients.

**Overview:** As a general matter, PIMCO will adhere to its fiduciary obligations for any proxies it has the authority to vote on behalf of its clients. Each proxy is voted on a case-by-case basis, taking into account relevant facts and circumstances. When considering client proxies<sup>1</sup>, PIMCO may determine not to vote a proxy in limited circumstances.

**Equity Securities.**<sup>2</sup> PIMCO has retained an Industry Service Provider ("ISP")<sup>3</sup> to provide research and voting recommendations for proxies relating to Equity Securities in accordance with the ISP's guidelines. By following the guidelines of an independent third party, PIMCO seeks to mitigate potential conflicts of interest PIMCO may have with respect to proxies covered by the ISP.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Proxies generally describe corporate action consent rights (relative to fixed income securities) and proxy voting ballots (relative to fixed income or equity securities) as determined by the issuer or custodian.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>The term "Equity Securities" means common and preferred stock, including common and preferred shares issued by investment companies; it does not include debt securities convertible into equity securities.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup>The ISP for Equity Securities proxy voting is Institutional Shareholder Services ("ISS"), Inc., 1177 Avenue of the Americas 2<sup>nd</sup> Floor, New York NY 10036.

PIMCO will follow the recommendations of the ISP unless: (i) the ISP does not provide a voting recommendation; or (ii) a PM/Analyst decides to override the ISP's voting recommendation. In each case as described above, the Legal and Compliance department will review the proxy to determine whether an actual or potential conflict of interest exists. When the ISP does not provide a voting recommendation, the relevant PM/Analyst will make a determination regarding how, or if, the proxy will be voted by completing required documentation.

**Fixed Income Securities.** Fixed income securities can be processed as proxy ballots or corporate action-consents<sup>4</sup> at the discretion of the issuer/ custodian.

When processed as proxy ballots, the ISP generally does not provide a voting recommendation and their role is limited to election processing and recordkeeping. In such instances, any elections would follow the standard process discussed above for Equity Securities.

When processed as corporate action-consents, the Legal and Compliance department will review all election forms to determine whether an actual or potential conflict of interest exists with respect to the PM's consent election. PIMCO's Credit Research and Portfolio Management Groups are responsible for issuing recommendations on how to vote proxy ballots and corporation action-consents with respect to fixed income securities.

**Resolution of potential/identified conflicts of interest.** The Proxy Policy permits PIMCO to seek to resolve material conflicts of interest by pursuing any one of several courses of action. With respect to material conflicts of interest between PIMCO and a client account, the Proxy Policy permits PIMCO to either: (i) convene a working group to assess and resolve the conflict (the "Proxy Working Group"); or (ii) vote in accordance with protocols previously established by the Proxy Policy, the Proxy Working Group and/or other relevant procedures approved by PIMCO's Legal and Compliance department or PIMCO's Conflict Committee with respect to specific types of conflicts.

PIMCO will supervise and periodically review its proxy voting activities and the implementation of the Proxy Policy. PIMCO's Proxy Policy, and information about how PIMCO voted a client's proxies, is available upon request.

**ISP Oversight:** Consistent with its fiduciary obligations, PIMCO will perform periodic due diligence and oversight of ISP's engaged to provide PIMCO with proxy voting research and recommendations. PIMCO's due diligence and oversight process includes, but is not limited to, the evaluation of: the ISP's capacity and competency to provide proxy voting research and recommendations<sup>5</sup> and the ISP's compliance program.

## PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments—Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department

To the extent that the fund's Board has delegated the responsibility to vote proxies on the securities held in the fund's portfolio to the subadviser and in order to mitigate any potential conflict of interest, BBH has retained an independent third-party proxy agent ("Proxy Agent") to recommend how to vote the fund's proxies.

BBH has adopted proxy voting policies and procedures concerning the voting of proxies of its funds clients (the "Proxy Policy and Procedures"). Pursuant to the Proxy Policy and Procedures, BBH reviews and analyzes the recommendations of the Proxy Agent and from time to time may depart from such recommendations based on its own analysis and discretion. The Proxy Policy and Procedures are reviewed periodically, and, accordingly, are subject to

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> Voting or consent rights shall not include matters which are primarily decisions to buy or sell investments, such as tender offers, exchange offers, conversions, put options, redemptions, and Dutch auctions.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup>This includes the adequacy and quality of the ISP's operational infrastructure as it relates to its process for seeking timely input from issuers and its voting methodologies.

change. The Proxy Agent maintains proxy guidelines, reviewed at least annually by BBH, that present its typical voting posture for routine and non-routine issues. Generally, the Proxy Agent recommends voting in favor of proposals that maintain or strengthen the shared interests of shareholders and management; increase shareholder value; maintain or increase shareholder influence over the issuer's board of directors and management; and maintain or increase the rights of shareholders. Whether the Proxy Agent or BBH supports or opposes a proposal will depend on the specific circumstances described in the proxy statement and other available information.

PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments—Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC and Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department Pacific Investment Management Company LLC. For information regarding the proxy voting policies of PIMCO, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments."

**Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC ("NBIA").** NBIA has implemented written Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures (Proxy Voting Policy) that are designed to reasonably ensure that NBIA votes proxies prudently and in the best interest of its advisory clients for whom NBIA has voting authority. The Proxy Voting Policy also describes how NBIA addresses any conflicts that may arise between its interests and those of its clients with respect to proxy voting. The following is a summary of the Proxy Voting Policy.

NBIA's Governance and Proxy Committee ("Proxy Committee") is responsible for developing, authorizing, implementing and updating the Proxy Voting Policy, administering and overseeing the proxy voting process, and engaging and overseeing any independent third-party vendors as voting delegates to review, monitor and/or vote proxies. In order to apply the Proxy Voting Policy noted above in a timely and consistent manner, NBIA utilizes Glass, Lewis & Co. ("Glass Lewis") to vote proxies in accordance with NBIA's voting guidelines or, in instances where a material conflict has been determined to exist, in accordance with the voting recommendations of Glass Lewis.

NBIA retains final authority and fiduciary responsibility for proxy voting. NBIA believes that its Proxy Voting Policy is reasonably designed to address material conflicts of interest that may arise between NBIA and a client as to how proxies are voted.

In the event that an investment professional at NBIA believes that it is in the best interest of a client or clients to vote proxies in a manner inconsistent with the voting guidelines, the Proxy Committee will review information submitted by the investment professional to determine that there is no material conflict of interest between NBIA and the client with respect to the voting of the proxy in the requested manner. In the event that the Proxy Committee determines that such vote will not present a material conflict, the Proxy Committee will make a determination whether to vote such proxy as recommended by the NB investment professional.

If the Proxy Committee determines that the voting of a proxy as recommended by the investment professional would not be appropriate, the Proxy Committee shall: (i) take no further action, in which case Glass Lewis shall vote such proxy in accordance with NBIA's voting guidelines; (ii) disclose such conflict to the client or clients and obtain written direction from the client as to how to vote the proxy; (iii) suggest that the client or clients engage another party to determine how to vote the proxy; or (iv) engage another independent third party to determine how to vote the proxy.

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department. For information regarding the proxy voting policies of BBH, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments."

### PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments—Insight North America LLC ("Insight")

#### 1. Introduction

Insight seeks to actively exercise its rights and responsibilities in regard to proxy voting on behalf of Clients and is an essential part of maximizing shareholder value, ensuring good governance and delivering investment performance aligned with Clients' long-term economic interests.

The Insight Proxy Voting Policy ("Policy") sets out the arrangements employed by Insight Investment Management (Global) Limited, Insight Investment Management (Europe) Limited, Insight North America LLC and Insight Investment International Limited (collectively "Insight").

#### 2. Policy Statement

Insight is committed to supporting good governance practices and also voting all proxies where it is deemed appropriate and responsible to do so for the relevant asset class. In such cases, Insight's objective is to vote proxies in the best interests of its Clients.

#### 3. Scope

Insight is committed to integrating governance and voting all proxies where it is deemed appropriate and responsible to do so for the relevant asset class. In such cases, Insight's objective is to vote proxies in the best interests of its Clients. Alternatively where a Client retains control over the voting decision, Insight will only lodge votes in instances where the client agreement hands responsibility to Insight to cast the votes on their behalf.

#### 4. Proxy Voting Process

Insight's proxy voting activity adheres to best-practice standards and is a component of Insight's Stewardship and Responsible Investment Policies. In implementing its Proxy Voting Policy, Insight will take into account a number of factors used to provide a framework for voting each proxy. These include:

Leadership: Every company should be led by an effective board whose approach is consistent with creating sustainable long-term growth.

- **Strategy:** Company leadership should define a clear purpose and set long term objectives for delivering value to shareholders.
- **Culture:** The board should promote a diverse and inclusive culture which strongly aligns to the values of the company. It should seek to monitor culture and ensure that it is regularly engaging with its workforce.
- **Engagement with Shareholders:** The board and senior management should be transparent and engaged with existing shareholders. The board should have a clear understanding of the views of shareholders. The board should seek to minimize unnecessary dilution of equity and preserve the rights of existing shareholders.
- **Sustainability:** The board should aim to take account of environmental, social and governance risks and opportunities when setting strategy and in their company monitoring role.

Structure: The board should have clear division of responsibilities.

- **The Chair:** The independent Chair, or Lead Independent Director, of the board should demonstrate objective judgment and promote transparency and facilitate constructive debate to promote overall effectiveness.
- **The Board:** There should be an appropriate balance of executive and non-executive directors. Non-executive directors should be evaluated for independence. No one individual should have unfettered decision-making powers. There should be a clear division of responsibilities between the independent board members and the executive leadership of the company.

• **Resources:** The board should ensure it has sufficient governance policies, influence and resources to function effectively. Non-executive directors should have sufficient time to fulfil their obligations to the company as directors.

Effectiveness: The board should seek to build strong institutional knowledge to ensure long term efficient and sustainable operations.

- **Appointment:** There should be a formal appointment process, which ensures that the most qualified individuals are selected for the board. This process should be irrespective of bias to ensure appropriate diversity of the board.
- **Knowledge:** The board should be comprised of those with the knowledge, skills and experience to effectively discharge their duties. The board should have sufficient independence to serve as an effective check on company management and ensure the best outcomes for shareholders.
- **Evaluation:** The board should be evaluated for effectiveness on a regular basis. Board member's contributions should be considered individually.

Independence: The board should present a fair and balanced view of the company's position and prospects.

- **Integrity:** The board should ensure that all reports produced accurately reflect the financial position, prospects and risks relevant to the company. The board should ensure the independence and effectiveness of internal and external audit functions.
- **Audit:** The board should ensure that clear, uncontentious accounts are produced. These should conform to the relevant best accountancy practices and accurately represent the financial position of the company. Deviations from standard accounting practices should be clearly documented with a corresponding rationale.
- **Risk:** The board should ensure the company has sound risk management and internal control systems. There should be a regular assessment and communication of the company's emerging and principal risks.

Remuneration: Levels of remuneration should be sufficient to attract, retain and motivate talent of the quality required to run the company successfully.

- **Goal Based:** The board should base remuneration on goal-based, qualitative, discretionary cash incentives. Remuneration should consider underlying industry and macroeconomic conditions and not be structured in a tax oriented manner.
- Transparent: Remuneration arrangements should be transparent and should avoid complexity.
- **Sustainable:** Remuneration should not be excessively share based and should be accurately represented and controlled as an operational cost. The remuneration of executives should promote long term focus and respect the interests of existing shareholders.

The relevant factors are used by Insight to develop Voting Guidelines enabling a consistent approach to proxy voting, which are reviewed annually by the Proxy Voting Group ("PVG")—(see section 6).

Voting activity is most usually performed by the Chair of the PVG, a senior portfolio manager with no day to day investment discretion. This creates an independent governance structure for voting, helping to mitigate actual and potential conflicts of interest (see section 5).

The Chair of the PVG can seek support from portfolio managers, who have active discretion over the securities, to provide additional input into the voting decision such as company background. However the vote will be cast by the Chair of the PVG or their delegate. Insight seeks to vote on all holdings with associated voting rights in one of three ways: in support of, against, or in abstention. If the chair is unable to cast a vote, the decision will be cast by the deputy chair. Insight uses a Voting Agent to assist in the analysis and administration of the vote (see section 4.1). The rationale for voting for, against, or abstaining is retained on a case-by-case basis as appropriate and reviewed by the PVG on a regular basis.

#### 4.1 Voting Agent

To assist Insight professionals with implementing its proxy voting strategy, Insight retains the services of an independent proxy voting service, namely Minerva ("Voting Agent"). The Voting Agent's responsibilities include, but are not limited to, monitoring company meeting agendas and items to be voted on, reviewing each vote against Insight's Voting Guidelines and providing a voting analysis based upon the Voting Guidelines. The Voting Agent also identifies resolutions that require specific shareholder judgment—often relating to corporate transactions or shareholder resolutions. This enables Insight to review situations where the Voting Guidelines require additional consideration or assist in the identification of potential conflicts of interest impacting the proxy vote decision. The Chair of the PVG will review for contentious resolutions and in the event of one will determine these will be escalated to the PVG (see section 5.2).

Voting decisions are communicated by Insight to the Voting Agent and submitted to shareholder meetings through a specific proxy.

On a monthly basis, the Voting Agent provides reports on voting activity to Insight. Voting data is available to Clients upon request and is posted on its website (see section 7). Insight conducts an annual due diligence to review the Voting Guidelines and the Voting Agent's related services.

#### 5. Conflicts of Interest

Effective stewardship requires protecting Clients against any potential conflicts of interest and managing them with appropriate governance. To comply with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, Insight believes managing perceived conflicts is as important as managing actual conflicts.

In the course of normal business, Insight and its personnel may encounter situations where it faces a conflict of interest or a conflict of interest could be perceived. A conflict of interest occurs whenever the interests of Insight or its personnel could diverge from those of a Client or when Insight or its personnel could have obligations to more than one party whose interests are different to each other or those of Insight's Clients.

In identifying a potential conflict situation, as a minimum, consideration will be made as to whether Insight, or a member of staff, is likely to:

- make a financial gain or avoid a financial loss at the expense of the Client
- present material differences in the thoughts of two PM's who own the same security
- benefit if it puts the interest of one Client over the interests of another Client
- gain an interest from a service provided to, or transaction carried out on behalf of a Client which may not be in, or which may be different from, the Client's interest
- obtain a higher than usual benefit from a third party in relation to a service provided to the Client

- receive an inducement in relation to a service provided to the Client, in the form of monies, goods or services other than standard commission or fee for that service or
- have a personal interest that could be seen to conflict with their duties at Insight
- create a conflict where Insight invests in firms which are Clients or potential Clients of Insight. Insight might give preferential treatment in its research (including external communication of the same) and/or investment management to issuers of publicly traded debt or equities which are also clients or closely related to clients (e.g. sponsors of pension schemes). This includes financial and ESG considerations.
- create a conflict between investment teams with fixed income holdings in publicly listed firms or material differences in the thoughts of two PM's who own the same security

#### 5.1 Escalation of Contentious Voting Issue

When a contentious voting issue is identified, the PVG chairman or delegate will review, evaluate and determine whether an actual material conflict of interest exists and, if so, will escalate the matter to the PVG voting committee. Depending upon the nature of the material conflict of interest, Insight may elect to take one or more of the following measures:

- removing certain Insight personnel from the proxy voting process
- walling off personnel with knowledge of the material conflict to ensure that such personnel do not influence the relevant proxy vote
- voting in accordance with the applicable Voting Guidelines, if any, if the application of the Voting Guidelines would objectively result in the casting of a proxy vote in a predetermined manner and

An unconflicted contentious resolution will be voted by the Chair or their delegate. Where a conflict is deemed to exist the vote, widened to the PVG voting committee, will be determined by majority vote.

The resolution of all contentious voting issues, will be documented in order to demonstrate that Insight acted in the best interests of its Clients. Any voting decision not resolved by the PVG will be escalated to the Insight Chief Investment Officer ("CIO") or their delegate for additional input.

#### 6. Proxy Voting Group

The PVG is responsible for overseeing the implementation of voting decisions where Insight has voting authority on behalf of Clients. The PVG meets at least quarterly, or more frequently as required. In ensuring that votes casted are in the best interest of Clients, the PVG will oversee the following proxy voting activities:

- Casting votes on behalf of Clients
- **Voting Policy:** Oversee and set the Proxy Voting Policy
- Voting Guidelines: Oversee and set the Voting Guidelines which are reviewed and approved on an annual basis

- Stewardship Code & Engagement Policy: Review for consistency with Proxy Voting Policy and Voting Guidelines
- Conflicts of interest: Manage conflicts when making voting instructions in line with Insight's Conflict of Interest Policy
- Resolution Assessment: Review upcoming votes that cannot be made using Voting Guidelines and make voting decisions
- **Voting Agent:** Appoint and monitor third-party proxy agencies, including the services they perform for Insight in implementing its voting strategy
- **Reporting:** Ensure voting activity aligns with local regulations and standards.

The PVG is chaired by a Senior Portfolio Manager (who has no direct day to day investment discretion) and attended by portfolio management personal, the Senior Stewardship Analyst (Deputy Chair), Corporate Risk, Compliance and Operations personal. The PVG is accountable to and provides quarterly updates to the Investment Management Group ("IMG").

#### 7. Disclosure and Recording Keeping

In certain foreign jurisdictions, the voting of proxies can result in additional restrictions that have an economic impact to the security, such as "share-blocking." If Insight votes on the proxy share- blocking may prevent Insight from selling the shares of the security for a period of time. In determining whether to vote proxies subject to such restrictions Insight, in consultation with the PVG, considers whether the vote, either in itself or together with the votes of other shareholders, is expected to affect the value of the security that outweighs the cost of voting. If Insight votes on a proxy and during the "share-blocking period" Insight would like to sell the affected security Insight, in consultation with the PVG, will attempt to recall the shares (as allowable within the market time-frame and practices).

Insight publishes its voting activity in full on its website. This can be found at www.insightinvestment.com/ri.

#### 8. Proxy Voting Policy Review

Insight will review its Proxy Voting arrangements regularly through the PVG. Insight reviews this Policy at least annually or whenever a material change occurs and will notify Clients of any material change that affects Insight's ability to vote in line with the best interests of its Clients.

A material change shall be a significant event that could impact Insight's ability to vote proxies such as a change in voting agent.

#### PACE Global Fixed Income Investments—J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc.

JPMorgan and its affiliated advisers are part of a global asset management organization with the capability to invest in securities of issuers located around the globe. Because the regulatory framework and the business cultures and practices vary from region to region, the Guidelines are customized for each region to take into account such variations. Separate Guidelines cover the regions of (1) North America, (2) Europe, Middle East, Africa, Central America and South America, (3) Asia (ex-Japan) and (4) Japan, respectively.

Notwithstanding the variations among the Guidelines, all of the Guidelines have been designed with the uniform objective of encouraging corporate action that enhances shareholder value. As a general rule, in voting proxies of a particular security, JPMorgan and its affiliated advisers will apply the Guidelines of the region in which the issuer of

such security is organized. Except as noted below, proxy voting decisions will be made in accordance with the Guidelines covering a multitude of both routine and non-routine matters that JPMorgan and its affiliated adviser have encountered globally, based on many years of collective investment management experience.

To oversee the proxy-voting process on an ongoing basis, J.P. Morgan has established a proxy committee and appointed a proxy administrator in each global location where proxies are voted. The primary function of each proxy committee is to determine the independence of any third-party vendor which it has delegated proxy voting responsibilities and to conclude that there are not conflicts of interest that would prevent such vendor from performing such proxy voting services prior to delegation, review and approve the Guidelines annually, and provide advice and recommendations on general proxy-voting matters as well as on specific voting issues. The procedures permit an independent voting service, to perform certain services otherwise carried out or coordinated by the proxy administrator.

Although for many matters the Guidelines specify the votes to be cast, for many others, the Guidelines contemplate case-by-case determinations. In addition, there will undoubtedly be proxy matters that are not contemplated by the Guidelines. With respect to matters not contemplated by the Guidelines and to override the Guidelines, the Procedures require a certification and review process to be completed before the vote is cast. That process is designed to identify actual or potential material conflicts of interest (between the fund on the one hand, and JPMorgan and its affiliates on the other hand) and ensure that the proxy vote is cast in the best interests of the fund. A conflict is deemed to exist when the proxy is for JPMorgan Chase & Co. stock or for J.P. Morgan Funds, or when the proxy administrator has actual knowledge indicating that a JPMorgan affiliate is an investment banker or rendered a fairness opinion with respect to the matter that is the subject of the proxy vote. When such conflicts are identified, the proxy will be voted by an independent third party either in accordance with JPMorgan proxy voting guidelines or by the third party using its own guidelines.

When other types of potential material conflicts of interest are identified, the proxy administrator and, as necessary, a legal representative from the Proxy Committee will evaluate the potential conflict of interest and determine whether such conflict actually exists, and if so, will recommend how JPMorgan will vote the proxy. In addressing any material conflict, JPMorgan may take one or more of the following measures (or other appropriate action): removing or "walling off" from the proxy voting process certain JPMorgan personnel with knowledge of the conflict, voting in accordance with any applicable Guideline if the application of the Guideline would objectively result in the casting of a proxy vote in a predetermined manner, or deferring the vote to or obtaining a recommendation from a third independent party, in which case the proxy will be voted by, or in accordance with the recommendation of, the independent third party.

A complete set of proxy voting guidelines may be found here: https://am.jpmorgan.com/content/dam/jpm-am-aem/americas/us/en/supplemental/proxy-information/global-procedures-and-guidelines.pdf

#### PACE High Yield Investments—Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management Inc.

The fund has delegated to NCRAM the ability to make all proxy voting decisions in relation to portfolio securities held by the fund. NCRAM recognizes that proxy voting is a valuable right of company shareholders. The firm has in place policies and procedures to ensure that NCRAM is administering proxy voting matters in a manner consistent with the best interests of its clients and in accordance with its fiduciary duties under applicable laws. Generally, NCRAM will vote all proxies it receives. However, it may be unable to vote proxies in certain circumstances, such as when securities are part of a securities lending program. In fulfilling its obligations to clients, NCRAM's goal and intent is to vote all proxies in its clients' best long term interests. NCRAM may vote in a manner that could diminish the value of a client's position in the short-term if NCRAM believes it will increase this value in the long-term and NCRAM expects to hold the security for the long-term. NCRAM also has procedures to address potential material conflicts of interest between NCRAM and its clients.

## PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments—Wellington Management Company LLP, Artisan Partners Limited Partnership and Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC.

**Wellington Management Company LLP.** Wellington's Proxy Voting Guidelines (the "Guidelines") set forth broad guidelines and positions on common proxy issues that Wellington uses in voting on proxies In addition, Wellington also considers each proposal in the context of the issuer, industry and country or countries in which the issuer's business is conducted. The Guidelines are not rigid rules and the merits of a particular proposal may cause Wellington to enter a vote that differs from the Guidelines. Wellington seeks to vote all proxies with the goal of increasing long-term client value and, while client investment strategies may differ, applying this common set of guidelines is consistent with the investment objective of achieving positive long-term investment performance for each client.

#### **Statement of Policy**

Wellington:

- 1. Votes client proxies for which clients have affirmatively delegated proxy-voting authority, in writing, unless it has arranged in advance with the client to limit the circumstances in which it would exercise voting authority or determines that it is in the best interest of one or more clients to refrain from voting a given proxy.
- 2. Votes all proxies in the best interests of the client for whom it is voting.
- 3. Identifies and resolves all material proxy-related conflicts of interest between the firm and its clients in the best interests of the client.

#### Responsibility and Oversight

The Investment Research Group ("Investment Research") monitors regulatory requirements with respect to proxy voting and works with the firm's Legal and Compliance Group and the Investment Stewardship Committee to develop practices that implement those requirements. Investment Research also acts as a resource for portfolio managers and research analysts on proxy matters as needed. Day-to-day administration of the proxy voting process is the responsibility of Investment Research. The Investment Stewardship Committee is responsible for oversight of the implementation of the Global Proxy Policy and Procedures, review and approval of the Guidelines, identification and resolution of conflicts of interest, and for providing advice and guidance on specific proxy votes for individual issuers. The Investment Stewardship Committee reviews the Global Proxy Policy and Procedures annually.

#### **Procedures**

#### **Use of Third-Party Voting Agent**

Wellington uses the services of a third-party voting agent for research, voting recommendations, and to manage the administrative aspects of proxy voting. The voting agent processes proxies for client accounts, casts votes based on the Guidelines and maintains records of proxies voted. Wellington complements the research received by its primary voting agent with research from another voting agent.

#### Receipt of Proxy

If a client requests that Wellington votes proxies on its behalf, the client must instruct its custodian bank to deliver all relevant voting material to Wellington or its voting agent.

#### Reconciliation

Each public security proxy received by electronic means is matched to the securities eligible to be voted and a reminder is sent to any custodian or trustee that has not forwarded the proxies as due. This reconciliation is performed at the ballot level. Although proxies received for private securities, as well as those received in non-electronic format, are voted as received, Wellington is not able to reconcile these ballots, nor does it notify custodians of non-receipt.

#### Research

In addition to proprietary investment research undertaken by Wellington investment professionals, Investment Research conducts proxy research internally, and uses the resources of a number of external sources, including third-party voting agents, to keep abreast of developments in corporate governance and of current practices of specific companies.

#### **Proxy Voting**

Following the reconciliation process, each proxy is compared against the Guidelines, and handled as follows:

- Generally, issues for which explicit proxy voting guidance is provided in the Guidelines (i.e., "For", "Against", "Abstain") are voted in accordance with the Guidelines.
- Issues identified as "case-by-case" in the Guidelines are further reviewed by Investment Research. In certain circumstances, further input is needed, so the issues are forwarded to the relevant research analyst and/or portfolio manager(s) for their input.
- Absent a material conflict of interest, the portfolio manager has the authority to decide the final vote. Different portfolio managers holding the same securities may arrive at different voting conclusions for their clients' proxies.

Wellington reviews a subset of the voting record to ensure that proxies are voted in accordance with these Global Proxy Policy and Procedures and the Guidelines; and ensures that documentation and reports, for clients and for internal purposes, relating to the voting of proxies are promptly and properly prepared and disseminated.

#### Material Conflict of Interest Identification and Resolution Processes

Wellington's broadly diversified client base and functional lines of responsibility serve to minimize the number of, but not prevent, material conflicts of interest it faces in voting proxies. Annually, the Investment Stewardship Committee sets standards for identifying material conflicts based on client, vendor, and lender relationships, and publishes those standards to individuals involved in the proxy voting process. In addition, the Investment Stewardship Committee encourages all personnel to contact Investment Research about apparent conflicts of interest, even if the apparent conflict does not meet the published materiality criteria. Apparent conflicts are reviewed by designated members of the Investment Stewardship Committee to determine if there is a conflict and if so whether the conflict is material.

If a proxy is identified as presenting a material conflict of interest, the matter must be reviewed by designated members of the Investment Stewardship Committee, who will resolve the conflict and direct the vote. In certain circumstances, the designated members may determine that the full Investment Stewardship Committee should convene.

#### Other Considerations Securities Lending

In general, Wellington does not know when securities have been lent out pursuant to a client's securities lending program and are therefore unavailable to be voted. Efforts to recall loaned securities are not always effective, but, in rare circumstances, Wellington may determine voting would outweigh the benefit to the client resulting from use of securities for lending and recommend that a client attempt to have its custodian recall the security to permit voting of related proxies.

#### Share Blocking and Re-registration

Certain countries impose trading restrictions or requirements regarding re-registration of securities held in omnibus accounts in order for shareholders to vote a proxy. The potential impact of such requirements is evaluated when determining whether to vote such proxies.

#### Lack of Adequate Information, Untimely Receipt of Proxy Materials, or Excessive Costs

Wellington may abstain from voting a proxy when the proxy statement or other available information is inadequate to allow for an informed vote, when the proxy materials are not delivered in a timely fashion or when, in Wellington's judgment, the costs exceed the expected benefits to clients (such as when powers of attorney or consularization are required).

#### **Additional Information**

Wellington maintains records related to proxies pursuant to Rule 204-2 of the Advisers Act, ERISA, and other applicable laws. In addition, Wellington discloses annually how it has exercised its voting rights for significant votes, as require by the EU Shareholder Rights Directive II ("SRD II").

**Artisan Partners Limited Partnership.** When Artisan Partners votes a fund's proxy with respect to a specific issuer, the fund's economic interest as a shareholder of that issuer is Artisan Partners' primary consideration in determining how the proxy should be voted. Artisan Partners generally does not take into account interests of other stakeholders of the issuer or interests the fund may have in other capacities.

When making proxy voting decisions, Artisan Partners generally adheres to proxy voting guidelines that set forth Artisan Partners' proxy voting positions on recurring issues and criteria for addressing non-recurring issues. Artisan Partners believes the guidelines, if followed, generally will result in the casting of votes in the economic best interests of the fund as shareholder. The guidelines are based on Artisan Partners' own research and analyses and the research and analyses provided by the proxy administration and research service providers engaged by Artisan Partners. The guidelines are not exhaustive and do not include all potential voting issues. Because proxy issues and the circumstances of individual companies are so varied, there are instances when Artisan Partners votes contrary to its general guidelines. Artisan Partners generally votes proxies on ESG matters on a case-by-case basis and does not have predetermined guidelines on how it will vote on ESG-related proxy issues. In addition, due to the varying regulations, customs and practices of non-US countries, Artisan Partners may vote contrary to its general guidelines in circumstances where it believes its guidelines would result in a vote inconsistent with local regulations, customs or practices.

In the following circumstances Artisan Partners typically will not vote a fund's proxy:

- Artisan Partners has concluded that voting would have no identifiable economic benefit to the fund as a share-holder, such as when the security is no longer held in the fund's portfolio or when the value of the portfolio holding is indeterminable or insignificant.
- Artisan Partners has concluded that the costs of or disadvantages resulting from voting outweigh the economic benefits of voting. For example, in some non-US jurisdictions, the sale of securities voted may be legally or practically prohibited or subject to some restrictions for some period of time, usually between the record and meeting dates ("share blocking"). Artisan Partners believes that the loss of investment flexibility resulting from share blocking generally outweighs the benefit to be gained by voting. Information about share blocking is often incomplete or contradictory. For example, the fund's custodian may effectively restrict transactions even in circumstances in which Artisan Partners believes that share blocking is not required by law. Artisan Partners relies on the custodian and on its proxy service provider to identify share blocking jurisdictions. To the extent such information is wrong, Artisan Partners could fail to vote shares that could have been voted without loss of investment flexibility, or could vote shares and then be prevented from engaging in a potentially beneficial transaction.
- The fund, in conjunction with its custodian, has not fulfilled all administrative requirements for voting proxies in foreign jurisdictions (which may be imposed a single time or may be periodic), such as providing a power of attor-

ney to the fund's local sub-custodian, due to timing of the requirement or because the costs required to obtain or produce the required documentation outweigh the benefit of voting the proxy.

- The fund, as of the record date, has loaned the securities to which the proxy relates and Artisan Partners has concluded that it is not in the best interest of the fund to recall the loan or the fund is unable to recall the loan in order to vote the securities.
- The fund so directs Artisan Partners.

Artisan Partners has engaged a primary proxy service provider to (i) make recommendations to Artisan Partners of proxy voting policies for adoption by Artisan Partners; (ii) perform research and make recommendations to Artisan Partners as to particular shareholder votes being solicited; (iii) perform the administrative tasks of receiving proxies and proxy statements, marking proxies as instructed by Artisan Partners and delivering those proxies; (iv) retain proxy voting records and information; and (v) report to Artisan Partners on its activities. The primary proxy service provider does not have the authority to vote proxies except in accordance with standing or specific instructions given to it by Artisan Partners. Artisan Partners retains final authority and fiduciary responsibility for the voting of proxies. In addition to the primary proxy service provider, Artisan Partners has engaged two other proxy service providers to perform research and make recommendations to Artisan Partners as to particular shareholder votes being solicited, and may engage one or more additional providers from time to time. In some instances for non-US companies, there may be little or no information available on matters to be voted on. In those circumstances, Artisan Partners generally follows the recommendation of its primary proxy service provider.

Artisan Partners' proxy voting committee oversees the proxy voting process, reviews this proxy voting policy at least annually, develops the guidelines, grants authority to members of the trading operations department of Artisan Partners, or such other persons as may be designated by the proxy voting committee to perform administrative services relating to proxy voting and, with respect to identified issuers (as described below) and discretionary issuers (as described in the guidelines) where there is an actual or potential conflict of interest, makes determinations as to the votes to be cast. The proxy voting committee also reviews any voting discrepancies or operational issues identified through its reconciliation process. The proxy voting committee is comprised of the persons appointed by Artisan Partners from time to time, as such may be amended from time to time. Unless otherwise noted in Artisan Partners' proxy voting policy, action by any two members of the proxy voting committee shall constitute the action of the committee. To minimize the possibility that members of the proxy voting committee could have certain potential conflicts of interest, none of the members of the proxy voting committee shall be responsible for servicing existing Artisan Partners clients or soliciting new clients.

Artisan Partners or its affiliate may have a relationship with an issuer that could pose a conflict of interest when voting the shares of that issuer on the fund's behalf. Artisan Partners will be deemed to have a potential conflict voting proxies of an issuer if: (i) Artisan Partners or its affiliate manages assets for the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer and also recommends that the fund invests in such issuer's securities; (ii) a director, trustee or officer of the issuer or an affiliate of the issuer is an employee of Artisan Partners or a director of Artisan Partners Asset Management Inc., its subsidiaries or a fund sponsored by Artisan Partners; (iii) Artisan Partners or its affiliate is actively soliciting that issuer or an affiliate of the issuer as a client and the employees who recommend, review or authorize a vote have actual knowledge of such active solicitation; (iv) a director or executive officer of the issuer has a personal relationship with an employee who recommends, reviews or authorizes the vote; or (v) another relationship or interest of Artisan Partners or an affiliate, or an employee of either of them, exists that may be affected by the outcome of the proxy vote and that is deemed to represent an actual or potential conflict for the purposes of the proxy voting policy.

Artisan Partners maintains a list of issuers with whom it believes it has a potential conflict voting proxies (the "identified issuers"). Artisan Partners' proxy voting guidelines should, in most cases, adequately address possible conflicts

of interest since those guidelines are pre-determined. However, in the event an actual or potential conflict of interest has been identified, Artisan Partners will vote in accordance with Artisan Partners proxy voting guidelines on routine or corporate administrative matters, and with respect to non-routine matters, Artisan Partners will generally vote in accordance with the determination made by the proxy voting committee, which will consider the investment team's recommended vote, any analysis available from the proxy service provider(s) and whether the proxy service provider(s) has a relationship with the issuer that could present a conflict of interest, the consistency of those recommendations with the proxy voting guidelines and any identified conflict of interest. Artisan Partners may vote in accordance with the recommendations of a proxy service provider, provided that such service provider provides research and analysis with respect to the issuer in question and the proxy voting committee has reason to believe the service provider is independent of the issuer. If the service provider does not meet those requirements, the proxy voting committee shall consider what course of action will serve the interests of Artisan Partners' clients, including the fund, consistent with Artisan Partners' obligations under applicable proxy voting rules.

**Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC.** Hotchkis & Wiley's primary responsibility is to act as a fiduciary for our clients when voting proxies. Hotchkis & Wiley evaluates and votes each proposed proxy in a manner that encourages sustainable business practices which in turn maximizes long term shareholder value. Hotchkis & Wiley's proxy policy incorporates E&S issues as well as specific voting guidelines on important governance issues. Proxy voting is core to Hotchkis & Wiley's investment process, as such, Hotchkis & Wiley's investment analysts vote each proxy. Investment analysts are responsible for voting proxies following a thorough review of the proposals and guided by Hotchkis & Wiley's internal proxy policy. The analysts draw from a variety of sources during their proprietary research process, which informs the proxy vote decision. These sources include meetings with senior management and/or board members, other industry experts/contacts, and many other means. To assist Hotchkis & Wiley's analysts in their voting, they are provided with a report that compares the company's board of directors' recommendation against Hotchkis & Wiley's proxy policy guideline recommendation and with third-party proxy research (ISS sustainability and climate benchmarks) and third-party ESG analysis (Morgan Stanley Capital International "MSCI").

There are instances such as unique client guidelines, regulatory requirements, share blocking, securities lending, or other technical limitations where Hotchkis & Wiley is unable to vote a particular proxy. In those instances where Hotchkis & Wiley does not have voting responsibility, Hotchkis & Wiley will generally forward its recommendation to such person the client designates.

Hotchkis & Wiley has a Proxy Oversight Committee that is responsible for overseeing proxy administration and conflicts of interest issues. The committee is comprised of the Chief Operating Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, the chair of the ESG Investment Oversight Group, and Managing Director of Portfolio Services. This group oversees Hotchkis & Wiley's proxy voting policies and procedures by providing an administrative framework to facilitate and monitor the exercise of such proxy voting and to fulfill the obligations of reporting and recordkeeping under the federal securities laws. This committee manages Hotchkis & Wiley's third-party proxy advisory relationship.

## PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments—J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc., GQG Partners LLC and Polen Capital Management, LLC.

**J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc.** For information regarding the proxy voting policies of J.P. Morgan, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Global Fixed Income Investments."

**GQG Partners LLC.** GQG Partners LLC ("GQG") votes proxies of companies owned by clients who have granted it voting authority and has adopted and implemented written policies and procedures governing the voting of client securities where it has such authority. GQG has retained ISS (the "voting agent") to assist in the coordination and voting of proxies.

GQG's policy is to vote proxies in the interest of maximizing value for its clients. To that end, GQG will vote in a way that it believes, consistent with its fiduciary duty, will cause the value of the issue to increase the most or decline the

least. Consideration will be given to both the short- and long-term implications of the proposal to be voted on when considering the optimal vote.

GQG's procedures are reasonably designed to assure that GQG votes every eligible share, except under certain circumstances, including restrictions imposed or impediments to voting in some foreign countries and the untimely receipt of proxy materials.

GQG's proxy voting procedures address potential conflicts of interest in connection with voting proxies. Such a conflict could arise if, for example, the company issuing proxies was affiliated with a client of GQG. Any material conflict between GQG's interests and those of a client will be resolved in the best interests of the client. In the event GQG becomes aware of such a conflict, GQG will (a) disclose the conflict and obtain the client's consent before voting its shares, (b) vote in accordance with a pre-determined policy based on the independent analysis and recommendation of GQG's voting agent or (c) make other voting arrangements consistent with its fiduciary obligations.

**Polen Capital Management, LLC.** Polen believes proxy voting is a powerful tool that allows the subadvisor the opportunity to directly influence corporate policy in a way it believes will maximize shareholder value. Polen may also leverage proxy voting matters in company management discussions to express its views and deepen its knowledge about the company. The investment team members undertake close review and consideration of all proxy votes for governance matters and shareholder proposal topics.

Polen utilizes a third-party service provider, ISS, for research and recommendations on proxy issues, and for facilitating the processing of its ultimate selections for each proxy vote. Polen specifically uses ISS's Sustainability Voting Guidelines, which support positive corporate ESG actions that promote practices that present new opportunities or mitigate related financial and reputational risks.

In voting proxies, Polen will consult ISS's Sustainability Voting Guidelines but will make an independent decision for each vote. If the investment team disagrees with ISS's recommendation, the reasons are documented.

## PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments—Sapience Investments, LLC, Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC and Huber Capital Management, LLC

**Sapience Investments, LLC.** Sapience is an independent, majority employee-owned investment management boutique. When voting proxies on behalf of clients, Sapience will vote such securities for the exclusive benefit and in the best economic interest of those clients and their beneficiaries as determined by Sapience in good faith, subject to any restrictions or directions from the client. These voting responsibilities are exercised in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Advisers Act, as well as with Sapience's fiduciary duties under applicable law to act in the best interests of its clients. Sapience's CIO or designee is ultimately responsible for monitoring corporate developments and voting proxies in the best interests of clients.

Sapience has retained an independent proxy-voting agent ("agent") for proxy voting support and recordkeeping. The agent will provide proxy voting support with regard to casting votes and maintaining voting records. The agent will vote proxies it receives from the custodians of client accounts on behalf of Sapience. However, proxies not received in a timely manner may not be voted. Under the terms of its arrangement with the agent, Sapience will generally follow the agent's proxy voting guidelines when voting proxies, but, when applicable, Sapience retains the right to vote against the agent's proxy voting policies. Sapience can instruct the agent to vote either for or against a particular proposal or Sapience can instruct the agent to seek instruction with respect to a particular type of proposal from Sapience on a case-by-case basis. The agent receives proxy ballots and statements where Sapience is authorized to vote and sorts the proposals according to Sapience's voting instructions. Proposals for which a voting decision has been pre-determined are automatically voted by the agent pursuant to voting instructions. Case-by-case voting decisions are generally made by Sapience's investment personnel. Voting records where Sapience retains proxy voting authority are maintained by the agent. Sapience will retain records that were material in making a determination of how to vote a proxy on a "case-by-case" basis or that memorializes the rationale for that decision.

On occasion, Sapience may refrain from voting a particular proxy. This may be done, for example where: (1) the cost of voting the proxy outweighs the potential benefit derived from voting; (2) a proxy is received with respect to securities that have been sold before the date of the shareholder meeting and are no longer held in a Client account; (3) the terms of an applicable securities lending agreement prevent Sapience from voting with respect to a loaned security; (4) despite reasonable efforts, Sapience receives proxy materials without sufficient time to reach an informed voting decision and vote the proxies; (5) the terms of the security or any related agreement or applicable law preclude Sapience from voting; or (6) the terms of an applicable advisory agreement reserve voting authority to the Client or another party.

Though it may not be clear how best to vote a proxy to maximize shareholder value or be able to decide with certainty, these policies are intended to provide guidance so that Sapience acts in a manner it deems to be prudent and diligent and which is intended to enhance the economic value of the client's assets.

**Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC.** KAR has adopted and implemented policies and procedures that it believes are reasonably designed to ensure that proxies are voted in the best interest of its clients, in accordance with its fiduciary duties and SEC Rule 206(4)-6 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The extent to which KAR votes proxies is governed by the agreement between KAR and its clients. Where KAR agrees to vote proxies for its clients, KAR acknowledges its responsibility to vote proxies in a manner that ensures the exclusive benefit for the underlying participants and beneficiaries. KAR casts such proxy votes for the sole purpose of extending benefits to such participants and beneficiaries while using the care, skill, and diligence that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use under the circumstances then prevailing.

KAR votes all proxies so as, in its opinion, to maximize shareholder value which is defined as long-term value accretion through dividend and price appreciation. In addition, KAR's investment philosophy is to purchase "Quality" companies for the portfolios of its clients. One of the four main criteria for "Quality" is excellence in management. Hence, KAR tends to vote non-shareholder value issues in alignment with management's recommendations, if there is no conflict with shareholder value. Absent special circumstances, it is the policy of KAR to exercise its proxy voting discretion in accordance with its Proxy Voting Guidelines. These guidelines are applicable to the voting of US and non-US proxies.

KAR utilizes ISS to administer and analyze proxy votes. In addition to analysis provided by ISS, KAR also leverages the investment management team's knowledge as part of its oversight of KAR's proxy voting policies and procedures. As part of KAR's research process, which can include reviewing regulatory filings, press releases, and industry data as well as comprehensive interviews with management and company personnel, the investment management team develops a strong understanding of the issuer. As the investment process screens for excellence in management, KAR generally believes that non-shareholder-value issues should be voted in alignment with management's recommendations as long as doing so does not present a conflict with clients' interests. While KAR's clients may utilize different voting policies, KAR believes there is no conflict between strategies because all strategies follow a singular quality focused investment strategy.

KAR generally refrains from voting proxies in the following circumstances: (a) Client maintains proxy voting authority or has delegated the right to vote proxies to a third-party other than KAR; (b) Client terminated the agreement; (c) Instances where the cost of casting a vote would not reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the value of the client's investment; (d) Securities are out on loan and transferred into the borrower's name unless the proposal is materially, financially important to the client's account, in which case KAR recalls the securities for voting; and (e) Costs in voting proxies exceeds any anticipated benefits to the client such as instances where fees include costs of traveling to a remote location, high translation costs, or paying a high fee.

**Huber Capital Management LLC.** Huber Capital Management, LLC ("HCM") has adopted and implemented policies and procedures that Huber believes are reasonably designed to ensure that proxies are voted in the best interest of clients in accordance with HCM's fiduciary duties and SEC rule 206(4)-6 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940.

#### I. Voting Procedures

#### A. Proxy Voting Service

HCM has contracted with an independent third-party to provide research on proxy matters and voting recommendations, and to cast votes on behalf of HCM. The independent third party will execute and maintain appropriate records related to the proxy voting process, and HCM will have access to those records. HCM will maintain records of differences, if any, between this policy and the actual votes cast.

HCM's oversight of the third party proxy agent includes reviews such as:

- Periodic review of proxy reports
- Periodic review of SSAE 16 or equivalent report
- Periodic review of provider Proxy Voting Guidelines
- Online access for voting, research, meeting/ballot information, and various other reports.
- Periodic review by a HCM analyst(s) of the proxy advisory firm's research, voting determinations, and/or other capabilities (which may include, for example, capacity, competency, the third party firm's methodologies, or other factors as HCM may deem relevant) along with conducting company-specific analysis.
- Review of proxy agent's Due Diligence Materials

#### **B. Proxy Voting Guidelines**

HCM typically may review the independent third party's voting recommendations. HCM may depart from the third party's recommendations if it is determined to be in the best interest of the client(s) to do so. A copy of these guidelines is attached to this policy.

In accordance with guidance issued by the SEC, HCM believes that an investment advisor that has assumed proxy voting authority for a client is not required to exercise every opportunity to vote a proxy for that client, and that there may be instances where refraining from voting may be in the best interests of a client (for example where the adviser determines, in the course of fulfilling its fiduciary duty to its client, that the cost to the client of voting exceeds the expected benefit to the client).

#### C. Conflicts of Interest

HCM seeks to minimize the potential for conflict by utilizing the services of the independent third-party to provide voting recommendations. Occasions may arise during the voting process in which the best interest of clients might conflict with the third-party vendor's interests. The third-party vendor has developed an insulated wall ("chinese wall") as security between its proxy recommendation service and the other services it provides to clients who may also be a portfolio company for which proxies are solicited.

While it is generally expected that most proxies will be voted consistent with the research provider's recommendation, there may be instances where a research analyst from the adviser's investment team believes that, under the circumstances, an issue should be voted in a manner which differs from the recommended vote. In reviewing the recommendations to determine how to vote the proxy in the best interest of clients, the research analyst may consider information from various sources such as another investment professional, management of the company conducting the proxy, shareholder groups, and other relevant sources. These

instances are considered an "override" and all such overrides must be described on the Proxy Voting Override Form and approved by the CIO and CCO. In approving any such override, the CIO and CCO will use their best judgment to ensure that the vote is cast in the best interest of the affected client(s).

#### D. Recordkeeping

The following records will be maintained:

- A copy of HCM's proxy voting policies and procedures
- Each proxy statement (the majority of which are maintained on a third-party automated system)
- The vote cast for each proxy overall as well as by portfolio
- Documentation, if any, created by HCM showing research conducted, including: calls or other contacts made, documents analyzed, persons involved in decision making process, and documentation on any conflicts of interest that arose and how it was resolved
- Verification that the shares listed on the proxy match the adviser's records, including proxies that were not received and what actions were taken to obtain them
- A copy of each written client request for proxy voting records and the adviser's written response to any client requests for such records

## PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments—Riverbridge Partners, LLC, Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc. and Calamos Advisors LLC

**Riverbridge Partners, LLC.** It is the policy of Riverbridge to vote all proxies for the exclusive benefit of the accounts whose assets we manage. For most proposals, including those often considered "ESG" proposals, those that maximize the value of portfolio securities over the long term will be approved. The purposes of these proxy voting procedures are to ensure that Riverbridge fulfills our responsibilities to clients in connection with the analysis of proposals submitted by corporate management, and others, to shareholders for approval, and properly executes and delivers proxy ballots in connection therewith.

Riverbridge utilizes the services of two proxy service firms: one for research and a second for casting votes. Securities in client accounts will be voted based on recommendations received by the proxy research firm. Their recommendations will be based on the proxy voting guidelines of Riverbridge. In order to ensure the use of the proxy service advice and execution is consistent with our fiduciary obligations, Riverbridge retains the ultimate authority in voting the proxies in client accounts; therefore, Riverbridge may override the recommendation by the proxy research firm when casting votes. When engaging proxy service firms, Riverbridge's Investment Team considers factors such as service level, ability to manage the guidelines requested by Riverbridge, research depth and reporting, pricing, automation, timeliness and the ability to execute, as applicable.

Riverbridge's Investment Team is responsible for identifying material conflicts of interest when voting proxies. Examples include voting on a security held in a company where we also manage that company's pension assets, an officer or director of a corporation in which Riverbridge invests is also a client of Riverbridge; a principal of Riverbridge has a personal relationship with an officer or director of a corporation in which Riverbridge invests that would bias Riverbridge's ability to vote without conflict, Riverbridge has a financial interest in the outcome of a proxy vote. If a conflict is identified, Riverbridge will use an independent third party to recommend how the proxy involving the conflict should be voted, solely in the interest of the client, generally meaning in the interest of maximizing portfolio assets over the long term. Riverbridge will record the security involved, the basis for the conflict and our proxy votes as they relate to this security.

**Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc.** Proxy voting is an important right of shareholders. Jacobs Levy recognizes that reasonable care and diligence must be undertaken to ensure that such rights are properly and timely exercised. When Jacobs Levy has discretion to vote the proxies of its clients, proxies will be voted in their best interests in accordance with Jacobs Levy's policies and procedures.

Unless a client has provided specific voting guidelines, Jacobs Levy will generally vote proxies in accordance with recommendations provided by ISS, a third-party provider of proxy analyses and voting recommendations. However, there are specific proxy issues that Jacobs Levy has identified with respect to which it will vote with management and others with respect to which it will vote against management. Jacobs Levy generally votes in favor of routine corporate governance proposals. Jacobs Levy's policy is generally to vote against proposals that act to entrench management. There are other circumstances in which Jacobs Levy may vote in a manner which differs from ISS's recommendation. Jacobs Levy does not typically make case-by-case judgments regarding how a proxy vote will affect a particular investment.

If a material conflict of interest arises, Jacobs Levy will determine whether voting in accordance with the voting guidelines and factors described above is in the best interests of the clients or whether some alternative action is appropriate, including, without limitation, following the ISS recommendation.

**Calamos Advisors LLC.** To assist it in voting proxies, Calamos has established a committee comprised of members of its Portfolio Management and Research Departments. The committee and/or its members will vote proxies using the following guidelines.

In general, if Calamos believes that a company's management and board have interests sufficiently aligned with the client's interest, Calamos will vote in favor of proposals recommended by the company's board. More specifically, Calamos seeks to ensure that the board of directors of a company is sufficiently aligned with security holders' interests and provides proper oversight of the company's management. In many cases this may be best accomplished by having a majority of independent board members. It will generally vote for the election of directors that would result in a board comprised of a majority of independent directors.

Because of the enormous variety and complexity of transactions that are presented to shareholders, such as mergers, acquisitions, re-incorporations, adoptions of anti-takeover measures, changes to capital structures, executive compensation, and option plans, that occur in a variety of industries, companies and market cycles, it is extremely difficult to foresee exactly what would be in the best interests of the client in all circumstances. Moreover, voting on such proposals involves considerations unique to each transaction. Accordingly, Calamos' proxy voting guidelines attempts to address these items and may vote on a case-by-case basis when proposals present such transactions.

To assist it in analyzing proxies, Calamos subscribes to Glass Lewis, an unaffiliated third-party corporate governance research service that provides in-depth analyses of shareholder meeting agendas. Glass Lewis analyzes each ballot item for Calamos and applies a vote based on Calamos proxy voting guidelines. Calamos utilizes Broadridge's Proxy Edge to manage the processes associated with voting the proxy ballot. Proxy Edge receives the voting decisions from Glass Lewis which it uses to vote the ballot shares accordingly. Calamos has established an internal proxy group that is responsible for maintaining oversight of all facets of the proxy processes. Any proxy that is not covered by the proxy voting guidelines is reviewed and considered by individuals of Calamos' proxy group and is voted in accordance with that review. Based on the instruction provided by the proxy group and/or the principles inherent in Calamos' proxy guidelines, Calamos Corporate Actions will manually vote the proxy accordingly.

Finally, Calamos has established procedures to help resolve conflicts of interests that might arise when voting proxies for clients. These procedures provide that the committee, along with Calamos' Legal and Compliance Departments, will examine conflicts of interests of which Calamos is aware with the client and seek to resolve such conflicts in the client's best interests, irrespective of any such conflict. If a member of the committee has a personal

conflict of interest, that member will refrain from voting and the remainder of the committee will determine how to vote the proxy solely on the investment merits of any proposal. The committee will then memorialize the conflict and the procedures used to address the conflict.

# PACE International Equity Investments—Mondrian Investment Partners Limited, Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated and Los Angeles Capital Management LLC

Mondrian Investment Partners Limited. Mondrian has established a Proxy Voting Committee ("the Committee") to oversee the proxy voting process and ensure client proxies are voted according to the Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures (the "Procedures"). One of the main responsibilities of the Committee is to review and approve the Procedures on a yearly basis. The Procedures are usually reviewed during the first quarter of the calendar year before the beginning of the "proxy voting season" and may also be reviewed at other times of the year, as necessary. When reviewing the Procedures, the Committee looks to see if the Procedures are designed to allow Mondrian to vote proxies in a manner consistent with the goal of voting in the best interests of clients and maximizing the value of the underlying shares being voted on by Mondrian. The Committee will also review the Procedures to make sure that they comply with any new rules promulgated by the SEC or other relevant regulatory bodies. After the Procedures are approved by the Committee, Mondrian will vote proxies or give advice on voting proxies generally in accordance with such Procedures.

Mondrian contracts with a Proxy Voting Adviser for the provision of voting advice and to facilitate the process of voting proxies. Proxy Voting Advisers commonly produce guidelines for proxy voting ("the Guidelines") that summarise their approach to voting on commonly occurring issues. The Committee reviews these Guidelines annually to determine whether voting proxies pursuant to the Guidelines is in the best interests its clients. If the Guidelines remain consistent with Mondrian's fiduciary duty and expectations for good corporate governance, Mondrian will adopt the Guidelines as the basis for its own proxy voting policy.

Mondrian may vote certain issues counter to the Guidelines if, after a thorough review, it determines that a client's best interests would be served by such a vote. In situations where the Guidelines do not cover a specific voting issue, Mondrian will vote on such issues in a manner consistent with the spirit of the Guidelines and that promotes the best interests of the client.

Mondrian authorises and instructs client custodians to forward proxy materials to Mondrian's Proxy Voting Adviser to enable them to vote the proxies. Mondrian provides the Proxy Adviser with a list of client accounts and security holdings to make the adviser aware of which proxies it will vote on. This list of clients and client holdings is regularly updated.

Each proxy motion is reviewed by a portfolio manager from the investment team responsible for research coverage of that stock. The portfolio manager considers each motion, taking into account the relevant facts and circumstances that apply to that company, the Proxy Voting Adviser's recommendation and any conflicts of interest that may exist. This includes matters to be voted on which are proposed by shareholders and proposals related to ESG, including climate change. Where voting items are more complex, the portfolio manager will conduct further research and analysis as necessary to determine the voting action that is in the best interests of the client. In conducting the review, portfolio managers consider the advice of the Proxy Voting Adviser critically and are watchful for material errors of fact or methodology, particularly where these impact the voting recommendation. Where the portfolio manager's review identifies potential errors or omissions in advice, they may conduct further research, including, but not limited to engaging with the company to gather further information, engaging with the Proxy Voting Adviser and reviewing such other Proxy Adviser's advice that may be available to Mondrian. As a result of this engagement, Proxy Voting Advisers may issue updated advice and recommendations. Any material inaccuracies, methodological weakness, potential factual errors, and deficiencies in the Proxy Voting Advisers' advice will be

addressed to them at the time, during periodic service reviews and escalated to the Committee as part of its performance evaluation.

Where Mondrian's analysis indicates that it is in the client's best interests to vote contrary to the Proxy Adviser's recommendation, the proxy motion will be referred to the Committee. The Committee will review the recommendations of the portfolio manager and the proxy voting adviser and conduct such further research and analysis as may be necessary to determine the vote that is most consistent with Mondrian's Procedures.

Mondrian has established the procedures below to manage material conflicts of interest arising from proxy voting issues.

Where Mondrian is considering voting a proxy contrary to the Proxy Adviser's recommendation, the Committee will assess the issue to see if there is any possible conflict of interest involving Mondrian. If there is no conflict of interest, the Committee will vote the proxy according to the process described in "Procedures for Voting Proxies". If at least one member of the Committee identifies a conflict of interest, the Committee will normally use another independent analyst to do additional research on the particular issue in order to make a recommendation to the Committee on how to vote the proxy in the best interests of the client. The Committee will then review the proxy voting materials and recommendation provided by the proxy voting adviser and any independent analyst to determine how to vote the issue in a manner which the Committee believes is consistent with Mondrian's Procedures. In these instances, the Committee must come to a majority decision regarding how to vote the proxy or they will be required to vote the proxy in accordance with the proxy voting adviser's recommendation.

Where proxy voting decisions are referred to the Committee, any members from investment teams that are invested in that stock will be recused from the Committee for that decision and alternates appointed in their place.

Mondrian will review, as part of its due diligence process and on an ongoing basis, that proxy voting advisers have robust policies and procedures to identify and address conflicts of interest. There are a number of oversight and compliance monitoring functions incorporated into Mondrian's Procedures to detect and assess that material conflict of interests are disclosed and monitored. The oversight function also includes due diligence procedures for appointing and monitoring Proxy Advisory Firms and Mondrian's Compliance & Risk team carries out periodic reviews to ensure that proxy votes are in accordance with its proxy voting policy and procedures.

Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated. Baird's proxy voting policies and procedures provide that Baird will typically vote proxies in accordance with the recommendations made by ISS, an independent proxy voting service, and in the best interest of clients and fund shareholders. However, because ISS' guidelines are not exhaustive, do not address all potential voting issues and do not necessarily correspond with the opinions of the portfolio managers, there may be instances where Baird may not vote strictly according to the ISS' guidelines. In such a case, Baird submits the matter to its proxy voting committee.

In situations where there is a potential conflict of interest and ISS does not provide a recommendation or there is a proxy challenge, the proxy voting committee will determine the nature and materiality of the conflict.

- If the conflict is determined to not be material, the proxy voting committee will vote the proxy in a manner the proxy voting committee believes is in the best interests of the client and without consideration of any benefit to Baird or its affiliates.
- If the potential conflict is determined to be material, the proxy voting committee will take one of the following steps to address the potential conflict:
  - (1) cast the vote in accordance with the recommendations of an independent third party, such as ISS;

- (2) refer the proxy to the client or to a fiduciary of the client for voting purposes;
- (3) suggest that the client engage another party to determine how the proxy should be voted;
- (4) if the matter is not addressed by the independent proxy voting service, vote in accordance with management's recommendation; or
- (5) abstain from voting.

Los Angeles Capital Management LLC. Los Angeles Capital has adopted and implemented proxy voting procedures that the firm believes are reasonably designed to ensure that proxies are voted in the best interests of its clients. Los Angeles Capital's Proxy Committee has primary responsibility for developing, implementing, and updating its Proxy Policy, reviewing, approving, and/or formulating all proxy guidelines, voting independent proxies on a case-by-case basis, selecting and overseeing its proxy agent, monitoring legislative and corporate governance developments surrounding proxy issues, and identifying any conflicts of interest.

Los Angeles Capital has retained Glass Lewis, an unaffiliated third-party to act as an independent voting agent ("Proxy Agent") on its behalf and provide objective proxy analysis, voting recommendations, recordkeeping, and manage other operational matters in connection with the proxy voting process. On an annual basis, Los Angeles Capital's Proxy Committee formulates the proxy voting guidelines to be implemented by the Proxy Agent. The Committee reviews the Proxy Agent's US and International Proxy Paper Guidelines. Additionally, the Committee selectively reviews a sampling of the Proxy Agent's voting recommendations and the related proxy materials in determining whether to accept or modify the Proxy Agent's and International Proxy Guidelines. Although the firm has adopted the Proxy Agent's established guidelines and has a pre-determined voting policy, the firm's Proxy Committee retains the right to customize the voting policy for those accounts where proxy voting authority has been granted to the firm. In addition, the firm retains the right to cast each vote on a case-by-case basis taking into consideration the applicable proxy guidelines including any contractual obligations, custom voting policy of the particular portfolio as well as all relevant facts and circumstances including information that might be gathered from sources beyond Glass Lewis.

Los Angeles Capital does not generally dialogue with management of an issuer with respect to pending proxy voting issues. Management of issuers, as well as other interested parties, will sometimes release information (after the proxy statement has been distributed) that relates to a pending proxy vote. The Proxy Agent will not always be able to consider that additional information depending on when it is released. Although the firm will use reasonable efforts to check for additional proxy-related communications with respect to voting its largest holdings, it will not check for those additional items for all holdings and may also not be able to consider those items depending on when the additional information is received.

The firm attempts to minimize the risks of conflicts and reviews the Conflict of Interest Statement prepared by Glass Lewis on an annual basis. If Glass Lewis identifies a potential conflict of interest between it and a publicly-held company, it will disclose the relationship on the relevant research report. If an unforeseen conflict requires specialized treatment, alternate measures may be taken, up to and including having Glass Lewis refrain from writing a Proxy Paper report on the company. In this scenario the firm's Proxy Committee may be required to research and vote the proxy.

If, during this process, the firm's Proxy Committee identifies a potential material conflict of interest between the firm or an affiliated person of the firm and that of one of its clients or prospects the issuer whose ballot is being voted, the client will be notified. If no directive is issued by the client, the firm's Proxy Committee will vote in such a way that, in the Committee's opinion, fairly addresses the conflict in the best interest of the client.

## PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments—William Blair Investment Management, LLC, RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC and ARGA Investment Management, LP.

William Blair Investment Management, LLC. William Blair shall vote the proxies of its clients solely in the best interest of their participants and beneficiaries and for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to them, and shall not place William Blair's own interests ahead of the interests of its clients. William Blair shall act with the care, skill, prudence and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. William Blair is not responsible for voting proxies it does not receive in a timely manner. However, William Blair will make reasonable efforts to obtain missing proxies. For clients participating in a securities lending program via their custodian, William Blair will not be eligible to vote proxies for the portion of shares on loan.

William Blair has adopted the Voting Guidelines of an independent proxy advisory firm (the "Proxy Administrator"). All proxies are reviewed by the Proxy Administrator, subject to the requirement that all votes shall be cast solely in the best interest of the clients in their capacity as shareholders of a company. The Proxy Administrator votes the proxies according to the Voting Guidelines, which are designed to address matters typically arising in proxy votes. In instances where William Blair has implemented a client provided proxy voting policy, William Blair will vote in accordance with the client's policy at all times even if the client's policy is inconsistent with William Blair's vote. In addition, if a client expressly directs in writing how an issue should be voted, William Blair will cast the vote with respect to such issue in the manner directed by the client. In the case when nominee voting is not allowed it may be impractical for William Blair to participate in those particular votes.

William Blair does not intend the Voting Guidelines to be exhaustive; hundreds of issues appear on proxy ballots and it is neither practical nor productive to fashion a guideline for each. Rather, the Voting Guidelines are intended to cover the most significant and frequent proxy issues that arise. For issues not covered or to be voted on a "Caseby-Case" basis by the Voting Guidelines, the Proxy Administrator will consult the Proxy Committee. In addition, portfolio managers and analysts covering specific companies are responsible for monitoring significant corporate developments, including proxy proposals submitted to shareholders and notifying the Proxy Committee of circumstances where the interests of William Blair's clients may warrant a vote contrary to the Voting Guidelines. In such instances, the portfolio manager or analyst will submit a written rationale to the Proxy Committee. In each case, the Proxy Committee will review the issues and will vote each proxy based on information from the company, internal analysts and third party research sources, in the best interests of the clients in their capacity as shareholders of a company. The Proxy Committee consists of certain representatives from the Investment Management Department, including management, portfolio manager(s), analyst(s), operations, as well as a representative from the Compliance Department. The Proxy Committee reviews the Proxy Voting Policy and procedures annually and shall revise its quidelines as events warrant.

#### **Conflicts of Interest Policy**

William Blair is sensitive to conflicts of interest that may arise in the proxy decision-making process and has identified the following potential conflicts of interest:

- An affiliate of William Blair has received investment banking compensation from the company in the preceding 12 months or anticipates receiving investment banking compensation in the next three months
- A principal or employee of William Blair or an affiliate currently serves on the company's Board of Directors
- William Blair, its principals, employees and affiliates, in the aggregate, own 1% or more of the company's outstanding shares
- The Company is a client of William Blair

In the event that any of the above potential conflicts of interest arise, or the Proxy Committee otherwise determines that a potential conflict of interest exists, the Proxy Committee will vote all proxies for that company in the following manner:

- If the Voting Guidelines indicate a vote "For" or "Against" a specific issue William Blair will continue to vote according to the Voting Guidelines
- If the Voting Guidelines have no recommendation or indicate a vote on a "Case-by-Case" basis, William Blair will vote consistent with the voting recommendation provided by the Proxy Administrator

#### Oversight of Proxy Administrator

William Blair believes that contracting with the Proxy Administrator to provide services including:

- Providing research and analysis regarding the matters subject to a vote
- Promulgating general voting guidelines
- Making voting recommendations on specific matters subject to vote

can reduce burdens for William Blair and potentially reduce costs for William Blair clients as compared to conducting them in-house.

The Proxy Administrator assists William Blair with voting execution, including through an electronic vote management system that allows the Proxy Administrator to:

- populate William Blair's votes shown on the Proxy Administrator's electronic voting platform with the Proxy Administrator's recommendations based on William Blair's voting instructions to the firm ("pre-population"), and
- automatically submit William Blair's votes to be counted ("automated voting").

William Blair shall provide reasonable oversight of the Proxy Administrator. In providing oversight, William Blair will seek to ascertain whether the Proxy Administrator has the capacity and competency to adequately analyze proxy issues. Specific oversight responsibilities will include the following:

- On at least an annual basis, the Proxy Committee will assess:
  - Whether the Proxy Administrator has the competency and capacity to adequately analyze the matters for which William Blair is responsible for voting, including the adequacy and quality of the Proxy Administrator's staffing, personnel and technology
  - Assess whether the Proxy Administrator has adequate policies and procedures to:
    - Enable it to make proxy voting recommendations based on current and accurate information, including whether it has an effective process for seeking timely input from issuers and its clients with respect to, for example, its proxy voting policies, methodologies, and peer group constructions, including for "say-on-pay" votes

- If peer group constructions are a component of the evaluation does the Proxy Administrator incorporate appropriate input in formulating its methodologies for construction of peer groups, including taking into account unique characteristics of the issuer including, to the extent available,
  - The issuer's size
  - Its governance structure
  - Its industry and any particular practices unique to that industry
  - Its history
  - Its financial performance
- Identify and address conflicts of interest relating to its voting recommendations, including:
  - Conflicts relating to the provision of proxy voting recommendations and proxy voting services generally
  - Conflicts relating to activities other than proxy voting recommendations and proxy voting services generally
  - Conflicts presented by certain affiliations, including whether a third party with significant influence over the Proxy Administrator has taken a position on a particular voting issue or voting issues more generally
- Are the Proxy Administrator's methodologies used in formulating recommendations adequately disclosed such that William Blair can understand the factors underlying the recommendation
- Identify the nature of any third-party information sources the Proxy Administrator uses as a basis for its recommendations and when and how it engages with issuers and third parties
- Provide adequate disclosure of the Proxy Administrator's actual and potential conflicts of interest with respect to the services it provides to William Blair, including whether the Proxy Administrator has provided consulting services to an issuer, and, if so, any compensation paid or whether a proponent of a shareholder proposal or an affiliate of the proponent is or has been a client of the Proxy Administrator
- William Blair personnel responsible for the administration of proxy voting shall periodically review a sample of votes recommended by the Proxy Administrator for consistency with the Voting Guidelines and report any inconsistencies to the Proxy Committee. The sample should include proxy votes that relate to proposals that may require more issuer-specific analysis (e.g. mergers and acquisitions, dissolutions, conversions or consolidations), to assist in evaluating whether William Blair's voting determinations are consistent with its voting policies and procedures and in its clients' best interest.
- William Blair personnel shall periodically review a sample of votes before the votes are cast for consistency with these procedures and client best interest which may include:
  - A sample of "pre-populated" votes
  - A sample of "automated votes"

- Consideration of additional information that becomes available regarding a particular proposal after or around the same time that William Blair's votes have been pre-populated but before the submission deadline for proxies to be voted at the shareholder meeting, which may include an issuer or shareholder proponent's additional definitive proxy materials or other information conveyed to William Blair that could reasonably be expected to affect William Blair's voting determination
- Matters where William Blair's policies do not address how it should vote a particular matter, or whether the matter is highly contested or controversial
- William Blair personnel responsible for proxy voting shall periodically assess the extent to which potential factual errors, potential incompleteness, or potential methodological weaknesses in the Proxy Administrator's analysis (that the investment advisor becomes aware of and deems credible and relevant to its voting determinations) materially affected the Proxy Administrator's research or recommendations that the investment advisor utilized.
- William Blair personnel responsible for proxy voting shall periodically inquire whether the Proxy Administrator has learned that any recommendation was based on a factual errors, potential incompleteness, or potential methodological weaknesses in the Proxy Administrator's analysis, and, if so, William Blair shall investigate the factual errors, potential incompleteness, or potential methodological weaknesses and evaluate whether the Proxy Administrator is taking steps to mitigate making such errors in the future and report any such errors, as well as their resolution to the Proxy committee
- William Blair personnel responsible for proxy voting shall consider the effectiveness of the Proxy Administrator's policies and procedures for obtaining current and accurate information relevant to matters included in its research and on which it makes voting recommendations. As part of this assessment, William Blair should consider the following:
  - The Proxy Administrator's engagement with issuers, including the firm's process for ensuring that it has complete and accurate information about the issuer and each particular matter, and the firm's process, if any, for investment advisors to access the issuer's views about the firm's voting recommendations in a timely and efficient manner
  - The Proxy Administrator's efforts to correct any identified material deficiencies in the proxy advisory firm's analysis
  - The Proxy Administrator's disclosure regarding the sources of information and methodologies used in formulating voting recommendations or executing voting instructions
  - The Proxy Administrator's consideration of factors unique to a specific issuer or proposal when evaluating a matter subject to a shareholder vote
- William Blair personnel responsible for proxy voting shall require the Proxy Administrator to update on business changes that may impact the Proxy Administrator's capacity and competency to provide proxy voting advice or conflict of interest policies and procedures

#### **International Markets and Share Blocking Policy**

In some cases proxy votes cast by William Blair for clients may be rejected in certain markets. Some non-US markets have additional requirements for custodians in order to process votes in those markets. Two specific cases include Power of Attorney documentation and Split Voting. Power of Attorney documentation authorizes a local agent to facilitate the voting instruction on behalf of the client in the local market. If the appropriate documentation is not available for use, a vote instruction may be rejected. Split Voting occurs when a custodian utilizes an omnibus

account to aggregate multiple customer accounts for voting into a single voting record. If one portion of the holdings would like to vote in one manner ("FOR") and another portion would like to vote in another manner ("AGAINST"), the custodian needs to ensure they are authorized to split the vote for an agenda item in certain markets.

In international markets where share blocking applies, William Blair typically will not, but reserve the right to, vote proxies due to liquidity constraints. Share blocking is the "freezing" of shares for trading purposes at the custodian/sub-custodian bank level in order to vote proxies. Share blocking typically takes place between 1 and 20 days before an upcoming shareholder meeting, depending on the market. While shares are frozen, they may not be traded. Therefore, the potential exists for a pending trade to fail if trade settlement falls on a date during the blocking period. William Blair shall not subordinate the interests of participants and beneficiaries to unrelated objectives.

#### **Recordkeeping and Disclosure**

Pursuant to this policy, William Blair will retain: 1) the Proxy Voting Policy Statement and Procedures; 2) all proxy statements received regarding client securities 3) records of all votes cast on behalf of clients; 4) records of client requests for proxy voting information, and 5) any documents prepared by William Blair that are material to making a decision how to vote, or that memorialize the basis for the decision.

Upon a client's request to the Proxy Administrator, William Blair will make available to its clients a report on proxy votes cast on their behalf. These proxy-voting reports will demonstrate William Blair's compliance with its responsibilities and will facilitate clients' monitoring of how their securities were voted.

The Proxy Voting Policy Statement and Procedures will be provided with each advisory contract and will also be described and provided with William Blair's Form ADV, Part 2A. With respect to the William Blair Funds, the policies and procedures used to determine how to vote proxies relating to securities held in their portfolios will be reflected in the Statement of Additional Information.

**RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC.** Redwheel's policy and procedures for voting proxies applies to those client accounts for which Redwheel provides discretionary investment management services for and for which authority to vote such proxies has been granted to it via the applicable investment advisory agreement. The policy and procedures are reasonably designed to ensure that proxies are voted in the best interests of those client accounts, as determined by Redwheel in good faith after appropriate review.

The decision to vote proxies resides with the relevant investment management team within Redwheel. These teams will utilize their knowledge of the issuer company, including meetings with management, in reaching a voting decision that will be in the best interests of the client. The investment management teams also have recourse to ISS, an independent advisory firm, who may provide research and voting recommendations. Redwheel is not, however, obligated in any way to follow such recommendation if it does not feel it would be in the clients' best interests. In addition to research, Redwheel may utilize ISS for vote execution, reporting and record keeping.

Inherent in its obligations under this policy, Redwheel will seek to identify and effectively manage any actual or potential conflicts of interest that may arise by virtue of its authority to vote proxies on behalf of its clients. Redwheel maintains a register of conflicts and has procedures in place to ensure their effective management. In the management of conflicts, Redwheel has a range of actions at its disposal, including, but not limited to, the removal of a conflicted individual from participating in or having an influence on the evaluation of a proxy vote or following the voting recommendation of an independent third party advisory firm such as ISS. Appropriate records are retained to evidence the rationale behind all voting decisions.

As an investment advisor investing in markets globally, Redwheel may find that, due to local market customs, its ability to vote proxies in certain jurisdictions could either be restricted or entails significant costs. As such, voting in

such jurisdictions is done on a best endeavors basis after due consideration of the various contributing factors by the investment management team.

**ARGA Investment Management, LP.** ARGA's objective in voting proxies is to maximize shareholder value and to vote proxies in a manner that reflects the best long-term, economic interest of its clients. In doing so, ARGA follows any voting guidelines issued by clients, so long as these guidelines are consistent with ARGA's duties under applicable law, including ERISA. ARGA's proxy voting guidelines are the same for all clients, as long as a client has delegated ARGA with the authority to vote proxies on their behalf.

ARGA has implemented extensive procedures to ensure all proxies are received, analyzed and voted in a timely manner. In addition to information derived from ARGA's in-depth research and ongoing company analyses, ARGA utilizes the services of a third party proxy advisory firm, Glass Lewis, to obtain supplementary research and impartial analysis prior to voting and to administer the proxy voting process. ARGA retains responsibility for instructing Glass Lewis how to vote and still applies its proxy voting guidelines when voting proxies on behalf of clients through Glass Lewis. This includes rejecting the advice of Glass Lewis in circumstances where ARGA determines doing so is in the best interest of clients.

#### **Proxy Voting Guidelines**

The decision to vote in support or opposition of a proposal is based on the specific circumstances described in the proxy statement and other available information. Generally, ARGA votes in favor of routine proposals that increase shareholder value, improve the management of a company, and maintain or increase shareholder rights and influence over a company's board and management. Moral or social issues are generally voted based on the economic impact of the proposal. In cases where the economic impact is not clear, a vote to "abstain" may be appropriate. Financial and corporate governance issues take more time to consider and may be complicated by activities such as hostile takeovers and mergers. ARGA generally votes in favor of the following types of proposals:

- Election of competent, qualified directors that support the board's independence and ensures its diversity
- Reasonable incentive compensation plans for certain key employees and directors
- Mandatory retirement age for directors
- Confidential voting, cumulative voting, proposals to lower barriers to shareholder action
- Proposals to restore shareholder ability to remove directors with or without cause
- Appointment of external auditors that provide competent advice, avoid conflicts of interest and uphold the transparency and integrity of financial reporting
- Compensation plans that align executives and directors with long-term sustainability targets

ARGA generally votes against the following types of financial and corporate governance proposals:

- Board entrenchment proposals and anti-takeover measures, such as "poison pill" and "golden parachute" provisions
- Compensation plans that are not aligned with shareholder interest
- Limitations on shareholder ability to act, blank check preferred stock authorizations, eliminating cumulative voting rights, and proposals to adopt classified boards

ARGA generally votes for proposals that increase the level of oversight and improve environmental and social practices. For example:

- Appointments of directors/board level committees charged with oversight of environmental and social issues
- Increased disclosure and documentation of environmental and social policy
- Implementation of ESG targets that are deemed to have a positive long-term impact on company sustainability

ARGA generally votes against the following types of proposals:

- Policies that directly contravene industry environmental and social standards and that put a company at risk of litigation
- Policies that violate human rights legislation or are likely to have a detrimental impact on the safety of employees
- Decreased transparency and reporting.

#### **Conflicts of Interest**

ARGA's proxy voting policies provide guidelines for dealing with actual or potential conflicts of interest, when identified. These include informing clients and seeking their consent or instructions, or addressing the issue through other objective means, such as deferring to the recommendation of ARGA's independent third-party advisory firm, Glass Lewis.

Glass Lewis itself has implemented Conflict Management Procedures to avoid and manage (if unavoidable) conflicts of interest arising between an issuer and Glass Lewis. For example, Glass Lewis requires any employee who serves as an executive or director of a public company to disclose the conflicts and abstain from any involvement in the research, analysis or making of any vote recommendations for such company.

#### Limitations on ARGA's Proxy Voting Obligations

In certain situations, ARGA may not vote client proxies or may abstain from voting. For example:

- ARGA will not vote proxies of behalf of a client where the client has reserved the right to vote proxies itself or has delegated the right to vote to a third party.
- ARGA will not vote proxies on behalf of a client after the effective termination date of ARGA's investment advisory agreement with such client.
- ARGA may abstain from voting proxies in circumstances where ARGA determines doing so would have no identifiable economic benefit to the client, such as when the security is no longer held in the client's portfolio or when the value of the portfolio holdings is insignificant.
- ARGA may abstain from voting a client's proxy when the cost or disadvantage resulting from voting, in ARGA's
  judgment, outweighs the economic benefits of voting. For example, in some non-US jurisdictions, the sale of
  securities voted may be prohibited for some period of time, usually between the record date and meeting date
  ("share blocking"). In general, ARGA believes that the loss of investment flexibility resulting from share blocking
  outweighs the benefit to be gained by voting.

- ARGA does not offer a securities lending service. Proxies for securities on loan through securities lending programs will generally not be voted, as ARGA's clients (not ARGA) control these securities lending decisions (unless the client calls the securities back to permit the exercise of such rights).
- ARGA may not be able to vote proxies due to circumstances beyond ARGA's control such as a regional disaster, business continuity or cyber event involving ARGA, ARGA's proxy advisory firm or client custodians, which may prevent proxies from being voted on time, or errors and circumstances not attributable to, and beyond, ARGA's control.

## PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments—Massachusetts Financial Services Company, doing business as MFS Investment Management.

MFS Investment Management and its subsidiaries that perform discretionary investment activities (collectively, "MFS") have adopted proxy voting policies and procedures ("MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures") with respect to securities owned by the clients for which MFS serves as investment adviser and has been delegated the power to vote proxies on behalf of such clients. These clients include pooled investment vehicles sponsored by MFS (an "MFS Fund" or collectively, the "MFS Funds").

MFS's approach to proxy voting is guided by the overall principle that proxy voting decisions are made in what MFS believes to be the best long-term economic interests of MFS's clients, and not in the interests of any other party, including company management, or in MFS' corporate interests, including interests such as the distribution of MFS Fund shares and institutional client relationships. The Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures include voting guidelines that govern how MFS generally will vote on specific matters as well as how MFS monitors potential material conflicts of interest on the part of MFS that could arise in connection with the voting of proxies on behalf of MFS' clients. The following is a summary of MFS' Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures and does not contain these voting guidelines. The MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures (which includes the proxy voting guidelines) are available on www mfs.com.

#### MFS's approach to proxy voting is guided by the following additional principles:

- 1. Consistency in application of the policy across multiple client portfolios: While MFS generally votes consistently on the same matter when securities of an issuer are held by multiple client portfolios, MFS may vote differently on the matter for different client portfolios under certain circumstances. For example, MFS may vote differently for a client portfolio if MFS has received explicit voting instructions to vote differently from such client for its own account. Likewise, MFS may vote differently if the portfolio management team responsible for a particular client account believes that a different voting instruction is in the best long-term economic interest of such account.
- 2. Consistency in application of policy across shareholder meetings in most instances: As a general matter, MFS seeks to vote consistently on similar proxy proposals across all shareholder meetings. However, as many proxy proposals (e.g., mergers, acquisitions, and environmental, social and governance shareholder proposals) are analyzed on a case-by-case basis in light of all the relevant facts and circumstances of the issuer and proposal MFS may vote similar proposals differently at different shareholder meetings. In addition, MFS also reserves the right to override the guidelines with respect to a particular proxy proposal when such an override is, in MFS' best judgment, consistent with the overall principle of voting proxies in the best long-term economic interests of MFS' clients.
- **3.** Consideration of company specific context and informed by engagement: As noted above MFS will seek to consider a company's specific context in determining its voting decision. Where there are significant, complex or unusual voting items MFS may seek to engage with a company before making the vote to fur-

ther inform MFS's decision. Where sufficient progress has not been made on a particular issue of engagement, MFS may determine a vote against management may be warranted to reflect MFS's concerns and influence for change in the best long-term economic interests of MFS's clients.

- **4. Clear decisions to best support issuer processes and decision making:** To best support improved issuer decision making MFS strives to generally provide clear decisions by voting either For or Against each item. MFS may however vote to Abstain in certain situations if MFS believes a vote either For or Against may produce a result not in the best long-term economic interests of MFS's clients.
- 5. Transparency in approach and implementation: In addition to the publication of the MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures on MFS's website, MFS is open to communicating MFS's vote intention with companies, including ahead of the annual meeting. MFS may do this proactively where MFS wishes to make MFS's view or corresponding rationale clearly known to the company. MFS's voting data is reported to clients upon request and publicly on a quarterly and annual basis on MFS's website (under Proxy Voting Records & Reports). For more information about reporting on MFS's proxy voting activities, please refer to the "Reports" section below.

#### **Governance of Proxy Voting Activities**

From time to time, MFS may receive comments on the MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures from its clients. These comments are carefully considered by MFS when it reviews these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures and revises them as appropriate, in MFS' sole judgment.

#### 1. MFS Proxy Voting Committee

The administration of these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures is overseen by the MFS Proxy Voting Committee, which includes senior personnel from the MFS Legal and Global Investment and Client Support Departments as well as members of the investment team. The Proxy Voting Committee does not include individuals whose primary duties relate to client relationship management, marketing, or sales. The MFS Proxy Voting Committee:

- a. Reviews these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures at least annually and recommends any amendments considered to be necessary or advisable;
- b. Determines whether any potential material conflict of interest exists with respect to instances in which MFS (i) seeks to override these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures; (ii) votes on <u>ballot items not governed by</u> these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures; (iii) evaluates an excessive executive compensation issue in relation to the election of directors; or (iv) requests a vote recommendation from an MFS portfolio manager or investment analyst (e.g., mergers and acquisitions);
- c. Considers special proxy issues as they may arise from time to time; and
- d. Determines engagement priorities and strategies with respect to MFS' proxy voting activities

The day-to-day application of the MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures are conducted by the MFS stewardship team led by MFS' Director of Global Stewardship. The stewardship team are members of MFS' investment team.

#### 2. Potential Conflicts of Interest

These policies and procedures are intended to address any potential material conflicts of interest on the part of MFS or its subsidiaries that are likely to arise in connection with the voting of proxies on behalf of MFS' clients. If such potential material conflicts of interest do arise, MFS will analyze, document and report on such potential material conflicts of interest (see below) and shall ultimately vote the relevant ballot items in what MFS believes to be the best long-term economic interests of its clients. The MFS Proxy Voting Committee is responsible for monitoring and reporting with respect to such potential material conflicts of interest.

The MFS Proxy Voting Committee is responsible for monitoring potential material conflicts of interest on the part of MFS or its subsidiaries that could arise in connection with the voting of proxies on behalf of MFS' clients. Due to the client focus of MFS's investment management business, MFS believes that the potential for actual material conflict of interest issues is small. Nonetheless, MFS has developed precautions to assure that all votes are cast in the best long-term economic interest of its clients.¹ Other MFS internal policies require all MFS employees to avoid actual and potential conflicts of interests between personal activities and MFS' client activities. If an employee (including investment professionals) identifies an actual or potential conflict of interest with respect to any voting decision (including the ownership of securities in their individual portfolio), then that employee must recuse himself/herself from participating in the voting process. Any significant attempt by an employee of MFS or its subsidiaries to unduly influence MFS' voting on a particular proxy matter should also be reported to the MFS Proxy Voting Committee.

In cases where ballots are voted in accordance with these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures, no material conflict of interest will be deemed to exist. In cases where (i) MFS is considering overriding these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures, (ii) matters presented for vote are not governed by these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures, (iii) MFS evaluates a potentially excessive executive compensation issue in relation to the election of directors or advisory pay or severance package vote, or (iv) a vote recommendation is requested from an MFS portfolio manager or investment analyst (e.g., mergers and acquisitions); (collectively, "Non-Standard Votes"); the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will follow these procedures:

- a. Compare the name of the issuer of such ballot or the name of the shareholder making such proposal against a list of significant current (i) distributors of MFS Fund shares, and (ii) MFS institutional clients (the "MFS Significant Distributor and Client List");
- b. If the name of the issuer does not appear on the MFS Significant Distributor and Client List, then no material conflict of interest will be deemed to exist, and the proxy will be voted as otherwise determined by the MFS Proxy Voting Committee;
- c. If the name of the issuer appears on the MFS Significant Distributor and Client List, then the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will be apprised of that fact and each member of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee (with the participation of MFS' Conflicts Officer) will carefully evaluate the proposed vote in order to ensure that the proxy ultimately is voted in what MFS believes to be the best long-term economic interests of MFS' clients, and not in MFS' corporate interests; and
- d. For all potential material conflicts of interest identified under clause (c) above, the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will document: the name of the issuer, the issuer's relationship to MFS, the analysis of the matters submitted for proxy vote, the votes as to be cast and the reasons why the MFS Proxy Voting Committee determined that the votes were cast in the best long-term economic interests of MFS' clients, and not in MFS' corporate interests. A copy of the foregoing documentation will be provided to MFS' Conflicts Officer.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> For clarification purposes, note that MFS votes in what MFS believes to be the best, long-term economic interest of MFS's clients entitled to vote at the shareholder meeting, regardless of whether other MFS clients hold "short" positions in the same issuer or whether other MFS clients hold an interest in the company that is not entitled to vote at the shareholder meeting (e.g., bond holder).

The members of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee are responsible for creating and maintaining the MFS Significant Distributor and Client List, in consultation with MFS' distribution and institutional business units. The MFS Significant Distributor and Client List will be reviewed and updated periodically, as appropriate.

For instances where MFS is evaluating a director nominee who also serves as a director/trustee of the MFS Funds, then the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will adhere to the procedures described in section (c) above regardless of whether the portfolio company appears on MFS's Significant Distributor and Client List. In doing so, the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will adhere to such procedures for all Non-Standard Votes at the company's shareholder meeting at which the director nominee is standing for election.

If an MFS client has the right to vote on a matter submitted to shareholders by Sun Life Financial, Inc. or any of its affiliates (collectively "Sun Life"), MFS will cast a vote on behalf of such MFS client as such client instructs or in the event that a client instruction is unavailable pursuant to the recommendations of ISS's benchmark policy, or as required by law. Likewise, if an MFS client has the right to vote on a matter submitted to shareholders by a public company for which an MFS Fund director/trustee serves as an executive officer, MFS will cast a vote on behalf of such MFS client as such client instructs or in the event that client instruction is unavailable pursuant to the recommendations of ISS or as required by law.

#### 3. Review of Policy

The MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures are available on www.mfs.com and may be accessed by both MFS' clients and the companies in which MFS' clients invest. The MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures are reviewed by the Proxy Voting Committee annually. From time to time, MFS may receive comments on the MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures from its clients. These comments are carefully considered by MFS when it reviews these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures and revises them as appropriate, in MFS' sole judgment.

#### Other Administrative Matters & Use of Proxy Advisory Firms

#### 1. Use of Proxy Advisory Firms

MFS, on behalf of itself and certain of its clients (including the MFS Funds) has entered into an agreement with an independent proxy administration firm pursuant to which the proxy administration firm performs various proxy vote related administrative services such as vote processing and recordkeeping functions. Except as noted below, the proxy administration firm for MFS and its clients, including the MFS Funds, is ISS. The proxy administration firm for MFS Development Funds, LLC is Glass Lewis; Glass Lewis and ISS are each hereinafter referred to as the "Proxy Administrator").

The Proxy Administrator receives proxy statements and proxy ballots directly or indirectly from various custodians, logs these materials into its database and matches upcoming meetings with MFS Fund and client portfolio holdings, which are inputted into the Proxy Administrator's system by an MFS holdings data-feed. The Proxy Administrator then reconciles a list of all MFS accounts that hold shares of a company's stock and the number of shares held on the record date by these accounts with the Proxy Administrator's list of any upcoming shareholder's meeting of that company. If a proxy ballot has not been received, the Proxy Administrator and/or MFS may contact the client's custodian requesting the reason as to why a ballot has not been received. Through the use of the Proxy Administrator system, ballots and proxy material summaries for all upcoming shareholders' meetings are available on-line to certain MFS employees and members of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee.

MFS also receives research reports and vote recommendations from proxy advisory firms. These reports are only one input among many in MFS's voting analysis, which includes other sources of information such as proxy materials, company engagement discussions, other third-party research and data. MFS has due dili-

gence procedures in place to help ensure that the research MFS receives from MFS's proxy advisory firms is materially accurate and that MFS addresses any material conflicts of interest involving these proxy advisory firms. This due diligence includes an analysis of the adequacy and quality of the advisory firm staff, its conflict of interest policies and procedures and independent audit reports. MFS also reviews the proxy policies, methodologies and peer-group-composition methodology of MFS's proxy advisory firms at least annually. Additionally, MFS also receives reports from MFS's proxy advisory firms regarding any violations or changes to conflict of interest procedures.

#### 2. Analyzing and Voting Proxies

Proxies are voted in accordance with these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures. The Proxy Administrator, at the prior direction of MFS, automatically votes all proxy matters that do not require the particular exercise of discretion or judgment with respect to these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures as determined by MFS. In these circumstances, if the Proxy Administrator, based on MFS' prior direction, expects to vote against management with respect to a proxy matter and MFS becomes aware that the issuer has filed or will file additional soliciting materials sufficiently in advance of the deadline for casting a vote at the meeting, MFS will consider such information when casting its vote. With respect to proxy matters that require the particular exercise of discretion or judgment, the MFS Proxy Voting Committee or its representatives considers and votes on those proxy matters. In analyzing all proxy matters, MFS uses a variety of materials and information, including, but not limited to, the issuer's proxy statement and other proxy solicitation materials (including supplemental materials), MFS's own internal research and research and recommendations provided by other third parties (including research of the Proxy Administrator). As described herein, MFS may also determine that it is beneficial in analyzing a proxy voting matter for members of the Proxy Voting Committee or its representatives to engage with the company on such matter. MFS also uses its own internal research, the research of Proxy Administrators and/or other third party research tools and vendors to identify (i) circumstances in which a board may have approved an executive compensation plan that is excessive or poorly aligned with the portfolio company's business or its shareholders, (ii) environmental, social and governance proposals that warrant further consideration, or (iii) circumstances in which a company is not in compliance with local governance or compensation best practices. Representatives of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee review, as appropriate, votes cast to ensure conformity with these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures.

For certain types of votes (e.g. mergers and acquisitions, proxy contests and capitalization matters), MFS' stewardship team will seek a recommendation from the MFS investment analyst that is responsible for analyzing the company and/or portfolio managers that holds the security in their portfolio.<sup>3</sup> For certain other votes that require a case-by-case analysis per these policies (e.g., potentially excessive executive compensation issues, or certain shareholder proposals), the stewardship team will likewise consult with MFS investment analysts and/or portfolio managers.<sup>2</sup> However, the MFS Proxy Voting Committee will ultimately be responsible for the manner in which all ballots are voted.

As noted above, MFS reserves the right to override the guidelines when such an override is, in MFS' best judgment, consistent with the overall principle of voting proxies in the best long-term economic interests of MFS' clients. Any such override of the guidelines shall be analyzed, documented and reported in accordance with the procedures set forth in these policies.

In accordance with its contract with MFS, the Proxy Administrator also generates a variety of reports for the MFS Proxy Voting Committee and makes available on-line various other types of information so that the MFS

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> From time to time, due to travel schedules and other commitments, an appropriate portfolio manager or research analyst may not be available to provide a vote recommendation. If such a recommendation cannot be obtained within a reasonable time prior to the cut-off date of the shareholder meeting, the MFS Proxy Voting Committee may determine to abstain from voting.

Proxy Voting Committee or its representatives may review and monitor the votes cast by the Proxy Administrator on behalf of MFS' clients.

For those markets that utilize a "record date" to determine which shareholders are eligible to vote, MFS generally will vote all eligible shares pursuant to these guidelines regardless of whether all (or a portion of) the shares held by MFS's clients have been sold prior to the meeting date.

#### 3. Securities Lending

From time to time, certain MFS Funds may participate in a securities lending program. In the event MFS or its agent receives timely notice of a shareholder meeting for a US security, MFS and its agent will attempt to recall any securities on loan before the meeting's record date so that MFS will be entitled to vote these shares. However, there may be instances in which MFS is unable to timely recall securities on loan for a US security, in which cases MFS will not be able to vote these shares. MFS will report to the appropriate board of the MFS Funds those instances in which MFS is not able to timely recall the loaned securities. MFS generally does not recall non-US securities on loan because there may be insufficient advance notice of proxy materials, record dates, or vote cut-off dates to allow MFS to timely recall the shares in certain markets on an automated basis. As a result, non-US securities that are on loan will not generally be voted. If MFS receives timely notice of what MFS determines to be an unusual, significant vote for a non-US security whereas MFS shares are on loan and determines that voting is in the best long-term economic interest of shareholders, then MFS will attempt to timely recall the loaned shares.

#### 4. Potential impediments to voting

In accordance with local law or business practices, some companies or custodians prevent the sale of shares that have been voted for a certain period beginning prior to the shareholder meeting and ending on the day following the meeting ("share blocking"). Depending on the country in which a company is domiciled, the blocking period may begin a stated number of days prior or subsequent to the meeting (e.g., one, three or five days) or on a date established by the company. While practices vary, in many countries the block period can be continued for a longer period if the shareholder meeting is adjourned and postponed to a later date. Similarly, practices vary widely as to the ability of a shareholder to have the "block" restriction lifted early (e.g., in some countries shares generally can be "unblocked" up to two days prior to the meeting whereas in other countries the removal of the block appears to be discretionary with the issuer's transfer agent). Due to these restrictions, MFS must balance the benefits to its clients of voting proxies against the potentially serious portfolio management consequences of a reduced flexibility to sell the underlying shares at the most advantageous time. For companies in countries with share blocking periods or in markets where some custodians may block shares, the disadvantage of being unable to sell the stock regardless of changing conditions generally outweighs the advantages of voting at the shareholder meeting for routine items. Accordingly, MFS will not vote those proxies in the absence of an unusual, significant vote that outweighs the disadvantage of being unable to sell the stock.

From time to time, governments may impose economic sanctions which may prohibit MFS from transacting business with certain companies or individuals. These sanctions may also prohibit the voting of proxies at certain companies or on certain individuals. In such instances, MFS will not vote at certain companies or on certain individuals if it determines that doing so is in violation of the sanctions.

In limited circumstances, other market specific impediments to voting shares may limit MFS's ability to cast votes, including, but not limited to, late delivery of proxy materials, untimely vote cut-off dates, power of attorney and share re-registration requirements, or any other unusual voting requirements. In these limited instances, MFS votes securities on a best-efforts basis in the context of the guidelines described above.

#### Engagement

As part of its approach to stewardship MFS engages with companies in which it invests on a range of priority issues. Where sufficient progress has not been made on a particular issue of engagement, MFS may determine a vote against management may be warranted to reflect MFS's concerns and influence for change in the best long-term economic interests of MFS's clients.

MFS may determine that it is appropriate and beneficial to engage in a dialogue or written communication with a company or other shareholders specifically regarding certain matters on the company's proxy statement that are of concern to shareholders, including environmental, social and governance matters. This may be to discuss and build MFS's understanding of a certain proposal, or to provide further context to the company on MFS's vote decision.

A company or shareholder may also seek to engage with members of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee or Stewardship Team in advance of the company's formal proxy solicitation to review issues more generally or gauge support for certain contemplated proposals. For further information on requesting engagement with MFS on proxy voting issues or information about MFS' engagement priorities, please contact dlstewardshipteam@mfs.com.

#### **Records Retention**

MFS will retain copies of these MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures in effect from time to time and will retain all proxy voting reports submitted to the Board of Trustees of the MFS Funds for the period required by applicable law. Proxy solicitation materials, including electronic versions of the proxy ballots completed by representatives of the MFS Proxy Voting Committee, together with their respective notes and comments, are maintained in an electronic format by the Proxy Administrator and are accessible on-line by the MFS Proxy Voting Committee and other MFS employees. All proxy voting materials and supporting documentation, including records generated by the Proxy Administrator's system as to proxies processed, including the dates when proxy ballots were received and submitted, and the votes on each company's proxy issues, are retained as required by applicable law.

#### **Reports**

#### Other MFS Clients

MFS may publicly disclose the proxy voting records of certain other clients (including certain MFS Funds) or the votes it casts with respect to certain matters as required by law. A report can also be printed by MFS for each client who has requested that MFS furnish a record of votes cast. The report specifies the proxy issues which have been voted for the client during the year and the position taken with respect to each issue and, upon request, may identify situations where MFS did not vote in accordance with the MFS Proxy Voting Policies and Procedures.

#### **Firm-wide Voting Records**

MFS also publicly discloses its firm-wide proxy voting records on a quarterly basis.

Except as described above, MFS generally will not divulge actual voting practices to any party other than the client or its representatives because MFS considers that information to be confidential and proprietary to the client. However, as noted above, MFS may determine that it is appropriate and beneficial to engage in a dialogue with a company regarding certain matters. During such dialogue with the company, MFS may disclose the vote it intends to cast in order to potentially effect positive change at a company in regards to environmental, social or governance issues.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments—Allspring Global Investments, LLC, Aviva Investors Americas LLC, PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd., Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC, DLD Asset Management, LP, Magnetar Asset Management LLC and Electron Capital Partners, LLC.

Allspring Global Investments, LLC. As fiduciaries, Allspring is committed to effective stewardship of the assets Allspring manages on behalf of its clients. Allspring has a centralized proxy voting framework and a singular proxy policy and process for Allspring Funds and clients who delegate their proxy voting to Allspring. This is outlined in Allspring's Proxy Policies and Procedures. Not all clients delegate proxy voting authority to Allspring, and clients are able to provide their own policy or voting instructions on a specific voting matter. In such cases, Allspring will vote those clients' shares in a manner that is consistent with their instructions when voting their proxies, regardless of Allspring's Proxy Policies and Procedures.

Allspring's proxy voting process emphasizes engagement with its fundamental equity portfolio managers in order to leverage Allspring's deep knowledge of investee companies. While Allspring's process follows a systematic approach to arrive at a recommended vote, portfolio managers can dispute any proxy recommendation with substantiated rationale. Allspring values the deep knowledge and fundamental research supporting those situations, and attempts to align its conviction into a single stance on that issue. As a result, cases with "split votes" are rare.

Allspring focuses its resources on the most important proxy matters by using pragmatic filters to push items to a Due Diligence Working Group of the Proxy Governance Committee ("PGC") that will review and refer the item back up to the PGC if necessary. Allspring has established a customized Allspring Top of House view as the company's unified stance on a particular proxy issue, and this is aligned with the Allspring Governance Principles. Allspring will also review matters of high importance (as defined by the top three categories of ISS's High Importance Ratings), including proxy contests and merger-and-acquisition activity where ISS and management recommendations disagree. Another key feature of Allspring's proxy process involves integrating research of ESG issues into the proxy process, including proprietary insights into climate and water risk, for example, and applying Allspring's ESG expertise to determine whether certain issues are material to investors in the company and, therefore, worthy of further research, debate and discussion to arrive at Allspring's recommendation. Allspring's voting decisions are not typically communicated to investee company management before their Annual General Meeting.

In addition, to assist in Allspring's proxy-voting responsibilities, Allspring subscribes to ISS as our proxy advisor for corporate governance and proxy research and other proxy-administration services. ISS is responsible for administering and overseeing the proxy voting process to ensure the implementation of the firm's Proxy Voting Procedures. ISS provides the following services to Allspring Global Investments:

- 1. Providing research on proxy matters
- 2. Providing technology to facilitate the sharing of research and discussion related to proxy votes
- 3. Vote proxies in accordance with Allspring's guidelines
- 4. Handle administrative and reporting items
- 5. Maintain records of proxy statements received in connection with proxy votes and provide copies/analyses upon request

On an annual basis, Allspring Compliance personnel review ISS's abilities to provide research, vote execution and vote disclosure services for Allspring. Allspring's dedicated Proxy team within the Stewardship team continuously monitors ISS's proxy services.

**Aviva Investors Americas LLC.** Aviva is responsible for exercising proxy voting authority over client portfolio securities consistent with the client's best interests, which is viewed as making a judgment as to what voting decision (including a decision not to vote) is reasonably likely to maximize total return to the client. In the management of fixed income portfolios, the receipt and voting of proxies occurs less frequently than for equity portfolios, e.g., in the instance of restructuring debt resulting in the issuance of equity. Aviva's policy and practice is to receive and vote client proxies, disclose and mitigate potential conflicts of interest, make the policy available upon client request, respond to client inquiries regarding the voting of their proxies, and maintain appropriate records.

**PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd.** As a registered investment advisor, PCJ assumes a fiduciary responsibility to vote proxies in the best interest of its clients, and in a timely manner. PCJ has adopted and implemented written policies and procedures designed to ensure that it votes proxies in this manner. Additionally, PCJ works with ISS, an independent proxy review service, in order to help research proxy matters, assist in the voting process, and review all proxies voted on behalf of PCJ. In this manner, PCJ and ISS work together in order to prevent any material conflicts of interest from arising with the proxy voting process.

PCJ acknowledges that it has a duty of care to its clients that requires the firm to monitor corporate events and vote client proxies. The firm's Chief Compliance Officer and the legal team at Connor, Clark and Lunn Financial Group monitor policies and procedures governing proxy voting. PCJ has a policy not to be influenced by any internal or external groups when voting proxies.

**Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC.** To the extent Kettle Hill has been delegated proxy voting authority on behalf of its clients, Kettle Hill complies with proxy voting policies and procedures that are designed to ensure proxies are voted in the best interests of its clients.

If a material conflict of interest exists between Kettle Hill and a client, Kettle Hill will determine whether voting in accordance with the guidelines set forth in the proxy voting policies and procedures is in the best interests of such client or take some other appropriate action. Kettle Hill does not make any qualitative judgment regarding its clients' investments.

**DLD Asset Management, LP.** DLD's general policy is to vote proxy proposals, amendments, consents or resolutions relating to clients (collectively, "proxies") in a manner that serves the best interest of the client, as determined by DLD, taking into account relevant factors, including: (i) the impact on the value of the returns of the relevant client; (ii) alignment of portfolio company management's interest with the client's interest, including establishing appropriate incentives for management; (iii) the ongoing relationship between the client and the portfolio companies in which it invests including the continued or increased availability of portfolio information; and (iv) industry and business practices.

For routine matters, DLD will generally vote in accordance with the recommendation of the portfolio company's management, as applicable, unless, in DLD's opinion, such recommendation is not in the best interest of the client. Notwithstanding the foregoing, DLD generally will vote proxies *in favor* of the following: (i) routine election of Directors; (ii) issuance of authorized common stock; (iii) decisions reached by independent boards of directors; (iv) compensation plans that tie executive compensation to long-term company performance; (v) shareholder proposals for Board recommendations when the Board meets basic independence and governance standards; and (vi) Board approved proposals relating to routine business matters such as changing the company's name, ratifying the auditors' appointment and shareholder meeting procedural matters.

DLD generally votes *against* the following: (i) that make it more difficult to replace members of the issuer's board of directors, including proposals to stagger the board, cause management to be overrepresented on the board, introduce cumulative voting, introduce unequal voting rights and create super majority voting (i.e., anti-takeover proposals); and (ii) compensation packages that DLD deems excessive or overly generous.

DLD generally will abstain from voting proxies on matters relating to social and political responsibility, unless in DLD's judgment a vote in one direction or the other is likely to have a material effect on the market value of the issuer's securities.

Voting decisions with respect to non-recurring or extraordinary matters will typically be made in support of management

On a case-by-case basis, DLD generally votes for the following: (i) Board approved proposals regarding acquisitions, mergers, re-incorporations, reorganizations and other transactions; (ii) shareholder rights plans; (iii) capitalization proposals; and (iv) shareholder proposals for Board recommendations when the Board does not meet basic independence and governance standards.

Notwithstanding these guidelines, there may be certain instances when DLD does not vote in accordance with its voting policy due to specific facts and circumstances. There also may be instances when DLD refrains from voting a proxy, such as when DLD determines that the cost of voting exceeds the expected benefit and would not be in the client's best interest, or upon the client's direction. The guidelines included in the voting policies are subject to change as DLD periodically reassesses them to reflect developments in proxy voting and the best interest of its clients.

Generally speaking, DLD does not make recommendations or vote proxies on behalf of its managed accounts clients unless specifically directed by such clients in the applicable advisory agreement or otherwise requested or directed. DLD does vote proxies on behalf of its Funds. Any recommendation or vote made by DLD would be in accordance with the policies and procedures set forth herein.

#### **Conflicts of Interest**

At times, conflicts may arise between the interest of a client, on the one hand, and the interest of DLD on the other hand. The chief compliance officer ("CCO"), in conjunction with the Compliance Committee and with the assistance of ISS, will identify any (actual or perceived) conflicts that exist between the interests of the Firm and its clients. This examination will typically include a review of the relationship of DLD and its affiliates with the issuer of each security. If DLD determines that it has, or may be perceived to have, a conflict of interest when voting a proxy, DLD will address matters involving such conflicts of interest as follows:

- If a proposal is addressed by the specific policies herein, DLD will vote in accordance with such policies;
- If DLD believes it is in the best interest of the client to depart from the specific policies provided for herein, DLD will be subject to the requirements set forth above, as applicable;
- The CCO, in consultation with the Compliance Committee, will determine how to vote any proxy with which DLD has a material conflict of interest in voting. Any such vote must be consistent with the best interest of the client. In making the proxy vote determination, the Committee will take reasonable steps under the circumstances to attempt to insulate the proxy voting determination from the material conflict. The Committee will keep a report of any proxies voted under this procedure detailing the nature of the material conflict and the Committee's manner of resolving the material conflict in the best of the client.
- Special considerations may apply in cases of conflicts of interest involving ERISA clients. The CCO will confer with appropriate ERISA counsel in such cases.

#### **Procedures for Proxies**

DLD votes all proxies electronically via the system provided by ISS. All relevant DLD client accounts are set up with ISS to receive proxies along with associated holdings files listing the specific securities to which the proxies relate.

The CCO will be responsible for determining how to vote all proxy statements received by the Firm with respect to securities held in its relevant clients' accounts. The CCO may designate other appropriate employees to assist him in reviewing proxy statements and retain third parties (i.e., ISS) to assist him with preparing necessary records and coordinating and delivering proxies. The CCO will be responsible for monitoring any such employees and third parties to assure that all client securities are being properly voted and appropriate records are being retained. The CCO, in conjunction with the Compliance Committee, is responsible for determining and identifying any reported conflict of interest.

The CCO will be responsible for determining whether each proxy is for a "routine" matter or not, as described above. All proxies identified as "routine" will be voted by DLD in accordance with these Voting Policies.

Any proxies that DLD determines are not clearly "routine" will be referred for decision by the CCO, who may consult with the investment management professional responsible for the Firm position in the security to which the proxy relates. Upon making a decision, the proxy will be executed and submitted to the relevant portfolio company via ISS whereby the client's proxy voting record is updated accordingly. DLD is responsible for the actual voting of proxies in a timely manner. The CCO is responsible for monitoring compliance with these Proxy Voting Policies.

#### **Administration**

The CCO will be responsible for oversight of the following items: (i) overall compliance with the Voting Policies; (ii) disclosure of requested information to clients as permitted by the relevant client's governing documents, the policies of the Firm and as required under applicable federal securities law; (iii) retention of required records relating to proxies and the Voting Policies; and (iv) reviewing and updating the Voting Policies as appropriate.

#### **Disclosures**

DLD will make the following disclosures to clients:

- a summary of the Voting Policies in its Form ADV Part 2A;
- upon request by a client, a copy of the Voting Policies (and any amendments thereto); and
- upon request by a client, the proxy voting record for proxies voted on behalf of the client including (i) the name of the issuer; (ii) the proposal voted upon; and (iii) how the Firm voted the applicable account's or that client's securities, as applicable.

#### Recordkeeping

DLD will maintain files relating to its proxy voting policies and procedures in an easily accessible place. Records will be maintained and preserved for five years from the end of the fiscal year during which the last entry was made on a record, with records for the first two years kept at the Firm's main office. Records the following will be included in the files:

- a copy of the Voting Policies, and any amendments hereto;
- a copy of each proxy statement that DLD receives with respect to client portfolio securities, provided however that DLD may rely on obtaining a copy of proxy statements from the SEC's EDGAR public filing system for those proxy statements that are so available in lieu of keeping its own copy, or the assistance of ISS;
- a record of each proxy vote cast by DLD on behalf of a client;

- a copy of any document, if any, prepared by DLD that was material to the proxy voting decision or memorializes that decision;
- a copy of each written client request for information regarding how DLD voted such client's proxies, and a copy of any written response by DLD to any (written or oral) client requests;
- as applicable to its sub-advised '40 Act Funds (the "Registered Funds"), DLD will, with the assistance of ISS, be responsible to maintain all relevant files to permit the Registered Funds to comply with Rule 30b1-4 under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and to file Form N-PX, as and when required.
- effective July 1, 2024, DLD will annually report its proxy voting record on amended Form N-PX with respect to certain shareholder advisory votes on "say on pay" (executive compensation) matters with the assistance of ISS as mandated by Rule 14Ad-1 under the Exchange Act. Pursuant to Rule 14Ad-1, all "institutional investment managers" that file reports under Section 13(f) of the Exchange Act (i.e., Form 13F), including DLD, are required to make public filings on Form N-PX to report their executive compensation proxy voting. DLD is required to file its first reports covering the period from July 1, 2023, to June 30, 2024, on amended Form N-PX by August 31, 2024.

**Magnetar Asset Management LLC.** If a registered investment company client of Magnetar delegates proxy voting responsibility to Magnetar and Magnetar has accepted such delegation, Magnetar's proxy voting policy requires Magnetar to vote proxies prudently and solely in the economic interests of, and for the exclusive purpose of providing economic benefits to, clients. Social, political or other objectives unrelated to the value of clients' investments will not be considered.

Magnetar will maintain a record of all proxy ballots received for each RIC client, whether or not voted, that includes the information Magnetar must provide to the RIC client, the client's primary adviser, or the appropriate designee, in connection with Form N-PX.

**Electron Capital Partners, LLC.** Electron's policy is to act in the best interest of its clients when exercising its proxy voting authority. If Electron accepts proxy voting authority from a client, Electron will dutifully analyze the issues involved with all shareholder votes. Electron will generally vote client proxies in accordance with its proxy voting guidelines and will generally vote in the same manner for all clients holding a particular security, subject to the investment objectives and best interests of the client. With respect to matters not covered by the proxy voting guidelines, Electron will evaluate the probable impact on corporate operations, and vote client proxies in what it views to be in accordance with the best interests of its clients.

These policies and procedures do not mandate that Electron vote every client proxy that it receives. There may be circumstances when refraining from voting a proxy is in a client's best interest, such as when and if Electron determines that the cost of voting the proxy exceeds the expected benefit to the client. Further, Electron will not vote proxies for which a client has not delegated voting authority to Electron.

Proxy Voting Procedures: The Chief Compliance Officer of Electron will be primarily responsible for ensuring these proxy voting policies and procedures are carried out. Electron utilizes a third-party electronic service, ISS, for receiving, processing, and voting client proxies. Generally, proxies received by Electron will be accessible via ISS's electronic portal. Electron may retain a third-party to assist it in coordinating and voting client proxies. If so, the Chief Compliance Officer will monitor the third-party to assure that all proxies are being properly voted and appropriate records are being retained. Electron may also consult with legal counsel regarding material conflicts of interest in regard to voting proxies. The CCO is responsible for overseeing the services provided by ISS in accordance with the Review of

Third-Party Service Providers policy and the guidance set out in Release No. 5325. Any employee, officer or director of Electron receiving an inquiry directly from a company holding a proxy contest must promptly notify the Chief Compliance Officer.

Conflicts of Interest: Electron will not put its own interests ahead of a client's interest at any time, and will resolve any potential conflicts between its interests and those of its clients in favor of its clients. The Chief Compliance Officer will be primarily responsible for determining whether a conflict of interest exists in connection with any client proxy vote. The Chief Compliance Officer may consult with Electron's legal counsel regarding these matters. The Chief Compliance Officer will presume a conflict of interest to exist whenever Electron or any partner, member, affiliate, subsidiary or employee of Electron has a personal or business interest in the outcome of a particular matter before shareholders. A conflict is presumed, for example, in any case where: (i) Electron has a business, financial, or personal relationship with participants in a proxy contest or candidates for corporate directorships; or (ii) Electron, in its capacity as general partner or investment manager (or some similar capacity) of a fund client, also manages or seeks to manage the retirement plan assets of a company whose securities are held by the fund client. Other examples where the Chief Compliance Officer will presume the existence of a conflict of interest for proxy-voting purposes include, but are not limited to, whenever:

- i. a current client of Electron is affiliated with a company soliciting proxies, and has communicated its view to Electron on an impending proxy vote;
- ii. Electron has identified a personal or business interest either in a company soliciting proxies or in the outcome of a shareholder vote; or
- iii. a third-party with an interest in the outcome of a shareholder vote has attempted to influence Electron.

Resolving Conflicts of Interest: A presumption of a conflict of interest will not necessarily prevent Electron from voting client proxies. In the event that Electron perceives a direct or indirect conflict to exist between Electron's interests and those of its clients, Electron will, in each event, promptly disclose these conflicts to the affected client in writing and obtain the client's prior written consent before exercising any proxy voting authority over the client proxy. If Electron is unable to contact a client or otherwise obtain written consent by the time the vote of the proxy is due, then Electron will not vote the client proxy. In addition, putative conflicts deemed by the Chief Compliance Officer, in conjunction with senior management and/or Electron's legal counsel, to be immaterial to a shareholder vote will not prevent Electron from voting the related proxies.

*Limitations on Proxy Voting:* Electron will not be obliged to vote a client proxy if Electron reasonably determines that the cost of voting such securities would exceed the expected benefit to the client.

Electronic Voting and Automated Voting: In most cases, ISS (or another proxy advisory firm) may assist Electron with proxy voting execution via an electronic vote management system that allows ISS to: (1) populate each client's vote based either on ISS' recommendation or on Electron's voting instructions to ISS ("pre-population"); and/or (2) automatically submit client votes to be counted ("automated voting").

Recordkeeping: In accordance with the recordkeeping requirements of Rule 204-2 of the Advisers Act, Electron will, for a period of at least five years from the end of the fiscal year during which the record was finalized, maintain or have ready access to the following documents, the first 2 years in an appropriate office of Electron:

- i. a copy of this policy;
- ii. a copy of the proxy voting guidelines;

- iii. a copy of each proxy statement received by Electron regarding securities held on behalf of its clients;
- iv. a record of each vote cast by Electron on behalf of its clients;
- v. a copy of any documents prepared by Electron that were material to making a decision how to vote, or that memorialized the basis for such decision; and
- vi. a copy of each written request received from a client as to how Electron voted proxies on its behalf, and a copy of any written response from Electron to any (written or oral) client request for information on how Electron voted proxies on its behalf.

To fulfill some of these recordkeeping requirements, Electron may rely on proxy statements filed on EDGAR and proxy statements and records of proxy votes cast that are maintained with a proxy voting service or other third-party, provided that Electron has obtained an undertaking from such third-party to provide a copy of the documents promptly upon request.

Proxy Voting Guidelines: Each proxy issue will be considered on a case-by-case basis. The majority of votes presented to shareholders are proposals made by management, which have been approved and recommended by its board of directors. For routine matters (which generally means that such matter will not measurably change the structure, management, control or operation of the company and are consistent with customary industry standards and practices, as well as the laws of the state of incorporation applicable to the company), Electron will vote in accordance with the recommendation of ISS Sustainability Services, unless, in Electron's opinion, such recommendation is not in the best interests of its clients. In general, Electron will vote in accordance with the recommendation of the company's board of directors on all shareholder proposals. However, Electron will support shareholder proposals that are consistent with Electron's proxy voting guidelines for board-approved proposals. Electron may abstain from voting (which generally requires submission of the proxy voting card) or decide not to vote if Electron determines that abstaining or not voting is in the best interests of its clients. Factors that may be considered in making such a determination may include the costs associated with exercising the proxy (e.g., travel or translation costs) and any legal restrictions on trading resulting from the exercise of a proxy.

Proxy Advisory Firm Due Diligence: Electron will evaluate any current or proposed proxy advisory firms utilized and periodically update such diligence. Electron will consider those factors which it deems relevant which may include whether the proxy advisory firm: (1) has sufficient resources; (2) has an effective process for seeking input from issuers; (3) has adequate disclosures as to its methodologies; (4) has adequate policies and procedures to address conflicts of interest; (5) has adequate processes to identify potential factual errors, incompleteness or methodological weakness; and (6) agrees to update Electron as to any business or policy changes.

**Personal trading policies.** The funds, UBS AM and UBS AM (US) (the investment manager and principal underwriter, respectively, for the funds) and the subadvisors have each adopted a code of ethics under Investment Company Act Rule 17j-1, each of which permits personnel covered by the rule to invest in securities that may be purchased or held by a fund but prohibits fraudulent, deceptive or manipulative conduct in connection with that personal investing.

# Portfolio managers (for each fund except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund)

#### All funds—UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc.

UBS AM utilizes a team approach in managing each fund. The portfolio managers for PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments, PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments, PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments, PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments, PACE Global Fixed Income Investments and PACE High Yield Investments are Mabel Lung, Fred Lee, David Kelly Christopher Andersen and Eileen Wong. The portfolio managers for PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments, PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments, PACE International Equity Investments, PACE International Energing Markets Equity Investments and PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments are Mabel Lung, Fred Lee, Mayoor Joshi, Christopher Andersen, Edward Eccles, Sofia Westerlund and Shu-Han Hsu. The portfolio managers for PACE Alternative Strategies Investments are Mabel Lung, Fred Lee, Mayoor Joshi, David Kelly, Christopher Andersen and Edward Eccles. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Mabel Lung:			
	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	14	0	3,647
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$5,355	\$0	\$4,352.3
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$5,355 million of assets managed for such funds.

#### Fred Lee:

	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	14	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$5,355	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$5,355 million of assets managed for such funds.

Mayoor Joshi:			
	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	8	0	3
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,861	\$0	\$650
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$3,861 million of assets managed for such funds.

David Kelly:			
•	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	7	0	124,480
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,866.2	\$0	\$23,469.3
Assets Managed with Performance-			

<sup>\$0</sup> \* Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$1,866.2 million of assets managed for such funds.

\$0

## Christopher Andersen:

Based Advisory Fees (in millions)

	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	14	0	124,480
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$5,355	\$0	\$23,469.3
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$5,355 million of assets managed for such funds.

#### **Edward Eccles:**

	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	8	0	124,480
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,861	\$0	\$23,469.3
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$3,861 million of assets managed for such funds.

\$0

Sofia Westerlund:			
	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	7	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,489	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$3,489 million of assets managed for such

5	n	u	-ŀ	12	ın	ŀ	1S	u	:

Silu-Hali lisu.	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	7	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,489	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$3,489 million of assets managed for such funds.

### Fileen Wong

Lincell World.	Registered investment companies*	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	0	124,480
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,494.3	\$0	\$23,469.3
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> Includes all PACE funds managed by portfolio manager noted above with a total of approximately \$1,494.3 million of assets managed for such funds.

Potential conflicts of interest. The management of the fund and other accounts could result in potential conflicts of interest if the fund and other accounts have different objectives, benchmarks and fees because the portfolio managers and their team must allocate time and investment expertise across multiple accounts, including the fund. If a portfolio manager identifies a limited investment opportunity that may be suitable for more than one account

or model portfolio, the fund may not be able to take full advantage of that opportunity due to an allocation of filled purchase or sale orders across all eligible model portfolios and accounts. To deal with these situations, UBS AM has adopted procedures for allocating portfolio trades across multiple accounts to provide fair treatment to all accounts. The management of personal accounts by a portfolio manager may also give rise to potential conflicts of interest. UBS AM has adopted a Code of Ethics that governs such personal trading but there is no assurance that the Code of Ethics will adequately address all such conflicts.

**Compensation.** UBS AM's compensation philosophy is to align the interests of its employees with those of its clients and investors. UBS AM's Total Reward Principles are intended to provide a strong link to its strategic imperatives and encourage employees to live UBS AM's strong and inclusive culture that is grounded in its three keys to success: UBS's Pillars, Principles and Behaviors.

These guiding principles underpin UBS AM's approach to compensation and define its compensation framework that aims to balance performance and prudent risk-taking with a focus on conduct and sound risk management practices. UBS AM's compensation structure is designed to encourage employees to develop a strong client franchise, create sustainable value and achieve the highest standards of performance. Moreover, UBS AM rewards behavior that helps build and protect the firm's reputation-specifically accountability with integrity, collaboration and innovation. UBS AM strives for excellence and sustainable performance in everything it does. Compensation for each employee is based on individual, team, business division and Group performance, within the context of the markets in which UBS AM operates.

In general, the total compensation received by the portfolio managers and analysts at UBS AM consists of two elements: a fixed component (base salary and benefits) and an annual discretionary performance award that is correlated with investment performance.

Fixed component (base salary and benefits):

- Set with the aim of being competitive in the industry and monitored and adjusted periodically with reference to the relevant local labor market in order to remain so.
- The fixed component is used to recognize the experience, skills and knowledge that each portfolio manager or analyst brings to their role.

#### Performance award:

- Determined annually on a discretionary basis.
- Based on the individual's financial and non-financial contribution-as assessed through a rigorous performance
  assessment process-as well as on the performance of their respective function, of UBS AM and of UBS as a whole.
- Delivered in cash and, when total compensation is over a defined threshold, partly in deferral vehicles.
- For awards subject to deferral, the deferred amount is calculated using graduated marginal deferral rates, which increase as the value of the performance award increases.

- For Asset Management employees, deferred amounts are typically granted in two deferral vehicles. Investment professionals typically receive 60% in the UBS Fund Ownership Plan ("FOP") and 40% in the Deferred Contingent Capital Plan ("DCCP"). A small number of Investment Professionals may also receive a portion of their deferral in the UBS Equity Ownership Plan ("EOP"). Non-investment professionals receive 60% in the EOP and 40% in the DCCP.
- All deferred awards under the FOP are granted in the form of Notional Funds. FOP awards vest over three years with 50% of the award vesting in year two and 50% in year three, provided the vesting conditions, including continued service, are met and the awards have not been forfeited on or before the vesting dates. The Notional Funds awarded under the FOP are aligned to selected UBS Asset Management funds. They provide for a high level of transparency and correlation between an employee's compensation and the investment performance of UBS Asset Management. This enhances the alignment of investment professionals' and other employees' interests with those of our clients.
- All deferred awards under the EOP are granted in the form of UBS shares. EOP awards vest over 3 years with 50% of the award vesting in year two and 50% in year three, provided the vesting conditions, including continued service, are met and the awards have not been forfeited on or before the vesting dates.
- The DCCP was introduced for performance year 2012 as a key component of UBS's compensation framework to align compensation incentives with the capital strength of the firm. For employees whose performance award is subject to deferral, 40% of the amount deferred is delivered in the DCCP. The terms of the DCCP are similar to those of a loss-absorbing bond instrument offered to external investors with regard to notional interest entitlement and the impact of trigger and viability events.
- DCCP aligns the interests of our key employees with the interests of external investors and, alongside FOP and EOP, attempts to ensure an appropriate balance between client and other stakeholder alignment.

For our Equities, Fixed Income, Investment Solutions and Passive investment areas:

From January 1, 2015, UBS AM introduced a new Key Performance Indicator ("KPI")-led model for each business area, aligning our business steering logic with our strategic priorities. For our investment areas, sustainable investment performance is a major component of the KPI model.

Portfolio managers' performance awards are subject to detailed KPIs, mainly focused on investment performance of relevant client portfolios and funds, and also including some other factors such as risk management and client focus.

Equities, Fixed Income, Solutions and Passive are assessed annually based on the investment performance during each of the prior three years versus benchmark, performance target and peers. (The specific benchmark for the fund is identified in its Fund Summary section in the prospectus.) This helps to ensure that the interests of portfolio managers are aligned with those of our clients. In addition, we evaluate our passive strategies in terms of how closely the performance of the strategies tracks their respective benchmarks over time.

**Ownership of fund shares.** The following table sets forth the dollar range of equity securities in the funds beneficially owned by each portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

Portfolio Manager/Fund	Range of shares owned
Mabel Lung	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE High Yield Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	None
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	None
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	\$100,001-\$500,000
Fred Lee	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE High Yield Investments	None
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	None
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	None
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
Mayoor Joshi	
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE International Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None

PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments Christopher Andersen	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
PACE High Yield Investments PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
Christopher Andersen	None
WILLIAM AND	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE High Yield Investments	None
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	None
PACE International Energing Markets Equity Investments	None
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
·	None
Edward Eccles	Nana
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	None
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	None
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	None
Sofia Westerlund	
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	None
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	None
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
Shu-Han Hsu	
	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	None
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	None

Portfolio Manager/Fund	Range of shares owned
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	None
PACE International Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	\$1-\$10,000
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	None
Eileen Wong	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	None
PACE High Yield Investments	None

**PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments—Pacific Investment Management Company LLC**Daniel Hyman and Michael Cudzil are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Daniel Hyman:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	7	9	29
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	3
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$14,974	\$2,367	\$80,582
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$5,876

Mike Cudzil:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	21	12	60
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	7
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$26,305	\$9,219	\$26,535
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$7,314	\$1,237

**Potential conflicts of interest.** From time to time, potential and actual conflicts of interest may arise between a portfolio manager's management of the investments of a Fund, on the one hand, and the management of other accounts, on the other. Potential and actual conflicts of interest may also arise as a result of PIMCO's other business activities and PIMCO's possession of material non-public information ("MNPI") about an issuer. Other accounts

managed by a portfolio manager might have similar investment objectives or strategies as the Funds, track the same index a Fund tracks or otherwise hold, purchase, or sell securities that are eligible to be held, purchased or sold by the Funds. The other accounts might also have different investment objectives or strategies than the Funds. Investors should be aware that investments made by a Fund and the results achieved by a Fund at any given time are not expected to be the same as those made by other funds for which PIMCO acts as investment adviser, including funds with names, investment objectives and policies, and/or portfolio management teams, similar to a Fund. This may be attributable to a wide variety of factors, including, but not limited to, the use of a different strategy or portfolio management team, when a particular fund commenced operations or the size of a particular fund, in each case as compared to other similar funds. Potential and actual conflicts of interest may also arise as a result of PIM-CO serving as investment adviser to accounts that invest in the Funds. In this case, such conflicts of interest could in theory give rise to incentives for PIMCO to, among other things, vote proxies, purchase or redeem shares of the underlying account, or take other actions with respect to the underlying account, in a manner beneficial to the investing account but detrimental to the underlying account. Conversely, PIMCO's duties to the Funds, as well as regulatory or other limitations applicable to the Funds, may affect the courses of action available to PIMCO-advised accounts (including certain Funds) that invest in the Funds in a manner that is detrimental to such investing accounts.

Because PIMCO is affiliated with Allianz SE, a large multi-national financial institution (together with its affiliates, "Allianz"), conflicts similar to those described below may occur between the Funds or other accounts managed by PIMCO and PIMCO's affiliates or accounts managed by those affiliates. Those affiliates (or their clients), which generally operate autonomously from PIMCO, may take actions that are adverse to the Funds or other accounts managed by PIMCO. In many cases, PIMCO will not be in a position to mitigate those actions or address those conflicts, which could adversely affect the performance of the Funds or other accounts managed by PIMCO (each, a "Client," and collectively, the "Clients"). In addition, because certain Clients are affiliates of PIMCO or have investors who are affiliates or employees of PIMCO, PIMCO may have incentives to resolve conflicts of interest in favor of these Clients over other Clients.

**Knowledge and Timing of Fund Trades.** A potential conflict of interest may arise as a result of a portfolio manager's day-to-day management of a Fund. Because of their positions with the Funds, the portfolio managers know the size, timing and possible market impact of a Fund's trades. It is theoretically possible that the portfolio managers could use this information to the advantage of other accounts they manage and to the possible detriment of a Fund.

**Investment Opportunities.** A potential conflict of interest may arise as a result of a portfolio manager's management of a number of accounts with varying investment guidelines. Often, an investment opportunity may be suitable for one or more Clients, but may not be available in sufficient quantities for all accounts to participate fully. In addition, regulatory issues applicable to PIMCO or a Fund or other accounts may result in the Funds not receiving securities that may otherwise be appropriate for them. Similarly, there may be limited opportunity to sell an investment held by a Fund and another Client. PIMCO has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to allocate investment opportunities on a fair and equitable basis over time.

PIMCO seeks to allocate orders across eligible Client accounts with similar investment guidelines and investment styles fairly and equitably, taking into consideration relevant factors including, among others, applicable investment restrictions and guidelines, including regulatory restrictions; Client account specific investment objectives, restrictions and other Client instructions, as applicable, risk tolerances; amounts of available cash; the need to rebalance a Client account's portfolio (e.g., due investor contributions and redemptions); whether the allocation would result in a Client account receiving a trivial amount or an amount below the established minimum quantity; regulatory requirements; the origin of the investment; the bases for an issuer's allocation to PIMCO; and other Client account-specific factors. As part of PIMCO's trade allocation process, portions of new fixed income investment opportunities

are distributed among Client account categories where the relevant portfolio managers seek to participate in the investment. Those portions are then further allocated among the Client accounts within such categories pursuant to PIMCO's trade allocation policy. Portfolio managers managing quantitative strategies and specialized accounts, such as those focused on international securities, mortgage-backed securities, bank loans, or other specialized asset classes, will likely receive an increased distribution of new fixed income investment opportunities where the investment involves a quantitative strategy or specialized asset class that matches the investment objective or focus of the Client account category. PIMCO seeks to allocate fixed income investments to Client accounts with the general purpose of maintaining consistent concentrations across similar accounts and achieving, as nearly as possible, portfolio characteristic parity among such accounts. Client accounts furthest from achieving portfolio characteristic parity typically receive priority in allocations. With respect to an order to buy or sell an equity security in the secondary market, PIMCO seeks to allocate the order across Client accounts with similar investment guidelines and investment styles fairly and equitably over time, taking into consideration the relevant factors discussed above.

Any particular allocation decision among Client accounts may be more or less advantageous to any one Client or group of Clients, and certain allocations will, to the extent consistent with PIMCO's fiduciary obligations, deviate from a pro rata basis among Clients in order to address for example, differences in legal, tax, regulatory, risk management, concentration, exposure, Client guideline limitations and/or mandate or strategy considerations for the relevant Clients. PIMCO may determine that an investment opportunity or particular purchases or sales are appropriate for one or more Clients, but not appropriate for other Clients, or are appropriate or suitable for, or available to, Clients but in different sizes, terms, or timing than is appropriate or suitable for other Clients. For example, some Clients have higher risk tolerances than other Clients, such as private funds, which, in turn, allows PIMCO to allocate a wider variety and/or greater percentage of certain types of investments (which may or may not outperform other types of investments) to such Clients. Further, the respective risk tolerances of different types of Clients may change over time as market conditions change. Those Clients receiving an increased allocation as a result of the effect of their respective risk tolerance may be Clients that pay higher investment management fees or that pay incentive fees. In addition, certain Client account categories focusing on certain types of investments or asset classes will be given priority in new issue distribution and allocation with respect to the investments or asset classes that are the focus of their investment mandate. PIMCO may also take into account the bases for an issuer's allocation to PIMCO, for example, by giving priority allocations to Client accounts holding existing positions in the issuer's debt if the issuer's allocation to PIMCO is based on such holdings. PIMCO also may determine not to allocate to or purchase or sell for certain Clients all investments for which all Clients may be eligible. Legal, contractual, or regulatory issues and/or related expenses applicable to PIMCO or one or more Clients may result in certain Clients not receiving securities that may otherwise be appropriate for them or may result in PIMCO selling securities out of Client accounts even if it might otherwise be beneficial to continue to hold them. Additional factors that are taken into account in the distribution and allocation of investment opportunities to Client accounts include, without limitation: ability to utilize leverage and risk tolerance of the Client account; the amount of discretion and trade authority given to PIMCO by the Client; availability of other similar investment opportunities; the Client account's investment horizon and objectives; hedging, cash and liquidity needs of the portfolio; minimum increments and lot sizes; and underlying benchmark factors. Given all of the foregoing factors, the amount, timing, structuring, or terms of an investment by a Client, including a Fund, may differ from, and performance may be lower than, investments and performance of other Clients, including those that may provide greater fees or other compensation (including performance-based fees or allocations) to PIMCO. PIMCO has also adopted additional procedures to complement the general trade allocation policy that are designed to address potential conflicts of interest due to the side-by-side management of the Funds and certain pooled investment vehicles, including investment opportunity allocation issues.

From time to time, PIMCO may take an investment position or action for one or more Clients that may be different from, or inconsistent with, an action or position taken for one or more other Clients having similar or differing investment objectives. These positions and actions may adversely impact, or in some instances may benefit, one or more affected Clients (including Clients that are PIMCO affiliates) in which PIMCO has an interest, or which pays

PIMCO higher fees or a performance fee. For example, a Client may buy a security and another Client may establish a short position in that same security. The subsequent short sale may result in a decrease in the price of the security that the other Client holds. Similarly, transactions or investments by one or more Clients may have the effect of diluting or otherwise disadvantaging the values, prices or investment strategies of another Client.

When PIMCO implements for one Client a portfolio decision or strategy ahead of, or contemporaneously with, similar portfolio decisions or strategies of another Client, market impact, liquidity constraints or other factors could result in one or more Clients receiving less favorable trading results, the costs of implementing such portfolio decisions or strategies could be increased or such Clients could otherwise be disadvantaged. On the other hand, potential conflicts may also arise because portfolio decisions regarding a Client may benefit other Clients. For example, the sale of a long position or establishment of a short position for a Client may decrease the price of the same security sold short by (and therefore benefit) other Clients, and the purchase of a security or covering of a short position in a security for a Client may increase the price of the same security held by (and therefore benefit) other Clients.

Under certain circumstances, a Client may invest in a transaction in which one or more other Clients are expected to participate, or already have made or will seek to make, an investment. In addition, to the extent permitted by applicable law, a Client may also engage in investment transactions that may result in other Clients being relieved of obligations, or that may cause other Clients to divest certain investments (e.g., a Client may make a loan to, or directly or indirectly acquire securities or indebtedness of, a company that uses the proceeds to refinance or reorganize its capital structure, which could result in repayment of debt held by another Client). Such Clients (or groups of Clients) may have conflicting interests and objectives in connection with such investments, including with respect to views on the operations or activities of the issuer involved, the targeted returns from the investment and the timeframe for, and method of, exiting the investment. When making such investments, PIMCO may do so in a way that favors one Client over another Client, even if both Clients are investing in the same security at the same time. Certain Clients may invest on a "parallel" basis (i.e., proportionately in all transactions at substantially the same time and on substantially the same terms and conditions). In addition, other accounts may expect to invest in many of the same types of investments as another account. However, there may be investments in which one or more of such accounts does not invest (or invests on different terms or on a non-pro rata basis) due to factors such as legal, tax, regulatory, business, contractual or other similar considerations or due to the provisions of a Client's governing documents. Decisions as to the allocation of investment opportunities among such Clients present numerous conflicts of interest, which may not be resolved in a manner that is favorable to a Client's interests. To the extent an investment is not allocated pro rata among such entities, a Client could incur a disproportionate amount of income or loss related to such investment relative to such other Client.

In addition, Clients may invest alongside one another in the same underlying investments or otherwise pursuant to a substantially similar investment strategy as one or more other Clients. In such cases, certain Clients may have preferential liquidity and information rights relative to other Clients holding the same investments, with the result that such Clients will be able to withdraw/redeem their interests in underlying investments in priority to Clients who may have more limited access to information or more restrictive withdrawal/redemption rights. Clients with more limited information rights or more restrictive liquidity may therefore be adversely affected in the event of a downturn in the markets.

Further, potential conflicts may be inherent in PIMCO's use of multiple strategies. For example, conflicts will arise in cases where different Clients invest in different parts of an issuer's capital structure, including circumstances in which one or more Clients may own private securities or obligations of an issuer and other Clients may own or seek to acquire private securities of the same issuer. For example, a Client may acquire a loan, loan participation or a loan assignment of a particular borrower in which one or more other Clients have an equity investment, or may invest in senior debt obligations of an issuer for one Client and junior debt obligations or equity of the same issuer for another Client.

PIMCO may also, for example, direct a Client to invest in a tranche of a structured finance vehicle, such as a CLO or CDO, where PIMCO is also, at the same or different time, directing another Client to make investments in a different tranche of the same vehicle, which tranche's interests may be adverse to other tranches. PIMCO may also cause a Client to purchase from, or sell assets to, an entity, such as a structured finance vehicle, in which other Clients may have an interest, potentially in a manner that will have an adverse effect on the other Clients. There may also be conflicts where, for example, a Client holds certain debt or equity securities of an issuer, and that same issuer has issued other debt, equity or other instruments that are owned by other Clients or by an entity, such as a structured finance vehicle, in which other Clients have an interest.

In each of the situations described above, PIMCO may take actions with respect to the assets held by one Client that are adverse to the other Clients, for example, by foreclosing on loans, by putting an issuer into default, or by exercising rights to purchase or sell to an issuer, causing an issuer to take actions adverse to certain classes of securities, or otherwise. In negotiating the terms and conditions of any such investments, or any subsequent amendments or waivers or taking any other actions, PIMCO may find that the interests of a Client and the interests of one or more other Clients could conflict. In these situations, decisions over items such as whether to make the investment or take an action, proxy voting, corporate reorganization, how to exit an investment, or bankruptcy or similar matters (including, for example, whether to trigger an event of default or the terms of any workout) may result in conflicts of interest. Similarly, if an issuer in which a Client and one or more other Clients directly or indirectly hold different classes of securities (or other assets, instruments or obligations issued by such issuer or underlying investments of such issuer) encounters financial problems, decisions over the terms of any workout will raise conflicts of interests (including, for example, conflicts over proposed waivers and amendments to debt covenants). For example, a debt holder may be better served by a liquidation of the issuer in which it may be paid in full, whereas an equity or junior bond holder might prefer a reorganization that holds the potential to create value for the equity holders. In some cases PIMCO may refrain from taking certain actions or making certain investments on behalf of Clients in order to avoid or mitigate certain conflicts of interest or to prevent adverse regulatory or other effects on PIMCO, or may sell investments for certain Clients (in each case potentially disadvantaging the Clients on whose behalf the actions are not taken, investments not made, or investments sold). In other cases, PIMCO may not refrain from taking actions or making investments on behalf of certain Clients that have the potential to disadvantage other Clients. In addition, PIMCO may take actions or refrain from taking actions in order to mitigate legal risks to PIMCO or its affiliates or its Clients even if disadvantageous to a Client's account. Moreover, a Client may invest in a transaction in which one or more other Clients are expected to participate, or already have made or will seek to make, an investment.

Additionally, certain conflicts may exist with respect to portfolio managers who make investment decisions on behalf of several different types of Clients. Such portfolio managers may have an incentive to allocate trades, time or resources to certain Clients, including those Clients who pay higher investment management fees or that pay incentive fees or allocations, over other Clients. These conflicts may be heightened with respect to portfolio managers who are eligible to receive a performance allocation under certain circumstances as part of their compensation.

From time to time, PIMCO personnel may come into possession of MNPI which, if disclosed, might affect an investor's decision to buy, sell or hold a security. Should a PIMCO employee come into possession of MNPI with respect to an issuer, he or she generally will be prohibited from communicating such information to, or using such information for the benefit of, Clients, which could limit the ability of Clients to buy, sell or hold certain investments, thereby limiting the investment opportunities or exit strategies available to Clients. In addition, holdings in the securities or other instruments of an issuer by PIMCO or its affiliates may affect the ability of a Client to make certain acquisitions of or enter into certain transactions with such issuer. PIMCO has no obligation or responsibility to disclose such information to, or use such information for the benefit of, any person (including Clients).

PIMCO maintains one or more restricted lists of companies whose securities are subject to certain trading prohibitions due to PIMCO's business activities. PIMCO may restrict trading in an issuer's securities if the issuer is on a restricted list or if PIMCO has MNPI about that issuer. In some situations, PIMCO may restrict Clients from trading in a particular issuer's securities in order to allow PIMCO to receive MNPI on behalf of other Clients. A Client may be unable to buy or sell certain securities until the restriction is lifted, which could disadvantage the Client. PIMCO may also be restricted from making (or divesting of) investments in respect of some Clients but not others. In some cases PIMCO may not initiate or recommend certain types of transactions, or may otherwise restrict or limit its advice relating to certain securities if a security is restricted due to MNPI or if PIMCO is seeking to limit receipt of MNPI.

PIMCO may conduct litigation or engage in other legal actions on behalf of one or more Clients. In such cases, Clients may be required to bear certain fees, costs, expenses and liabilities associated with the litigation. Other Clients that are or were investors in, or otherwise involved with, the subject investments may or may not (depending on the circumstances) be parties to such litigation actions, with the result that certain Clients may participate in litigation actions in which not all Clients with similar investments may participate, and such non-participating Clients may benefit from the results of such litigation actions without bearing or otherwise being subject to the associated fees, costs, expenses and liabilities. PIMCO, for example, typically does not pursue legal claims on behalf of its separate accounts. Furthermore, in certain situations, litigation or other legal actions pursued by PIMCO on behalf of a Client may be brought against or be otherwise adverse to a portfolio company or other investment held by a Client.

The foregoing is not a complete list of conflicts to which PIMCO or Clients may be subject. PIMCO seeks to review conflicts on a case-by-case basis as they arise. Any review will take into consideration the interests of the relevant Clients, the circumstances giving rise to the conflict, applicable PIMCO policies and procedures, and applicable laws. Clients (and investors in the Funds) should be aware that conflicts will not necessarily be resolved in favor of their interests and may in fact be resolved in a manner adverse to their interests. PIMCO will attempt to resolve such matters fairly, but even so, matters may be resolved in favor of other Clients which pay PIMCO higher fees or performance fees or in which PIMCO or its affiliates have a significant proprietary interest. There can be no assurance that any actual or potential conflicts of interest will not result in a particular Client or group of Clients receiving less favorable investment terms in or returns from certain investments than if such conflicts of interest did not exist.

Conflicts like those described above may also occur between Clients, on the one hand, and PIMCO or its affiliates, on the other. These conflicts will not always be resolved in favor of the Client. In addition, because PIMCO is affiliated with Allianz, a large multi-national financial institution, conflicts similar to those described above may occur between clients of PIMCO and PIMCO's affiliates or accounts managed by those affiliates. Those affiliates (or their clients), which generally operate autonomously from PIMCO, may take actions that are adverse to PIMCO's Clients. In many cases PIMCO will have limited or no ability to mitigate those actions or address those conflicts, which could adversely affect Client performance. In addition, certain regulatory or internal restrictions may prohibit PIMCO from using certain brokers or investing in certain companies (even if such companies are not affiliated with Allianz) because of the applicability of certain laws and regulations or internal Allianz policies applicable to PIMCO, Allianz SE or their affiliates. An account's willingness to negotiate terms or take actions with respect to an investment may also be, directly or indirectly, constrained or otherwise impacted to the extent Allianz SE, PIMCO, and/or their affiliates, directors, partners, managers, members, officers or personnel are also invested therein or otherwise have a connection to the subject investment (e.g., serving as a trustee or board member thereof).

**Performance Fees.** A portfolio manager may advise certain accounts with respect to which the advisory fee is based entirely or partially on performance. Performance fee arrangements may create a conflict of interest for the portfolio manager in that the portfolio manager may have an incentive to allocate the investment opportunities that he or she believes might be the most profitable to such other accounts instead of allocating them to a Fund. PIMCO has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to allocate investment opportunities between the Funds and such other accounts on a fair and equitable basis over time.

PIMCO has implemented policies and procedures relating to, among other things, portfolio management and trading practices, personal investment transactions, insider trading, gifts and entertainment, and political contributions that seek to identify, manage and/or mitigate actual or potential conflicts of interest and resolve such conflicts appropriately if they occur. PIMCO seeks to resolve any actual or potential conflicts in each client's best interest. For more information regarding PIMCO's actual or potential conflicts of interest, please refer to Item 10 and Item 11 in PIMCO's Form ADV, Part 2A, attached as Exhibit B.

**Portfolio Manager Compensation**. PIMCO and its affiliates approach to compensation seeks to provide professionals with a compensation process that is driven by values of collaboration, openness, responsibility and excellence.

Generally, compensation packages consist of three components. The compensation program for portfolio managers is designed to align with clients' interests, emphasizing each portfolio manager's ability to generate long-term investment success for clients, among other factors. A portfolio manager's compensation is not based solely on the performance of the Fund or any other account managed by that portfolio manager:

Base Salary—Base salary is determined based on core job responsibilities, positions/levels and market factors. Base salary levels are reviewed annually, when there is a significant change in job responsibilities or position, or a significant change in market levels.

Variable Compensation—In addition to a base salary, portfolio managers have a variable component of their compensation, which is based on a combination of individual and company performance and includes both qualitative and quantitative factors. The following non-exhaustive list of qualitative and quantitative factors is considered when determining total compensation for portfolio managers:

- performance measured over a variety of longer- and shorter-term periods, including 5- year, 4-year, 3-year, 2- year and 1-year dollar-weighted and account-weighted, pre-tax total and risk-adjusted investment performance as judged against the applicable benchmarks (which may include internal investment performance-related benchmarks) for each account managed by a portfolio manager (including the Fund(s)) and relative to applicable industry peer groups and
- amount and nature of assets managed by the portfolio manager.

The variable compensation component of an employee's compensation may include a deferred component. The deferred portion will generally be subject to vesting and may appreciate or depreciate based on the performance of PIMCO and/or its affiliates. PIMCO's Long-Term Incentive Plan provides participants with deferred cash awards that appreciate or depreciate based on PIMCO's operating earnings over a rolling three-year period.

Portfolio managers who are Managing Directors of PIMCO receive compensation from a non-qualified profit sharing plan consisting of a portion of PIMCO's net profits. Portfolio managers who are Managing Directors receive an amount determined by the Compensation Committee, based upon an individual's overall contribution to the firm.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments—Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department

Andrew P. Hofer, Neil Hohmann and Paul Kunz, are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Andrew P. Hofer:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	5	139
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$14,329.2	\$1,598.5	\$23,071.8
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$660.2
Neil Hohmann:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	5	139
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$8,651.2	\$1,598.5	\$23,071.8
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$660.2
Paul Kunz			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	2	16
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	2
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$752.1	\$677.2	\$7,304.2
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$145.5

**Potential Conflicts of Interest.** BBH provides discretionary and non-discretionary investment management services and products to corporations, institutions and individual investors throughout the world. As a result, in the ordinary course of its businesses, BBH may engage in activities in which its interests or the interests of its clients may conflict

with or be adverse to the interests of the fund. In addition, certain of such clients (including the fund) utilize the services of BBH for which they will pay to BBH customary fees and expenses that will not be shared with the fund.

BBH has adopted and implemented policies and procedures that seek to manage conflicts of interest. Pursuant to such policies and procedures, BBH monitors a variety of areas, including compliance with fund investment guidelines, the investment in only those securities that have been approved for purchase, and compliance with their respective Code of Ethics.

Investors should carefully review the following, which describes potential and actual conflicts of interest that BBH can face in the operation of their respective investment management services. This section is not, and is not intended to be, a complete enumeration or explanation of all of the potential conflicts of interest that may arise. BBH has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to appropriately prevent, limit or mitigate the conflicts of interest described below. Additional information about potential conflicts of interest regarding BBH is set forth in BBH's Form ADV. A copy of Part 1 and Part 2A of BBH's Form ADV is available on the SEC's website (www.adviserinfo.sec.gov). In addition, many of the activities that create these conflicts of interest are limited and/or prohibited by law, unless an exception is available.

Other Clients and Allocation of Investment Opportunities. BBH manages funds and accounts of clients other than the fund ("Other Clients"). In general, BBH faces conflicts of interest when it renders investment advisory services to different clients and, from time to time, provide dissimilar investment advice to different clients. Investment decisions will not necessarily be made in parallel among the fund and Other Clients. Investments made by the fund do not, and are not intended to, replicate the investments, or the investment methods and strategies, of Other Clients. Accordingly, such Other Clients may produce results that are materially different from those experienced by the fund. Certain other conflicts of interest may arise in connection with a portfolio manager's management of the fund's investments, on the one hand, and the investments of other funds or accounts for which the portfolio manager is responsible, on the other. For example, it is possible that the various funds or accounts managed by BBH could have different investment strategies that, at times, might conflict with one another to the possible detriment of the fund. From time to time, BBH sponsors other investment pools and accounts which engage in the same or similar businesses as the fund using the same or similar investment strategies. To the extent that the same investment opportunities might be desirable for more than one account or fund, possible conflicts could arise in determining how to allocate them because BBH may have an incentive to allocate investment opportunities to certain accounts or funds. However, BBH has implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure that information relevant to investment decisions is disseminated promptly within its portfolio management teams and investment opportunities are allocated equitably among different clients. The policies and procedures require, among other things, objective allocation for limited investment opportunities, and documentation and review of justifications for any decisions to make investments only for select accounts or in a manner disproportionate to the size of the account. Nevertheless, access to investment opportunities may be allocated differently among accounts due to the particular characteristics of an account, such as size of the account, cash position, tax status, risk tolerance and investment restrictions or for other reasons.

**Compensation.** Messrs. Hofer, Hohmann and Kunz are Principals of BBH&Co. (collectively "Principals"). The Principals receive a fixed base salary that is based on their individual experience and performance, and which is consistent with the salaries paid to other managing directors of BBH&Co. In addition, the Principals receive incentive compensation ("Incentive Compensation") which includes an annual bonus ("Annual Bonus"), a share in BBH&Co. profits that is allocated to all managing directors of BBH&Co., and participation in a profit-sharing plan that applies to all BBH&Co. employees. The Annual Bonus is based on their performance, the investment performance of their respective Funds and other portfolios co-managed by the Principals, and their leadership, collaboration, and communication skills, A portion of the Incentive Compensation is awarded through participation in a long-term incentive plan that vests over time, and the remainder is paid in cash.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments—Pacific Investment Management Company LLC, Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC and Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department Pacific Investment Management Company LLC.

Mohit Mittal, Michael Cudzil, and Marc Seidner are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of PIMCO's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information related to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
30	25	156
0	4	11
\$98,413	\$36,519	\$86,479
\$0	\$4,902	\$2,987
Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
22	12	60
0	2	7
\$26,509	\$9,219	\$26,535
\$0	\$7,314	\$1,237
Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
25	26	38
0	5	12
\$29,531	\$14,011	\$17,843
\$0	\$2,193	\$7,858
	investment companies  30  0 \$98,413  \$0  Registered investment companies  22  0 \$26,509  \$0  Registered investment companies  25  0 \$29,531	investment companies         investment vehicles           30         25           0         4           \$98,413         \$36,519           \$0         \$4,902           Registered investment companies           22         12           0         2           \$26,509         \$9,219           \$0         \$7,314           Registered investment companies           25         26           0         5           \$29,531         \$14,011

**Potential conflicts of interest.** For more information regarding potential conflicts of interest of PIMCO, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments."

**Compensation.** For more information regarding the compensation policies of PIMCO, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments."

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

### **Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC.**

Thanos Bardas, David M. Brown, Adam Grotzinger, Bradley C. Tank and Ashok Bhatia are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Neuberger Berman's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Thanos Bardas:			
	Registered	Other pooled	
	investment	investment	Other
	companies	vehicles	accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	24	79
Number of Accounts Managed			
with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	8	3
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,431	\$3,995	\$20,881
Assets Managed with Performance-			
Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$139	\$322
David M. Brown:			
	Registered	Other pooled	
	investment	investment	Other
	companies	vehicles	accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	106	369
Number of Accounts Managed			
with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	9	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,107	\$29,180	\$35,446
Assets Managed with Performance-			
Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$2,165	\$568
Adam Grotzinger:			
	Registered	Other pooled	
	investment	investment	Other
	companies	vehicles	accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	20	34
Number of Accounts Managed			
with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	2
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,304	\$9,983	\$7,498
Assets Managed with Performance-			
Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$2,026	\$246

Bradley C. Tank:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	21	39
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	2
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,955	\$9,976	\$7,769
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$2,026	\$246

#### Ashok Bhatia:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	22	39
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	2
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,388	\$10,098	\$8,488
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$2,026	\$246

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise when a Portfolio Manager for Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC ("NBIA") has day-to-day management responsibilities with respect to more than one fund or other account. The management of multiple funds and accounts (including proprietary accounts) may give rise to actual or potential conflicts of interest if the funds and accounts have different or similar objectives, benchmarks, time horizons, and fees, as the Portfolio Manager must allocate his or her time and investment ideas across multiple funds and accounts. The Portfolio Manager may execute transactions for another fund or account that may adversely impact the value of securities or instruments held by a fund, and which may include transactions that are directly contrary to the positions taken by a fund. For example, a Portfolio Manager may engage in short sales of securities or instruments for another account that are the same type of securities or instruments in which a fund it manages also invests. In such a case, the Portfolio Manager could be seen as harming the performance of the fund for the benefit of the account engaging in short sales if the short sales cause the market value of the securities or instruments to fall. Additionally, if a Portfolio Manager identifies a limited investment opportunity that may be suitable for more than one fund or other account, a fund may not be able to take full advantage of that opportunity. There may also be regulatory limitations that prevent a fund from participating in a transaction that another account or fund managed by the same Portfolio Manager will invest. For example, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, prohibits the mutual funds from participating in certain transactions with certain of its affiliates and from participating in "joint" transactions alongside certain of its affiliates. The prohibition on "joint" transactions may limit the ability of the funds to participate alongside its affiliates in privately negotiated transactions unless the transaction is otherwise permitted under existing regulatory guidance and may reduce the amount of privately negotiated transactions that the funds may participate in. Further, NBIA may take an investment position or action for a fund or account that may be different from, inconsistent with, or have different rights than (e.g., voting rights, dividend or repayment priorities or other features that may conflict with one another), an action or position taken for one or more other funds or accounts, including a fund, having similar or different objectives. A conflict may also be created by investing in different parts of an issuer's capital structure (e.g., equity or debt, or different positions in the debt structure). Those positions and actions may adversely impact, or in some instances benefit, one or more affected accounts, including the fund.

Potential conflicts may also arise because portfolio decisions and related actions regarding a position held for a fund or another account may not be in the best interests of a position held by another fund or account having similar or different objectives. If one account were to buy or sell portfolio securities or instruments shortly before another account bought or sold the same securities or instruments, it could affect the price paid or received by the second account. Securities selected for funds or accounts other than a fund may outperform the securities selected for the fund. Finally, a conflict of interest may arise if NBIA and a Portfolio Manager have a financial incentive to favor one account over another, such as a performance-based management fee that applies to one account but not all funds or accounts for which the portfolio manager is responsible. In the ordinary course of operations certain businesses within the NBG organization will seek access to material non-public information. For instance, NBIA loan portfolio managers may obtain and utilize material non-public information in purchasing loans and other debt instruments and certain privately placed or restricted equity instruments. From time to time, NBIA portfolio managers will be offered the opportunity on behalf of applicable clients to participate on a creditors or other similar committee in connection with restructuring or other "work-out" activity, which participation could provide access to material non-public information. NBIA maintains procedures that address the process by which material non-public information may be acquired intentionally by NBIA. When considering whether to acquire material non-public information, NBIA will attempt to balance the interests of all clients, taking into consideration relevant factors, including the extent of the prohibition on trading that would occur, the size of NBIA's existing position in the issuer, if any, and the value of the information as it relates to the investment decision-making process. The acquisition of material non-public information would likely give rise to a conflict of interest since NBIA may be prohibited from rendering investment advice to clients regarding the securities or instruments of such issuer and thereby potentially limiting the universe of securities or instruments that NBIA, including a fund, may purchase or potentially limiting the ability of NB, including a fund, to sell such securities or instruments. Similarly, where NBIA declines access to (or other-wise does not receive or share within NBIA) material non-public information regarding an issuer, the portfolio managers could potentially base investment decisions with respect to assets of such issuer solely on public information, thereby limiting the amount of information available to the portfolio managers in connection with such investment decisions. In determining whether or not to elect to receive material non-public information, NB will endeavor to act fairly to its clients as a whole. NBIA reserves the right to decline access to material non-public information, including declining to join a creditors or similar committee.

NBIA has adopted certain compliance procedures which are designed to address these types of conflicts. However, there is no guarantee that such procedures will detect each and every situation in which a conflict arises.

**Compensation.** NBIA's compensation philosophy is one that focuses on rewarding performance and incentivizing employees. NBIA is also focused on creating a compensation process that it believes is fair, transparent, and competitive with the market.

Compensation for Portfolio Managers consists of fixed (salary) and variable (bonus) compensation but is more heavily weighted on the variable portion of total compensation and is paid from a team compensation pool made available to the portfolio management team with which the Portfolio Manager is associated. The size of the team compensation pool is determined based on a formula that takes into consideration a number of factors including the pre-tax revenue that is generated by that particular portfolio management team, less certain adjustments. The bonus portion of the compensation is discretionary and is determined on the basis of a variety of criteria, including investment performance (including the aggregate multi-year track record), utilization of central resources (including research, sales and operations/support), business building to further the longer term sustainable success of the investment team, effective team/people management, and overall contribution to the success of NB. Certain Portfolio Managers may manage products other than mutual funds, such as high net worth separate accounts. For the management of these accounts, a Portfolio Manager may generally receive a percentage of pre-tax revenue determined on a monthly basis less certain deductions. The percentage of revenue a Portfolio Manager receives pursuant to this arrangement will vary based on certain revenue thresholds.

The terms of NBIA's long-term retention incentives are as follows:

Employee-Owned Equity. Certain employees (primarily senior leadership and investment professionals) participate in NB's equity ownership structure, which was designed to incentivize and retain key personnel. In addition, in prior years certain employees may have elected to have a portion of their compensation delivered in the form of equity. NBIA also offers an equity acquisition program which allows employees a more direct opportunity to invest in NB. For confidentiality and privacy reasons, NBIA cannot disclose individual equity holdings or program participation.

Contingent Compensation. Certain employees may participate in the Neuberger Berman Group Contingent Compensation Plan (the "CCP") to serve as a means to further align the interests of its employees with the success of the firm and the interests of its clients, and to reward continued employment. Under the CCP, up to 20% of a participant's annual total compensation in excess of \$500,000 is contingent and subject to vesting. The contingent amounts are maintained in a notional account that is tied to the performance of a portfolio of NB investment strategies as specified by the firm on an employee-by-employee basis. By having a participant's contingent compensation tied to NB investment strategies, each employee is given further incentive to operate as a prudent risk manager and to collaborate with colleagues to maximize performance across all business areas. In the case of members of investment teams, including Portfolio Managers, the CCP is currently structured so that such employees have exposure to the investment strategies of their respective teams as well as the broader NB portfolio.

Restrictive Covenants. Most investment professionals, including Portfolio Managers, are subject to notice periods and restrictive covenants which include employee and client non-solicit restrictions as well as restrictions on the use of confidential information. In addition, depending on participation levels, certain senior professionals who have received equity grants have also agreed to additional notice and transition periods and, in some cases, non-compete restrictions. For confidentiality and privacy reasons, NBIA cannot disclose individual restrictive covenant arrangements.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department.

For information regarding other accounts managed by the portfolio managers of BBH, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments—Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department."

**Conflicts of Interest.** For more information regarding potential conflicts of interest of BBH, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments—Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department."

**Compensation.** For more information regarding the compensation policies of BBH, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments—Brown Brothers Harriman & Co., acting through a separately identifiable department known as the Brown Brothers Harriman Mutual Fund Advisory Department."

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments—Insight North America LLC

Daniel Marques and Daniel Rabasco are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Daniel Marques:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	0	243
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,105.6	\$0	\$2,114.2
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

Daniel Rabasco:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	13	0	60
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$6,152.6	\$0	\$2,438.9
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** In the course of Insight's normal business, Insight and its personnel may encounter situations where it faces a conflict of interest or could be perceived to be in a conflict of interest situation. A conflict of interest occurs whenever the interests of Insight or its personnel diverge from those of a client or when Insight or its personnel have obligations to more than one party whose interests are different. In order to preserve its reputation and comply with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, Insight believes managing perceived conflicts is as important as managing actual conflicts.

Insight ensures it manages conflicts of interest fairly and in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and does not place its own interests unfairly above those of its customers.

All material conflicts of interest are presented in greater detail within Part 2A of Insight's Form ADV.

**Compensation.** Insight has a flexible and progressive remuneration policy which allows it to attract and retain what it believes to be the best available talent in the industry. Insight's approach to remuneration is designed to ensure that top performance is recognized with top quartile industry pay. This includes matching each individual with a suitable peer group that reflects competitors at every level and specialism within the industry. The components of remuneration are base salary and variable pay which is made up of two elements; discretionary annual cash amount and a deferral into the Insight LTIP. Cash and deferred pay play a significant role in total compensation. The overall value of these payments is based on company performance while individual payments are made with the dual aims of ensuring that key individuals are incentivized and rewarded for their contribution and that their

total remuneration is competitive. Insight also has a competitive benefits package (including eligibility for company pension and private medical plans) broadly aligned with the firm's parent company, BNY Mellon.

Discretionary pay is allocated following a detailed annual evaluation and performance appraisal against individual objectives, based on key performance indicators such as mandate performance (including effective management of risk and generation of relative returns where appropriate), contribution to team-based investment decisions, team management and professional development. Account is also taken of non-investment related issues such as business wins, client feedback, product and service development and internal relationship building, as well as experience, tenure and status within the team. For investment teams, including portfolio managers, performance is typically assessed over a multi-year framework including fund performance over one-, three- and five-years performance cycles. This is also supported by the Insight LTIP, which typically vests over three years. The application of the above policy and principles are reviewed at least twice each year by the Insight Remuneration Committee, where compensation proposals in respect of the relevant performance year are considered and approved.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### PACE Global Fixed Income Investments—J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc.

Myles Bradshaw, Iain Stealey and Linda Raggi are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

•	Registered investment	Other pooled investment	Other
	companies	vehicles	accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	0	13	21
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$0	\$7,403.7	\$3,619.3
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$150,167.9
lain Stealey:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	32	13
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$4,666.9	\$23,066.2	\$11,076.4
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$150,167.9

Myles Bradshaw:

Linda Raggi:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	0	15	20
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$0	\$7,470.8	\$5,878.8
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$150.2

**Potential conflicts of interest.** The potential for conflicts of interest exists when portfolio managers manage other accounts with similar investment objectives and strategies as the fund ("Similar Accounts"). Potential conflicts may include, for example, conflicts between investment strategies and conflicts in the allocation of investment opportunities.

Responsibility for managing J.P. Morgan's and its affiliates' clients' portfolios is organized according to investment strategies within asset classes. Generally, client portfolios with similar strategies are managed by portfolio managers in the same portfolio management group using the same objectives, approach and philosophy. Underlying sectors or strategy allocations within a larger portfolio are likewise managed by portfolio managers who use the same approach and philosophy as similarly managed portfolios. Therefore, portfolio holdings, relative position sizes and industry and sector exposures tend to be similar across similar portfolios and strategies, which minimize the potential for conflicts of interest.

JPMorgan and/or its affiliates ("JPMorgan Chase") perform investment services, including rendering investment advice, to varied clients. JPMorgan, JPMorgan Chase and its or their directors, officers, agents, and/or employees may render similar or differing investment advisory services to clients and may give advice or exercise investment responsibility and take such other action with respect to any of its other clients that differs from the advice given or the timing or nature of action taken with respect to another client or group of clients. It is JPMorgan's policy, to the extent practicable, to allocate, within its reasonable discretion, investment opportunities among clients over a period of time on a fair and equitable basis. One or more of JPMorgan's other client accounts may at any time hold, acquire, increase, decrease, dispose, or otherwise deal with positions in investments in which another client account may have an interest from time-to-time.

JPMorgan, JPMorgan Chase, and any of its or their directors, partners, officers, agents or employees, may also buy, sell, or trade securities for their own accounts or the proprietary accounts of JPMorgan and/or JPMorgan Chase. JPMorgan and/or JPMorgan Chase, within their discretion, may make different investment decisions and other actions with respect to their own proprietary accounts than those made for client accounts, including the timing or nature of such investment decisions or actions. Further, JPMorgan is not required to purchase or sell for any client account securities that it, JPMorgan Chase, and any of its or their employees, principals, or agents may purchase or sell for their own accounts or the proprietary accounts of JPMorgan, or JPMorgan Chase or its clients.

J.P. Morgan and/or its affiliates may receive more compensation with respect to certain Similar Accounts than that received with respect to the fund or may receive compensation based in part on the performance of certain Similar Accounts. This may create a potential conflict of interest for J.P. Morgan and its affiliates or the portfolio managers by providing an incentive to favor these Similar Accounts when, for example, placing securities transactions. In addition, J.P. Morgan or its affiliates could be viewed as having a conflict of interest to the extent that J.P. Morgan or an affiliate has a proprietary investment in Similar Accounts, the portfolio managers have personal investments in Similar

lar Accounts or the Similar Accounts are investment options in J.P. Morgan's or its affiliates' employee benefit plans. Potential conflicts of interest may arise with both the aggregation and allocation of securities transactions and allocation of investment opportunities because of market factors or investment restrictions imposed upon J.P. Morgan and its affiliates by law, regulation, contract or internal policies. Allocations of aggregated trades, particularly trade orders that were only partially completed due to limited availability and allocation of investment opportunities generally, could raise a potential conflict of interest, as J.P. Morgan or its affiliates may have an incentive to allocate securities that are expected to increase in value to favored accounts. Initial public offerings, in particular, are frequently of very limited availability. J.P. Morgan and its affiliates may be perceived as causing accounts they manage to participate in an offering to increase J.P. Morgan's and its affiliates' overall allocation of securities in that offering. A potential conflict of interest also may be perceived to arise if transactions in one account closely follow related transactions in a different account, such as when a purchase increases the value of securities previously purchased by another account, or when a sale in one account lowers the sale price received in a sale by a second account. If J.P. Morgan or its affiliates manage accounts that engage in short sales of securities of the type in which the fund invests, J.P. Morgan or its affiliates could be seen as harming the performance of the fund for the benefit of the accounts engaging in short sales if the short sales cause the market value of the securities to fall.

As an internal policy matter, J.P. Morgan or its affiliates may from time to time maintain certain overall investment limitations on the securities positions or positions in other financial instruments J.P. Morgan or its affiliates will take on behalf of its various clients due to, among other things, liquidity concerns and regulatory restrictions. Such policies may preclude the fund from purchasing particular securities or financial instruments, even if such securities or financial instruments would otherwise meet the fund's objectives.

The goal of J.P. Morgan and its affiliates is to meet their fiduciary obligation with respect to all clients. J.P. Morgan and its affiliates have policies and procedures that seek to manage conflicts. J.P. Morgan and its affiliates monitor a variety of areas, including compliance with fund guidelines, review of allocation decisions and compliance with the J.P. Morgan's Codes of Ethics and JPMorgan Chase and Co.'s Code of Conduct. With respect to the allocation of investment opportunities, J.P. Morgan and its affiliates also have certain policies designed to achieve fair and equitable allocation of investment opportunities among its clients over time. For example:

Orders for the same equity security traded through a single trading desk or system are aggregated on a continual basis throughout each trading day consistent with J.P. Morgan and its affiliates' duty of best execution for its clients. If aggregated trades are fully executed, accounts participating in the trade will be allocated their pro rata share on an average price basis. Partially completed orders generally will be allocated among the participating accounts on a pro-rata average price basis, subject to certain limited exceptions. For example, accounts that would receive a de minimis allocation relative to their size may be excluded from the order. Another exception may occur when thin markets or price volatility require that an aggregated order be completed in multiple executions over several days. If partial completion of the order would result in an uneconomic allocation to an account due to fixed transaction or custody costs, J.P. Morgan and its affiliates may exclude small orders until 50% of the total order is completed. Then the small orders will be executed. Following this procedure, small orders will lag in the early execution of the order, but will be completed before completion of the total order.

Purchases of money market instruments and fixed income securities cannot always be allocated pro-rata across the accounts with the same investment strategy and objective. However, J.P. Morgan and its affiliates attempt to mitigate any potential unfairness by basing non-pro rata allocations traded through a single trading desk or system upon objective predetermined criteria for the selection of investments and a disciplined process for allocating securities with similar duration, credit quality and liquidity in the good faith judgment of J.P. Morgan or its affiliates so that fair and equitable allocation will occur over time.

**Compensation.** J.P. Morgan's compensation programs are designed to align the behavior of employees with the achievement of its short- and long-term strategic goals, which revolve around client investment objectives. This is

accomplished, in part, through a balanced performance assessment process and total compensation program, as well as a clearly defined culture that rigorously and consistently promotes adherence to the highest ethical standards.

In determining portfolio manager compensation, J.P. Morgan uses a balanced discretionary approach to assess performance against four broad categories: (1) business results; (2) risk and control; (3) customers and clients; and (4) people and leadership.

These performance categories consider short-, medium- and long-term goals that drive sustained value for clients, while accounting for risk and control objectives. Specifically, portfolio manager performance is evaluated against various factors including the following: (1) blended pre-tax investment performance relative to competitive indices, generally weighted more to the long-term; (2) individual contribution relative to the client's risk/return objectives; and (3) adherence with J.P. Morgan's compliance, risk and regulatory procedures.

Feedback from J.P. Morgan's risk and control professionals is considered in assessing performance.

J.P. Morgan maintains a balanced total compensation program comprised of a mix of fixed compensation (including a competitive base salary and, for certain employees, a fixed cash allowance), variable compensation in the form of cash incentives, and long-term incentives in the form of equity based and/or fund-tracking incentives that vest over time. Long-term awards comprise of up to 60% of overall incentive compensation, depending on an employee's pay level.

Long-term awards are generally in the form of time-vested JPMC Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs"). However, portfolio managers are subject to a mandatory deferral of long-term incentive compensation under J.P. Morgan's Mandatory Investor Plan ("MIP"). The MIP provides for a rate of return equal to that of the Fund(s) that the portfolio managers manage, thereby aligning portfolio manager's pay with that of their client's experience/return. 100% of the portfolio manager's long-term incentive compensation is eligible for MIP with 50% allocated to the specific Fund(s) they manage, as determined by their respective manager. The remaining portion of the overall amount is electable and may be treated as if invested in any of the other Funds available in the plan or can take the form of RSUs.

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

### PACE High Yield Investments—Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management Inc.

NCRAM uses a team approach in managing the fund's portfolio. David Crall, Stephen Kotsen, Derek Leung and Eric Torres are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Stephen Kotsen:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	9	27
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	4
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,128.8	\$6,492.1	\$14,725.1
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$2,067.4

David Crall:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,128.8	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	11	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,128.8	\$1,863.1	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$398.8	\$0

	_
Fric	Intrac

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	0	3	1
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$0	\$109.9	\$90.9
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$56	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Actual or apparent conflicts of interest may arise where a portfolio manager has day-to-day responsibilities with respect to more than one account. These conflicts include but are not limited to: (i) the process for allocation of investments among multiple accounts for which a particular investment may be appropriate, (ii) allocation of a portfolio manager's time and attention among relevant accounts, (iii) execution of portfolio transactions, (iv) personal interests and related party interests, (v) compensation conflicts such as where NCRAM has an incentive fee arrangement or other interest with respect to one account that does not exist with respect to other accounts, and (vi) other investment and operational conflicts of interest. NCRAM's compliance policies and procedures, including the Code of Ethics, are designed to address these conflicts and to provide reasonable assurance that no client or group of clients is advantaged at the expense of any other client and that client accounts are treated equitably over time. However, there is no guarantee that such policies and procedures will detect each and every situation in which a conflict arises.

**Compensation.** The remuneration policy of NCRAM is, inter alia, aimed at preventing and controlling the risk of unfair treatment of clients.

The fixed remuneration is based on standards established by Nomura Holding America Inc.

For investment professionals, the bonus determination will include a review of portfolio and/or sector performance, client service, team building, and business development. NCRAM believes its compensation plan has allowed investment professionals the ability to benefit from the growth of its business, and it believes the firm's relatively low personnel turnover is partly due to the success of the firm's compensation program. Both short-term and long-term investment performance is a factor in compensation. Compensation is also tied to the long-term growth of the business, which is driven by performance as well as client service. Accordingly, NCRAM believes compensation is tied to the success of its clients on both a short- and long-term basis.

Compensation within NCRAM consists of a fixed amount which includes base salary and benefits together with a variable performance-related amount. The CEO will determine the bonus for investment professionals in consultation with the Senior Portfolio Manager. The variable performance-related remuneration is based upon an individual's performance as compared to agreed objectives which may include financial and non-financial performance measures, risk management and other relevant factors. Determination of variable performance-related compensation is sufficiently flexible to reward short- and long-term individual performance.

When an employee's total compensation (fixed plus variable remuneration) exceeds certain limits, the employee must participate in the Nomura Holdings, Inc. remuneration deferral scheme which links the employee's deferred compensation award in part to the performance of NHI shares. Also, in the case of certain portfolio managers, a portion of their deferred compensation may be linked to the performance of certain products managed by NCRAM, and NCRAM believes this further ties portfolio managers to the long-term performance of the firm's clients. Therefore, total compensation may consist of three elements: base salary, cash bonus and deferred bonus (via deferral vehicles, typically vesting over three years and linked to various instruments as described above).

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments—Wellington Management Company LLP, Artisan Partners Limited Partnership and Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC. Wellington Management Company LLP

Matthew C. Hand is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Wellington's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

Matthew C. Hand:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	10	8	11
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	3	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$73,992	\$1,732	\$1,330
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$57,981	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Individual investment professionals at Wellington manage multiple accounts for multiple clients. These accounts may include mutual funds, separate accounts (assets managed on behalf of institutions, such as pension funds, insurance companies, foundations, or separately managed account programs sponsored by financial intermediaries), bank common trust accounts, and hedge funds. The portfolio manager listed in the prospectus who are primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund ("Portfolio Manager") generally manage accounts in several different investment styles. These accounts may have investment objectives, strategies, time horizons, tax considerations and risk profiles that differ from those of the fund. The Portfolio Manager makes investment decisions for each account, including the fund, based on the investment objectives, policies, practices, benchmarks, cash flows, tax and other relevant investment considerations applicable to that account. Consequently, the Portfolio Manager may purchase or sell securities, including IPOs, for one account and not another account, and the performance of securities purchased for one account may vary from the performance of securities purchased for other accounts. Alternatively, these accounts may be managed in a similar fashion to the fund and thus the accounts may have similar, and in some cases nearly identical, objectives, strategies and/or holdings to that of the fund.

The Portfolio Manager at Wellington may place transactions on behalf of other accounts that are directly or indirectly contrary to investment decisions made on behalf of the fund, or make investment decisions that are similar to those made for the fund, both of which have the potential to adversely impact the fund depending on market conditions. For example, an investment professional may purchase a security in one account while appropriately selling that same security in another account. Similarly, the Portfolio Manager may purchase the same security for the fund and one or more other accounts at or about the same time. In those instances the other accounts will have access to their respective holdings prior to the public disclosure of the fund's holdings. In addition, some of these accounts have fee structures, including performance fees, which are or have the potential to be higher, in some cases significantly higher, than the fees Wellington receives for managing the fund. Because incentive payments paid by Wellington to the Portfolio Manager are tied to revenues earned by Wellington and, where noted, to the performance achieved by the manager in each account, the incentives associated with any given account may be significantly higher or lower than those associated with other accounts managed by the Portfolio Manager. Finally, the Portfolio Manager may hold shares or investments in the other pooled investment vehicles and/or other accounts identified above.

Wellington's goal is to meet its fiduciary obligation to treat all clients fairly and provide high quality investment services to all of its clients. Wellington has adopted and implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, which it believes address the conflicts associated with managing multiple accounts for multiple clients. In addition, Wellington monitors a variety of areas, including compliance with primary account guidelines, the allocation of IPOs, and compliance with the firm's Code of Ethics, and places additional investment restrictions on investment professionals who manage hedge funds and certain other accounts. Furthermore, senior investment and business personnel at Wellington periodically review the performance of Wellington's investment professionals. Although Wellington does not track the time an investment professional spends on a single account, Wellington does periodically assess whether an investment professional has adequate time and resources to effectively manage the investment professional's various client mandates.

**Compensation.** Wellington receives a fee based on the assets under management of the fund as set forth in the agreement between Wellington and UBS AM on behalf of the fund. Wellington pays its investment professionals out of its total revenues, including the advisory fees earned with respect to each fund. The following information relates to the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023:

Wellington's compensation structure is designed to attract and retain high-caliber investment professionals necessary to deliver high quality investment management services to its clients. Wellington's compensation of the fund's

manager listed in the prospectus who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the Portfolio (the "Investment Professional") includes a base salary and incentive components. The base salary for the Investment Professional who is a partner (a "Partner") of Wellington Management Group LLP, the ultimate holding company of Wellington, is generally a fixed amount determined by the managing partners of Wellington Management Group LLP. The Investment Professional is eligible to receive an incentive payment based on the revenues earned by Wellington from the fund managed by the Investment Professional and generally each other account managed by such Investment Professional. The Investment Professional's incentive payment relating to the relevant fund is linked to the gross pre-tax performance of the portion of the fund managed by the Investment Professional compared to the Russell 1000 Value Index over one, three, and five year periods, with an emphasis on five year results. Wellington applies similar incentive compensation structures (although the benchmarks or peer groups, time periods and rates may differ) to other accounts managed by the Investment Professional, including accounts with performance fees.

Portfolio-based incentives across all accounts managed by an investment professional can, and typically do, represent a significant portion of an investment professional's overall compensation; incentive compensation varies significantly by individual and can vary significantly from year to year. The Investment Professional may also be eligible for bonus payments based on their overall contribution to Wellington's business operations. Senior management at Wellington may reward individuals as it deems appropriate based on other factors. Each Partner is eligible to participate in a Partner-funded tax qualified retirement plan, the contributions to which are made pursuant to an actuarial formula. Mr. Hand is a partner.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own any shares of the fund.

#### **Artisan Partners Limited Partnership**

Daniel J. O'Keefe and Michael McKinnon are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Artisan Partners' allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Daniel J. O'Keefe:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed*	2	15	21
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	1
Assets Managed (in millions)*	\$2,208	\$17,735	\$4,079
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$69	\$1,141

<sup>\*</sup> These numbers also reflect the performance-based fee accounts.

Michael McKinnon:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed*	2	15	21
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	1
Assets Managed (in millions)*	\$2,208	\$17,735	\$4,079
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$69	\$1,141

<sup>\*</sup> These numbers also reflect the performance-based fee accounts.

**Potential Conflicts of Interest.** There are a number of ways in which the interests of Artisan Partners, the fund's portfolio managers and their other personnel might conflict with the interests of the fund and its shareholders, including:

Sharing of Personnel, Services, Research and Advice Among Clients. Because all client accounts within Artisan Partners' select equity strategy, including the fund's accounts, are managed similarly, substantially all of the research and portfolio management activities conducted by the investment team benefit all clients within the select equity strategy. Artisan Partners' administrative and operational personnel divide their time among services to the fund and other client accounts.

Restrictions on Activities. Artisan Partners generally does not tailor its investment management services to the individual needs of clients, but rather invests all of the accounts in a particular strategy in a similar manner. To prevent the potentially negative impact that the restrictions of one client account or multiple client accounts may have on the manner in which Artisan Partners invests on behalf of all of its client accounts, Artisan Partners generally does not accept accounts subject to restrictions that Artisan Partners believes would cause it to deviate from its stated investment strategy or adversely affect its ability to manage client accounts. However, under certain circumstances, Artisan Partners does accept accounts subject to certain limitations on specific types of investments or transactions (for example, derivatives or short selling) or certain markets (for example, India), which can result in such accounts having different exposures and/or having a different risk profile compared to other accounts in the strategy, including the fund.

Investments in Issuers with Business Relationships with Artisan Partners. From time to time, clients in a particular investment strategy, including the fund in the select equity strategy, will invest in a security issued by a company, or an affiliate of a company, that is also a client of or has another business relationship with Artisan Partners or its affiliates. Likewise, clients in a particular investment strategy can invest in a security issued by a company, a director or officer of which is also a director of Artisan Partners Funds, Inc., a registered investment company advised by Artisan Partners. Artisan Partners has written policies designed to prevent the misuse of material non-public information. The operation of those policies and of applicable securities laws may prevent the execution of an otherwise desirable purchase or sale in a public securities transaction in a client account if Artisan Partners believes that it is or may be in possession of material non-public information regarding the issuer or security that would be the subject of that transaction.

With prior written approval, Artisan Partners will allow its personnel to serve as a director of a public company. Because of the heightened risk of misuse, or allegations of misuse, of material non-public information, Artisan Partners does not generally permit investment by client accounts or persons covered by Artisan Partners' Code of Ethics in securities of any issuer of which an Artisan Partners staff member is a director, except that such staff member may purchase and sell that company's securities for his or her own account or for the account of his or her immediate

ate family members. This prohibition may foreclose investment opportunities that would be available to the fund if the staff member were not a director.

Side-by-Side Management. Potential conflicts of interest may arise in the management of multiple investment strategies by a single investment team. For instance, an investment team can provide advice to accounts in one investment strategy, including the fund, that differs from advice given to accounts in another investment strategy. If an investment team identifies a limited investment opportunity that is suitable for more than one strategy, a strategy may not be able to take full advantage of that opportunity. There also are circumstances when an investment team has an incentive to devote more time or resources to, or to implement different ideas in, one strategy over another. An investment team has a potential conflict of interest when it manages accounts that are charged a performance-based fee (including private investment funds) and accounts that are charged an asset-based fee because the fees earned from accounts with performance-based fees have the potential to exceed the fees earned from other accounts. An investment team may also execute transactions for one strategy that may adversely impact the value of securities held by a different strategy or team. For example, an investment team may engage in short sales of securities of an issuer in which the fund it manages also invests. In such a case, the investment team could harm the performance of the fund for the benefit of the account engaging in short sales if the short sales cause the market value of the securities to fall. Artisan Partners maintains policies and procedures and internal review processes designed to mitigate potential conflicts of interest arising from side-by-side investment management.

Trade Aggregation and Allocation. Artisan Partners can, to the extent permitted by law, aggregate trades and allocate investment opportunities among clients. Artisan Partners seeks to treat all of its similarly situated clients fairly when allocating investment opportunities among clients. Artisan Partners does not consider its own interests when allocating trades, which includes, for example, the fees of a client or whether the client is a proprietary account. Artisan Partners has compliance policies and procedures intended to address conflicts of interest relating to the allocation of investment opportunities, which are reviewed regularly by Artisan Partners and modified from time to time. Allocations of aggregated trades, particularly trade orders that were only partially completed due to limited availability (for example, initial public offerings or private placements), and allocation of investment opportunities generally, particularly opportunities that have a required minimum investment, could raise a potential conflict of interest. The potential conflicts among clients in the same strategy are mitigated because Artisan Partners' investment teams generally try to keep all client portfolios in the same strategy invested in the same securities (excluding private investments) with approximately the same weightings subject to certain exceptions and limitations. Investment opportunities will be allocated differently among clients in a strategy under Artisan Partners' trading procedures due to, for example, the particular characteristics of a client, such as size of the client, cash position, liquidity needs and timing, tax status, risk tolerance and investment restrictions, or with respect to private investments, the client's willingness and ability to invest in private investments, or for other reasons in Artisan Partners' reasonable discretion.

Additionally, private investments and certain other investment opportunities will not be allocated pro-rata among clients in different strategies due to, among other reasons, difference in the strategic focus or objective of each strategy, including the intended concentration, exposure to different investment factors, themes or sectors, risk tolerance and desired weighting of investments. Additional factors that Artisan Partners may consider in allocating these investment opportunities between clients in different strategies, or even within the same strategy, include, without limitation: the inability to divide the investment among multiple clients; Artisan Partners' perception of the liquidity of each client at the time of the investment and on a going-forward basis; relative exposure to market trends; the remaining term or time remaining in the investment period of each such client; the terms, structure and availability of financing in respect of an investment; the representations and diligence required for each client; the small size of an opportunity or the structure of an investment; the perceived relative value of the investment opportunity relative to other investment opportunities available to each client; the geographic focus of the investment programs of each client; the location of the investment opportunity; the credit quality and/or expected yield of the investment; and the investment programs and portfolio positions of each client for which participation is appropriate. To the extent an opportunity cannot, or in Artisan Partners' discretion should not, be allocated among multiple

clients, such opportunities may be allocated among the different clients on a basis that Artisan Partners considers fair and equitable over time.

In addition, there are instances where a particular security is held by, or appropriate for, more than one client ("cross holdings") managed by an investment team or different investment teams due to the overlap of their investment universes; however, investment decisions for each strategy and client are generally made by the relevant investment team independently of investment decisions for another strategy or client, such that investment opportunities likely will be allocated differently among clients across such applicable investment strategies. An investment strategy or client with a higher risk tolerance, for example, may substantially outperform or underperform an investment strategy or client with a lower risk tolerance even when managed by the same investment team in a similar strategy.

As a result of the allocation of investment opportunities (and the investment focus of certain clients), the investments made for a fund and other clients managed by the same investment team may be significantly different, and, consequently, the respective performances of such clients are expected to differ even when managed in the same strategy.

"Same way" transactions (that is, all buys or all sells) in a security held by more than one client in a strategy are generally aggregated across all participating clients in the strategy and same way transactions may be aggregated across clients in different strategies when Artisan Partners considers doing so appropriate and practicable under the circumstances (for example, Artisan Partners has established certain information barriers and policies between certain of its investment teams that would make trade aggregation impracticable). The portfolio manager of one strategy may impose a price limit or some other differing instruction and so may decide not to participate in an aggregated order. In those cases, a trader works both trades in the market at the same time, subject to the requirements of Artisan Partners' trading procedures. When orders for a trade in a security are opposite to one another (that is, one client is buying a security, while another is selling the security) and the trader receives a buy order while a sell order is pending (or vice versa), the traders will seek to mitigate the risk of inadvertent cross trades by (i) utilizing different brokers or venues, or (ii) utilizing brokers or venues that maintain crossing prevention controls.

Artisan Partners may sell a security short on behalf of one client even if the same security, or another security of the same issuer, is held long by another client. Similarly, Artisan Partners is permitted to purchase a security long on behalf of one client even if the same security, or another security of the same issuer, is, or has been, sold short by another client. Artisan Partners could be viewed as having a potential conflict of interest if it sells short certain securities in a client while holding the same securities long in other clients. Conversely, Artisan Partners could be viewed as harming the performance of a client that holds a long position in the same security or other similar securities (e.g. securities in the same sector as the security sold short) for the benefit of its clients who are selling the security short if the short-selling transactions cause the market value of the security or similar securities to decline. Artisan Partners has in place policies and procedures that it believes are reasonably designed to identify and resolve actual and potential conflicts of interest related to short selling securities.

Certain clients have restrictions prohibiting the execution of transactions through one or more designated broker-dealers or they may maintain other restrictions or account limitations (e.g., instrument restrictions) that impact Artisan Partners' ability to aggregate a given trade. As a result, Artisan Partners might be required to separate a client's transaction from the aggregated transactions for other clients and send the client's transaction for execution to a different broker-dealer or at a different point in time. A transaction being executed separately as a result of the client's restriction is typically placed in the market after the aggregated transaction for all other clients is placed in the market. In addition, substitute transactions may be placed in a different instrument before or after the aggregated transaction (e.g., physical shares rather than options) and/or may not be placed at all. As a result, the trade or substitute trade for the restricted client is likely to be executed at a different point in time as compared to the aggregated transaction, which is likely to result in the restricted client receiving different returns than other clients.

Waivers to Artisan Partners' allocation procedures may be made with approval in advance by one of certain designated members of Artisan Partners' management who are not part of the portfolio management process.

Model Delivery. Artisan Partners provides non-discretionary model portfolios to certain institutional clients and sponsors of managed account programs. Artisan Partners provides the sponsor with a model portfolio that represents the securities Artisan Partners recommends for a particular strategy and the sponsor uses the model portfolio to assist in developing one or more portfolios for itself or its clients (the model delivery programs). In a model delivery program, the frequency and timing of the model portfolio delivery is agreed upon with each sponsor and the model portfolio is typically provided on a delayed basis after Artisan Partners trades for its discretionary clients. Artisan Partners may also sequence or rotate the delivery of the model portfolio when it is being delivered to multiple sponsors. As a result, the sponsors of these programs typically receive different prices for their clients given, for example, price movements caused by market activity (including trades placed by Artisan Partners and other sponsors) and that the trades are not aggregated with Artisan Partners' trades.

Fees. Like the fees Artisan Partners receives from the fund, the fees Artisan Partners receives as compensation from other client accounts are typically calculated as a percentage of the client's assets under management. Artisan Partners or its affiliates receive performance-based allocations or fees from the private funds it sponsors and expects to receive performance-based fees from accounts in its other strategies. In addition, Artisan Partners will, under certain circumstances, negotiate performance-based fee arrangements with other accounts. Although Artisan Partners may have an incentive to manage the assets of accounts with performance-based fees differently from its other accounts, Artisan Partners maintains policies and procedures and internal review processes designed to mitigate such conflicts.

Investing in Different Parts of an Issuer's Capital Structure. Conflicts potentially limiting the fund's investment opportunities may also arise when the fund and other Artisan Partners clients invest in different parts of an issuer's capital structure, such as when the fund owns equity securities of an issuer and other clients own senior debt obligations or junior tranches of the same issuer. In such circumstances, decisions over whether to trigger an event of default, over the terms of any workout, or how to exit an investment may result in conflicts of interest. In order to minimize such conflicts, a portfolio manager may avoid certain investment opportunities and negotiations with issuers that would potentially give rise to conflicts with other Artisan Partners clients or Artisan Partners may enact internal procedures designed to minimize such conflicts, which could have the effect of limiting the fund's investment opportunities. Additionally, if Artisan Partners acquires material non-public confidential information in connection with its business activities for other clients, a portfolio manager may be restricted from purchasing securities or selling securities for the fund. When making investment decisions where a conflict of interest may arise, Artisan Partners will endeavor to act in a fair and equitable manner as between the fund and other clients; however, in certain instances the resolution of the conflict may result in Artisan Partners acting on behalf of another client in a manner that may not be in the best interest, or may be opposed to the best interest, of the fund.

Confidential Information Access. From time to time, employees of Artisan Partners may receive material non-public information (referred to herein as "Confidential Information"). Employees may obtain Confidential Information, voluntarily or involuntarily, through Artisan Partners' management activities or the employee's outside activities. Confidential Information may be received under varying circumstances, including, but not limited to, upon execution of a non-disclosure agreement with an issuer, as a result of serving on a creditors' committee or through conversations with a company's management team. Under applicable law, Artisan Partners' employees are generally prohibited from disclosing or using Confidential Information in effecting purchases and sales in public securities transactions for their personal benefit or for the benefit of any other person (including clients). Accordingly, should an employee receive Confidential Information, the employee is generally prohibited from communicating that information or using that information in public securities transactions, which could limit the ability to buy or sell certain investments even when the limitation is detrimental to Artisan Partners, the employee or the client, including the fund.

Artisan Partners may seek to avoid the receipt of Confidential Information when it determines that the receipt of Confidential Information would restrict the fund or other clients of Artisan Partners from trading in securities they hold or in which they may invest. In circumstances when Artisan Partners declines to receive Confidential Information from an issuer, an account, such as the fund, may be disadvantaged in comparison to other investors, including with respect to evaluating the issuer and the price the account would pay or receive when it buys or sells those investments. Further, in situations when the account is asked, for example, to grant consents, waivers or amendments with respect to such investments, Artisan Partners' ability to assess such consents, waivers and amendments may be impacted by its lack of access to Confidential Information.

Artisan Partners has adopted policies that establish an information barrier between the Credit Team and its other investment teams to minimize the likelihood that Confidential Information received by the Credit Team will be shared with another team. In addition, Artisan Partners also creates information barriers around other persons having access to Confidential Information ("walled-off personnel") to prevent access to Confidential Information, and therefore to limit the restrictions on others at Artisan Partners.

From time to time, Artisan Partners uses paid expert networks. Artisan Partners has adopted specific procedures to prevent and address the inadvertent receipt of Confidential Information from the expert networks.

Portfolio Transactions and Soft Dollars. Artisan Partners has an obligation to seek best execution for clients—that is, execution of trades in a manner intended, considering the circumstances, to secure that combination of net price and execution that will maximize the value of Artisan Partners' investment decisions for the benefit of its clients. Artisan Partners uses client commissions to pay for brokerage and research services (often referred to as "soft dollars") if Artisan Partners determines that such items meet the criteria outlined in its commission management policy and do not impair its duty to seek best execution. Artisan Partners does not consider, in selecting broker-dealers to be used in effecting securities transactions for the fund, whether Artisan Partners or its affiliates received client referrals from the broker-dealer. Artisan Partners has potential conflicts of interest arising from its execution of portfolio transactions and use of soft dollars. Artisan Partners has adopted procedures with respect to soft dollars, which are included in Artisan Partners compliance program.

Proprietary and Personal Investments and Code of Ethics. Artisan Partners' proprietary accounts also present potential conflicts of interest with Artisan Partners' clients, including the fund. Artisan Partners from time to time uses a proprietary account to evaluate the viability of an investment strategy or bridge what would otherwise be a gap in a performance track record. Proprietary accounts are, in general, treated like client accounts for purposes of allocation of investment opportunities. To the extent there is overlap between the investments of one or more proprietary accounts and the accounts of Artisan Partners' clients managed in the same strategy, all portfolio transactions in the strategy are aggregated, where practicable, and allocated in accordance with Artisan Partners' written allocation procedures among participating accounts. Artisan Partners believes that aggregation and allocation of trades as described in its written procedures mitigates conflicts of interest arising from proprietary investments in the same securities held by clients and the market impact that could result from such proprietary trading activity if conducted on a stand-alone basis

Personal transactions are subject to Artisan Partners' Code of Ethics, which generally provides that personnel of Artisan Partners may not take personal advantage of any information that they may have concerning Artisan Partners' current investment program. The Code of Ethics requires pre-approval of most personal securities transactions believed to present potentially meaningful risk of conflict of interest (including acquisitions of securities as part of an initial public offering or private placement). The Code of Ethics provides that Artisan Partners' compliance team will review such personal securities transactions and determine, among other things, whether the acquisition is consistent with applicable regulatory requirements and the purposes of the Code of Ethics and its underlying policies.

In addition, the Code of Ethics requires reports of personal securities transactions (which generally are in the form of duplicate confirmations and brokerage account statements) to be filed with the compliance department at least quarterly. Those reports are reviewed for conflicts, or potential conflicts, with client transactions.

The Code of Ethics also contains policies designed to prevent the misuse of material, non-public information and to protect the confidential information of Artisan Partners' clients. Artisan Partners, its affiliates and its employees can give advice or take action for their own accounts that differ from, conflict with or is adverse to advice given or action taken for the fund. These activities may adversely affect the prices and availability of other investments held by, or potentially considered for purchase by, the fund.

Artisan Partners, its affiliates and their employees are permitted to, and frequently do, invest in registered investment funds and other pooled investment vehicles sponsored by Artisan Partners often at reduced or no fees when allowed by applicable law. Artisan Partners also provides certain cash-based awards to its investment professionals (referred to by Artisan Partners as franchise capital awards) that, prior to vesting, Artisan Partners will generally invest such amounts in one or more of the investment strategies managed by the investment professional (including by investing in registered investment funds). Artisan Partners believes that investments made in these pooled investment vehicles and franchise capital awards help align Artisan Partners' and its employees' financial interests with those of Artisan Partners' clients. These pooled investment vehicles, even if they are proprietary accounts of Artisan Partners, are treated like a client account for purposes of allocation of investment opportunities.

Compensation. Artisan Partners' portfolio managers are compensated through a fixed base salary or similar payment and a subjectively determined incentive bonus or payment that is a portion of a bonus pool, the aggregate amount of which is tied to Artisan Partners' fee revenues generated by all accounts included within the manager's investment strategies, including the fund. Artisan Partners also provides certain cash-based awards to its investment professionals (referred to by Artisan Partners as franchise capital awards) that, prior to vesting, Artisan Partners will generally invest such award amounts in one or more of the investment strategies managed by the investment professional. Portfolio managers may also receive a portion of the performance fee revenues or allocations from private funds sponsored by Artisan Partners. Performance fee accounts (including private funds) may be managed by certain portfolio managers of the fund using strategies not offered in the fund. Allocations to and weightings in these accounts will differ from allocations to and weightings in the fund managed by these portfolio managers because they use different strategies. An investment strategy with a higher risk tolerance may substantially outperform or underperform an investment strategy with a lower risk tolerance even when managed by the same portfolio managers in a similar strategy. Artisan Partners' portfolio managers also participate in group life, health, medical reimbursement, and retirement plans that are generally available to all of Artisan Partners' salaried associates.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **Hotchkis and Wiley Capital Management, LLC.**

Hotchkis & Wiley uses a team approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. George Davis, Jr., Scott McBride and Judd Peters are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the

fund. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	23	10	57
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	2	1	4
Assets Managed (in billions)	\$19.94	\$2.7	\$7.46
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in billions)	\$12.63	\$0.04	\$0.84

Potential conflicts of interest. Hotchkis & Wiley's portion of the fund is managed by Hotchkis & Wiley's investment team ("Investment Team"). The Investment Team also manages institutional accounts and other mutual funds in several different investment strategies. The portfolios within an investment strategy are managed using a target portfolio; however, each portfolio may have different restrictions, cash flows, tax and other relevant considerations which may preclude a portfolio from participating in certain transactions for that investment strategy. Consequently, the performance of portfolios may vary due to these different considerations. The Investment Team may place transactions for one investment strategy that are directly or indirectly contrary to investment decisions made on behalf of another investment strategy. Hotchkis & Wiley also provides model portfolio investment recommendations to sponsors without trade execution or additional services. The timing of model delivery recommendations will vary depending on the contractual arrangement with the program sponsor. As a result, depending on the program arrangement and circumstances surrounding a trade order, Hotchkis & Wiley's discretionary clients may receive prices that are more favorable than those received by a client of a program sponsor or vice versa. Hotchkis & Wiley may be restricted from purchasing more than a limited percentage of the outstanding shares of a company or otherwise restricted from trading in a company's securities due to other regulatory limitations. If a company is a viable investment for more than one investment strategy, Hotchkis & Wiley has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that all of its clients are treated fairly and equitably. Additionally, potential and actual conflicts of interest may also arise as a result of Hotchkis & Wiley's other business activities and Hotchkis & Wiley's possession of material non-public information about an issuer, which may have an adverse impact on one group of clients while benefiting another group. In certain situations, Hotchkis & Wiley will purchase different classes of securities of the same company (e.g. senior debt, subordinated debt, and/or equity) in different investment strategies which can give rise to conflicts where Hotchkis & Wiley may advocate for the benefit of one class of security which may be adverse to another security that is held by clients of a different strategy. Hotchkis & Wiley seeks to mitigate the impact of these conflicts on a case by case basis.

Hotchkis & Wiley utilizes soft dollars to obtain brokerage and research services, which may create a conflict of interest in allocating clients' brokerage business. Research services may be used in servicing any or all of Hotchkis & Wiley's clients (including model portfolio delivery clients) across all of the firm's investment strategies, and may benefit certain accounts more than others. Certain discretionary client accounts may also pay a less proportionate amount of commissions for research services. If a research product provides both a research and a non-research function, Hotchkis & Wiley will make a reasonable allocation of the use and pay for the non-research portion with hard dollars. Hotchkis & Wiley will make decisions involving soft dollars in a manner that satisfies the requirements of Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Different types of accounts and investment strategies may have different fee structures. Additionally, certain accounts pay Hotchkis & Wiley performance-based fees, which may vary depending on how well the account performs compared to a benchmark. Because such fee arrangements have the potential to create an incentive for Hotchkis & Wiley to favor such accounts in making investment decisions and allocations, Hotchkis & Wiley has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to ensure that all of its clients are treated fairly and equitably, including in respect of allocation decisions, such as initial public offerings.

Since accounts are managed to a target portfolio by the Investment Team, adequate time and resources are consistently applied to all accounts in the same investment strategy. Investment personnel of the firm or its affiliates may be permitted to be commercially or professionally involved with an issuer of securities. Any potential conflicts of interest from such involvement would be monitored for compliance with the firm's code of conduct.

**Compensation.** The Investment Team, including portfolio managers, is compensated in various forms, which may include one or more of the following: (i) a base salary, (ii) bonus, (iii) profit sharing and (iv) equity ownership. Compensation is used to reward, attract and retain high quality investment professionals.

The Investment Team is evaluated and accountable at three levels. The first level is individual contribution to the research and decision-making process, including the quality and quantity of work achieved. The second level is teamwork, generally evaluated through contribution within sector teams. The third level pertains to overall portfolio and firm performance.

Fixed salaries and discretionary bonuses for investment professionals are determined by the Chief Executive Officer of Hotchkis & Wiley using tools which may include annual evaluations, compensation surveys, feedback from other employees, and advice from members of Hotchkis & Wiley's Executive and Compensation Committees. The amount of the bonus is determined by the total amount of Hotchkis & Wiley's bonus pool available for the year, which is generally a function of revenues. No investment professional receives a bonus that is a pre-determined percentage of revenues or net income. Compensation is thus subjective rather than formulaic.

The portfolio managers of the fund own equity in Hotchkis & Wiley. Hotchkis & Wiley believes that the employee ownership structure of the firm will be a significant factor in ensuring a motivated and stable employee base going forward. Hotchkis & Wiley believes that the combination of competitive compensation levels and equity ownership provides Hotchkis & Wiley with a demonstrable advantage in the retention and motivation of employees. Portfolio managers who own equity in Hotchkis & Wiley receive their pro rata share of Hotchkis & Wiley's profits.

Investment professionals may also receive contributions under Hotchkis & Wiley's profit sharing/401(k) plan.

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

### PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments—J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc., GQG Partners LLC and Polen Capital Management, LLC.

#### J.P. Morgan Investment Management Inc.

Giri Devulapally, Joseph Wilson, Larry H. Lee, Holly Fleiss and Robert Maloney are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of J.P. Morgan's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Giri Devulapally:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	7	6	81
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$66,814.3	\$5,906.2	\$16,541.9
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$0
Joseph Wilson:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	3	74
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$65,792.3	\$12,347.2	\$17,180.7
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$0
Holly Fleiss:			
	Registered Investment Companies	Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	3	22
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$65,792.3	\$9,026.5	\$13,141.9
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$0

Larry Lee:			
	Registered Investment Companies	Other Pooled Investment Vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	2	23
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$81,974	\$5,535.1	\$13,142
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$23

Robert Maloney:				
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts	
Number of Accounts Managed	3	1	1	
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0	
Assets Managed (in thousands)	\$65,249.3	\$3,541.3	\$755.3	
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in thousands)	\$0	\$0	\$0	

<sup>\*</sup> The total value and number of accounts managed by a portfolio manager may include sub-accounts of asset allocation, multi-managed and other accounts.

**Potential conflicts of interest.** For information regarding potential conflicts of interest of J.P. Morgan, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Global Fixed Income Investments."

**Compensation.** For information regarding the compensation policies of J.P. Morgan, please see the above language in this section under "PACE Global Fixed Income Investments."

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **GQG Partners LLC.**

Rajiv Jain, Sudarshan Murthy, and Brian Kersmanc are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of GQG's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Rajiv Jain:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	12	42	44
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	3	7
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$49,206	\$34,916	\$22,987
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$318	\$5,307

Sudarshan Murthy:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	12	42	44
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	3	7
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$49,206	\$34,916	\$22,987
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$318	\$5,307

#### **Brian Kersmanc:**

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	12	42	44
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	3	7
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$49,206	\$34,916	\$22,987
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$318	\$5,307

**Potential Conflicts of Interest.** The portfolio managers are also responsible for managing other account portfolios in addition to the fund, including account portfolios in which they and/or other employees of GQG have an ownership interest.

The portfolio managers' management of other accounts may give rise to potential conflicts of interest in connection with the management of the fund's investments on the one hand and the investments of the other accounts, on the other. The side-by-side management of the fund and other accounts presents a variety of potential conflicts of interests. For example, a portfolio manager may purchase or sell securities for one portfolio and not another. The performance of securities within one portfolio may differ from the performance of securities in another portfolio.

In some cases, another account managed by a portfolio manager may compensate GQG based on performance of the portfolio held by that account. Performance-based fee arrangements may create an incentive for GQG to favor higher fee-paying accounts over other accounts, including accounts that are charged no performance-based fees, in the allocation of investment opportunities. GQG has adopted policies and procedures that seek to mitigate such conflicts and to ensure that all clients are treated fairly and equitably.

Another potential conflict could arise in instances in which securities considered as investments for the fund are also appropriate investments for other investment accounts managed by GQG. When a decision is made to buy or sell a security for the fund and one or more of the other accounts, GQG may aggregate the purchase or sale of the securities and will allocate the securities transactions in a manner it believes to be equitable under the circumstances. However, a variety of factors can determine whether a particular account may participate in a particular aggregated transaction. Because of such differences, there may be differences in invested positions and securities held in accounts managed according to similar strategies. When aggregating orders, GQG employs procedures designed to ensure accounts will be treated in a fair and equitable manner and no account will be favored over any other. GQG has implemented specific policies and procedures to address any potential conflicts.

GQG may invest in securities of companies issued by broker-dealers (or their affiliates) used by GQG to effect transactions for client accounts, including the fund. In addition, from time to time, GQG directs trades to broker-dealers that are clients of GQG (or are affiliated with clients of GQG, including without limitation, UBS AM) that provide investment banking or other financial services to GQG (or are affiliated with companies that provide such services) and/or that sponsor pooled vehicles to which GQG provides investment advisory services (or are affiliated with such sponsors). These various business relationships with other companies give rise to rise to conflicts of interest and incentives to favor the interests of these companies when GQG provides services to the fund and its other clients. GQG has adopted policies and procedures that are designed to address such conflicts of interest to help ensure that it acts in a manner that is consistent with its fiduciary obligations to all clients.

Subject to its duty to seek best execution, GQG often selects broker-dealers that furnish GQG with proprietary and/or third-party research and brokerage services (collectively, "Services") that provide, in GQG's view, appropriate assistance in the investment decision-making process. These Services may be bundled with the trade execution, clearing, or settlement services provided by a particular broker-dealer and/or, subject to applicable law, GQG may pay for such Services with client commissions (or "soft dollars"). Services received by GQG may include, for example, proprietary and third-party research reports on markets, companies, industries and securities, access to broker-dealer analysts and issuer representatives, and trading software to route orders to market centers. As result, the fund may pay a commission that is higher than the commission another qualified broker-dealer might charge to effect the same transaction. Use of soft dollars may create a conflict of interest in executing trades for client accounts. Services may be used in servicing any or all of GQG's clients, and may benefit certain accounts more than others. GQG receives such Services in a manner consistent with the "safe harbor" requirements of Section 28(e) of the Exchange Act and has adopted policies and procedures to mitigate conflicts.

**Compensation.** Each portfolio manager receives a fixed salary, retirement benefits, investment management services from GQG, and, in the case of Messrs. Kersmanc and Murthy, variable compensation, which includes a discretionary annual bonus that is based on both a qualitative and quantitative evaluation of the portfolio manager's performance and GQG's overall performance and profitability. A portion of the discretionary annual bonus is typically paid in cash each year, and the remainder of the bonus is normally allocated to a deferred compensation plan, subject to a vesting schedule and paid out over time (e.g., 3 years). Amounts deferred under the plan earn the rate of return earned by the institutional shares class of a proprietary mutual fund advised by GQG, calculated gross of management fees but net of other operating expenses. No portfolio manager's compensation is directly based on the value of assets in a fund's portfolio. In addition, from time-to-time, employees of GQG, including Messrs. Kersmanc and Murthy, may receive an award of restricted stock units in GQG's parent company, GQG Partners Inc. The grant of any such award is subject to the discretion of the Board of Directors of GQG Partners Inc.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### Polen Capital Management, LLC.

Dan Davidowitz and Brandon Ladoff are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Polen's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	9	2,694
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	5
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$8,225	\$6,141	\$33,610
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$2,388

**Potential Conflicts of Interest.** Polen provides advisory services to other clients that invest in securities of the same type in which the fund invests. Polen is aware of its obligation to ensure that when orders for the same securities are entered on behalf of the funds and other accounts, the funds receive fair and equitable allocation of these orders, particularly where affiliated accounts may participate. Polen attempts to mitigate potential conflicts of interest by adopting policies and procedures regarding trade execution, brokerage allocation and order aggregation that provide a methodology for ensuring fair treatment for all clients in situations where orders cannot be completely filled or filled at different prices.

**Compensation.** The following are all components of compensation for both investment and non-investment personnel:

- 1) Competitive base salary—The firm uses compensation surveys, relative peer comparisons and McLagan data during recruiting to ensure base salaries are competitive.
- 2) Individual bonuses—An annual bonus pool is funded based on competitive market analysis. Individual bonuses then are determined based upon a balanced scorecard methodology, which is outlined below.

#### **Balanced Scorecard**

Each employee is evaluated on the following three criteria:

- a) Culture—does the employee represent the core values of the firm and does the employee lead by example regarding autonomy, integrity and purpose?
- b) Core Skills—does the employee's skill set meet, exceed or fall below the requirements of the job and is the employee training to continuously improve toward mastery of a particular skill?
- c) Client—since the client comes first, is the employee adding value toward achieving the firm's mission and is the employee adding value to client interactions?
- 3) Retirement Savings Plan—At the end of each calendar year or monthly, the firm allocates contributions to country specific retirement savings plans that enable its employees to invest in its funds alongside its clients and strengthen its alignment with clients. Individual contributions are formulaic based on plan documents and country specific governing rules.
- 4) Firm bonuses—Each year, the firm sets goals related to client retention and growth. When firm goals are achieved, the firm allocates additional bonus pool funds to all employees who are not commission based or equity participants.

5) Equity owners and phantom equity (long-term incentive plan) participants receive their pro rata allocation of annual profits.

The firm is dedicated to retaining high-performing employees with competitive compensation. Future equity participation through its phantom equity plan will be evaluated annually.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments—Sapience Investments, LLC, Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC and Huber Capital Management, LLC Sapience Investments, LLC

Sapience utilizes a team-based approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Samir Sikka, Sapience's Chief Investment Officer ("CIO"), is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Sapience's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	0	0	14
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$329
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

Potential conflicts of interest. Sapience's CIO faces inherent conflicts of interest in his day-to-day management of the fund and other accounts because the fund may have different investment objectives, strategies and risk profiles than the other accounts managed. For instance, to the extent that the CIO manages accounts with different investment strategies than the fund, he may from time to time be inclined to purchase securities, including initial public offerings, for one account but not for the fund. Additionally, some of the accounts managed by the CIO may have different fee structures, including performance fees, which are or have the potential to be higher or lower, in some cases significantly higher or lower, than the fees paid by the fund. The differences in fee structures may provide an incentive to the CIO to allocate more favorable trades to the higher-paying accounts. To minimize the effects of these inherent conflicts of interest, Sapience has adopted and implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, that it believes address the potential conflicts associated with managing portfolios for multiple clients and ensure that all clients are treated fairly and equitably. Accordingly, security block purchases are allocated to all accounts with similar objectives in proportionate weightings. Furthermore, Sapience has adopted a Code of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 under the Investment Company Act and Rule 204A-1 under the Advisers Act to address potential conflicts associated with managing the fund and any personal accounts the portfolio managers may maintain.

The CIO often provides investment management for separate accounts advised in the same or similar investment style as that provided to the fund. While management of multiple accounts could potentially lead to conflicts of interest over various issues such as trade allocation, fee disparities and research acquisition, Sapience has implemented policies and procedures for the express purpose of ensuring that clients are treated fairly and that potential conflicts of interest are minimized.

**Compensation.** Compensation for investment professionals consists of a base salary, bonus, and equity distributions. (Equity distributions are a share of Sapience's profits. These distributions are based on each investment professional's ownership percentage in Sapience.) A material portion of each professional's annual compensation is in the form of a bonus tied to results relative to clients' benchmarks, overall client satisfaction and individual contribution. Sapience's compensation system is not determined on an account-specific basis. Rather, bonuses are tied to composite performance relative to specified benchmarks (with respect to the fund, these benchmarks are the Russell 2000 Value Index, Russell 2000 Index, Lipper Small-Cap Value Funds and Lipper Small-Cap Broad Funds (an aggregate of Small-Cap Value, Small-Cap Core and Small-Cap Growth Funds)). To reinforce long-term focus, performance is measured over longer time periods (typically three to five years). Analysts are encouraged to maintain a long-term focus and are not compensated for the number of their recommendations that are purchased in the portfolio. Rather, their bonuses are tied to overall strategy performance.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

#### Kayne Anderson Rudnick Investment Management, LLC.

Julie Kutasov and Craig Stone are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of KAR's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Julie Kutasov:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	3	769
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,329	\$544	\$18,959
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$435

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	4	1,484
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,175	\$547	\$20,423

**Potential conflicts of interest.** There are certain inherent conflicts of interest that arise in connection with the portfolio managers' management of the fund's investments and the investments of any other accounts that they manage. Such conflicts include aggregation of orders for all accounts managed by a particular portfolio manager, the allocation of purchases across all such accounts, the existence of performance-based fee accounts alongside standard fee accounts, employee personal trading, and soft dollar and commission sharing arrangements that the firm has in place that benefit the fund and/or such other accounts. KAR works to ensure that all clients are treated

fairly in the execution of orders and allocation of trades. The firm has established trading policies and procedures

\$0

\$435

\$0

202

**Craig Stone:** 

Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions) designed to limit conflicts of interest between the fund and other accounts managed by KAR. The firm also has in place employee personal trading policies and procedures and a Code of Ethics that is designed to mitigate conflicts of interest arising from employee personal trading activities.

**Compensation.** Investment professionals receive a competitive base salary, an incentive bonus opportunity and a benefits package.

Base Salary. Each portfolio manager is paid a fixed base salary, which is designed to be competitive in light of the individual's experience and responsibilities. KAR management uses compensation survey results of investment industry compensation conducted by an independent third party in evaluating competitive market compensation for its investment management professionals.

Incentive Bonus. Incentive bonus payments for investment personnel are based on targeted compensation levels, adjusted for profitability and investment performance factors, and a subjective assessment of contribution to the team effort. Individual payments are assessed using comparisons of actual investment performance with specific peer group or index measures. For compensation purposes, the fund/account performance is generally measured over one-, three-, and five-year periods and an individual manager's participation is based on the performance of each fund/account managed. The short-term incentive payment is generally paid in cash, but a portion of this is payable as deferred compensation that is materially tied to the long-term risk-adjusted performance of the strategies for which the portfolio manager is responsible. A portion of portfolio managers' incentive bonus may also be paid in restricted stock units of KAR's parent company, Virtus Investment Partners, Inc.

Other Benefits. Portfolio managers are also eligible to participate in broad-based plans offered generally to employees of Virtus and its affiliates, including 401(k), health and other employee benefit plans.

While portfolio manager compensation contains a performance component, this component is adjusted to reward investment personnel for managing within the stated framework and for not taking unnecessary risk. This approach ensures that investment personnel remain focused on managing and acquiring securities that correspond to a fund's mandate and risk profile and are discouraged from taking on more risk and unnecessary exposure to chase performance for personal gain. The firm believes that it has appropriate controls in place to handle any potential conflicts that may result from a substantial portion of portfolio manager compensation being tied to performance.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **Huber Capital Management LLC**

Joseph Huber is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Huber Capital's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by Joseph Huber as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	0	7
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$171	\$0	\$233
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** The portfolio manager who has day-to-day management responsibilities with respect to other accounts may be presented with potential or actual conflicts of interest.

The management of other accounts may result in the portfolio manager devoting unequal time and attention to the management of the fund and/or other accounts. Huber Capital seeks to manage such competing interests for the time and attention of the portfolio manager.

With respect to securities transactions for the fund, Huber Capital determines which broker to use to execute each transaction consistent with its duty to seek best execution of the transaction. If Huber Capital believes that the purchase or sale of a security is in the best interest of more than one of its clients, it may aggregate the securities to be purchased or sold to obtain favorable execution and/or lower brokerage commissions. Huber Capital will allocate securities so purchased or sold in the manner that it considers being equitable and consistent with its fiduciary obligations to its clients.

Huber Capital does not anticipate any conflicts of interest between management of the fund and other funds and accounts managed by the firm. Huber Capital's brokerage and trading policies seeks to ensure that no conflicts arise between transactions involving the fund and those involving separately managed accounts.

**Compensation.** The portfolio manager is compensated with a salary and bonus package. The portfolio manager of the fund is supported by the full research team of Huber Capital. Compensation is used to reward, attract and retain high quality investment professionals. An investment professional such as the portfolio manager has a base salary and is eligible for an annual bonus, which may be paid in the form of either cash or stock.

Huber Capital believes consistent execution of the proprietary research process results in superior, risk-adjusted portfolio returns. It is the quality of the investment professional's execution of this process rather than the performance of particular securities that is evaluated in determining compensation. Compensation likewise is not tied to performance of the fund or separate accounts, specific industries within the funds or separate accounts or to any type of asset or revenue-related objective, other than to the extent that the overall revenues of Huber Capital attributable to such factors may affect the size of Huber Capital's overall bonus pool.

Bonuses and salaries for investment professionals are determined by the Chief Executive Officer (the managing member) of Huber Capital using tools which may include, but are not limited to, annual evaluations, compensation surveys, feedback from other employees and advice from outside counsel. The amount of the bonus usually is shaped by the total amount of Huber Capital's bonus pool available for the year, which is generally a function of net income, but no investment professional receives a bonus that is a pre-determined percentage of net income.

The portfolio manager does not participate in a company-sponsored retirement plan and receives standard benefits commensurate with the other employees of Huber Capital. The portfolio manager does not receive deferred compensation.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

## PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments—Riverbridge Partners, LLC, Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc. and Calamos Advisors LLC Riverbridge Partners, LLC.

Riverbridge Partners utilizes a team-based approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Ross M. Johnson is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Riverbridge's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	4	1,500
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$348.9	\$524.2	\$6,734.4
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$66.4

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Occasions may arise when accounts may place trades that are in conflict with trades involving other accounts. This conflict may cause an adverse price action in securities held in the other accounts. The fund receives the same fair allocation as all other accounts managed by Riverbridge Partners. No account receives preferential treatment. Riverbridge Partners has policies and procedures designed to provide fair and equitable allocation. Accounts may be traded at different times due to extenuating circumstances that include tax status, client restrictions and other portfolio management issues.

**Compensation.** Riverbridge Partners has a very direct incentive method: Members of the Investment Team are owners of the business. This structure directly aligns the pre-tax performance of client portfolios with Investment Team members' compensation. The members of the Investment Team receive a modest base salary. The remainder of their compensation is comprised of a combination of an individual-based performance bonus, as well as a bonus tied to the performance of the overall firm. Riverbridge Partners measures performance over an unlimited time period, but places greater emphasis on the most recent three-year period. The benchmarks used to measure performance include the Russell 2000 Growth, Russell 2000 and the S&P 600 Growth indices.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

#### Calamos Advisors LLC

Brandon Nelson is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Calamos' allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	2	4
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$335	\$84	\$125
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$15

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Other than potential conflicts between investment strategies, the side-by-side management of both the fund and other accounts may raise potential conflicts of interest due to the interest held by Calamos in an account and certain trading practices used by the portfolio managers (e.g., cross trades between the fund and another account and allocation of aggregated trades). Calamos has developed policies and procedures reasonably designed to mitigate those conflicts. For example, Calamos will only place cross-trades in securities held by the fund in accordance with the rules promulgated under the Investment Company Act and has adopted policies designed to ensure the fair allocation of securities purchased on an aggregated basis. The allocation methodology employed by Calamos varies depending on the type of securities sought to be bought or sold and the type of client or group of clients. Generally, however, orders are placed first for those clients that have given Calamos brokerage discretion (including the ability to step out a portion of trades), and then to clients that have directed Calamos to execute trades through a specific broker. However, if the directed broker allows Calamos to execute with other brokerage firms, which then book the transaction directly with the directed broker, the order will be placed as if the client had given Calamos full brokerage discretion. Calamos and its affiliates frequently use a "rotational" method of placing and aggregating client orders and will build and fill a position for a designated client or group of clients before placing orders for other clients.

A client account may not receive an allocation of an order if: (a) the client would receive an unmarketable amount of securities based on account size; (b) the client has precluded Calamos from using a particular broker; (c) the cash balance in the client account will be insufficient to pay for the securities allocated to it at settlement; (d) current portfolio attributes make an allocation inappropriate; and (e) account specific guidelines, objectives and other account specific factors make an allocation inappropriate. Allocation methodology may be modified when strict adherence to the usual allocation is impractical or leads to inefficient or undesirable results. Calamos' head trader must approve each instance that the usual allocation methodology is not followed and provide a reasonable basis for such instances and all modifications must be reported in writing to Calamos' Chief Compliance Officer on a monthly basis. Investment opportunities for which there is limited availability generally are allocated among participating client accounts pursuant to an objective methodology (i.e., either on a pro rata basis or using a rotational method, as described above). However, in some instances, Calamos may consider subjective elements in attempting to allocate a trade, in which case the fund may not participate, or may participate to a lesser degree than other clients, in the allocation of an investment opportunity. In considering subjective criteria when allocating trades, Calamos is bound by its fiduciary duty to its clients to treat all client accounts fairly and equitably.

The existence of separate asset or fee-based payments could create a conflict of interest with regard Mr. Nelson's allocation of investment opportunities among the accounts for which he acts as portfolio manager. Calamos Advisors maintains policies and procedures reasonably designed to mitigate such conflicts of interest.

**Compensation.** Brandon Nelson's compensation consists of base salary and an annual short-term incentive (payable in cash). Mr. Nelson is also eligible for discretionary long term incentive ("LTI") awards based on individual and collective performance, however these awards are not guaranteed from year to year. The Calamos LTI program, which is a Mutual Fund Incentive Award with amounts deemed to be invested in one or more Funds managed by such professional. In addition, Mr. Nelson is also eligible to receive certain "Timpani team revenue share" payments, which are defined as a percentage of management fees over certain thresholds. This compensation structure considers annually the performance of the various strategies managed by the Senior Portfolio Manager, among other factors, including, without limitation, the overall performance of the firm.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

#### Jacobs Levy Equity Management, Inc.

Bruce Jacobs and Kenneth Levy are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Jacobs Levy's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information related to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	14	12	102
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	10
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,640	\$2,755	\$11,850
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$219	\$6,838

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Jacobs Levy and its investment personnel provide investment management services to multiple accounts, including the Fund's account. The Portfolio Managers, Bruce Jacobs and Ken Levy, jointly manage all Jacobs Levy-managed accounts with the support of the firm's other investment professionals. Providing investment management services to multiple accounts simultaneously may give rise to certain potential conflicts of interest because accounts may have investment objectives and/or strategies that are similar to or different from those of the Fund. Jacobs Levy may make investment decisions for certain accounts that are not necessarily consistent with the decisions made for other accounts. As such, performance among accounts (including the Fund's account) may differ. Conflicts may also arise in the allocation of transactions among client accounts with different fee arrangements and accounts in which the firm or the Portfolio Managers may have an ownership or financial interest.

Jacobs Levy is entitled to be paid performance-based compensation by certain accounts it manages. Jacobs Levy's revenue may be increased by its receipt of performance-based fees. In addition, certain client accounts may have higher asset-based fees or more favorable performance-based compensation arrangements than other accounts. Jacobs Levy and the Portfolio Managers, whose compensation is derived primarily through their equity share in Jacobs Levy, may have an incentive to favor client accounts that pay the firm performance-based compensation or higher fees.

Jacobs Levy manages a number of proprietary accounts alongside client accounts. These proprietary accounts may invest in the same securities that Jacobs Levy recommends to or buys or sells for client accounts (including the Fund's account). Jacobs Levy typically aggregates trades for proprietary and client accounts. These proprietary accounts may have investment objectives and/or strategies which are similar to or different from those of the Fund. Jacobs Levy may make investment decisions for proprietary accounts that are not necessarily consistent with the decisions made regarding client investments (including investments for the Fund). As such, the performance of these proprietary accounts may differ from the performance of client accounts (including the Fund's account).

Jacobs Levy has adopted and implemented policies and procedures intended to address conflicts of interest relating to the management of multiple accounts. Jacobs Levy reviews statistical allocation reports periodically to determine whether accounts are treated, in its view, fairly. The performance of similarly managed accounts is also compared periodically to determine whether there are any unexplained significant discrepancies. In addition, Jacobs Levy has adopted procedures, which, in its view, are reasonably designed to create a fair and equitable allocation of investment opportunities over time among accounts.

Jacobs Levy provides model portfolios to one or more of its clients for which Jacobs Levy does not have investment discretion. Jacobs Levy may execute trades for other clients whose accounts utilize the same investment strategy as the model(s). Since Jacobs Levy does not have discretion to execute trades for its model portfolio client(s), it is possible that trading based on the model portfolio will occur at the same or different times for Jacobs Levy's discretionary clients and for its model portfolio client(s), and therefore that trading conducted for one client will impact the value at which the relevant securities trade for another client.

**Compensation.** Each portfolio manager receives a fixed salary and a percentage of the profits of Jacobs Levy, which is based upon the portfolio manager's ownership interest in the firm. Jacobs Levy's profits are derived from the fees the firm receives from managing client accounts. For most client accounts, the firm receives a fee based upon a percentage of assets under management (the "basic fee"). For some accounts, the firm receives a fee that is adjusted based upon the performance of the account compared to a benchmark. The type of performance-adjusted fee, the measurement period for the fee and the benchmark vary by client. In some cases, the basic fee is adjusted based upon the trailing returns (e.g., annualized trailing 12-quarter returns) of the account relative to an annualized benchmark return plus a specified number of basis points. In other cases, the firm receives the basic fee and a percentage of the profits in excess of a benchmark.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

PACE International Equity Investments—Mondrian Investment Partners Limited, Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated and Los Angeles Capital Management LLC

#### **Mondrian Investment Partners Limited.**

Mondrian employs a team-based approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Elizabeth A. Desmond, Nigel Bliss and Steven Dutaut are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Mondrian's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed and advised by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Elizabeth Desmond:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	4	4
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$6,101	\$4,186	\$3,401
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

Nigel Bliss:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	3	14
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$6,891	\$4,101	\$11,676
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

#### **Steven Dutaut:**

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	3	12
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,424	\$4,101	\$7,817
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Access to non-public information—As an Investment Manager Mondrian may come in to contact with information about a company that is not generally available to the investing public. Mondrian's policy and procedures for handling any conflicts of interest arising from access to nonpublic information are set out in the Mondrian Investment Partners Limited Market Abuse Policy. If an employee is uncertain as to whether an interest or relationship is material or adverse, they should consult the Chief Compliance Officer for guidance.

Allocation of aggregated trades—Mondrian generally aggregates trades for a number of its clients. Mondrian's policy requires that all allocations of aggregated trades must be fair between clients. Transactions involving commingled orders are allocated in a manner deemed equitable to each account. The key elements of Mondrian's trade allocation policy are:

- When a combined order is executed in a series of transactions, at different prices, each account participating in the order may be allocated an average price obtained from the broker/dealer.
- When a partial trade can be allocated in a cost efficient manner taking into account fixed transaction costs such as market related custodial charges, Mondrian's allocation model will assign the securities proportionately across all accounts based on the number of eligible securities traded. Eligible securities are calculated based on the original quantity ordered less securities previously allocated.
- In situations where the prorated security amounts are too small to be proportionately allocated in a cost efficient manner, Mondrian may randomly allocate purchases and sales.

Mondrian's policy requires that all allocations of aggregated trades must be fair between clients. Mondrian monitors the effectiveness of its allocation process to ensure that clients are being treated fairly over a given period (usually

annually) and to remain satisfied that the process is fair. In addition Mondrian performs periodic reviews of portfolio performance dispersion to confirm that clients with the same or similar investment mandates have been fairly treated.

Allocation of investment opportunities—Mondrian is an investment manager of multiple client portfolios. As such, it has to ensure that investment opportunities are allocated fairly between clients. There is a potential risk that Mondrian may favor one client over another client in making allocations of investment opportunities. Mondrian makes security selection decisions at committee level. Those securities identified as investment opportunities are added to a list of approved securities; portfolios will hold only such approved securities. All portfolios governed by the same or a similar mandate will be structured similarly (that is, will hold the same or comparable stocks), and will exhibit similar characteristics. Sale and purchase opportunities identified at regular investment meetings will be applied to portfolios across the board, subject to the requirements of individual client mandates.

Allocation of new issue opportunities—New issues, including "IPO's" present a potential conflict of interest when they are priced at a discount to the anticipated secondary market price and the issuer has restricted or scaled back its allocation due to market demand. In such instances, the new issue allocation could be allocated to selected clients with others not receiving the allocation they would otherwise be entitled to. Mondrian clients with relevant mandates are given an equal opportunity, proportionate to the size of their portfolio, to participate in new issue trades. All new issue purchases are allocated on a strict pro-rata basis.

Cherry picking—Cherry picking is an abusive practice whereby an investment firm misrepresents its stock selecting skills by only showing top performing securities in promoting its investment services. Mondrian's production of marketing materials is centrally controlled and independently reviewed to ensure that all materials are fair and not misleading.

Client order priority—Advisory—Mondrian's objective is to manage similar mandates and different mandates with overlapping securities trading in the same direction in a manner that is fair and equitable to all clients. Mondrian provides this service to both discretionary portfolio management and portfolio consulting clients. Mondrian has a process in place to control how investment opportunities are allocated between participating clients in these different client types. Mondrian's discretionary portfolio management trades are executed by the Mondrian centralized trading desk, whereas the trades for its portfolio consulting service clients are executed externally through the trading desk of those clients. Trading activity is coordinated to avoid these separate trading desks competing with each other in the market and potentially impacting the share price. Additionally it is important to minimize information leakage into the wider market given several trading desks and several counterparties are potentially involved. For certain portfolio consulting service clients, Mondrian has established a distinct delivery and implementation process which is fair and equitable to all clients. Periodic Rebalance clients using this process normally are provided with any model portfolio changes to allow them to rebalance their portfolios on regularly scheduled intervals of approximately every six weeks. As well as ensuring fairness across clients and reducing information leakage (which impacts all clients on rotation) it reduces trade frequency for these Periodic Rebalance portfolio consulting service clients.

Client order priority—directed and restricted brokers—Clients could be advantaged or disadvantaged relative to other clients by the priority the execution of their trade is given in the sequence of trades to implement an investment decision. In the vast majority of cases discretionary portfolio management orders will be aggregated and the full order will be executed through one broker/dealer. Certain US based clients have an obligation to direct a portion of the commissions paid by their portfolio to minority-, disabled veteran- and/or women-owned broker/dealer businesses. Where possible, Mondrian will endeavor to meet these client requirements. Any such trades will be disaggregated from the trades for other Mondrian clients and executed separately with the directed broker/dealer. In these situations Mondrian operates a trade rotation policy to ensure that all clients are treated equitably by making an automated random selection to determine the trade order priority between the commingled order and the disaggregated order. Once the selected order has been completed the other order will then be placed with the relevant broker/dealer.

Client order priority—trading across mandates—Clients could be advantaged or disadvantaged relative to other clients by the priority the execution of their trade is given in the sequence of trades to implement an investment decision. Whilst Mondrian will endeavour to aggregate all client orders in the same security across all mandates, situations can arise where mandate specific factors may affect the timing of the implementation of investment opportunities for different mandates e.g. cash availability, different investment committees, or contingent trades. So that all clients are treated equitably in these situations, Mondrian has developed procedures to ensure that when clients from different mandates join existing orders, all clients are handled fairly based on order priority.

Dealing in investments as agent for more than one party—Conflicts of interest exist when a portfolio management firm manages multiple client portfolios. Mondrian addresses these potential conflicts through the operation of dealing policies designed to ensure the fair and equal treatment of all clients e.g. the allocation of aggregated trades among clients.

Dealing in investments as principal in connections with the provision of seed capital—A conflict of interest exists when a portfolio management firm manages its own money alongside client money. Mondrian generally does not trade for its own account. However, Mondrian and its affiliates have provided the seed capital to certain investment vehicles that have been established by Mondrian group entities. Mondrian serves as the investment manager to these investment vehicles. Mondrian operates dealing policies designed to ensure the fair and equal treatment of all clients e.g. the allocation of aggregated trades among clients and products with different strategies that may be trading in opposing directions. These policies ensure that any portfolios in which Mondrian has an investment interest do not receive favorable treatment relative to other client portfolios.

Directorships and external arrangements—Certain Mondrian staff may hold positions in external organizations. There is a potential risk that Mondrian personnel may place their own interests (resulting from outside employment / directorships) ahead of the interests of Mondrian clients. Before accepting an executive or non-executive directorship or any other appointment in another company, employees, including executive directors, must obtain the prior approval of the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Compliance Officer must also be informed of all such appointments and changes. The CEO and CCO will only permit appointments that would not present a conflict of interest with the individual's responsibilities to Mondrian clients.

Dual agency—Dual Agency (also known as Cross Trading) concerns those transactions where Mondrian may act as agent for both the buyer and seller. In such circumstances there is a potential conflict of interest as it may be possible to favor one client over another when establishing the execution price and/or commission rate. Although it rarely does so, Mondrian may act as agent for both buying and selling parties with respect to transactions in investments. If Mondrian proposes to act in such capacity, the Portfolio Manager will first obtain approval from the Chief Compliance Officer. The CCO has an obligation to ensure that both parties are treated fairly in any such trade.

Employee personal account dealing—There are a number of potential conflicts when staff of an investment firm engage in buying and selling securities for their personal account. Mondrian has arrangements in place to ensure that none of its directors, officers or employees (or persons connected to them by way of a business or domestic relationship) effects any transaction on their own account which conflicts with client interests. Mondrian's rules which govern personal account dealing and general ethical standards are set out in the Mondrian Investment Partners Code of Ethics.

Employee personal charitable giving—There is a potential risk that staff could use their personal charitable giving to influence decision makers in a way that could reasonably be seen to benefit Mondrian. Under Mondrian's Code of Ethics staff are prohibited from making any charitable donations that could reasonably be seen to benefit Mondrian directly or indirectly.

Employee personal political giving—There is a potential risk that staff could use their personal political giving to influence decision makers in a way that could reasonably be seen to benefit Mondrian. Under Mondrian's Code of Ethics, unless approved in advance by the Chief Compliance Officer, staff are prohibited from making any contribution to any political campaign or political organisation, in the United States.

Employee remuneration—The guiding principle of Mondrian's compensation program is to enable Mondrian to retain and motivate a team of high-quality employees with both attractive shorter term remuneration and long-term equity incentives that are appropriately competitive, well-structured and which help align the aspirations of individuals with those of the company and its clients. Through widespread equity ownership, we believe that Mondrian, as an owner operated business, provides an excellent incentive structure that is highly likely to continue to attract, hold and motivate a talented team.

In keeping with best practice, Mondrian's remuneration policy is also designed to ensure that Mondrian's remuneration procedures and practices are consistent with and promote sound and effective risk management of portfolio and business risks. This ensures that they do not encourage excessive or inappropriate risk taking which is inconsistent with the requirements and risk profiles of Mondrian's clients.

Mondrian believes that this compensation structure, coupled with the opportunities that exist within a successful and growing business, should enable us to attract and retain high caliber employees.

*Error resolution*—There is a potential risk that clients could be disadvantaged by trading or other errors. Mondrian has robust arrangements in place for ensuring that errors are properly identified, investigated and resolved in the best interests of clients. Mondrian policy includes a requirement to notify clients of all errors which result in an actual or opportunity loss to them and the obligation to make good any such loss so that the client is returned to the position they would have been in, had the error not occurred.

Execution services—Broker/dealer selection and allocation—There is a potential conflict inherent in broker selection and allocation where Mondrian or Mondrian employees may be incentivized to place their interests ahead of client interests. Mondrian's Trade Execution Policy and Procedures sets out Mondrian's procedures for broker/dealer selection and negotiation of execution commissions. The Best Execution & Trading Oversight Committee meets regularly to review the approved counterparty list, trading volumes, execution quality and overall service levels. This committee is responsible for reviewing counterparty execution quality and for ensuring Mondrian takes all sufficient steps to achieve best execution. Mondrian recognises that there could be a conflict of interest given that some broker/dealers provide both research and execution services. In order to minimise this conflict, the Trading Desk runs a tender annually for execution only services including a good range of major investment banks, to determine the best rates of execution. These rates of execution will be reviewed periodically to ensure they remain competitive. Mondrian may pay a broker a commission or mark-up in excess of that which another broker might have charged for executing a transaction if Mondrian determines, in good faith, that the commission or mark-up is reasonable in relation to the value of the brokerage and/or research provided.

Gifts and entertainment (received)—In the normal course of business Mondrian employees may be offered gifts and entertainment from third parties e.g. brokers and other service providers. This results in a potential conflict of interest when selecting third parties to provide services to Mondrian and its clients. Mondrian has a policy which requires that gifts and entertainment received are reported to the Chief Compliance Officer (any items in excess of £10 (or local currency equivalent) require pre-approval). All gifts and entertainment are reviewed to ensure that they are not inappropriate and that staff have not been unduly influenced by them.

Gifts and entertainment (given)—In the normal course of business, Mondrian employees may provide gifts and entertainment to third parties. Excessively lavish gifts and entertainment would be inappropriate. Mondrian has a policy which requires that any gifts and entertainment provided are reported to the Chief Compliance Officer (any

items in excess of £100 (or local currency equivalent) require pre-approval). All gifts and entertainment are reviewed to ensure that they are not inappropriate and that staff have not attempted to obtain undue influence from them.

Investment in shares issued by Companies who are clients of Mondrian—Mondrian has client relationships with a number of entities which are associated with companies that issue securities in which Mondrian could invest client assets. This results in a potential conflict of interest. Mondrian makes stock selection decisions at a committee level. If a security is identified as offering a good investment opportunity it is added to Mondrian's list of approved securities. All portfolios governed by the same or a similar mandate are structured similarly, that is, will hold the same or comparable securities. Mondrian would not consider client relationships when analysing securities and would not add a holding to, or remove one from, the approved list because of a client relationship.

Management of investment capacity—Where there is limited capacity in Mondrian's investment products, there is a potential for a conflict of interest in relation to how that capacity is allocated when there is strong demand. With regard to a closing policy, Mondrian recognises the importance and the challenge of managing the growth of assets under management without compromising the interests of existing clients. To this end, the company has a track record of closing products early. For example, in recent years Mondrian has soft closed its core EAFE and all-cap Emerging Markets equity products. These closures have been carried out early to give existing clients some further, albeit limited, scope for contribution to funds invested. Also, capacity in these styles has been reserved for Mondrian's co-mingled vehicles.

Marketing materials—Where an investment firm provides information about the firm's investments, including performance information, to a client or prospective client, there is a potential for a conflict of interest in relation to how the information is presented. Mondrian has procedures in place to ensure that information contained within its marketing materials is fair and not misleading and complies with Global Investment Performance Standards ("GIPS") guidelines. Advertisements and other marketing material, including performance data issued or sanctioned by Mondrian are reviewed periodically for their compliance with the Advisers Act and applicable federal laws and to confirm that any potential conflicts have been identified and addressed.

Most favored nation fee arrangements—Where an investment firm has clients with a most favored nation fee ("MFN") arrangement there is a potential conflict of interest with these clients. Mondrian has detailed procedures for identifying comparable clients for MFN purposes that ensure that the potential conflict is addressed.

Payment and receipt of Research Services—Mondrian does not use client commissions to pay for any soft dollar services, including those services permitted by the "Safe Harbor" in Section 28(e) of the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, such as proprietary research. Client commissions are solely used to compensate the broker/dealer for the cost of executing the trade. Where Mondrian receives research services from broker/dealers which Mondrian also executes client trades through, there is a potential conflict of interest as the broker/dealer could induce Mondrian to place client trades through them at uncompetitive execution rates by providing free or discounted research services. When research services are purchased from brokers, the fees paid are negotiated based solely on Mondrian's usage of such research. In order to ensure that the fees for research services are not related to any execution activity with that broker (i.e. that there is a clear separation between the cost of execution to clients and the cost of research to Mondrian) execution rates and research costs are negotiated independently by separate committees with representation by Compliance & Risk at both.

Performance fees—Where an investment firm has clients with a performance fee arrangement there is a risk that those clients could be favored over clients without performance fees. Mondrian charges fees as a proportion of assets under management. In a very limited number of situations, in addition to this fee basis, certain accounts may also include a performance fee basis. The potential conflict of interest arising from these fee arrangements is addressed by Mondrian's procedures for the allocation of aggregated trades among clients. Investment opportunities are allocated totally independently of fee arrangements.

Personal conflicts of interest—The appearance of a conflict of interest may be created if a staff member has an association with any party with whom Mondrian may have common interest, for example a client or vendor. Staff members are required to disclose to the Chief Compliance Officer if, to their knowledge, they or their family members currently or previously have been associated with any party which may create the appearance of a conflict of interest with Mondrian clients.

Placement agents and Pay to play—There is a potential conflict of interest in compensating a third party to act as a placement agent or equivalent for Mondrian services. Unless approved in advance by the Chief Compliance Officer, staff are prohibited from, or causing Mondrian to compensate any third party to act as a placement agent for the purpose of selling, or facilitating the sale of, any Mondrian service.

Portfolio holdings disclosure—Detailed portfolio holdings information can potentially be used by one or more clients/shareholders to obtain advantage over others who do not have access to that information. There is a potential risk that Mondrian could make non-public portfolio holdings information available to one or more select clients before it is made available to all relevant clients. Conflicts of interest arising from access to nonpublic information are addressed in the Mondrian Investment Partners Limited Market Abuse Policy. Additionally, Mondrian has procedures in place to ensure that client portfolio holdings information (including co-mingled funds) is kept confidential and is not inappropriately released to one or more clients/shareholders ahead of others.

Portfolio pumping—Portfolio pumping is the act of bidding up the value of a client's holdings immediately before the end of a calendar quarter, or other period when portfolio performance is measured. This is done by using a client's funds to place an excessive volume of trades in securities held by another client. This may drive up the value of the holdings on a temporary basis. Mondrian does not permit trading for the purpose of temporarily improving the performance of a portfolio. Mondrian's investment procedures require all changes to portfolio holdings to be approved by the relevant Investment Committee. Although portfolio performance is measured and reported to clients on a monthly basis, Mondrian's clients assess portfolio returns and relative performance on a longer term basis, in accordance with Mondrian's long-term investment approach.

Pricing and valuation—There is a potential conflict of interest inherent in every valuation where an investment management firm is compensated on asset size and/or portfolio performance. Mondrian has policies and procedures in place to ensure that an appropriate independent pricing source is used for all security types. Adherence to these policies and procedures is monitored using exception reporting, as well as regular review, testing and evaluation of the adequacy of the procedures

Product allocation—Mondrian has a potential conflict of interest with clients with multi-product mandates when it has discretion over the individual product percentages and when fees charged vary across products. Mondrian has procedures in place to ensure that product allocation decisions for these clients are consistent with investment decisions made for clients investing directly, and that the decisions are appropriately documented.

*Proxy voting*—Mondrian has a potential conflict of interest with its underlying clients when it has discretion to exercise voting authority in respect to client securities. Mondrian has implemented Proxy Voting policies and procedures that are designed to ensure that it votes client securities in the best interest of clients. In order to facilitate the actual process of voting proxies, Mondrian has contracted with an independent company, ISS to analyze proxy statements on behalf of its clients and vote proxies in accordance with its procedures.

Relationships with consultants—Investment consultants typically provide advisory services to Mondrian's clients and Mondrian occasionally purchases services from these consultants. The conflict of interest in these relationships rests mainly with the investment consulting firm itself. However, Mondrian will take care to ensure that any services it purchases from such firms are appropriate and would not reasonably be considered to be an inducement to that firm.

Step-Out trades—A step-out trade occurs when a brokerage firm executes an order, but gives other firms credit and some of the commission for the trade. Mondrian has no incentive to and does not use step-out trades.

Transactions with affiliated brokers—Mondrian does not have any affiliated brokers.

Window dressing—Window dressing is a strategy which can be used by portfolio managers near the end of a reporting period to improve the appearance of portfolio performance before presenting it to clients. To window dress, a portfolio manager may sell securities with large losses and purchase stocks that have done well, near the end of the reporting period. The list of holdings sent to clients will thus include the high performing securities, and exclude the poor performing securities. Window dressing can also be used to invest in securities that do not meet the style of an account, without clients being aware. Mondrian does not permit window dressing or other trading for the purpose of improving the appearance of a client's performance. Mondrian's investment procedures require all changes to portfolio holdings to be approved by the relevant Investment Committee. Although portfolio holdings are reported to clients on a monthly basis, Mondrian's clients assess portfolio returns and relative performance on a longer term basis, in accordance with Mondrian's long-term investment approach.

**Compensation.** Mondrian's compensation program is designed to enable it to retain and motivate a team of high quality employees with both attractive shorter term remuneration and long-term equity incentives that are appropriately competitive, well-structured and which help align the aspirations of individuals with those of clients and the company. Compensation is not based on the performance of specific funds or accounts managed.

Mondrian's compensation program includes:

- 1. Competitive Salary—All investment professionals are remunerated with a competitive base salary.
- 2. Profit Sharing Bonus Pool—All Mondrian staff, including portfolio managers and senior officers, qualify for participation in an annual profit sharing pool determined by the company's profitability (approximately 30% of profits).
- 3. Equity Ownership—Mondrian is employee owned. A high proportion of senior Mondrian staff (investment professionals and other support functions) are shareholders in the business. Equity value is built up over many years with long vesting periods and the value of any individual's equity is normally paid out in instalments over a number of years post an agreed retirement from the firm. This is a (very) long term incentive plan directly tied to the long term equity value of the firm.

Incentives (Bonus and Equity Programs) focus on the key areas of a) research quality, b) long-term and short-term stock performance, c) teamwork, d) client service and e) marketing. As an individual's ability to influence these factors depends on that individual's position and seniority within the firm, so the allocation to these factors and of participation in these programs will reflect this.

At Mondrian, the investment management of particular portfolios is not "star manager" based but uses a team system. This means that Mondrian's investment professionals are primarily assessed on their contribution to the team's effort and results, though with an important element of their assessment being focused on the quality of their individual research contribution.

#### Remuneration Committee

In determining the amount of bonus and equity awarded, Mondrian's Board of Directors consults with the company's Remuneration Committee, who will make recommendations based on a number of factors including investment research, investment performance contribution, organization management, team work, client servicing and marketing.

#### Defined Contribution Pension Plan

All portfolio managers are members of the Mondrian defined contribution pension plan where Mondrian pays a regular monthly contribution and the member may pay additional voluntary contributions if they wish. The plan is governed by trustees who have responsibility for the trust fund and payments of benefits to members. In addition, the plan provides death benefits for death in service and a spouse's or dependant's pension may also be payable.

#### Mondrian remuneration philosophy

The guiding principle of the company's compensation programs is to enable it to retain and motivate a team of high quality employees with both attractive shorter term remuneration and long-term equity incentives that are appropriately competitive, well-structured and which help align the aspirations of individuals with those of the company and its clients. Through widespread equity ownership, Mondrian believes that Mondrian as an owner operated business provides an excellent incentive structure that is highly likely to continue to attract, hold and motivate a talented team.

In keeping with FCA best practice, Mondrian's remuneration policy is also designed to ensure that Mondrian's remuneration procedures and practices are consistent with and promote sound and effective risk management of portfolio and business risks. This ensures that they do not encourage excessive or inappropriate risk taking which is inconsistent with the requirements and risk profiles of Mondrian's clients.

Mondrian believes that this compensation structure, coupled with the opportunities that exist within a successful and growing business, should enable Mondrian to attract and retain high caliber employees.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### Chautauqua Capital Management—a Division of Robert W. Baird & Co. Incorporated

Baird employs a team-based approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Jesse Flores, Haicheng Li and Nathaniel Velarde are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Baird's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	3	2
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,140.4	\$167.1	\$1.1
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$164.3*	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> One client within one commingled fund has a performance-based fee structure.

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Baird is an employee owned privately held investment boutique. The firm has a comprehensive compliance program that is designed to identify and mitigate any conflicts of interest. The program is reviewed on a formal basis at least annually to ensure that all possible risks and conflicts of interest are properly addressed. Baird's Policy and Procedures include a Code of Ethics as well as sections on Trading and Brokerage, Portfolio Management and Proxy Voting all of which address potential conflicts of interest and how they are managed. Baird's Policy and Procedures and, specifically, the Code of Ethics, is based on the principle that employees of the firm owe a fiduciary duty to its clients. It requires that at all times the interests of its clients are placed ahead of their own. The following is a list of some potential conflicts of interest that could arise in the course of normal investment management business activities.

Performance-Based Fees and Side-By-Side Management—Baird manages multiple types of accounts side-by-side. Baird may also negotiate performance-based fees with some clients. This could represent a conflict of interest if clients paying higher fees or if accounts in which Baird employees have an investment interest, like a limited partnership, receive preferential treatment. In order to ensure that each type of account is treated equitably, Baird manages all accounts as closely as possible to the model portfolio (while taking into account individual client restrictions) and executes aggregated trades, apportioning trades across accounts whenever possible.

Trade Aggregation and Allocation—Baird has adopted trade allocation policies and procedures that are designed to make securities allocations to discretionary client accounts in a manner such that all such clients receive fair and equitable treatment over time. All portfolios within the investment strategy will participate in the purchase and/or sale of a holding if Baird determines that the purchase or sale of the particular security involved is appropriate for the applicable client and consistent with the client's investment objectives. Baird must reasonably believe that the order aggregation will benefit, and will enable Baird to seek best execution for, each client participating in the aggregated order. Baird will create an allocation statement, typically before the execution of an aggregated order, which identifies each client account participating in the trade and the proposed allocation of the order, upon completion, to those clients. In determining the amount to be allocated to an account, Baird takes into consideration account specific investment restrictions, undesirable position size, account portfolio weightings, client tax status, client cash positions and client preferences. If an aggregated order cannot be executed in full, the securities actually purchased or sold are generally allocated pro rata among the participating client accounts in accordance with the initial allocation statement. However, Baird may also make random allocations to client accounts in certain circumstances, such as when Advisor deems a partial fill for the total block order to be low. Adjustments may also be made to avoid a nominal allocation to client accounts. All advisory clients participating in a block transaction will receive the same execution price for the security bought or sold and a pro-rata share of the overall commissions applicable to the trade. When Baird is not able to aggregate trades (e.g., UMA programs), Baird generally uses a trade rotation process that is designed to be fair and equitable to its clients over time. Further, model delivery clients of Baird are notified of model changes (subject to a rotation within this group of clients) following the completion of trading for client accounts in which it has discretionary trading authority.

Personal Accounts—Baird's Code of Ethics addresses potential conflicts of interest with respect to personal trading accounts. The Code of Ethics governs the personal securities transactions of directors, officers and employees who may have access to current trading information of the fund. The Code of Ethics permits such persons to invest in securities for their personal accounts, including securities that may be purchased or held by the fund, subject to certain restrictions. The Code of Ethics includes pre-clearance, reporting and other procedures to monitor personal transactions and ensure that such transactions are consistent with the best interests of the fund.

Soft Dollars—Baird's Trading and Brokerage Policies outline how brokers are selected and the provisions for "best execution." The Best Execution Committee provides oversight of Baird's trading activities. Baird's policy is to comply with the safe harbor provisions of Section 28(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, regarding soft dollar transactions. As a matter of practice, Baird does not use any third party "soft dollar" arrangements. All services are paid for with hard dollars. However, because the firm has access to broker-dealer research and pays commissions to the broker-dealers, this commission payment are considered a soft dollar arrangement. It is important to note that Baird always seeks best execution, negotiates favorable commission rates and actively tracks commission expenditures.

Allocation Of Initial Public Offerings—When Baird participates in an IPO for clients who do not have IPO restrictions, allocations are made proportionally based on assets under management. The only time this may not be the case is when allocations are so small as to make it costly and impractical to do so. In such cases, Baird will allocate IPO shares at its own discretion in the most practical way possible.

Board Membership & External Arrangements—Baird requires that all employees disclose any board memberships, outside employment or service on creditors' committees and seek approval before joining a new board or committee in order to avoid any conflicts of interest.

Gifts & Entertainment—Because gifts and/or entertainment offered to employees of Baird from broker-dealers, potential clients, or other parties may provide the actual or apparent potential for a conflict of interest affecting fiduciary duties and independent judgment on behalf of the firm's clients, Baird has adopted policies and procedures related to giving and receiving gifts and entertainment, including requirements for reporting and preapproval.

**Compensation.** Baird employee compensation consists of a base salary and incentive compensation. Incentive compensation takes the form of bonuses based on individual merit and firm performance.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **Los Angeles Capital Management LLC**

Hal W. Reynolds, Daniel E. Allen and Laina Draeger are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-today management of Los Angeles Capital's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Hal W. Reynolds:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	15	19	45
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	4	9
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$8,218.5	\$12,804.9	\$13,051.3
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$4,200.7	\$1,515.3	\$9,330.3

Daniel E. Allen:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	14	19	37
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	4	9
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,017.9	\$12,804.9	\$13,031.5
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$1,515.3	\$9,330.3

Laina Draeger:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	0	4	3
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$0	\$1,289.6	\$1,012.1
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$377.7	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Los Angeles Capital has implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, which Los Angeles Capital believes are reasonably designed to address the potential for conflicts of interest associated with managing portfolios for multiple clients and that seek to treat all clients fairly and equally over time and to mitigate conflicts among accounts. Client accounts are managed independent of one another in accordance with client specific mandates, restrictions, and instructions as outlined in the investment management agreement, and such restrictions and instructions are monitored for compliance with the client's investment guidelines.

Side-by-side management can result in investment positions or actions taken for one client account that differ from those taken in another client account. Accordingly, one client account can engage in short sales of or take a short position in an investment that at the same time is owned or being purchased long by another client account. These positions and actions can adversely affect or benefit different clients at different times.

Los Angeles Capital manages client accounts that have different investment strategies, objectives, restrictions, constraints, launch dates, and overlapping benchmark constituents. Client accounts also have different account trading strategies that include, but are not limited to, varying the frequency and order of account rebalances (e.g. weekly, semi-monthly, monthly or quarterly), varying the grouping of accounts traded on a particular day (e.g. trading US accounts before global accounts or rotating weeks between strategies), varying account turnover, aggregating trades lists, aggregating specific names within trade lists, varying names traded as a block, using third-party algorithms, use of limit-orders, and adjusting executing broker trade strategy instructions. Los Angeles Capital reserves the right to explore trade strategies, methods and processes to further its best execution mandate for client accounts. Given these customizations and differences, it is possible that Los Angeles Capital may be purchasing or holding a security for one account and simultaneously selling the same security for another account. However, simultaneously purchasing and selling the same security in the same account without the intent to take a bona fide market position ("wash trades") is prohibited. Additionally, it is possible for Los Angeles Capital to purchase or sell the same security for different accounts during the same trading day.

The decision as to which accounts participate in an investment opportunity will take into account, among other things, the quantitative model's outlook on the account's strategy, the account's investment guidelines, and risk metrics. Global accounts' orders are sent to the market simultaneously subject to prevailing market conditions, client flows, and liquidity. Emerging markets account orders may be aggregated during account rebalances, but the firm is not required to do so.

While each client account is managed individually with trade allocation determined prior to placing each trade with the broker, Los Angeles Capital may, at any given time, purchase or sell the same security in a block that is allocated among multiple accounts, Los Angeles Capital will generally execute transactions for clients on an aggregate basis when it believes that to do so would allow it to obtain best execution and remain consistent with the account's investment guidelines. As such, Los Angeles Capital, from time to time, evaluates account trade lists for sizable or

potentially illiquid transactions that may be aggregated among several concurrent account rebalances. There are a number of variables that can influence a decision to aggregate purchases or sales into a block, including but not limited to, order size, liquidity, client trading directives, regulatory limitations, round lot requirements, and cash flows. When there is decision making on whether to include or exclude certain accounts from a block transaction, there is always the potential for conflicts of interest. Furthermore, the effect of trade aggregation may work on some occasions to the account's disadvantage. Los Angeles Capital's policies and procedures in allocating trades are structured to treat all clients fairly. Los Angeles Capital is not required to aggregate any particular trade. For example, an account with directed brokerage may not participate in certain block trades.

The firm's strategies predominantly invest in liquid common stocks. Based on a variety of factors including the strategy, guidelines, and turnover goals, Los Angeles Capital determines the trading frequency for each account. Most accounts currently trade at least semi-monthly and others may trade more or less frequently depending on such things as turnover goals, market conditions and other factors unique to the strategy or markets in which they are invested. Los Angeles Capital has designed a proprietary Brokerage Allocation Randomization system for objectively pairing which broker to use when executing an account's transactions based on regional market eligibility/suitability characteristics, as well as perceived execution capability of the broker in such regional markets. Los Angeles Capital's proprietary accounts, which are invested in liquid, benchmark securities, may be traded in rotation with client accounts or on a particular day of the week depending on liquidity, size, model constraints and resource constraints. The order of account rebalances may work on some occasions to the account's advantage or disadvantage.

Los Angeles Capital has designed a proprietary Brokerage Allocation Randomization system for objectively pairing which broker to use when executing an account's transactions based on regional market eligibility/suitability characteristics, as well as perceived execution capability of the broker in such regional markets. Los Angeles Capital's proprietary accounts, which are invested in liquid, benchmark securities, may be traded in rotation with client accounts or on a particular day of the week depending on liquidity, size, model constraints and resource constraints. The order of account rebalances may work on some occasions to the account's advantage or disadvantage.

Los Angeles Capital's portfolio managers manage accounts that are charged a performance-based fee alongside accounts in the same strategy with asset-based fee schedules. While performance-based fee arrangements may be viewed as creating an incentive to favor certain accounts over others in the allocation of investment opportunities, Los Angeles Capital has designed and implemented procedures that seek to treat all clients fairly and equally, and to prevent conflicts from influencing the allocation of investment opportunities. Management and performance fees inure to the benefit of the firm as a whole and not to specific individuals or groups of individuals. Further, Los Angeles Capital employs a quantitative investment process which utilizes the firm's proprietary investment model technology to identify securities and construct portfolios.

Los Angeles Capital has adopted a Code of Ethics that includes procedures on ethical conduct and personal trading and requires pre-clearance authorization from both the Trading and Compliance and Regulatory Risk Departments for certain personal security transactions. Nonetheless, because the Code of Ethics in some circumstances would permit employees to invest in the same securities as clients, there is a possibility that employees might benefit from market activity by a client in a security held by an employee. Employee trading is monitored under the Code of Ethics, and is designed to reasonably identify and prevent conflicts of interest between the firm and its clients.

Investment personnel of Los Angeles Capital or its affiliate may be permitted to be commercially or professionally involved with an issuer of securities. There is a potential risk that Los Angeles Capital personnel may place their own interests (resulting from outside employment/directorships) ahead of the interests of Los Angeles Capital clients. Before engaging in any outside business activity, employees must obtain approval of the CCO as well as other personnel. Any potential conflicts of interest from such involvement are monitored for compliance with Los Angeles Capital's Code of Ethics. The Code of Ethics also governs employees giving or accepting gifts and entertainment.

**Compensation.** Los Angeles Capital's portfolio managers participate in a competitive compensation program that is aimed at attracting and retaining talented employees with an emphasis on disciplined risk management, ethics and compliance-centered behavior. No component of Los Angeles Capital's compensation policy or payment scheme is tied directly to the performance of one or more client portfolios or funds.

Each of Los Angeles Capital's portfolio managers receives a base salary fixed from year to year. In addition, the portfolio managers participate in the firm's profit sharing plan. The aggregate amount of the contribution to the firm's profit sharing plan is based on overall firm profitability with amounts paid to individual employees based on their relative overall compensation. Each of the portfolio managers also is an equityholder of the firm and receives compensation based upon the firm's overall profits. Ms. Draeger is also eligible to receive a discretionary bonus from the firm.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments—William Blair Investment Management, LLC, RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC and ARGA Investment Management, LP. William Blair Investment Management, LLC

Todd McClone, Ken McAtamney and Hugo Scott-Gall are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of William Blair's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Todd McClone:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	18	16
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,766.4	\$7,039.7	\$3,880.6
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$61.5

Ken McAtamney:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	11	32	51
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	2
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$7,400.9	\$7,918.9	\$12,230.2
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$790.1

Hugo Scott-Gall:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	18	11
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$718.9	\$3,717.7	\$3,099.5
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$61.5

Potential conflicts of interest. William Blair's policy is that the interests of clients take precedence over the interests of the firm and its affiliates and that it will manage its advisory client accounts in accordance with the specific investment restrictions and guidelines applicable to each account. Various conflicts can also arise, however, between and among various client accounts. William Blair's portfolio managers typically make investment decisions for multiple portfolios, including institutional portfolios, separately managed accounts, mutual funds and wrap fee accounts. These portfolio management responsibilities may cause potential conflicts of interest. William Blair seeks to conduct itself in a manner it considers to be the most fair and consistent with its fiduciary obligations to its clients. William Blair and its portfolio managers may determine, in light of each client account's available cash, investment objectives, restrictions, permitted investment techniques and other relevant considerations, that an investment opportunity is appropriate for only some of the client accounts under their management or that they should take differing positions with respect to a particular security on behalf of certain client accounts. Accordingly, William Blair may give advice and take action in the performance of its duties to clients that differs from advice given, and/or the timing and nature of action taken, with respect to other clients' accounts. The timing and nature of action taken with respect to one or more client accounts may positively or negatively impact one or more other client accounts. (For example, the value of a security held in client accounts may be positively affected by purchases, and negatively affected by sales, of such security for other client accounts.)

Management of multiple accounts can give rise to potential conflicts of interest. The potential conflicts of interest that may arise in managing multiple accounts include, for example, conflicts among investment strategies, conflicts in the allocation of investment opportunities, or conflicts due to different fees. Some accounts have higher fees, including performance fees, than others. Fees charged to clients may differ depending upon a number of factors including, but not limited to, the particular strategy, the size of the portfolio being managed, the relationship with the client, the service requirements and the asset class involved. Fees may also differ based on the account type (e.g., separately managed accounts, mutual funds, and wrap accounts). Based on these factors, a client may pay higher fees than another client in the same strategy. Also, clients with larger assets under management generate more revenue for William Blair than smaller accounts. These differences may give rise to a potential conflict that a portfolio manager would favor the higher fee-paying account over the other or allocate more time to the management of one account over another.

Furthermore, if a greater proportion of a portfolio manager's compensation could be derived from an account or group of accounts than other accounts under the portfolio manager's management, there could be an incentive for the portfolio manager to favor the accounts that could have a greater impact on the portfolio manager's compensation. While William Blair does not monitor the specific amount of time that a portfolio manager spends on a single portfolio, senior William Blair personnel periodically review the performance of William Blair's portfolio managers as well as periodically assess whether the portfolio manager has adequate resources to effectively manage the accounts assigned to that portfolio manager. As part of its obligation to mitigate such conflicts, William Blair has adopted specific written policies and procedures that seek to manage, monitor and, to the extent possible, minimize the effects of these conflicts. Such policies include its Best Execution and Research Policy, Trade Allocation and Aggregation Policy and Portfolio Management Policies and Procedures.

Compensation. The compensation of William Blair's portfolio managers is based on the firm's mission: "Empower Colleagues, Deliver Client Success and Engage in our Communities." Messrs. McClone, McAtamney and Scott-Gall are partners of William Blair, and their compensation consists of a fixed base salary, a share of the firm's profits and, in most instances, a discretionary bonus. The discretionary bonus as well as any potential changes to the partners' ownership stakes are determined by the head of William Blair's Investment Management Department and William Blair's Executive Committee, and are based on both quantitative and qualitative factors, rather than a formula. The discretionary bonus rewards the specific accomplishments in the prior year, including short-term and long-term investment performance, quality of research ideas, and other contributions to William Blair and its clients. Changes in ownership stake are based on an individual's sustained, multi-year contribution to long-term investment performance, and to William Blair's revenue, profitability, intellectual capital and brand reputation. The compensation process is a subjective one (albeit with many checks and balances and quantitative inputs) that takes into account the factors described above. Portfolio managers do not receive any direct compensation based upon the performance of any individual client account. In addition, there is no formula for evaluating the factors.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **RWC Asset Advisors (US) LLC**

John Malloy is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Redwheel's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information related to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	3	6
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	3
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,349	\$1,773	\$2,225
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$623	\$0	\$1,485

<sup>\*</sup> The figure provided is the total assets managed by one pooled investment vehicle. This fund offers an incentive fee class but majority of assets within the fund are not subject to a performance fee.

**Potential conflicts of interest.** There is a potential conflict of interest inherent in the management of multiple accounts, including accounts with different fee structures, in that Redwheel and/or the portfolio manager may have an incentive to favor one account over another when allocating scarce trades. This conflict of interest is addressed through, among other things, a trade allocation policy that seeks to ensure that allocations are generally made pro rata based on the assets under management of the relevant portfolios (exceptions to the allocation policy require the prior approval of a member of Redwheel's compliance team), as well as a daily trade review by the compliance team in which it seeks evidence of favoritism.

The portfolio manager may from time to time manage portfolios used in model portfolio arrangements ("Model Portfolios") offered by various sponsors and/or other non-Redwheel investment advisors. In connection with these Model Portfolios, the portfolio manager provides investment recommendations in the form of model portfolios to a third party, who is responsible for executing trades for participating client accounts.

Redwheel maintains procedures designed to deliver portfolios on a fair and equitable basis. Trades for Redwheel discretionary managed accounts, including the fund, are executed contemporaneously with the delivery of updated model information. The Model Portfolios may achieve a security weighting ahead of or after the weighting achieved for the fund.

**Compensation.** John Malloy, the portfolio manager for Redwheel's allocation portion of the fund, shares in the management fees and, where applicable, the performance fees, generated by the funds he manages directly. Mr. Malloy is responsible for the compensation of his team as well as certain direct costs. He also holds equity interests in RWC Partners Limited.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

#### **ARGA Investment Management, LP**

A. Rama Krishna, Takashi Ito and Sujith Kumar are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of ARGA's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

A. Rama Krishna:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	8	45
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	1	4	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$4,335	\$1,564	\$7,033
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$3,674	\$1,366	\$0

iakasni ito:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	4	12
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$658	\$1,354	\$4,210
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$1,321	\$0

Sujith Kumar:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	3	12
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$658	\$1,351	\$4,095
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$1,321	\$0

Takashi Itar

**Potential conflicts of interest.** ARGA's compliance procedures aim to identify and prevent potential conflicts of interest related to client, employee, and proprietary activities. Potential conflicts of interest include instances when ARGA desires to purchase or sell the same securities for the fund and other accounts, which could result, if such conflict is not managed properly, in unfair treatment to one account or another. Another potential conflict could occur if employees had knowledge of future ARGA trades and, on the basis of such information, made their own personal trades, which could harm the fund and other ARGA accounts.

In addition to managing a portion of the fund, ARGA manages other accounts on a discretionary basis (and where Mr. Krishna is one of a number of investors within certain commingled funds as well as certain proprietary partnerships) that use the valuation-based investment strategy utilized for the fund. ARGA expects to manage additional such accounts in the future. To avoid any incentive to favor one account over another in the allocation of investment opportunities (particularly where there are differing performance fee arrangements), ARGA has implemented strict fairness policies with respect to trading practices and allocation procedures. ARGA examines trade allocations among client portfolios regularly and confirms their consistency with ARGA's fiduciary obligation to allocate investment opportunities fairly. ARGA also regularly monitors dispersion of client account returns within the same investment strategy to verify that no preferential treatment has occurred. As expected, in instances such as clients directing trades through particular brokers, ARGA may place non-simultaneous trade orders for the fund and another client, which may affect the execution price of the security to the detriment of one or the other.

To ensure ARGA employees do not use knowledge of the fund's trading for personal gain, ARGA's access persons and their immediate family members living in the same household are subject to initial, quarterly, and annual brokerage account reporting and certification requirements with respect to brokerage or investment accounts over which they have a direct or indirect beneficial interest. Access persons, including their immediate family members living in the same household, contemplating the purchase or sale of any security or an interest in a private placement vehicle must obtain preclearance from ARGA. Access persons' brokerage statements and emails are reviewed on a quarterly basis to ensure continued compliance with ARGA's policies on personal securities transactions.

While ARGA follows these procedures to eliminate potential conflicts of interest, there is no guarantee they will detect and prevent every situation where potential conflicts could arise. Investment personnel of the firm or its affiliates may be permitted to be commercially or professionally involved with an issuer of securities. Any potential conflicts of interest from such involvement would be monitored for compliance with ARGA's Code of Ethics.

**Compensation.** The goal of ARGA's compensation structure is to align the interests of investment professionals with those of its clients and the firm. Accordingly, ARGA rewards behavior by investment professionals that results in long-term success for its clients and the company.

Mr. Krishna has equity ownership in ARGA; accordingly, he is entitled to a share of the firm's profits. Mr. Krishna does not receive a base salary or performance bonus. ARGA compensates Mssrs. Ito and Kumar through a combination of base salary, performance bonus, and profit sharing. Base salary is a fixed amount that may change based on an annual review or market conditions. Bonus is determined by both individual performance and the financial success of the firm. Effective 2016, a portion of profits and value of the firm is shared with employees other than Mr. Krishna through the ARGA Commitment Plan. These employees comprise individuals across the firm who are key to delivering superior levels of excellence for ARGA's clients. Over the long term, ARGA expects bonus and profit sharing to make up the highest proportion of compensation. Where relevant at higher levels of individual compensation, a portion of both the bonus and profit sharing is likely to be deferred, thereby encouraging long-term retention of key employees.

ARGA formally reviews performance by each individual based on a framework that is relevant for the individual's area of responsibility and overall adherence to the firm's values. ARGA does not tie portfolio managers' compensation specifically to the performance of any portfolio relative to the portfolio's benchmark, as that could cause individuals to stray from ARGA's long-term, valuation-based investment discipline. For investment professionals, ARGA reviews both quantitative and fundamental factors. Quantitative factors may include productivity in terms of com-

panies' research coverage and construction of global industry models. Fundamental factors focus on depth of company and industry research, quality of company models and embedded forecasts, contribution to discussions with company management, and ability to identify key business issues and paths to possible resolution. In addition to evaluating individuals on their own contribution, the firm assesses their commitment to the success of other ARGA employees and ARGA as a whole.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

# PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments—Massachusetts Financial Services Company, doing business as MFS Investment Management.

Rick Gable and Mark Syn are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Rick Gable:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	6	3	8
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$5,400	\$267.3	\$1,600
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

Mark Syn:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	5	1	7
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$2,900	\$128.5	\$1,600
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential Conflicts of Interest.** MFS seeks to identify potential conflicts of interest resulting from a portfolio manager's management of both the Fund and other accounts, and has adopted policies and procedures reasonably designed to address such potential conflicts. There is no guarantee that MFS will be successful in identifying or mitigating conflicts of interest.

The management of multiple funds and accounts (including accounts in which MFS or an affiliate has an interest) gives rise to conflicts of interest if the funds and accounts have different objectives and strategies, benchmarks, time horizons, and fees, as a portfolio manager must allocate his or her time and investment ideas across multiple funds and accounts. In certain instances, there are securities which are suitable for the Fund's portfolio as well as for one or more other accounts advised by MFS or its subsidiaries (including accounts in which MFS or an affiliate has an interest). MFS' trade allocation policies could have a detrimental effect on the Fund if the Fund's orders do not get fully executed or are delayed in getting executed due to being aggregated with those of other accounts advised

by MFS or its subsidiaries. A portfolio manager may execute transactions for another fund or account that may adversely affect the value of the Fund's investments. Investments selected for funds or accounts other than the Fund may outperform investments selected for the Fund.

When two or more accounts are simultaneously engaged in the purchase or sale of the same security, the securities are allocated among clients in a manner believed by MFS to be fair and equitable to each over time. Allocations may be based on many factors and may not always be pro rata based on assets managed. The allocation methodology could have a detrimental effect on the price or availability of a security with respect to the Fund.

MFS and/or a portfolio manager may have a financial incentive to allocate favorable or limited opportunity investments or structure the timing of investments to favor accounts other than the Fund; for instance, those that pay a higher advisory fee and/or have a performance adjustment, those that include an investment by the portfolio manager, and/or those in which MFS, its officers and/or employees, and/or its affiliates own or have an interest.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, certain accounts may invest their assets in other accounts advised by MFS or its affiliates, including accounts that are advised by one or more of the same portfolio manager(s), which could result in conflicts of interest relating to asset allocation, timing of purchases and redemptions, and increased profitability for MFS, its affiliates, and/or its personnel, including portfolio managers.

**Compensation.** MFS' philosophy is to align portfolio manager compensation with the goal to provide shareholders with long-term value through a collaborative investment process. Therefore, MFS uses long-term investment performance as well as contribution to the overall investment process and collaborative culture as key factors in determining portfolio manager compensation. In addition, MFS seeks to maintain total compensation programs that are competitive in the asset management industry in each geographic market where it has employees. MFS uses competitive compensation data to ensure that compensation practices are aligned with its goals of attracting, retaining, and motivating the highest-quality professionals.

MFS reviews portfolio manager compensation annually. In determining portfolio manager compensation, MFS uses quantitative means and qualitative means to help ensure a durable investment process.

Portfolio manager total cash compensation is a combination of base salary and performance bonus:

Base Salary—Base salary generally represents a smaller percentage of portfolio manager total cash compensation than performance bonus.

Performance Bonus—Generally, the performance bonus represents more than a majority of portfolio manager total cash compensation.

With respect to each portfolio manager, the performance bonus is based on a combination of quantitative and qualitative factors, generally with more weight given to the former and less weight given to the latter.

The quantitative portion is primarily based on the pre-tax performance of accounts managed by the portfolio manager over a range of fixed-length time periods, intended to provide the ability to assess performance over time periods consistent with a full market cycle and a strategy's investment horizon. The fixed-length time periods include the portfolio manager's full tenure on each fund/strategy and, when available, 10-, 5-, and 3-year periods. For portfolio managers who have served for less than three years, shorter-term periods, including the one-year period, will also be considered, as will performance in previous roles, if any, held at the firm. Emphasis is generally placed on longer performance periods when multiple performance periods are available. Performance is evaluated across the full set of strategies and portfolios managed by a given portfolio manager, relative to appropriate peer group uni-

verses and/or representative indices ("benchmarks"). For Rick Gable and Mark Syn, the FTSE EPRA Nareit Developed Real Estate Index (net div) was used to measure their performance for the fund.

Benchmarks may include versions and components of indices, custom indices, and linked indices that combine performance of different indices for different portions of the time period, where appropriate. The qualitative portion is based on the results of an annual internal peer review process (where portfolio managers are evaluated by other portfolio managers, analysts, and traders) and management's assessment of overall portfolio manager contributions to the MFS investment process and the client experience (distinct from fund and other account performance).

The performance bonus may be in the form of cash and/or a deferred cash award, at the discretion of management. A deferred cash award is issued for a cash value and becomes payable over a three-year vesting period if the portfolio manager remains in the continuous employ of MFS or its affiliates. During the vesting period, the value of the unfunded deferred cash award will fluctuate as though the portfolio manager had invested the cash value of the award in an MFS fund(s) selected by the portfolio manager. A select fund may, but is not required to, be a fund that is managed by the portfolio manager.

MFS Equity Plan—Portfolio managers also typically benefit from the opportunity to participate in the MFS Equity Plan. Equity interests are awarded by management, on a discretionary basis, taking into account tenure at MFS, contribution to the investment process, and other factors.

Finally, portfolio managers also participate in benefit plans (including a defined contribution plan and health and other insurance plans) and programs available generally to other employees of MFS. The percentage such benefits represent of any portfolio manager's compensation depends upon the length of the individual's tenure at MFS and salary level, as well as other factors.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments—Allspring Global Investments, LLC, Aviva Investors Americas LLC, PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd., Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC, DLD Asset Management, LP, Magnetar Asset Management LLC and Electron Capital Partners, LLC.
Allspring Global Investments, LLC

Allspring uses a team approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Harindra de Silva and David Krider are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Allspring's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
14	15	8
0	1*	0
\$3,900.4	\$844.2	\$1,779.8
\$0	\$43.3	\$0
	investment companies 14 0 \$3,900.4	investment companies         investment vehicles           14         15           0         1*           \$3,900.4         \$844.2

<sup>\*</sup> accounts within a pooled fund that do pay a performance-based fee

David Krider:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	7	2
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1*	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$1,411.1	\$533.9	\$730.5
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$43.3	\$0

<sup>\*</sup> accounts within a pooled fund that do pay a performance-based fee

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Allspring's portfolio managers often provide investment management for separate accounts advised in the same or similar investment style as that provided to mutual funds. While management of multiple accounts could potentially lead to conflicts of interest over various issues such as trade allocation, fee disparities and research acquisition, Allspring has implemented policies and procedures for the express purpose of ensuring that clients are treated fairly and that potential conflicts of interest are minimized.

The portfolio managers face inherent conflicts of interest in their day-to-day management of funds and other accounts because they may have different investment objectives, strategies and risk profiles than the other accounts managed by the portfolio managers. For instance, to the extent that the portfolio managers manage accounts with different investment strategies than the funds, they may from time to time be inclined to purchase securities, including initial public offerings, for one account but not for a fund. Additionally, some of the accounts managed by the portfolio managers may have different fee structures, including performance fees, which are or have the potential to be higher or lower, in some cases significantly higher or lower, than the fees paid by the funds. The differences in fee structures may provide an incentive to the portfolio managers to allocate more favorable trades to the higher-paying accounts.

To minimize the effects of these inherent conflicts of interest, Allspring has adopted and implemented policies and procedures, including brokerage and trade allocation policies and procedures, that they believe address the potential conflicts associated with managing portfolios for multiple clients and are designed to ensure that all clients are treated fairly and equitably. Accordingly, security block purchases are allocated to all accounts with similar objectives in a fair and equitable manner. Furthermore, Allspring has adopted a Code of Ethics under Rule 17j-1 under the 1940 Act and Rule 204A-1 under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 to address potential conflicts associated with managing the funds and any personal accounts the portfolio managers may maintain.

**Compensation.** The compensation structure for Allspring's portfolio managers includes a competitive fixed base salary plus variable incentives, payable annually and over a deferred period. Allspring participates in third party investment management compensation surveys for market-based compensation information to help support individual pay decisions and to ensure compensation is aligned with the marketplace. In addition to investment management compensations surveys, Allspring also considers prior professional experience, tenure, seniority and a portfolio manager's team size, scope and assets under management when determining their total compensation. In addition, portfolio managers, who meet the eligibility requirements, may participate in Allspring's 401(k) plan that features a limited matching contribution. Eligibility for and participation in this plan is on the same basis for all employees.

Allspring's investment incentive program plays an important role in aligning the interests of portfolio managers, investment team members, clients and shareholders. Incentive awards for portfolio managers are determined based on a review of relative investment and business/team performance. Investment performance is generally evaluated for 1-, 3-, and 5-year performance results, with a predominant weighting on the 3- and 5-year time periods, versus the relevant benchmarks and/or peer groups consistent with the investment style.

Once determined, incentives are awarded to portfolio managers annually, with a portion awarded as annual cash and a portion awarded as a deferred incentive. The long-term portion of incentives generally carry a pro-rated vesting schedule over a 3 year period. For many of its portfolio managers, Allspring further requires a portion of their annual long-term award be allocated directly into each strategy they manage through a deferred compensation vehicle. In addition, Allspring's investment team members who are eligible for long term awards also have the opportunity to invest up to 100% of their awards into investment strategies they support (through a deferred compensation vehicle).

As an independent firm, approximately 20% of Allspring is owned by employees, including portfolio managers.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **Aviva Investors Americas LLC.**

Peter Fitzgerald and Ian Pizer are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Aviva's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Peter Fitzgerald:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,149	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

lan Pizer:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	4	0	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$3,149	\$0	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Aviva employees may not engage in any employment or business activity other than their employment with Aviva which interferes with their responsibilities as an employee of Aviva or which creates a conflict of interest with the interests of the Aviva or its clients.

Employees of Aviva must notify the compliance department immediately where they have an outside directorship, public trusteeship or role through which action is taken on behalf of a non-Aviva entity. Approval must be sought from the compliance department for all roles of this type. Aviva's conflicts of interest policy sets out the information which must be provided in relation to external directorships.

Where there is any uncertainty as to whether an arrangement falls within the scope of this requirement advice should be sought from Aviva's compliance department.

**Compensation.** Aviva's compensation arrangements are designed to align performance of individuals to Aviva's strategic goals while creating wealth for clients and shareholders. Aviva's compensation packages consist of base salary, annual bonus, long-term incentive plans (for certain employees and share ownership.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### PCJ Investment Counsel Ltd.

Adam Posman, Heiki Altosaar, Kevin Kingsley and Derek Cangiano are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of PCJ's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	1	7
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	0	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$61	\$97	\$451
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$0	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Under certain circumstances, PCJ may deal in securities transactions where the issuer of the securities or the other party to the transaction is this firm or a party having an ownership or business relationship with PCJ. Since these transactions may create a conflict interest, PCJ's policy is to disclose to clients, certain relevant matters relating to the transactions. PCJ will also comply with any additional procedures as required by UBS AM with respect to the fund.

#### Important Concepts

"Related party"—a party is related to PCJ if, through the ownership of or direction or control over voting securities, PCJ exercises a controlling influence over that party or that party exercises a controlling influence over PCJ.

"Connected party"—a party is connected to PCJ if, due to indebtedness or certain other relationships, a prospective purchaser of securities of the connected party might question PCJ's independence from that party.

"Associated party"—an associated party is either a related party or another party in a close relationship with PCJ, such as one of the firm's partners, salesmen, directors or officers.

## Required Disclosure

PCJ will make certain disclosures where it exercises discretion on behalf of a client with respect to securities issued by a related party or, in the course of an initial distribution, by a connected party. In these situations, the firm must disclose its relationship with the issuer of the securities. PCJ must also make disclosures to clients as to where it knows or should know that, as a result of the firm exercising discretion on a client's behalf, securities will be purchased from or sold to PCJ, an associated party or, in the course of an initial distribution, a connected party.

The following is a list of the time and manner in which these disclosures will be made:

- Where PCJ buys or sells securities for a client's account, the required disclosure will be contained in the confirmation of trade sent to a particular client.
- Where PCJ advises clients with respect to the purchase or sale of securities, the disclosure will be made prior to giving the advice.
- Where PCJ exercises discretion under a client's authority in the purchase or sale of securities, the firm may not exercise that discretion for the types of transactions described above unless specific and informed written consent has been obtained.

**Compensation.** PCJ's compensation structure is specifically designed to attract, motivate, and retain talented professionals. Most senior professionals participate directly in the success of the firm through equity ownership, which is tied to each partner's individual contribution. As responsibility and contribution is increased over time, ownership is also increased.

PCJ offers a competitive benefits package and a flexible, team-oriented work environment. This creates a collegial atmosphere that employees appreciate and reward with their loyalty. The buy-in and buy-out of shares takes place over an extended period of time and partners are not required to put up cash to buy equity. There is no "deferred compensation" as that phrase is understood from an investment banking perspective.

When a partner retires, the value of the retired shares is paid out over an extended period of time, so that there is a clear incentive on the part of the retiring partner to ensure the ongoing health of the investment team and its ability to meet client mandates.

**Ownership of fund shares.** As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

#### **Kettle Hill Capital Management, LLC**

Andrew Kurita is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Kettle Hill's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information related to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	3	3	1
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	3	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$215.6	\$340.8	\$282.1
Assets Managed with Performance- Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$215.6	\$340.8	\$282.1

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Kettle Hill is obligated to provide honesty and full disclosure to its clients. Accordingly, Kettle Hill conducts an annual review of its business practices to identify those that might pose a potential conflict of interest between Kettle Hill and its clients, including, but not limited to, business practices regarding personal/proprietary trading, cross trades, corporate opportunities and proxy voting. This includes a review of the relationship of Kettle Hill and its affiliates with the issuer of each security and any of the issuer's affiliates to determine if the issuer is a client or affiliate of Kettle Hill or has some other relationship with the Kettle Hill or a client of Kettle Hill. Kettle Hill's Chief Compliance Officer is responsible for ensuring that all relevant disclosure concerning potential conflicts of interest is included in Kettle Hill's Form ADV. Kettle Hill will review existing policies and procedures designed to address such conflicts and will develop and implement additional policies and procedures, as needed.

**Compensation.** Andrew Kurita, the portfolio manager for Kettle Hill's allocated portion of the fund, participates in the overall revenue of Kettle Hill rather than revenues generated by any one particular account. Kettle Hill has implemented a compensation policy whereby key principals of the firm share in the overall growth and revenue of the business.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

## DLD Asset Management, LP

Mark Friedman and Sudeep Duttaroy are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of DLD's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

Mark Friedman:			
	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	1	1
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	1	1
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$37	\$78	\$32
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$78	\$0

## **Sudeep Duttaroy:**

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	2	7
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	7
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$54	\$123	\$250
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$123	\$250

**Potential conflicts of interest.** There may be certain inherent conflicts of interest that arise in connection with the portfolio managers' management of the fund's investments and the investments of any other accounts that they manage. Such conflicts could include aggregation of orders for all accounts managed by a particular portfolio man-

ager, the allocation of purchases across all such accounts, and any soft dollar arrangements that the firm may have in place that could benefit the fund and/or such other accounts. DLD works to ensure that all clients are treated fairly in the execution of orders and allocation of trades. The firm has established trading policies and procedures, including best execution policies and procedures and policies regarding allocation and aggregation of client trades, designed to limit conflicts of interest between the fund and other accounts managed by DLD and its investment personnel.

**Compensation.** Compensation for portfolio managers includes an annual fixed base salary and a variable performance-based bonus. Mark Friedman is the majority owner of DLD, which entitles him to a portion of the firm's profits.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own any shares of the fund.

#### Magnetar Asset Management LLC

Devin Dallaire is the portfolio manager primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of Magnetar's allocated portion of the fund's assets. The following table provides information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio manager as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	2	8	0
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	0
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$185	\$1,452	\$0
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$40	\$0

**Potential conflicts of interest.** It is generally Magnetar's policy that investment decisions for all accounts managed by the portfolio manager be made based on a consideration of each client's investment objectives, investment policies and guidelines, and other specific account requirements or restrictions. The portfolio manager may manage accounts with similar or differing investment strategies. The portfolio manager may take positions in other accounts opposite to those taken by the fund. These positions could adversely affect the performance of investments held by the fund.

General conflicts of interest may include:

Allocation of Limited Time and Attention. A portfolio manager who is responsible for managing multiple funds and/or accounts may devote unequal time and attention to the management of those funds and/or accounts. As a result, the portfolio manager may not be able to formulate as complete a strategy or identify equally attractive investment opportunities for each of those accounts as might be the case if he or she were to devote substantially more attention to the management of a single fund. The effects of this potential conflict may be more pronounced where funds and/or accounts overseen by a particular portfolio manager have different investment strategies.

Allocation of Limited Investment Opportunities. If the portfolio manager identifies a limited investment opportunity that may be suitable for multiple funds and/or accounts, the opportunity may be allocated among these several funds or accounts, which may limit the fund's ability to take full advantage of the investment opportunity. When Magnetar deems the purchase or sale of a security to be in the best interest of the fund as well as of other accounts managed by a portfolio manager, Magnetar, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, may aggre-

gate orders of the fund and those other accounts for the purchase or sale of the security. In such event, allocation of the securities so purchased or sold, as well as the expenses incurred in the transaction, will be made by Magnetar in the manner it considers to be the most equitable and consistent with its fiduciary obligations to the fund and to such other accounts. When determining allocation among accounts managed by a portfolio manager, Magnetar takes into consideration the different investment mandates and investment strategies applicable to such accounts, current investment positions of such accounts, the relative capitalization and cash availability of such accounts, investment time horizon, leverage ratios and other considerations.

**Compensation.** The portfolio manager is compensated for his work in managing the fund, as well as for work managing other products managed by Magnetar and/or its affiliates. The portfolio manager receives (a) a base salary and (b) a bonus based on both qualitative and quantitative factors, taking into account individual performance and performance of the fund and other products managed by Magnetar and/or its affiliates, as well as the success of MCP as a whole. In addition, the portfolio manager is eligible for retention incentives or other compensation intended to encourage long-term interest in the success of MCP's business, Magnetar and its clients, which include the fund.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio manager did not own shares of the fund.

## **Electron Capital Partners, LLC.**

Electron uses a team approach in managing its portion of the fund's portfolio. Ran Zhou and Neil Choi are the portfolio managers primarily responsible for the day-to-day management of the fund. The following tables provide information relating to other accounts managed by the portfolio managers as of July 31, 2023:

	Registered investment companies	Other pooled investment vehicles	Other accounts
Number of Accounts Managed	1	2	6
Number of Accounts Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees	0	2	3
Assets Managed (in millions)	\$84	\$1,888	\$637
Assets Managed with Performance-Based Advisory Fees (in millions)	\$0	\$1,888	\$252

**Potential conflicts of interest.** Conflicts of interest may exist between various individuals and entities, including supervised persons of Electron, and current or prospective clients. Any failure to identify or properly address a conflict can have severe negative repercussions for Electron, its supervised persons, and/or clients. In some cases, the improper handling of a conflict could result in litigation and/or disciplinary action.

Section 206(2) of the Advisers Act prohibits investment advisers from engaging in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates as a fraud or deceit upon any client or prospective client whereas Section 206(4) of the Advisers Act prohibits investment advisers from engaging in any act, practice, or course of business which is fraudulent, deceptive, or manipulative. Rule 206(4)-8(a) under the Advisers Act effectively extends this prohibition so as to apply to pooled investment vehicle investors or prospective investors. A failure to identify, disclose and/or manage a conflict of interest could constitute a violation of any of these provisions.

Electron's policy is to disclose, mitigate, and/or eliminate all identified conflicts of interest in the best interests of its clients. In the event that a conflict of interest arises between clients of Electron, Electron's policy is to seek to resolve such conflict as fairly as possible in relation to all parties.

Electron's policies and procedures have been designed to identify and properly disclose, mitigate, and/or eliminate applicable conflicts of interest. Electron requires supervised persons to complete a compliance questionnaire upon joining Electron and at least annually thereafter. Many of the questions in the compliance questionnaire are intended to identify actual or potential conduct that could constitute an actual, potential, or apparent conflict of interest. However, written policies and procedures cannot address, and a compliance questionnaire cannot anticipate every potential conflict. With this in mind, supervised persons should be cognizant of any and all potential conflicts of interest regardless of whether Electron has contemplated them or not in its existing policies and procedures and/or the compliance questionnaire. Upon identifying such a potential conflict of interest, supervised persons should bring it to the attention of Electron as soon as possible so that Electron can assess the potential conflict and take the necessary steps to properly address it.

While it is not possible to provide a precise or comprehensive definition of a conflict of interest, Electron provides the following guidance to better enable supervised persons to recognize potential conflicts of interest:

- One factor that is common to many conflict of interest situations is the possibility that Electron's or a supervised person's actions or decisions will be affected because of actual or potential differences between or among the interests of Electron, clients, and/or the supervised person's own personal interests. If a supervised employee suspects that any of these parties' interests may not be aligned and that this could affect the employee's or Electron's decisions or actions, a potential conflict of interest may exist.
- A situation may be found to involve a conflict of interest even if it does not result in any financial loss to Electron, or clients, or any gain to Electron, its clients, and/or the supervised persons, and irrespective of the motivations of Electron or the supervised persons involved. Such factors should not prevent a supervised employee from notifying the Chief Compliance Officer of a potential conflict of interest. Electron's policies and procedures have been designed to identify and properly disclose, mitigate, and/or eliminate applicable conflicts of interest.

The Chief Compliance Officer is responsible for determining how to address a newly identified potential conflict of interest. Employees/supervised persons should not seek to address a potential conflict of interest without the Chief Compliance Officer's involvement unless it is not possible to contact the Chief Compliance Officer on a timely basis. In such situations, supervised persons should use good judgment in identifying and responding appropriately to actual or apparent conflicts and notify the Chief Compliance Officer of the potential conflict and their conduct in response as soon as possible thereafter. The following principles govern Electron's approach to addressing conflicts of interest.

- To the extent possible, potential conflicts of interest should be resolved in such a way so as to prevent the potential conflict of interest from becoming an actual or apparent conflict of interest.
- To the extent possible, conflicts of interest that involve Electron and/or its supervised persons on one hand, and clients on the other hand, will generally be disclosed and resolved in a way that favors the interests of clients over the interests of Electron and its supervised persons.
- In some instances, conflicts of interest may arise between clients of Electron. Electron will seek to resolve these conflicts in a way that is as fair and reasonable for all affected parties, even if the ultimate resolution could nevertheless disadvantage or appear to disadvantage one or more of the parties to some extent. If possible, Electron will seek to obtain informed consent to its proposed resolution from the affected parties or their representatives. In all cases, Electron will disclose both the conflict and its ultimate resolution to (at least) the affected parties.

**Compensation.** Annual performance and compensation evaluations are conducted by and determined at the discretion of Ran Zhou, the firm's Chief Investment Officer. Compensation is not calculated on a formulaic basis. The annual compensation structure includes a base salary with a discretionary bonus. Additionally, one-third of an analyst's discretionary bonus is set aside to be reinvested in the funds managed by the firm, subject to an investing schedule. Ownership and profits interests in the management company of Electron are allocated among Mr. Zhou and other portfolio managers.

Ownership of fund shares. As of July 31, 2023, the portfolio managers did not own shares of the fund.

## Portfolio transactions

Decisions to buy and sell securities for a fund (other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and a portion of PACE Alternative Strategies Investments) are made by the fund's subadvisor(s), subject to the overall review of UBS AM and the board of trustees. Decisions to buy and sell securities for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and a portion of PACE Alternative Strategies Investments are made by UBS AM as that fund's investment advisor, subject to the overall review of the board of trustees. Although investment decisions for a fund are made independently from those of the other accounts managed by its investment advisor, investments of the type that the fund may make also may be made by those other accounts. When a fund and one or more other accounts managed by its investment advisor are prepared to invest in, or desire to dispose of, the same security, available investments or opportunities for sales will be allocated in a manner believed by the investment advisor to be equitable to each. In some cases, this procedure may adversely affect the price paid or received by a fund or the size of the position obtained or disposed of by a fund.

Transactions on US stock exchanges and some foreign stock exchanges involve the payment of negotiated brokerage commissions. On exchanges on which commissions are negotiated, the cost of transactions may vary among different brokers. On most foreign exchanges, commissions are generally fixed. When no stated commission applies to securities traded in US over-the-counter markets, the prices of those securities often include undisclosed commissions or mark-ups. The cost of securities purchased from underwriters include an underwriting commission or concession and the prices at which securities are purchased from and sold to broker-dealers include a broker-dealer's mark-up or mark-down. US government securities generally are purchased from underwriters or broker-dealers, although certain newly issued US government securities may be purchased directly from the US Treasury or from the issuing agency or instrumentality.

During the fiscal years indicated, the funds paid the brokerage commissions set forth below:

	For the fiscal year ended July 31,		
Fund	2023	2022	2021
UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund	\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	0	0	5
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	0	0	2,852
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	4,022	0	166
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	0	0	0
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	0	0	13
PACE High Yield Investments	204	0	566
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	202,676	291,086	1,003,574
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	159,269	0	143,248
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	247,966	321,750	427,615
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	359,314	362,363	354,748
PACE International Equity Investments	424,390	0	521,670
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	405,904	321,912	375,680
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	14,328	48,454	341,499
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	850,435	1,089,908	1,275,416

The funds have no obligation to deal with any broker or group of brokers in the execution of portfolio transactions. The funds contemplate that, consistent with the policy of obtaining the best net results, brokerage transactions may be conducted through affiliates of the subadvisor and UBS AM, including UBS Financial Services Inc. The board has adopted procedures in conformity with Rule 17e-1 under the Investment Company Act to ensure that all brokerage commissions paid to any affiliated broker are reasonable and fair. Specific provisions in the Management and Administration Agreement and Advisory Agreements authorize UBS AM and any of its affiliates that is a member of a national securities exchange, to effect portfolio transactions for the funds on such exchange and to retain compensation in connection with such transactions. Any such transactions will be effected and related compensation paid only in accordance with applicable SEC regulations.

During the fiscal years indicated, the funds paid brokerage commissions to UBS Financial Services Inc. or a brokerage affiliate of an investment advisor as follows:

For the fiscal year ended July 3		ar ended July 31,
2023	2022	2021
\$ 0	\$ 0	\$ 0
0	0	0
0	0	274
0	0	0
0	0	0
0	0	0
0	0	0
13,168	1,554	270
0	0	0
12,496	17,337	19,357
1,136	486	862
0	0	4,781
15,157	10,828	6,096
0	50	3,309
20,170	14,150	20,384
	\$ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 13,168 0 12,496 1,136 0 15,157	2023         2022           \$ 0         \$ 0           0         0           0         0           0         0           0         0           0         0           0         0           13,168         1,554           0         0           12,496         17,337           1,136         486           0         0           15,157         10,828           0         50

More information about brokerage commissions paid to affiliates of UBS Financial Services Inc. or a brokerage affiliate of an investment advisor during the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023 is set forth below:

PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments paid \$13,156 in brokerage commissions to UBS Securities LLC and \$12 to UBS AG. These brokerage commissions represented 6.49% and 0.01%, respectively, of the total brokerage commissions paid by the fund during the fiscal year and 1.56% and 0.00%, respectively, of the dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of brokerage commissions.

PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments paid \$12,495.67 in brokerage commissions to UBS Securities LLC. These brokerage commissions represented 5.04% of the total brokerage commissions paid by the fund during the fiscal year and 12.82% of the dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of brokerage commissions.

PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments paid \$1,136 in brokerage commissions to UBS Securities LLC. These brokerage commissions represented 0.32% of the total brokerage commissions paid by the fund during the fiscal year and 0.74% of the dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of brokerage commissions.

PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments paid \$8,313 in brokerage commissions to UBS AG, \$1,770 to UBS Securities LLC, \$2,455 to UBS Securities Asia Ltd, \$406 to UBS Securities India Private Ltd, \$1,055 to UBS Securities PTE Ltd and \$1,158 to UBS Securities PTE.Ltd., Seoul. These brokerage commissions represented 2.05%, 0.44%, 0.60%, 0.10%, 0.26% and 0.29%, respectively, of the total brokerage commissions paid by the fund during the fiscal year and 0.69%, 1.88%, 0.61%, 0.09%, 0.25% and 0.27%, respectively, of the dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of brokerage commissions.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments paid \$20,170 in brokerage commissions to UBS Securities LLC. These brokerage commissions represented 2.37% of the total brokerage commissions paid by the fund during the fiscal year and 1.69% of the dollar amount of transactions involving the payment of brokerage commissions.

Transactions in futures contracts are executed through FCMs who receive brokerage commissions for their services. The funds' procedures in selecting FCMs to execute transactions in futures contracts, including procedures permitting the use of affiliates of UBS AM and the subadvisor, are similar to those in effect with respect to brokerage transactions in securities.

In selecting brokers for a fund, its investment advisor will consider the full range and quality of a broker's services. Consistent with the interests of the funds and subject to the review of the board, UBS AM or the applicable subadvisor may cause a fund to purchase and sell portfolio securities through brokers that provide UBS AM or the subadvisor with brokerage or research services. The funds may pay those brokers a higher commission than may be charged by other brokers, provided that UBS AM or the subadvisor, as applicable, determines in good faith that the commission is reasonable in terms either of that particular transaction or of the overall responsibility of UBS AM or the subadvisor to that fund and its other clients.

Research services obtained from brokers may include written reports, pricing and appraisal services, analysis of issues raised in proxy statements, educational seminars, subscriptions, portfolio attribution and monitoring services, and computer hardware, software and access charges which are directly related to investment research. Research services may be received in the form of written reports, online services, telephone contacts and personal meetings with securities analysts, economists, corporate and industry spokespersons and government representatives.

For the fiscal year ended July 31, 2023, the funds directed portfolio transactions to brokers chosen because they provide research and analysis as indicated below, for which the funds paid the following in brokerage commissions:

Fund	Amount of portfolio transactions	Brokerage commissions paid
UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund	\$0	\$0
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	0	0
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments.	0	0
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	0	0
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	0	0
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	0	0
PACE High Yield Investments	0	0

Fund	Amount of portfolio transactions	Brokerage commissions paid
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	\$398,764,565	\$66,979
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	0	0
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	236,339,876	215,610
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	357,268,170	329,385
PACE International Equity Investments	819,813,767	330,359
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	4,481,411	32,505
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	29,977,125	2,331
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	367,494,097	196,194

For purchases or sales with broker-dealer firms that act as principal, UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor seeks best execution. Although UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor may receive certain research or execution services in connection with the transactions, it will not purchase securities at a higher price or sell securities at a lower price than would otherwise be paid if no weight was attributed to the services provided by the executing broker. UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor may engage in agency transactions in over-the-counter equity and debt securities in return for research and execution services. These transactions are entered into only pursuant to procedures that are designed to ensure that the transaction (including commissions) is at least as favorable as it would have been if effected directly with a market-maker that did not provide research or execution services.

Research services and information received from brokers or dealers are supplemental to the research efforts of UBS AM and a fund's subadvisor and, when utilized, are subject to internal analysis before being incorporated into their investment processes. Information and research services furnished by brokers or dealers through which or with which a fund effects securities transactions may be used by UBS AM or the fund's subadvisor in advising other funds or accounts and, conversely, research services furnished to UBS AM or a fund's subadvisor by brokers or dealers in connection with other funds or accounts that either of them advises may be used in advising a fund.

Investment decisions for a fund and for other investment accounts managed by UBS AM or the applicable subadvisor are made independently of each other in light of differing considerations for the various accounts. However, the same investment decision may occasionally be made for a fund and one or more accounts. In those cases, simultaneous transactions are inevitable. Purchases or sales are then averaged as to price and allocated between that fund and the other account(s) as to amount in a manner deemed equitable to the fund and the other account(s). While in some cases this practice could have a detrimental effect upon the price or value of the security as far as a fund is concerned, or upon its ability to complete its entire order, in other cases it is believed that simultaneous transactions and the ability to participate in volume transactions will benefit the fund.

The funds will not purchase securities that are offered in underwritings in which an affiliate of the subadvisor or UBS AM is a member of the underwriting or selling group, except pursuant to procedures adopted by the board pursuant to Rule 10f-3 under the Investment Company Act. Among other things, these procedures require that the spread or commission paid in connection with such a purchase be reasonable and fair, the purchase be at not more than the public offering price prior to the end of the first business day after the date of the public offering and that no affiliate of the subadvisor or UBS AM participate in or benefit from the sale to the funds.

As of July 31, 2023, the funds owned securities issued by their regular broker-dealers or certain entities that may be deemed affiliates of those regular broker-dealers (as defined in Rule 10b-1 under the Investment Company Act) as follows:

Issuer	Value
State Street Corp	\$ 8,985,162
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	
Issuer	Value
Morgan Stanley	\$ 4,135,539
State Street Corp	25,703,613
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	
Issuer	Value
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 1,849,765
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.	316,275
BNP Paribas SA	728,912
Citigroup, Inc.	426,494
Citigroup, Inc.	387,232
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	1,253,921
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	272,931
Morgan Stanley	1,230,066
State Street Corp	3,427,158
Wells Fargo & Co.	1,170,687
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	
Issuer	Value
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.	\$ 14,116,259
Citigroup, Inc.	12,238,468
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	1,637,002
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	16,764,927
Morgan Stanley	10,183,303
State Street Corp	1,245,968
Wells Fargo & Co.	3,231,200
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	
Issuer	Value
State Street Corp	\$ 2,370,974

## **PACE Government Money Market Investments**

Issuer	Value	
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	\$115,000,000	
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments		
Issuer	Value	
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 75,980	
Barclays PLC	144,607	
Citigroup, Inc.	5,487,378	
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	1,970,978	
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	1,249,128	
Morgan Stanley	99,478	
State Street Corp	3,431,274	
PACE Municipal Fixed Income		
Issuer	Value	
State Street Corp	\$ 574,737	
PACE International Equity Investments		
Issuer	Value	
Daiwa Securities Group, Inc.	\$ 12,450	
State Street Corp	4,556,188	
PACE High Yield Investments		
Issuer	Value	
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 73,547	
Barclays PLC	438,676	
Citigroup, Inc.	301,221	
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	70,733	
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	195,797	
Morgan Stanley	418,170	
State Street Corp	999,000	
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments		
Issuer	Value	
State Street Corp	\$ 4,007,116	
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments		
Issuer	Value	
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 882,592	
Morgan Stanley	72,461	
State Street Corp	112,229,368	
Wells Fargo & Co.	386,359	

## **PACE Intermediate Fixed Income**

Issuer	Value
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 793,648
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.	1,319,552
Barclays PLC	75,910
Credit Suisse	3,843
Citigroup, Inc.	2,231,040
Citigroup, Inc.	874,310
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	318,488
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	751,651
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	440,498
Morgan Stanley	940,999
Morgan Stanley	782,834
State Street Corp	566,556
State Street Corp	171,044
Wells Fargo & Co.	1,305,575
Wells Fargo & Co.	545,128
PACE Global Real Estate Investments	
Issuer	Value
State Street Corp	\$ 749,984
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	
Issuer	Value
Bank of America Corp.	\$ 3,720,383
Bank of America Corp.	157,407
Bank of New York Mellon Corp.	1,741,751
Barclays PLC	1,495,296
Barclays PLC	147,049
BNP Paribas SA	362,516
Citigroup, Inc.	3,987,234
Citigroup, Inc.	1,504,780
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	1,983,274
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	601,061
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.	242,175
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	2,289,496
JPMorgan Chase & Co.	512,464
Morgan Stanley	2,771,888
Morgan Stanley	288,829
Morgan Stanley	142,770

Issuer	Value
State Street Corp	\$ 6,500,567
State Street Corp	755,408
Wells Fargo & Co.	2,618,359
Wells Fargo & Co.	169,887

**Portfolio turnover.** UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may attempt to increase yields by trading to take advantage of short-term market variations, which results in high portfolio turnover. Because purchases and sales of money market instruments are usually effected as principal transactions, this policy does not result in high brokerage commissions to the fund. None of the funds will consider the portfolio turnover rate as a limiting factor in making investment decisions.

Portfolio turnover rates may vary greatly from year to year as well as within a particular year and may be affected by cash requirements for redemptions of a fund's shares as well as by requirements that enable the fund to receive favorable tax treatment. Each fund's portfolio turnover rate is calculated by dividing the lesser of the fund's annual sales or purchases of portfolio securities (exclusive of purchases or sales of securities whose maturities were one year or less at the time of acquisition) by the monthly average value of the securities in the fund's portfolio during the year.

With respect to PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments, the variation in the fund's portfolio turnover rate from the fiscal year ending July 31, 2022 to the fiscal year ending July 31, 2023 was due to the addition of BBH as a subadvisor and increased market volatility.

The following table sets forth the portfolio turnover rates for each fund:

#### Portfolio turnover rates

Fund	Fiscal year ended July 31, 2023	Fiscal year ended July 31, 2022
UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund	N/A	N/A
PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments	919%	817%
PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments	214	124
PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments	376	65
PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments	11	14
PACE Global Fixed Income Investments	189	188
PACE High Yield Investments	33	51
PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments	42	42
PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments	67	78
PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments	36	37
PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments	94	78
PACE International Equity Investments	40	36
PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments	81	57
PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments	18	76
PACE Alternative Strategies Investments	423	406

# Reduced sales charges, additional purchase, exchange and redemption information and other services

## Additional information regarding purchases through letter of intent

To the extent that an investor purchases less than the dollar amount indicated on the Letter of Intent within the 13-month period, the sales charge will be adjusted upward for the entire amount purchased at the end of the 13-month period. This adjustment will be made by redeeming shares first from amounts held in escrow, and then from the account to cover the additional sales charge, the proceeds of which will be paid to the investor's financial advisor and UBS AM, as applicable, in accordance with the prospectus.

Letters of Intent are not available for certain employee benefit plans.

**Waivers of sales charges—Class A shares.** The following additional sales charge waivers are available for Class A shares if you:

- Acquire shares in connection with shares purchased by UBS AM or any affiliate on behalf of a discretionary advisory client;
- Acquire shares in connection with a reorganization pursuant to which a fund acquires substantially all of the assets and liabilities of another fund in exchange solely for shares of the acquiring fund; or
- Acquire shares in connection with the disposition of proceeds from the sale of shares of Managed High Yield Plus Fund Inc. that were acquired during that fund's initial public offering of shares and that meet certain other conditions described in its prospectus.

Reinstatement privilege—Class A shares. Shareholders who have redeemed Class A shares of a fund may reinstate their account without a sales charge by notifying the transfer agent, BNY Mellon, of such desire and forwarding a check for the amount to be purchased within 365 days after the date of redemption. The reinstatement will be made at the net asset value per share next computed after the notice of reinstatement and check are received. The amount of a purchase under this reinstatement privilege cannot exceed the amount of the redemption proceeds. Gain on a redemption is taxable regardless of whether the reinstatement privilege is exercised, although a loss arising out of a redemption will not be deductible to the extent the reinstatement privilege is exercised within 30 days after redemption, in which event an adjustment will be made to the shareholder's tax basis in shares acquired pursuant to the reinstatement privilege. Gain or loss on a redemption also may be readjusted for federal income tax purposes by the amount of any sales charge paid on Class A shares, under the circumstances. See "Taxes" below.

**Payments by UBS AM—Class P2 and Class Y shares.** Class P2 and Class Y shares are sold without sales charges and do not pay ongoing 12b-1 distribution or service fees. Prior to May 25, 2010, UBS AM (US), the principal underwriter of the funds, made payments out of its own resources to certain affiliated broker-dealers (e.g., UBS Financial Services Inc.) and, from time to time, unaffiliated broker-dealers, with respect to Class Y shares. These broker-dealers may continue to receive such payments after May 25, 2010 in UBS AM (US)'s sole discretion. Only specific types of investors can purchase Class P2 and Class Y shares.

**Additional exchange and redemption information.** As discussed in the prospectus, eligible shares of a fund may be exchanged for shares of the corresponding class of other Family Funds ("Family Funds" include the PACE Select funds, the UBS Funds, and other funds for which UBS AM (US) serves as principal underwriter). Class Y shares are not eligible for exchange. Shareholders will receive at least 60 days' notice of any termination or material modification of the exchange offer, except no notice need be given if, under extraordinary circumstances, either redemp-

tions are suspended under the circumstances described below or a fund temporarily delays or ceases the sales of its shares because it is unable to invest amounts effectively in accordance with the fund's investment objective, policies and restrictions. Investors exchanging Class P shares on certain brokerage platforms may be subject to commissions or other fees.

If conditions exist that make cash payments undesirable, each fund reserves the right to honor any request for redemption by making payment in whole or in part in securities chosen by the fund and valued in the same way as they would be valued for purposes of computing the fund's net asset value. Any such redemption in kind will be made with readily marketable securities, to the extent available. If payment is made in securities, a shareholder may incur brokerage expenses in converting these securities into cash. As of the date of this SAI, each fund has elected, however, to be governed by Rule 18f-1 under the Investment Company Act, under which it is obligated to redeem shares solely in cash up to the lesser of \$250,000 or 1% of its net asset value during any 30-day period for one shareholder. This election is irrevocable unless the SEC permits its withdrawal.

Investors redeeming Class P shares on certain brokerage platforms may be subject to commissions or other fees.

**Financial institutions.** A fund may authorize financial institutions or their delegates or agents to accept on its behalf purchase and redemption orders that are in "good form" in accordance with the policies of those institutions. A fund will be deemed to have received these purchase and redemption orders when an institution or its delegate or agent accepts them. Like all customer orders, these orders will be priced based on the fund's net asset value next computed after receipt of the order by the financial institutions or their delegates or agents. Financial Institutions may include retirement plan service providers who aggregate purchase and redemption instructions received from numerous retirement plans or plan participants.

**Automatic investment plan—Class A and Class P shares.** UBS AM or your financial advisor may offer an automatic investment plan with a minimum initial investment of \$1,000 through which a fund will deduct \$50 or more on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis from the investor's bank account to invest directly in the funds' Class A shares. For Class P shares, an automatic investment plan is available to certain shareholders who may authorize UBS Financial Services Inc. to place a purchase order each month or quarter for fund shares in an amount not less than \$250 per month or quarter. If you are no longer a participant in the PACE<sup>SM</sup> Select Advisors Program (or certain other advisory programs), you may not buy additional Class P shares of the funds through the PACE<sup>SM</sup> Select Advisors Program (except through dividend reinvestments) unless your financial intermediary has an agreement with the funds' distributor to offer Class P shares on its brokerage platform.

For Class P shareholders, the purchase price is paid automatically from cash held in the shareholder's UBS Financial Services Inc. brokerage account through the automatic redemption of the shareholder's shares of a UBS Financial Services Inc. money market fund or from another source or through the liquidation of other securities held in the investor's UBS Financial Services Inc. brokerage account. If the PACE Program assets are held in a UBS Financial Services Inc. Resource Management Account® ("RMA®") account, the shareholder may arrange for preauthorized automatic fund transfer on a regular basis, from the shareholder's bank account to the shareholder's RMA account. Shareholders may utilize this service in conjunction with the automatic investment plan to facilitate regular PACE investments. This automatic fund transfer service, however, is not available for retirement plan shareholders. For participants in the PACE<sup>SM</sup> Multi Advisor Program, amounts invested through the automatic investment plan will be invested in accordance with the participant's benchmark allocation. If sufficient funds are not available in the participant's account on the trade date to purchase the full amount specified by the participant, no purchase will be made.

In addition to providing a convenient and disciplined manner of investing, participation in an automatic investment plan enables an investor to use the technique of "dollar cost averaging." When a shareholder invests the same amount each month, the shareholder will purchase more shares when a fund's net asset value per share is low and fewer shares when the net asset value per share is high. Using this technique, a shareholder's average purchase price

per share over any given period will usually be lower than if the shareholder purchased a fixed number of shares on a monthly basis during the period. Of course, investing through the automatic investment plan does not assure a profit or protect against loss in declining markets. Additionally, since an automatic investment plan involves continuous investing regardless of price levels, an investor should consider his or her financial ability to continue purchases.

**Automatic redemption plan—Class P shares.** Investors in Class P shares who are participating in the PACE<sup>SM</sup> Select Advisors Program may have UBS Financial Services Inc. redeem a portion of their shares in the PACE Program monthly or quarterly under the automatic redemption plan. Quarterly redemptions are made in March, June, September and December. The amount to be redeemed must be at least \$250 per month or quarter or an amount as determined by UBS AG. Purchases of additional shares of a fund concurrent with redemption are ordinarily disadvantageous to shareholders because of potential tax liabilities. For retirement plan shareholders, special limitations apply. For further information regarding the automatic redemption plan, shareholders should contact their Financial Advisors at UBS Financial Services Inc.

**Automatic cash withdrawal plan—Class A shares.** The automatic cash withdrawal plan allows investors to set up monthly, quarterly (March, June, September and December), semi-annual (June and December) or annual (December) withdrawals from their Family Funds accounts.

Minimum balances and withdrawals for Class A shares are as follows:

- Minimum value of fund shares is \$5,000.
- Minimum withdrawals of \$100.

Withdrawals under the automatic cash withdrawal plan will not be subject to a contingent deferred sales charge if the investor withdraws no more than 12% of the value of the fund account when the investor signed up for the Plan (during the first year under the Plan). Shareholders who elect to receive dividends or other distributions in cash may not participate in this plan.

An investor's participation in the automatic cash withdrawal plan will terminate automatically if the "Initial Account Balance" (a term that means the value of the fund account at the time the investor elects to participate in the automatic cash withdrawal plan), less aggregate redemptions made other than pursuant to the automatic cash withdrawal plan, is less than the minimum values specified above. Purchases of additional shares of a fund concurrent with withdrawals are ordinarily disadvantageous to shareholders because of tax liabilities and, for Class A shares, initial sales charges. On or about the 20th of a month for monthly, quarterly, semi-annual and annual plans, your financial advisor will arrange for redemption by the funds of sufficient fund shares to provide the withdrawal payments specified by participants in the funds' automatic cash withdrawal plan. The payments generally are mailed approximately five Business Days (defined below under "Valuation of Shares") after the redemption date. Withdrawal payments should not be considered dividends, but redemption proceeds. If periodic withdrawals continually exceed reinvested dividends and other distributions, a shareholder's investment may be correspondingly reduced. A shareholder may change the amount of the automatic cash withdrawal or terminate participation in the automatic cash withdrawal plan at any time without charge or penalty by written instructions with signatures guaranteed to your financial advisor or BNY Mellon Instructions to participate in the plan, change the withdrawal amount or terminate participation in the plan will not be effective until five days after written instructions with signatures guaranteed are received by BNY Mellon Shareholders may request the forms needed to establish an automatic cash withdrawal plan from their financial advisor or BNY Mellon at 1-800-647 1568.

**Individual retirement accounts.** Self-directed IRAs may be available through your financial advisor through which investments may be made in shares of the funds, as well as in other investments. The minimum initial investment in this IRA is \$10,000. Investors considering establishing an IRA should review applicable tax laws and should consult their tax advisors.

## Valuation of shares

Each fund generally determines its net asset value per share separately for each class of shares as of the close of regular trading (usually 4:00 p.m., Eastern time) on the NYSE on each Monday through Friday when the NYSE is open. Prices will generally be calculated earlier when the NYSE closes early because trading has been halted for the day. Currently, the NYSE is closed on the observance of the following holidays: New Year's Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, Presidents' Day, Good Friday, Memorial Day, Juneteenth National Independence Day, Independence Day, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day.

All funds except UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund. Each fund calculates its net asset value based on the current market value, where available, for its portfolio securities. The funds normally obtain market values for their securities and other instruments from independent pricing sources and broker-dealers. Independent pricing sources may use reported last sale prices, official market closing prices, current market quotations or valuations from computerized "evaluation" systems that derive values based on comparable securities or instruments. An evaluation system incorporates parameters such as security quality, maturity and coupon, and/or research and evaluations by its staff, including review of broker-dealer market price quotations, if available, in determining the valuation of the portfolio securities or instruments. Securities and other instruments also may be valued based on appraisals derived from information concerning the security or instrument or similar securities or instruments received from recognized dealers in those holdings. Securities and instruments traded in the over-the-counter ("OTC") market and listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market, Inc. ("NASDAQ") normally are valued at the NASDAQ Official Closing Price. Other OTC securities are valued at the last bid price on the valuation date available prior to valuation. Securities and instruments which are listed on US and foreign stock exchanges normally are valued at the market closing price, the last sale price on the day the securities are valued or, lacking any sales on such day, at the last available bid price. In cases where securities or instruments are traded on more than one exchange, the securities or instruments are valued on the exchange designated as the primary market by a fund's investment advisor. If a market value is not readily available from an independent pricing source for a particular security or instrument, that security or instrument is valued at fair value as determined in good faith by or under the direction of the board. Various factors may be reviewed in order to make a good faith determination of a security's or instrument's fair value. These factors include, but are not limited to, fundamental analytical data relating to the investment; the nature and duration of restrictions on disposition of the securities or instruments; and the evaluation of forces which influence the market in which the securities or instruments are purchased and sold. Securities and instruments listed on foreign stock exchanges may be fair valued based on significant events that have occurred subsequent to the close of the foreign markets. Foreign currency exchange rates are generally determined as of the close of the NYSE.

Certain securities or investments in which the funds invest are traded in markets that close before 4:00 p.m., Eastern time. Normally, developments that occur between the close of the foreign markets and 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, will not be reflected in the fund's net asset value. However, if any of the funds determine that such developments are so significant that they will materially affect the value of the fund's securities or investments, the fund may adjust the previous closing prices to reflect what the board believes to be the fair value of these securities or investments as of 4:00 p.m., Eastern time.

Rule 2a-5 ("Rule 2a-5") under the Investment Company Act provides that a market quotation is readily available only when that quotation is a quoted price (unadjusted) in active markets for identical investments that the fund can access at the measurement date, provided that a quotation will not be readily available if it is not reliable. Securities for which market quotations are not readily available must be valued at fair value as determined in good faith by the board. The board designated UBS AM as the valuation designee pursuant to Rule 2a-5 to perform fair value determinations for the funds. UBS AM, as the valuation designee, is responsible for periodically assessing any material risks associated with the determination of the fair value of a fund's investments; establishing and applying fair value methodologies; testing the appropriateness of fair value methodologies; and overseeing and evaluating third-party pricing services. UBS AM has a valuation committee to assist with its designated responsibilities as valuation

designee. Valuing securities at fair value involves greater reliance on judgment than valuing securities that have readily available market quotations. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the determination of a security's fair value in accordance with a fund's valuation procedures will in fact approximate the price at which a fund could sell that security at that time.

Certain funds may use a systematic fair valuation model provided by an independent third party to value securities principally traded in foreign markets in order to adjust for possible stale pricing that may occur between the close of the foreign exchanges and the time for valuation. The systematic valuation model may use calculations based on indices of domestic securities and other appropriate indicators, such as prices of relevant ADRs and futures contracts. If a security or instrument is valued at a "fair value," that value is likely to be different from the last quoted market price for the security or instrument.

The amortized cost method of valuation, which approximates market value, generally is used to value short-term debt instruments with 60 days or less remaining to maturity, unless UBS AM as the funds' valuation designee determines that this does not represent fair value. Investments in open-end investment companies are valued at the daily closing net asset value of the respective investment company. Pursuant to the funds' use of the practical expedient within ASC Topic 820, investments in non-registered investment companies are also valued at the daily net asset value. All investments quoted in foreign currencies will be valued daily in US dollars on the basis of the foreign currency exchange rates prevailing at the time such valuation is determined by the funds' custodian.

Futures contracts are generally valued at the settlement price established each day on the exchange on which they are traded. Forward foreign currency contracts are valued daily using forward exchange rates quoted by independent pricing services.

OTC swaps are marked to market daily based upon values from third party vendors or quotations from market makers to the extent available. In the event that market quotations are not readily available or deemed unreliable, the swap is valued at fair value as determined in good faith by or under the direction of UBS AM as the funds' valuation designee. Centrally cleared swaps are valued using prices from the counterparty clearing houses.

**UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund.** UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund values its portfolio securities in accordance with the amortized cost method of valuation under Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act. To use amortized cost to value its portfolio securities, the fund must adhere to certain conditions under that Rule relating to its investments. Amortized cost is an approximation of market value, whereby the difference between acquisition cost and value at maturity is amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining life of the instrument. The effect of changes in the market value of a security as a result of fluctuating interest rates is not taken into account and thus the amortized cost method of valuation may result in the value of a security being higher or lower than its actual market value. In the event that a large number of redemptions takes place at a time when interest rates have increased, the fund might have to sell portfolio securities prior to maturity and at a price that might not be as desirable as the value at maturity.

The board has established procedures ("Procedures") for the purpose of maintaining a constant net asset value of \$1.00 per share for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, which include a review of the extent of any deviation of net asset value per share, based on available market quotations, from the \$1.00 amortized cost per share. Should that deviation exceed 1/2 of 1%, the trustees will promptly consider whether any action should be initiated to eliminate or reduce material dilution or other unfair results to shareholders. Such action may include redeeming shares in kind, selling portfolio securities prior to maturity, reducing or withholding dividends and utilizing a net asset value per share as determined by using available market quotations. In addition, if the board determines that UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund can no longer maintain a constant net asset value of \$1.00 per share, the fund may, as part of converting to a market-based net asset value, take steps to: (i) temporarily suspend the offering of fund shares; and (ii) delay the payment of redemption proceeds for up to seven days, as permitted by the Investment Company Act.

The board may also reduce the number of shares outstanding on a pro rata basis through a reverse stock split to the extent permissible by applicable law and the Trust's organizational documents. The board may consider this action if a fund has a negative gross yield as a result of negative interest rates to maintain a fund's \$1.00 net asset value per share. The use of such measures is subject to certain determinations by the fund's board and disclosure requirements, and may have tax implications for the fund and its shareholders. Consistent with SEC staff guidance, a reverse stock split may trigger a filing with the SEC on Form N-CR.

UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund will maintain a dollar weighted average portfolio maturity of 60 days or less and a dollar-weighted average life for its portfolio of 120 days or less, and will not purchase any instrument with a remaining maturity greater than 397 calendar days (as calculated under Rule 2a-7), except that securities subject to repurchase agreements may have maturities in excess of 397 calendar days. UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund will limit portfolio investments, including repurchase agreements, to those US dollar denominated instruments that are of high quality under Rule 2a-7 and that UBS AM, acting pursuant to the Procedures, determines present minimal credit risks and will comply with certain reporting and recordkeeping procedures. There is no assurance that constant net asset value per share will be maintained. In the event amortized cost ceases to represent fair value, the board will take appropriate action.

## **Taxes**

Sale or exchange of fund shares. A shareholder's sale (redemption) of fund shares (including redemptions in kind) will generally result in a taxable gain or loss, depending on whether the shareholder receives more or less than his or her adjusted basis in the shares. An exchange of a fund's shares for shares of another Family Fund generally will have similar tax consequences. In addition, if a fund's shares are bought within 30 days before or after selling other shares of the fund at a loss, all or a portion of that loss will not be deductible and will increase the basis in the newly purchased shares. Assuming that UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund consistently maintains a stable NAV of \$1.00 per share, then a shareholder will not recognize taxable gain or loss when selling or redeeming shares of the fund. However, with respect to any gain or loss recognized on the sale or exchange of shares of the fund, shareholders may be permitted to adopt a simplified "NAV method" of accounting to account for any such gain or loss. If a shareholder elects to adopt the simplified "NAV method" of accounting, rather than compute gain or loss on every taxable sale or other disposition of shares of the fund as described above, such shareholder would determine gain or loss based on the change in the aggregate value of fund shares during a computation period (such as a taxable year), reduced by net investment (i.e., purchases minus sales) in the fund shares during the computation period. Under the simplified "NAV method," any resulting capital gain or loss would be reportable on a net basis and would generally be treated as a short-term capital gain or loss. Shareholders should consult with their tax advisors about the consequences of adopting the simplified "NAV method" of accounting in their particular circumstances.

The funds are generally required to report to you and the IRS annually on Form 1099-B not only the gross proceeds of fund shares you sell or redeem but also their cost basis for such shares that were purchased or acquired on or after January 1, 2012. Cost basis will be calculated using the funds' default method of average cost, unless you instruct the funds to use a different available calculation method. If you hold your shares through a financial intermediary you should contact such financial intermediary with respect to reporting of cost basis and available elections for your account.

**Special rule for Class A shareholders.** A special tax rule applies when a shareholder sells or exchanges Class A shares within 90 days of purchase and subsequently acquires Class A shares of the same or another Family Fund before January 31 of the calendar year following the calendar year in which the original Class A shares were sold

without paying a sales charge due to the 365-day reinstatement privilege or the exchange privilege. In these cases, any gain on the sale or exchange of the original Class A shares would generally be increased, or any loss would generally be decreased, by the amount of the sales charge paid when those shares were bought, and that amount would increase the basis of the Family Funds shares subsequently acquired.

Qualification as a regulated investment company. Each fund intends to continue to qualify for treatment as a regulated investment company ("RIC") under Subchapter M of the Code. To so qualify, a fund must distribute to its shareholders for each taxable year an amount at least equal to the sum of 90% of its investment company taxable income (consisting generally of taxable net investment income, net short-term capital gain and, for some funds, net gain from certain foreign currency transactions) and 90% of any net interest income excludable from gross income under section 103(a) of the Code. In addition to this requirement ("Distribution Requirement"), each fund must meet several additional requirements, including the following: (1) the fund must derive at least 90% of its gross income each taxable year from dividends, interest, payments with respect to securities loans and gains from the sale or other disposition of securities or foreign currencies, income from certain publicly traded partnerships, or other income (including gains from options, futures or forward currency contracts) derived with respect to its business of investing in securities or those currencies ("Income Requirement"); (2) at the close of each guarter of the fund's taxable year, at least 50% of the value of its total assets must be represented by cash and cash items, US government securities, securities of other RICs and other securities that are limited, in respect of any one issuer, to an amount that does not exceed 5% of the value of the fund's total assets and that does not represent more than 10% of the issuer's outstanding voting securities; and (3) at the close of each quarter of the fund's taxable year, not more than 25% of the value of its total assets may be invested in securities (other than US government securities or the securities of other RICs) of any one issuer or in two or more controlled issuers in the same or similar or related trades or businesses or in the securities of certain publicly traded partnerships.

To the extent that PACE Alternative Strategies Investments derives gross income from certain derivatives related to commodities or commodities indices, such income is generally expected to not satisfy the Income Requirement for RICs discussed above. This will limit the fund's ability to engage in such investments and could possibly affect the fund's ability to qualify as a RIC.

PACE Alternative Strategies Investments (and certain other funds) may also invest in foreign currencies and/or derivatives on foreign currencies. The US Treasury has regulatory authority to exclude from qualifying income foreign currency gains that are not directly related to a company's principal business of investing in stocks or securities. The issuance of such regulations could therefore limit a fund's ability to engage in transactions in foreign currencies and derivatives in foreign currencies that are not related to other investments. Although it is anticipated that any such regulations would be applied on a prospective basis, it is possible that any issued regulations could be applied retroactively. In such an event, it is also possible that the issuance of any such regulations on a retroactive basis could cause PACE Alternative Strategies Investments (and certain other funds) to not qualify as a RIC for prior periods.

By qualifying for treatment as a RIC, a fund (but not its shareholders) will be relieved of federal income tax on the amount of its investment company taxable income and net capital gain that it distributes to shareholders. If a fund failed to qualify for treatment as a RIC for any taxable year, (1) it would be taxed as an ordinary corporation on its taxable income for that year without being able to deduct the distributions it makes to its shareholders and (2) the shareholders would treat all those distributions, including distributions that otherwise would be "exempt-interest dividends" (as described below under "Taxes—Information about PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments") and distributions of net capital gain (the excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss), as taxable dividends (that would generally be taxed as ordinary income) to the extent of the fund's current or accumulated earnings and profits. In addition, the fund could be required to recognize unrealized gains, pay substantial taxes and interest and make substantial distributions before requalifying for RIC treatment.

**Other information.** Dividends and other distributions a fund declares in October, November or December of any year that are payable to its shareholders of record on a date in any of those months will be deemed to have been paid by the fund and received by the shareholders on December 31 of that year if the fund pays the distributions during the following January.

Distributions of net investment income received by a fund from investments in debt securities and any net realized short-term capital gains distributed by a fund will be taxable to shareholders as ordinary income (other than interest on tax-exempt municipal obligations held by PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments) and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction for corporations.

Each fund intends to distribute to shareholders any excess of net long-term capital gain over net short-term capital loss ("net capital gain") for each taxable year. Such gain is reported and distributed as a capital gain dividend and is taxable to shareholders as gain from the sale or exchange of a capital asset held for more than one year, regardless of the length of time a shareholder has held his or her fund shares and regardless of whether the distribution is paid in cash or reinvested in shares. Each of the funds expects that capital gain dividends will be taxable to shareholders as long-term gain. Capital gain dividends are not eligible for the dividends-received deduction for corporations. Due to the investment strategies of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, that fund will not typically derive net long-term capital gains.

A portion of the dividends (whether paid in cash or in additional fund shares) from the investment company taxable income of a fund that invests in equity securities of corporations may be eligible for the dividends-received deduction allowed to corporations if both the fund and the corporation satisfy certain holding period requirements. The eligible portion for a fund may not exceed the aggregate qualifying dividends it receives from US corporations (and capital gain distributions thus are not eligible for the deduction).

The maximum individual rate applicable to "qualified dividend income" and long-term capital gains is generally either 15% or 20%, depending on whether the individual's income exceeds certain threshold amounts. The rate reductions do not apply to corporate taxpayers or a foreign shareholder. Each fund will be able to separately report distributions of any qualifying long-term capital gains or qualifying dividends earned by the fund that would be eligible for the lower maximum rate. A shareholder would also have to satisfy a more than 60-day holding period with respect to any distributions of qualifying dividends in order to obtain the benefit of the lower rate. Distributions derived from interest income or from a REIT will generally not qualify for the lower rates. Because many companies in which certain funds invest do not pay significant dividends on their stock, such funds will not generally derive significant amounts of qualifying dividend income that would be eligible for the lower rate on qualifying dividends.

Through 2025, individuals (and certain other non-corporate entities) are generally eligible for a 20% deduction with respect to taxable ordinary REIT dividends. Applicable Treasury regulations allow the funds to pass through to its shareholders such taxable ordinary REIT dividends. Accordingly, individual (and certain other non-corporate) shareholders of the fund that have received such taxable ordinary REIT dividends may be able to take advantage of this 20% deduction with respect to any such amounts passed through.

Certain distributions reported by a fund as section 163(j) interest dividends may be treated as interest income by shareholders for purposes of the tax rules applicable to interest expense limitations under Code section 163(j). Such treatment by the shareholder is generally subject to holding period requirements and other potential limitations, although the holding period requirements are generally not applicable to dividends declared by money market funds and certain other funds that declare dividends daily and pay such dividends on a monthly or more frequent basis. The amount that a fund is eligible to report as a section 163(j) dividend for a tax year is generally limited to the excess of the fund's business interest income over the sum of the fund's (i) business interest expense and (ii) other deductions properly allocable to the fund's business interest income.

An additional 3.8% Medicare tax is imposed on certain net investment income (including ordinary dividends and capital gain distributions received from a fund and net gains from redemptions or other taxable dispositions of fund shares) of US individuals, estates and trusts to the extent that such person's "modified adjusted gross income" (in the case of an individual) or "adjusted gross income" (in the case of an estate or trust) exceeds certain threshold amounts.

If fund shares are sold at a loss after being held for six months or less, the loss will be treated as long-term, instead of short-term, capital loss to the extent of any capital gain distributions received thereon. Investors also should be aware that if shares are purchased shortly before the record date for a taxable dividend or capital gain distribution, the shareholder will pay full price for the shares and receive some portion of the price back as a taxable distribution. Distributions are taxable to shareholders even if they are paid from income or gain earned by the fund before their investment (and thus were included in the price they paid for their fund shares).

Each fund will be subject to a nondeductible 4% excise tax ("Excise Tax") to the extent it fails to distribute by the end of any calendar year an amount at least equal to the sum of 98% of all of its ordinary income (taking into account certain deferrals and elections) for the calendar year and 98.2% of its capital gain net income (adjusted for certain ordinary losses) for the one-year period ending on October 31 of that year, plus certain other amounts.

Dividends and interest received, and gains realized, by a fund on foreign securities may be subject to income, with-holding or other taxes imposed by foreign countries and US possessions (collectively "foreign taxes") that would reduce the return on its securities. Tax conventions between certain countries and the United States, however, may reduce or eliminate foreign taxes, and many foreign countries do not impose taxes on capital gains in respect of investments by foreign investors.

Certain of the funds may possibly derive "excess inclusion income" from any investments in REMIC residual interests or in certain REITs that have excess inclusion income. In such a case, it is possible that the fund would be taxable on a portion of such income and amounts allocable to tax-exempt shareholders would constitute unrelated business taxable income. Further, distributions of such amounts to non-US shareholders would not be eligible for any reduced withholding rates under a tax treaty.

A fund is generally permitted to carry forward a net capital loss in any taxable year to offset its own capital gains, if any. These amounts are available to be carried forward to offset future capital gains to the extent permitted by the Code and applicable tax regulations. Any such loss carryforwards will retain their character as short-term or long-term. In the event that a fund were to experience an ownership change as defined under the Code, the capital loss carryforwards and other favorable tax attributes of the fund, if any, may be subject to limitation.

**International funds.** If more than 50% of the value of a fund's total assets at the close of its taxable year consists of securities of foreign corporations, it will be eligible to, and may, file an election with the Internal Revenue Service that will enable its shareholders, in effect, to receive the benefit of the foreign tax credit with respect to certain foreign taxes it paid. PACE International Equity Investments and PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments are the only funds that are likely to satisfy this requirement. Pursuant to the election, the fund would treat those taxes as dividends paid to its shareholders and each shareholder (1) would be required to include in gross income, and treat as paid by him or her, his or her proportionate share of those taxes, (2) would be required to treat his or her share of those taxes and of any dividend paid by the fund that represents income from foreign or US possessions sources as his or her own income from those sources and (3) could either deduct the foreign taxes deemed paid by him or her in computing his or her taxable income or, alternatively, use the foreign tax credit that is available may be limited if the shareholder does not satisfy certain holding period requirements or to the extent that dividends from a foreign corporation qualify for the lower tax rate on "qualifying dividends." A fund will report to its shareholders shortly after each taxable year their respective shares of foreign taxes paid to, and the income from

sources within, foreign countries and US possessions if it makes this election. Individuals who have no more than \$300 (\$600 for married persons filing jointly) of creditable foreign taxes included on Forms 1099 and all of whose foreign source income is "qualified passive income" may elect each year to be exempt from the extremely complicated foreign tax credit limitation, in which event they would be able to claim a foreign tax credit without having to file the detailed Form 1116 that otherwise is required.

Passive foreign investment companies. Each fund may invest in the stock of "passive foreign investment companies" ("PFICs") if that stock is a permissible investment. A PFIC is any foreign corporation (with certain exceptions) that, in general, meets either of the following tests: (1) at least 75% of its gross income is passive or (2) an average of at least 50% of its assets produce, or are held for the production of, passive income. Under certain circumstances, a fund will be subject to federal income tax on a portion of any "excess distribution" received on the stock of a PFIC or of any gain from disposition of that stock (collectively "PFIC income"), plus interest thereon, even if the fund distributes the PFIC income as a taxable dividend to its shareholders. The balance of the PFIC income will be included in the fund's investment company taxable income and, accordingly, will not be taxable to it to the extent it distributes that income to its shareholders.

If a fund invests in a PFIC and elects to treat the PFIC as a "qualified electing fund" ("QEF"), then in lieu of the foregoing tax and interest obligation, the fund will be required to include in income each year its pro rata share of the QEF's annual ordinary earnings and net capital gain (which it may have to distribute to satisfy the Distribution Requirement and avoid imposition of the Excise Tax or income tax), even if the QEF does not distribute those earnings and gain to the fund. In most instances it will be very difficult, if not impossible, to make this election because of certain of its requirements.

Each fund may elect to "mark to market" its stock in any PFIC. "Marking-to-market," in this context, means including in ordinary income each taxable year the excess, if any, of the fair market value of a PFIC's stock over a fund's adjusted basis therein as of the end of that year. Pursuant to the election, a fund also would be allowed to deduct (as an ordinary, not capital, loss) the excess, if any, of its adjusted basis in PFIC stock over the fair market value thereof as of the taxable year-end, but only to the extent of any net marked to market gains with respect to that stock included by the fund for prior taxable years under the election. A fund's adjusted basis in each PFIC's stock with respect to which it has made this election will be adjusted to reflect the amounts of income included and deductions taken thereunder.

Because the application of the PFIC rules may affect, among other things, the character of gains, the amount of gain or loss and the timing of the recognition of income with respect to PFIC stock, as well as subject each fund itself to tax on certain income from PFIC stock, the amount that must be distributed to shareholders, and which will be taxed to shareholders as ordinary income or long-term capital gain, may be increased or decreased substantially as compared to a fund that did not invest in PFIC stock. Note that distributions from a PFIC are not eligible for the reduced rate of tax on "qualifying dividends."

**Hedging transactions.** The use of hedging strategies, such as writing (selling) and purchasing options and futures contracts and entering into forward currency contracts, involves complex rules that will determine for income tax purposes the amount, character and timing of recognition of the gains and losses a fund realizes in connection therewith. Gains from the disposition of foreign currencies (except certain gains that may be excluded by future regulations), and gains from options, futures and forward currency contracts a fund derives with respect to its business of investing in securities or foreign currencies, will be treated as qualifying income under the Income Requirement provided, however, that the US Treasury has regulatory authority to exclude certain foreign currency gains from qualifying income.

Certain futures, foreign currency contracts and listed nonequity options (such as those on a securities index) in which a fund may invest may be subject to section 1256 of the Code ("section 1256 contracts"). Any section 1256 contracts a fund holds at the end of each taxable year generally must be "marked to market" (that is, treated as

having been sold at that time for their fair market value) for federal income tax purposes, with the result that unrealized gains or losses will be treated as though they were realized. Sixty percent of any net gain or loss recognized on these deemed sales, and 60% of any net realized gain or loss from any actual sales of section 1256 contracts, will be treated as long-term capital gain or loss, and the balance will be treated as short-term capital gain or loss. These rules may operate to increase the amount that a fund must distribute to satisfy the Distribution Requirement (i.e., with respect to the portion treated as short-term capital gain), which will be taxable to the shareholders as ordinary income, and to increase the net capital gain a fund recognizes, without in either case increasing the cash available to the fund. A fund may elect not to have the foregoing rules apply to any "mixed straddle" (that is, a straddle, clearly identified by the fund in accordance with the regulations, at least one (but not all) of the positions of which are section 1256 contracts), although doing so may have the effect of increasing the relative proportion of net short-term capital gain (taxable as ordinary income) and thus increasing the amount of dividends that must be distributed.

Gains or losses (1) from the disposition of foreign currencies, including forward currency contracts, (2) on the disposition of each foreign-currency-denominated debt security that are attributable to fluctuations in the value of the foreign currency between the dates of acquisition and disposition of the security and (3) that are attributable to exchange rate fluctuations between the time a fund accrues interest, dividends or other receivables, or expenses or other liabilities, denominated in a foreign currency and the time the fund actually collects the receivables or pays the liabilities, generally will be treated as ordinary income or loss. These gains, referred to under the Code as "section 988" gains or losses, will increase or decrease the amount of a fund's investment company taxable income available to be distributed to its shareholders as ordinary income, rather than increasing or decreasing the amount of its net capital gain. If section 988 losses exceed other investment company taxable income during a taxable year, a fund would not be able to distribute any dividends, and any distributions made during that year before the losses were realized would be recharacterized as a return of capital to shareholders, rather than as a dividend, thereby reducing each shareholder's basis in his or her fund shares.

Offsetting positions in any actively traded security, option, futures or forward currency contract entered into or held by a fund may constitute a "straddle" for federal income tax purposes. Straddles are subject to certain rules that may affect the amount, character and timing of a fund's gains and losses with respect to positions of the straddle by requiring, among other things, that (1) loss realized on disposition of one position of a straddle be deferred to the extent of any unrealized gain in an offsetting position until the latter position is disposed of, (2) the fund's holding period in certain straddle positions not begin until the straddle is terminated (possibly resulting in gain being treated as short-term rather than long-term capital gain) and (3) losses recognized with respect to certain straddle positions, that otherwise would constitute short-term capital losses, be treated as long-term capital losses. Applicable regulations also provide certain "wash sale" rules, which apply to transactions where a position is sold at a loss and a new offsetting position is acquired within a prescribed period, and "short sale" rules applicable to straddles. Different elections are available to the funds, which may mitigate the effects of the straddle rules, particularly with respect to "mixed straddles" (i.e., a straddle of which at least one, but not all, positions are section 1256 contracts).

When a covered call option written (sold) by a fund expires, the fund will realize a short-term capital gain equal to the amount of the premium it received for writing the option. When a fund terminates its obligations under such an option by entering into a closing transaction, it will realize a short-term capital gain (or loss), depending on whether the cost of the closing transaction is less (or more) than the premium it received when it wrote the option. When a covered call option written by a fund is exercised, the fund will be treated as having sold the underlying security, producing long-term or short-term capital gain or loss, depending on the holding period of the underlying security and whether the sum of the option price received on the exercise plus the premium received when it wrote the option is more or less than the underlying security's basis.

Certain hedging activities may cause a dividend that would otherwise be subject to the lower tax applicable to a "qualifying dividend," to instead be taxed at the rate of tax applicable to ordinary income.

Constructive sales. If a fund has an "appreciated financial position"—generally, an interest (including an interest through an option, futures or forward currency contract or short sale) with respect to any stock, debt instrument (other than "straight debt") or partnership interest the fair market value of which exceeds its adjusted basis—and enters into a "constructive sale" of the position, the fund will be treated as having made an actual sale thereof, with the result that gain will be recognized at that time. A constructive sale generally consists of a short sale, an off-setting notional principal contract or a futures or forward currency contract entered into by a fund or a related person with respect to the same or substantially identical property. In addition, if the appreciated financial position is itself a short sale or such a contract, acquisition of the underlying property or substantially identical property will be deemed a constructive sale. The foregoing will not apply, however, to a fund's transaction during any taxable year that otherwise would be treated as a constructive sale if the transaction is closed within 30 days after the end of that year and the fund holds the appreciated financial position unhedged for 60 days after that closing (i.e., at no time during that 60-day period is the fund's risk of loss regarding that position reduced by reason of certain specified transactions with respect to substantially identical or related property, such as having an option to sell, being contractually obligated to sell, making a short sale or granting an option to buy substantially identical stock or securities).

**Original issue discount and market discount.** A fund that acquires zero coupon or other securities issued with original issue discount ("OID") and/or Treasury inflation-indexed securities ("TIIS"), on which principal is adjusted based on changes in the Consumer Price Index, must include in its gross income the OID that accrues on those securities, and the amount of any principal increases on TIIS, during the taxable year, even if the fund receives no corresponding payment on them during the year. Similarly, a fund that invests in payment-in-kind ("PIK") securities must include in its gross income securities it receives as "interest" on those securities.

Each fund has elected similar treatment with respect to securities purchased at a discount from their face value ("market discount"). Because a fund annually must distribute substantially all of its investment company taxable income, including any accrued OID, market discount and other non-cash income, to satisfy the Distribution Requirement and avoid imposition of the Excise Tax or income tax, it may be required in a particular year to distribute as a dividend an amount that is greater than the total amount of cash it actually receives. Those distributions would have to be made from the fund's cash assets or from the proceeds of sales of portfolio securities, if necessary. The fund might realize capital gains or losses from those sales, which would increase or decrease its investment company taxable income and/or net capital gain.

**Investments in other investment companies.** If a fund invests in shares of open- or closed-end investment companies, including ETFs, that are taxed as RICs, (collectively, "underlying funds"), the fund will not be able to offset gains realized by one underlying fund in which the fund invest against losses realized by another underlying fund in which the fund invest. Redemptions of shares in an underlying fund could also result in a gain and/or income to the fund. The fund's investment in other RICs could therefore affect the amount, timing and character of distributions to shareholders. Redemptions of shares in an underlying fund could also cause additional distributable gains to shareholders.

**Other taxation.** The foregoing discussion relates only to US Federal income tax law as applicable to US persons as determined under the Code. Distributions by a fund and dispositions of fund shares also may be subject to other state and local taxes, and their treatment under state and local income tax laws may differ from the US Federal income tax treatment. Shareholders should consult their tax advisers with respect to particular questions of US Federal, state and local taxation. Shareholders who are not US persons should consult their tax advisers regarding US and foreign tax consequences of ownership of shares of the funds, including the likelihood that distributions to them would be subject to withholding of US Federal income tax at a rate of 30% (or at a lower rate under a tax treaty) and the possibility that they may be subject to US estate tax. Distributions to non-residents of short-term capital gains and interest income are expected to be subject to withholding tax because certain detailed information necessary for a possible exemption is not expected to be available.

Under the Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980 ("FIRPTA"), a foreign shareholder is subject to withholding tax in respect of a disposition of a US real property interest and any gain from such disposition is subject to US federal income tax as if such person were a US person. Such gain is sometimes referred to as "FIRPTA gain." If PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments or any other fund is a "US real property holding corporation" and is not domestically controlled, any gain realized on the sale or exchange of fund shares by a foreign shareholder that owns at any time during the five-year period ending on the date of disposition more than 5% of a class of fund shares would be FIRPTA gain. A fund is a "US real property holding corporation" if, in general, 50% or more of the fair market value of its assets consists of US real property interests, including stock of certain US REITs.

The Code provides a look-through rule for distributions of FIRPTA gain by a RIC if all of the following requirements are met: (i) the RIC is classified as a "qualified investment entity" (which includes a RIC if, in general, more than 50% of the RIC's assets consists of interest in REITs and US real property holding corporations); and (ii) you are a foreign shareholder that owns more than 5% of the fund's shares at any time during the one-year period ending on the date of the distribution. If these conditions are met, fund distributions to you to the extent derived from gain from the disposition of a US real property interest, may also be treated as FIRPTA gain and therefore subject to US federal income tax, and requiring that you file a nonresident US income tax return. Also, such gain may be subject to a 30% branch profits tax if you are a foreign shareholder that is a corporation. Even if a foreign shareholder does not own more than 5% of a fund's shares, fund distributions that are attributable to gain from the sale or disposition of a US real property interest will generally be taxable as ordinary dividends subject to withholding at a 30% or lower treaty rate.

The funds are required to withhold US tax (at a 30% rate) on payments of dividends made to certain non-US entities that fail to comply (or be deemed compliant) with extensive reporting and withholding requirements designed to inform the US Department of the Treasury of US-owned foreign investment accounts. Shareholders may be requested to provide additional information to the funds to enable the funds to determine whether withholding is required.

Please be advised that abandoned or unclaimed property laws for certain states (to which your account may be subject) require financial organizations to transfer (escheat) unclaimed property (including shares of a fund) to the appropriate state if no activity occurs in an account for a period of time specified by state law. For IRA accounts escheated to a state under these abandoned property laws, the escheatment will generally be treated as a taxable distribution to you; federal and any applicable state income tax will be withheld. This may apply to your Roth IRA as well.

**Potential pass-through of tax credits.** If a fund invests in Build America Bonds, created by the ARRA, or any other qualified tax credit bonds, the investment will result in taxable income to such fund. The applicable fund may elect to pass through to shareholders the applicable interest income and any available tax credits, in which case shareholders will be required to report both the interest income and tax credits as taxable income. Shareholders may be able to claim the tax credits on their federal income tax returns against their income tax, including alternative minimum tax liability. However, such tax credits are generally not refundable. There is no assurance that a fund will elect to pass through any such income and credits.

Pursuant to ARRA, the issuance of new Build America Bonds ceased on December 31, 2010. Future legislative or administrative changes or court decisions may significantly change the conclusions expressed herein, and any such changes or decisions may have a retroactive effect with respect to the transactions contemplated herein.

**Information about PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments.** Dividends paid by PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments will generally qualify as "exempt-interest dividends," and thus will be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes by its shareholders, if the fund satisfies the requirement that, at the close of each quarter of its taxable year, at least 50% of the value of its total assets consists of securities the interest on which is excludable from gross income under section 103(a); the fund intends to continue to satisfy this requirement. However, all shareholders required to file a federal income tax return are required to report the receipt of

exempt-interest dividends and other tax-exempt interest on their returns. Moreover, while such dividends and interest are exempt from regular federal income tax, they may be subject to alternative minimum tax in the case of non-corporate taxpayers. The aggregate dividends reported as exempt-interest dividends for any year by the fund may not exceed its net tax-exempt income for the year. Shareholders' treatment of dividends from the fund under foreign, state and local income tax laws may differ from the treatment thereof under the Code. Investors should consult their tax advisors concerning this matter.

Entities or persons who are "substantial users" (or persons related to "substantial users") of facilities financed by IDBs or PABs should consult their tax advisors before purchasing fund shares because, for users of certain of these facilities, the interest on those bonds is not exempt from federal income tax. For these purposes, "substantial user" is defined to include a "non-exempt person" who regularly uses in a trade or business a part of a facility financed from the proceeds of IDBs or PABs.

Up to 85% of social security and railroad retirement benefits may be included in taxable income for recipients whose adjusted gross income (including income from tax-exempt sources such as the fund) plus 50% of their benefits exceeds certain base amounts. Exempt-interest dividends from the fund still would be exempt from regular federal income taxes to the extent described above; they would only be included in the calculation of whether a recipient's income exceeded the established amounts.

If fund shares are sold at a loss after being held for six months or less, the loss may be disallowed to the extent of any exempt-interest dividends received on those shares, and any loss not disallowed will be treated as long-term, instead of short-term, capital loss to the extent of any capital gain distributions received thereon. Investors also should be aware that if shares are purchased shortly before the record date for a capital gain distribution, the shareholder will pay full price for the shares and receive some portion of the price back as a taxable distribution.

If the fund invests in instruments that generate taxable interest income, under the circumstances described in the prospectus and in the discussion of municipal market discount bonds below, the portion of any fund dividend attributable to such taxable interest income will be taxable to the fund's shareholders as ordinary income to the extent of its current and accumulated earnings and profits, and only the remaining portion will qualify as an exempt-interest dividend. The respective portions will be determined by the "actual earned" method, under which the portion of any dividend that qualifies as an exempt-interest dividend may vary, depending on the relative proportions of tax-exempt and taxable interest earned during the dividend period. Moreover, if the fund realizes capital gain as a result of market transactions, any distributions of the gain will be taxable to its shareholders.

Interest on indebtedness incurred by a shareholder to purchase or carry shares of the fund generally is not deductible for federal income tax purposes if the fund distributes exempt-interest dividends during the shareholder's taxable year.

The fund may invest in municipal bonds that are purchased, generally not on their original issue, with market discount (that is, at a price less than the principal amount of the bond or, in the case of a bond that was issued with original issue discount, a price less than the amount of the issue price plus accrued original issue discount) ("municipal market discount bonds"). If a bond's market discount is less than the product of (1) 0.25% of the redemption price at maturity times (2) the number of complete years to maturity after the fund acquired the bond, then no market discount is considered to exist. Gain on the disposition of a municipal market discount bond (other than a bond with a fixed maturity date within one year from its issuance), generally is treated as ordinary (taxable) income, rather than capital gain, to the extent of the bond's accrued market discount at the time of disposition. Market discount on such a bond generally is accrued ratably, on a daily basis, over the period from the acquisition date to the date of maturity. In lieu of treating the disposition gain as above, the fund may elect to include market discount in its gross income currently, for each taxable year to which it is attributable.

**Information about UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund.** Dividends paid by the UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund will not qualify as "exempt-interest dividends," and will not be excludable from gross income by its shareholders, because the fund will not invest at least 50% of the value of its total assets in securities the interest on which is excludable from gross income.

**Backup withholding.** Each fund is required to withhold at a rate which is currently 24% of all taxable dividends, capital gain distributions and redemption proceeds payable to individuals and certain other shareholders who do not provide the fund or UBS AM or the applicable broker-dealer with a correct taxpayer identification number that is certified under penalties of perjury. Withholding at that rate also is required from taxable dividends and capital gain distributions payable to those shareholders who otherwise are subject to backup withholding or who fail to certify that they are not subject to backup withholding.

**Conclusion.** The foregoing is only a general summary of some of the important federal tax considerations generally affecting the funds and their shareholders. No attempt is made to present a complete explanation of the federal tax treatment of the funds' activities, and this discussion is not intended as a substitute for careful tax planning. Accordingly, potential investors are urged to consult their own tax advisors for detailed information and for information regarding any state, local or foreign taxes applicable to the funds and to dividends and other distributions therefrom.

## Potential conflicts of interest

Activities of UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. and its affiliates (collectively, "UBS Asset Management"), UBS Securities LLC and UBS Financial Services Inc. and their affiliates (collectively, "UBS") and other accounts managed by UBS

UBS Asset Management is a large asset management firm with approximately \$1.2 trillion in assets under management worldwide as of September 30, 2023.¹ UBS Asset Management offers investment capabilities and investment styles across all major traditional and alternative asset classes, including equity, fixed income, currency, hedge fund, real estate, infrastructure and private equity investment capabilities that can also be combined in multiasset strategies. UBS Asset Management has nine main hubs globally: Chicago, Hong Kong, London, New York, Shanghai, Singapore, Sydney, Tokyo and Zurich.

UBS is a worldwide full-service investment banking, broker-dealer, asset management and financial services organization. As a result, UBS Asset Management and UBS (including, for these purposes, their directors, partners, officers and employees) worldwide, including the entities and personnel who may be involved in the investment activities and business operations of the funds, are engaged in businesses and have interests other than that of managing the funds. These activities and interests include potential multiple advisory, transactional, financial, consultative, and other interests in transactions, companies, securities and other instruments that may be engaged in, purchased or sold by the funds. This section sets forth considerations of which investors in the funds should be aware, and which may cause conflicts of interest on the part of UBS and UBS Asset Management that could disadvantage the funds. To address these potential conflicts, UBS and UBS Asset Management have established various policies and procedures that are reasonably designed to detect and prevent these potential conflicts of interest and prevent the funds from being disadvantaged.

Prospective investors should carefully review the following, which more fully describes these and other potential conflicts of interest presented by UBS Asset Management's and UBS' other businesses and interests.

# Potential conflicts relating to portfolio decisions, the sale of fund shares, and the allocation of investment opportunities and selection of subadvisors

**UBS'** other activities may have an impact on the funds. UBS Asset Management makes decisions for the funds in accordance with its obligations as investment manager of the funds. Also, UBS AM selects subadvisors for the funds (except for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund), subject to the approval of the Trust's board, and reviews the performance of those subadvisors. However, UBS' other activities may, at the same time, have a negative impact on the funds or present potential conflicts of interest with respect to hiring, terminating or replacing investment subadvisors to the funds. As a result of the various activities and interests of UBS, it is likely that the funds will have multiple business relationships with, engage in transactions with, make voting decisions with respect to or obtain services from UBS and other entities for which UBS performs or seeks to perform investment banking or other services. It is also likely that the funds will undertake transactions in securities in which UBS makes a market or otherwise has other direct or indirect interests. In addition, UBS may also provide a variety of products and services to the funds' subadvisors, and therefore UBS may receive various forms of compensation, commissions, payments, rebates, renumeration or other benefits from those subadvisors. UBS AM makes investment decisions with respect to the subadvisors consistent with its fiduciary duties and the investment strategies described in the funds' prospectuses.

UBS conducts extensive broker-dealer, banking and other activities around the world and provides investment banking, broker-dealer, prime brokerage, administrative and other services to clients which may involve markets and securities in which the funds invest. These activities will give UBS broad access to the current status of certain markets and investments. As a result of the activities described in this paragraph and the access and knowledge arising from those activities, parts of UBS may be in possession of information in respect of markets and investments, which, if known to UBS Asset Management, might cause UBS Asset Management to seek to dispose of, retain or increase interests in investments held by UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund or acquire certain positions on behalf of a fund or make certain decisions with respect to selecting subadvisors for the other funds. UBS will be under no duty to make any such information available to the funds or personnel of UBS Asset Management making investment decisions on behalf of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund or decisions with respect to the funds and maintains information barriers designed to prevent the misuse of such information. In general, personnel of UBS AM decisions on behalf of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund or decisions with respect to the selection of advisors with respect to the other funds will make decisions based solely upon information known by such decision makers without regard to information known by other UBS personnel.

In conformance with each fund's investment objective and subject to compliance with applicable law, UBS Asset Management may purchase securities for the funds during an underwriting or other offering of securities in which a broker/dealer affiliate acts as a manager, co-manager, underwriter or placement agent or receives a benefit in the form of management, underwriting, or other fees. Affiliates of UBS Asset Management may act in other capacities in such offerings for which a fee, compensation, or other benefit will be received. From time to time, affiliates of UBS Asset Management will be current investors in companies engaged in an offering of securities which UBS Asset Management may purchase on behalf of its clients. Such purchases may provide a direct or indirect benefit to UBS Asset Management's affiliates acting as a selling shareholder. A fund also may participate in structured fixed income offerings of securities in which a related person of UBS Asset Management may serve as trustee, depositor, originator, service agent or other service provider in which fees will be paid to such related person. Further, a related person may act as originator and/or servicing agent of loans or receivables for a structured fixed income offering in which UBS Asset Management may invest fund assets. Participation in such offering may directly or indirectly relieve financial obligations of related persons.

UBS Asset Management may purchase or sell, or recommend for purchase or sale, for its investment advisory clients securities of companies: (i) with respect to which its affiliates act as an investment banker or financial adviser; (ii) with which its affiliates have other confidential relationships; (iii) in which its affiliates maintain a position or (iv) for which its affiliates make a market; or in which it or its officers, directors or employees or those of its affiliates

own securities or otherwise have an interest. Except to the extent prohibited by law or regulation or by client instruction, UBS Asset Management may recommend to its clients, or purchase for its clients, securities of issuers in which UBS has an interest as described in this paragraph.

**UBS' financial and other interests and relationships may incentivize UBS to promote the sale of fund shares.** UBS, its personnel and other financial service providers, have interests in promoting sales of the funds. UBS Asset Management may also make cash and non-cash payments to banks, broker-dealers, insurance companies, financial planning firms and other financial intermediaries, that sell shares of the funds, subject to UBS Asset Management's internal policies and procedures. The source of such payments may come from the underwriter's own resources (including through transfers from affiliates). Payments made out of the underwriter's own resources are often referred to as "revenue sharing." Please read the section entitled "Investment management, administration and principal underwriting arrangements" for more information.

With respect to both UBS and its personnel, the remuneration and profitability relating to services to and sales of the funds or other products may be greater than the remuneration and profitability relating to services to and sales of other products that might be provided or offered by UBS or other third parties. UBS and its sales personnel may directly or indirectly receive a portion of the fees and commissions charged to the funds or their shareholders. UBS and its advisory or other personnel may also benefit from increased amounts of assets under management. Fees and commissions charged to the funds may also be higher than for other products or services, and the remuneration and profitability to UBS and such personnel resulting from transactions on behalf of or management of the funds may be greater than the remuneration and profitability resulting from similar transactions for other funds or products.

UBS also may have relationships with, and purchase, or distribute or sell, services or products from or to, distributors, consultants and others who recommend the funds, or who engage in transactions with or for the funds. For example, UBS regularly participates in industry and consultant sponsored conferences and may purchase educational, data or other services from consultants or other third parties that it deems to be of value to its personnel and its business. The products and services purchased from consultants may include, but are not limited to, those that help UBS understand the consultant's points of view on the investment management process. Consultants and other parties that provide consulting or other services to potential investors in the funds may receive fees from UBS or the funds in connection with the distribution of shares in the funds or other UBS products. For example, UBS may enter into revenue or fee sharing arrangements with consultants, service providers, and other intermediaries relating to investments in mutual funds, collective trusts, or other products or services offered or managed by UBS Asset Management. UBS may also pay a fee for membership in industry-wide or state and municipal organizations or otherwise help sponsor conferences and educational forums for investment industry participants including, but not limited to, trustees, fiduciaries, consultants, administrators, state and municipal personnel and other clients. UBS' membership in such organizations allows UBS to participate in these conferences and educational forums and helps UBS interact with conference participants and to develop an understanding of the points of view and challenges of the conference participants. In addition, UBS' personnel, including employees of UBS, may have board, advisory, brokerage or other relationships with issuers, distributors, consultants and others that may have investments in the funds or that may recommend investments in the funds. In addition, UBS, including UBS Asset Management, may make charitable contributions to institutions, including those that have relationships with clients or personnel of clients. UBS' personnel may also make political contributions. As a result of the relationships and arrangements described in this paragraph, consultants, distributors and other parties may have conflicts associated with their promotion of the funds or other dealings with the funds that create incentives for them to promote the funds or certain portfolio transactions.

To the extent permitted by applicable law, UBS Asset Management may make payments to authorized broker-dealers and other financial intermediaries ("Intermediaries") from time to time to promote the funds. The additional payments by UBS Asset Management may also compensate Intermediaries for subaccounting, administrative and/or

shareholder processing services that are in addition to the fees paid for these or similar services by the funds. Payments made by UBS Asset Management may vary between different Intermediaries. Please read the section entitled "Investment management, administration and principal underwriting arrangements" and "Reduced sales charges; additional purchase, exchange and redemption information; and other services" for more information.

Potential conflicts relating to the allocation of investment opportunities among UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and other UBS accounts. UBS Asset Management provides investment advisory services to certain accounts, including through model based programs, UBS Asset Management may have investment discretion ("Discretionary Accounts") or may not have investment discretion ("Non-Discretionary Accounts"). In the case of Non-Discretionary Accounts, the account will typically be notified of recommended changes to a model simultaneously with the Discretionary Accounts. With respect to the funds, UBS Asset Management may follow a strategy that is expected to be similar over time to that utilized by those accounts. The funds and the Non-Discretionary Account clients are subject to independent management and, given the independence in the implementation of advice to these accounts, there can be no assurance that such investment advice will be implemented simultaneously. Neither UBS Asset Management nor its affiliates will know when advice issued has been executed (if at all) and, if so, to what extent. Therefore, it is possible that prior execution by Non-Discretionary Accounts could adversely affect the prices and availability of the securities, currencies and instruments in which a fund invests.

Other potential conflicts relating to the management of the funds by UBS Asset Management Potential restrictions and issues relating to information held by UBS. From time to time and subject to UBS Asset Management's policies and procedures regarding information barriers, UBS Asset Management may consult with personnel in other areas of UBS, or with persons unaffiliated with UBS. The performance by such persons of obligations related to their consultation with personnel of UBS Asset Management could conflict with their areas of primary responsibility within UBS or elsewhere. There will be no obligation on the part of such persons to make available for use by the funds any information or strategies known to them or developed in connection with their own client, proprietary or other activities. In addition, UBS will be under no obligation to make available any research or analysis prior to its public dissemination.

In connection with its management of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund, UBS Asset Management may have access to certain fundamental analysis and proprietary technical models developed by UBS Asset Management or its affiliates (including UBS). UBS Asset Management will not be under any obligation, however, to effect transactions on behalf of the fund in accordance with such analysis and models. In addition, neither UBS Asset Management nor any of its affiliates (including UBS) will have any obligation to make available any information regarding their proprietary activities or strategies, or the activities or strategies used for other accounts managed by them, for the benefit of the management of the fund and it is not anticipated that UBS Asset Management will have access to such information for the purpose of managing the fund. The proprietary activities or portfolio strategies of UBS Asset Management and its affiliates (including UBS) or the activities or strategies used for accounts managed by them or other client accounts could conflict with the transactions and strategies employed by UBS Asset Management, and have adverse effects on the fund.

Potential conflicts relating to UBS' and UBS Asset Management's proprietary activities and activities on behalf of other accounts. Transactions undertaken by UBS or client accounts managed by UBS and UBS Asset Management ("Client Accounts") may adversely impact the funds. UBS and one or more Client Accounts may buy or sell positions while the funds are undertaking the same or a differing, including potentially opposite, strategy, which could disadvantage the funds. For example, a fund may establish a short position in a security and UBS or other Client Accounts may buy that same security. The subsequent purchase may result in an increase of the price of the underlying position in the short sale exposure of the fund and such increase in price would be to the fund's detriment. Conversely, a fund may buy a security, and UBS or Client Accounts may establish a short position in that same security. The subsequent short sale may result in impairment of the price of the security which the fund holds. Conflicts may also arise because portfolio decisions regarding the fund may benefit UBS or other Client Accounts. For example, the sale of a long position or establishment of a short position by a fund may impair the price of the

same security sold short by (and therefore benefit) UBS or other Client Accounts, and the purchase of a security or covering of a short position in a security by the fund may increase the price of the same security held by (and therefore benefit) UBS or other Client Accounts.

The directors, officers and employees of UBS and UBS Asset Management may buy and sell securities or other investments for their own accounts or for seed capital accounts (including through investment funds managed by UBS and UBS Asset Management). As a result of differing trading and investment strategies or constraints, positions may be taken by directors, officers and employees that are the same, different from or made at different times than positions taken for the funds. To reduce the possibility that the funds will be materially adversely affected by the personal or proprietary trading described above, the funds, UBS and UBS Asset Management, have established policies and procedures that restrict securities trading in the personal accounts of investment professionals and others who normally come into possession of information regarding the funds' portfolio transactions.

UBS Asset Management's affiliates have direct or indirect interests in electronic communication networks and alternative trading systems (collectively "ECNs"). UBS Asset Management, in accordance with its fiduciary obligation to seek to obtain best execution, may execute client trades through ECNs in which its related persons have, or may acquire, an interest. A related person may receive compensation based upon its ownership percentage in relation to the transaction fees charged by the ECNs. UBS Asset Management will execute through an ECN in which a related person has an interest only in situations where it reasonably believes such transactions will be in the best interests of clients and the requirements of applicable law have been satisfied.

In accordance with Section 11(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules thereunder, UBS Asset Management's affiliates may effect transactions for funds or advisory client accounts on a national securities exchange of which an affiliate is an equity owner and/or a member and may retain compensation in connection with those transactions.

**Gifts and entertainment.** From time to time, directors, officers and employees of UBS and UBS Asset Management may receive gifts and/or entertainment from clients, intermediaries, or service providers to the funds, UBS and UBS Asset Management, which could have the appearance of affecting or may potentially affect the judgment of the directors, officers and employees or the manner in which they conduct business on behalf of the funds, UBS and UBS Asset Management. To reduce the appearance of impropriety and the possibility that the funds may be materially adversely affected by such gifts and entertainment, UBS and UBS Asset Management have established policies and procedures that restrict the receipt of gifts and entertainment from clients, intermediaries, or service providers to the funds, UBS and UBS Asset Management.

**UBS may in-source or outsource.** Subject to applicable law, UBS, including UBS Asset Management, may from time to time and without notice to investors in-source or outsource certain processes or functions in connection with a variety of services that it provides to the funds in its administrative or other capacities. Such in-sourcing or outsourcing may give rise to additional conflicts of interest.

#### Selection of brokers and dealers and commission rates

While UBS Asset Management selects brokers primarily on the basis of the execution capabilities, UBS Asset Management, in its discretion, may cause a client to pay a commission to brokers or dealers for effecting a transaction for that client in excess of the amount another broker or dealer would have charged for effecting that transaction. This may be done when UBS Asset Management has determined in good faith that the commission is reasonable in relation to the value of the execution, brokerage and/or research services provided by the broker. UBS Asset Management's arrangements for the receipt of research services from brokers may create conflicts of interest, in that UBS Asset Management has an incentive to choose a broker or dealer that provides research services, instead of one that charges a lower commission rate but does not provide any research.

UBS Asset Management does not allocate the relative costs or benefits of research received from brokers or dealers among clients because UBS Asset Management believes that the research received is, in the aggregate, of assistance in fulfilling its overall responsibilities to clients. The research may be used in connection with the management of accounts other than those for which trades are executed by the brokers or dealers providing the research. UBS Asset Management may receive a variety of research services and information on many topics, which UBS Asset Management can use in connection with its management responsibilities with respect to the various accounts over which it exercises investment discretion or otherwise provides investment advice. These topics include: issuers, industries, securities, economic factors and trends, portfolio strategy, the performance of accounts, statistical information, market data, earnings estimates, credit analysis, pricing, risk measurement analysis, and other information that may affect the US or foreign economies, security prices, or management of the portfolio.

The research services may include written reports, pricing and appraisal services, market data services, analysis of issues raised in proxy statements, educational seminars, subscriptions to trade journals, portfolio attribution and monitoring services and computer software and access charges which are directly related to investment research. Research services may be received in the form of written reports, online services, telephone contacts and personal meetings with security analysts, economists, corporate and industry spokespersons, investment consultants and government representatives. Research services are either provided directly by broker-dealers or generated by third parties and are provided by the brokerage firm to which the commissions are paid including commission sharing arrangements.

Certain services may be mixed use, or used for research purposes as well as other purposes. Payment for these services is made as follows: the portion allocated to research is paid for through commissions, and the portion allocated to other purposes is paid for by UBS Asset Management. This allocation is determined by UBS Asset Management's Best Execution and Trading Committee in good faith and based on objective criteria, to the extent available, of the amounts used for research and non-research purposes; however, the decision regarding what amounts are paid by UBS Asset Management versus paid by clients through commissions presents a conflict of interest. Research services received from brokers and dealers may be supplemental to UBS Asset Management's research efforts and, when utilized, are subject to internal analysis before being incorporated into UBS Asset Management's investment process. As a practical matter, it would not be possible for UBS Asset Management to generate all of the information presently provided by brokers and dealers.

UBS Asset Management may receive in-house or proprietary research from dealers that execute trades on a principal basis for its clients. The research received will be of the type described above, excluding third-party research services.

# Potential regulatory restrictions on investment advisor activity

From time to time, the activities of the funds may be restricted because of regulatory requirements applicable to UBS and/or its internal policies designed to comply with, limit the applicability of, or otherwise relate to such requirements. A client not advised by UBS would not be subject to some of those considerations. There may be periods when UBS Asset Management may not initiate or recommend certain types of transactions, or may otherwise restrict or limit its advice with respect to certain securities or instruments issued by or related to companies for which UBS is performing investment banking, market making or other services or has proprietary positions or otherwise has come into possession of material inside information.

For example, when UBS is engaged in an underwriting or other distribution of securities of, or advisory services for, a company, the funds may be prohibited from or limited in purchasing or selling securities of that company. Similar situations could arise if UBS personnel serve as directors of companies the securities of which the funds wish to purchase or sell. The larger UBS Asset Management's investment advisory business and UBS' businesses, the larger the potential that these restricted list policies will impact investment transactions. However, if permitted by applicable law, the funds may purchase securities or instruments that are issued by such companies or are the subject of an

underwriting, distribution or advisory assignment by UBS, or in cases in which UBS personnel are directors or officers of the issuer.

The investment activities of UBS for its proprietary accounts and for Client Accounts may also limit the investment strategies and rights of the funds. For example, in regulated industries, in certain emerging or international markets, in corporate and regulatory ownership definitions, and in certain futures and derivative transactions, there may be limits on the aggregate amount of investment by affiliated investors that may not be exceeded without the grant of a license or other regulatory or corporate consent or, if exceeded, may cause UBS, the funds or other Client Accounts to suffer disadvantages or business restrictions. If certain aggregate ownership thresholds are reached or certain transactions undertaken, the ability of UBS Asset Management on behalf of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund to purchase or dispose of investments, or exercise rights or undertake business transactions, may be restricted by regulation or otherwise impaired. As a result, UBS Asset Management on behalf of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund may limit purchases, sell existing investments, or otherwise restrict or limit the exercise of rights (including voting rights) when UBS Asset Management, in its sole discretion, deems it appropriate.

UBS Asset Management and its affiliates, including, without limitation, UBS and its advisory affiliates, have proprietary interests in, and may manage or advise with respect to, accounts or funds (including separate accounts, other funds and collective investment vehicles) that have investment objectives similar to those of the funds and/or that engage in transactions in the same types of securities, currencies and instruments as the funds. UBS and its affiliates are also major participants in the global currency, equities, swap and fixed income markets, in each case both on a proprietary basis and for the accounts of customers. As such, UBS and its affiliates may be actively engaged in transactions in the same securities, currencies, and instruments in which the funds invest. Such activities could affect the prices and availability of the securities, currencies, and instruments in which the funds invest, which could have an adverse impact on the funds' performance. Such transactions, particularly in respect of most proprietary accounts or client accounts, will be executed independently of the funds' transactions and thus at prices or rates that may be more or less favorable than those obtained by the funds. UBS Asset Management has developed policies and procedures consistent with regulatory requirements that provide that it will allocate investment opportunities and make purchase and sale decisions among the funds and other client accounts in a manner that it considers, in its sole discretion and consistent with its fiduciary obligation to each account, to be reasonable. Allocations may be based on numerous factors and may not always be pro rata based. Thus, this system may adversely affect the size or price of the assets purchased or sold for the funds.

The results of the funds' investment activities may differ significantly from the results achieved by UBS Asset Management and its affiliates for their proprietary accounts or other accounts (including investment companies or collective investment vehicles) managed or advised by them. It is possible that UBS Asset Management and its affiliates and such other accounts will achieve investment results that are substantially more or less favorable than the results achieved by the funds. Moreover, it is possible that a fund will sustain losses during periods in which UBS Asset Management and its affiliates achieve significant profits on their trading for proprietary or other accounts. The opposite result is also possible.

The investment activities of UBS Asset Management and its affiliates for their proprietary accounts and accounts under their management may also limit the investment opportunities for a fund in certain emerging and other markets in which limitations are imposed upon the amount of investment, in the aggregate or in individual issuers, by affiliated foreign investors.

From time to time, the funds' activities may also be restricted because of regulatory restrictions applicable to UBS Asset Management and its affiliates, and/or their internal policies designed to comply with such restrictions. As a result, there may be periods, for example, when UBS Asset Management, and/or its affiliates, will not initiate or

recommend certain types of transactions in certain securities or instruments with respect to which UBS Asset Management and/or its affiliates are performing services or when position limits have been reached where such securities or instruments otherwise would have been permissible investments for the funds. Additionally, the funds or certain accounts may be licensed to trade securities or engage in transactions in certain jurisdictions while other funds and accounts are not licensed.

In addition, certain officers and certain employees of UBS Asset Management are also officers or employees of UBS, or its affiliated entities. As a result, the performance by these officers and employees of their obligations to such other entities may be a consideration of which investors in the funds should be aware.

UBS Asset Management may enter into transactions and invest in securities, instruments and currencies on behalf of UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund where customers of UBS or, to the extent permitted by the SEC, UBS itself, serves as the counterparty, principal or issuer. In such cases, such party's interests in the transaction will be adverse to the interests of the fund, and such party may have no incentive to assure that the fund obtains the best possible prices or terms in connection with the transaction. In addition, the purchase, holding and sale of such investments by the fund may enhance the profitability of UBS Asset Management and/or UBS. UBS and its affiliates may also create, write or issue derivative instruments for customers of UBS or its affiliates, the underlying securities, currencies or instruments of which may be those in which the funds invest or which may be based on the performance of the funds. The funds may, subject to applicable law, purchase investments that are the subject of an underwriting or other distribution by UBS or its affiliates and may also enter into transactions with other clients of UBS Asset Management or its affiliates where such other clients have interests adverse to those of the funds. At times, these activities may cause UBS Asset Management or its affiliates to give advice to clients that may cause these clients to take actions adverse to the interests of the funds. To the extent affiliated transactions are permitted, the funds will deal with UBS Asset Management, UBS and its affiliates on an arms-length basis. UBS AM or UBS may also have an ownership interest in certain trading or information systems used by the funds. The funds' use of such trading or information systems may enhance the profitability of UBS Asset Management and its affiliates.

It is also possible that, from time to time, UBS Asset Management or any of its affiliates may, although they are not required to, purchase and hold shares of the funds for UBS proprietary accounts and for Client Accounts. Increasing the funds' assets may enhance investment flexibility and diversification and may contribute to economies of scale that tend to reduce the expense ratio of certain types of funds. UBS Asset Management and its affiliates reserve the right to redeem at any time some or all of the shares of the funds acquired for UBS proprietary accounts and for Client Accounts. A large redemption of shares of the funds by UBS Asset Management or its affiliates or Client Accounts could significantly reduce the asset size of the funds, which might have an adverse effect on the funds' investment flexibility, portfolio diversification, expense ratio and may result in significant transaction costs. UBS Asset Management will consider the effect of redemptions on the funds and other shareholders in deciding whether and when to redeem its shares. UBS Asset Management's ability to allocate investments for UBS proprietary accounts and Client Accounts among the funds and unaffiliated investment companies and other investments may create conflicts of interest. For example, a fund's portfolio managers may manage certain Client Accounts. Because they have access to the holdings of the funds and knowledge of the investment strategies and techniques of the funds they could be subject to conflicts of interest in timing and amount of allocations of Client Account investments to or redemptions from a fund. Further, a situation could occur where an action for a fund could be adverse to the interest of such a Client Account or vice versa.

It is possible that the funds may invest in securities of companies with which UBS has or is trying to develop investment banking relationships as well as securities of entities in which UBS Asset Management or UBS has significant debt or equity investments or in which UBS makes a market. The funds also may invest in securities of companies to which UBS Asset Management or UBS provides or may someday provide research coverage. Such investments could cause conflicts between the interests of the funds and the interests of other UBS Asset Management or UBS clients. In making investment decisions for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and PACE Alternative Strategies Investments, UBS Asset Management is not permitted to obtain or use material non-public information acquired by any division, department or affiliate of UBS Asset Management in the course of these activities. In addition, from time to time, UBS' activities may limit the funds' flexibility in purchases and sales of securities. When UBS is engaged in an underwriting or other distribution of securities of an entity, UBS Asset Management may be prohibited from purchasing or recommending the purchase of certain securities of that entity for the funds.

Present and future activities of UBS Asset Management and its affiliates, in addition to those described in this section, may give rise to additional conflicts of interest.

UBS AM may buy for UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund securities or obligations of issuers in which UBS or other funds or accounts have made, or are making, an investment in securities or obligations that are subordinate or senior to securities of the fund. For example, the fund may invest in debt securities of an issuer at the same time that UBS or other funds or accounts are investing, or currently have an investment, in equity securities of the same issuer. To the extent that the issuer experiences financial or operational challenges which may impact the price of its securities and its ability to meet its obligations, decisions by UBS (including UBS Asset Management) relating to what actions to be taken may also raise conflicts of interests, and UBS may take actions for certain accounts that have negative impacts on other advisory accounts.

While UBS AM will make proxy voting decisions as it believes appropriate and in accordance with UBS AM's policies designed to help avoid conflicts of interest, proxy voting decisions made by UBS AM with respect to the funds' portfolio securities may have the effect of favoring the interests of other clients or businesses of other divisions or units of UBS. UBS AM's proxy voting policy is discussed in more detail in the section entitled "Proxy voting policies and procedures."

As a registered investment adviser under the Advisers Act, UBS AM is required to file a Form ADV with the SEC. Form ADV Part 2 contains information about assets under management, types of fee arrangements, types of investments, potential conflicts of interest, and other relevant information regarding UBS AM. A copy of UBS AM's Form ADV Parts 1 and 2 is available on the SEC's website (www.adviserinfo.sec.gov).

# Other information

**Delaware statutory trust.** The Trust is an entity of the type commonly known as a Delaware statutory trust. Although Delaware law statutorily limits the potential liabilities of a Delaware statutory trust's shareholders to the same extent as it limits the potential liabilities of a Delaware corporation's shareholders, shareholders of a fund could, under certain conflicts of laws jurisprudence in various states, be held personally liable for the obligations of the Trust or a fund. However, the Trust's trust instrument disclaims shareholder liability for acts or obligations of the Trust or the funds. The trust instrument provides for indemnification from a fund's property for all losses and expenses of any fund shareholder held personally liable for the obligations of the fund. Thus, the risk of a shareholder's incurring financial loss on account of shareholder liability is limited to circumstances in which a fund itself would be unable to meet its obligations, a possibility that UBS AM believes is remote and not material. Upon payment of any liability incurred by a shareholder solely by reason of being or having been a shareholder of a fund, the shareholder paying such liability will be entitled to reimbursement from the general assets of the fund. The trustees intend to conduct the operations of the funds in such a way as to avoid, as far as possible, ultimate liability of the shareholders for liabilities of the funds.

**Classes of shares.** Each fund (other than UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund and PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments) consists of Class A, Class P, Class P2 and Class Y shares. UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund consists of Class P shares. PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments con-

sists of Class A, Class P and Class P2 shares. A share of each class of a fund represents an identical interest in that fund's investment portfolio and has the same rights, privileges and preferences. However, each class may differ with respect to sales charges, if any, distribution and/or service fees, if any, other expenses allocable exclusively to each class, voting rights on matters exclusively affecting that class, and its exchange privilege, if any. The different sales charges and expenses applicable to the different classes of shares of the funds will affect the performance of those classes. Each share of a fund is entitled to participate equally in dividends, other distributions and the proceeds of any liquidation of that fund. However, due to the differing expenses of the classes, dividends and liquidation proceeds on Class A, Class P, Class P2 and Class Y shares will differ.

**Voting rights.** Shareholders of each fund are entitled to a number of votes as to any matter on which the shareholder is entitled to vote equal to the net asset value of the share (or fractional share) in United States dollar determined at the close of business on the record date (except as otherwise provided in the trust instrument). Voting rights are not cumulative and, as a result, the holders of more than 50% of all the shares of the Trust may elect all of the trustees of the Trust. The shares of all funds and classes will be voted together in the aggregate and not by individual funds, except (a) when required by the Investment Company Act to be voted by individual funds or classes, or (b) when the trustees have determined that the matter affects only the interests of shareholders of one or more funds or classes, or as deemed appropriate in their discretion.

The Trust does not hold annual meetings. Shareholders of record of no less than two-thirds of the voting power of the shares of the Trust may remove a trustee through a declaration in writing or by vote cast in person or by proxy at a meeting called for that purpose. A meeting will be called to vote on the removal of a trustee at the written request of holders of 10% of the voting power of the shares of the Trust.

Class-specific expenses. Each fund may determine to allocate certain of its expenses (in addition to service and distribution fees) to the specific classes of its shares to which those expenses are attributable. For example, Class A shares bear higher transfer agency fees per shareholder account than those borne by Class P, Class P2 or Class Y shares. The higher fee is imposed due to the higher costs incurred by the transfer agent in tracking shares subject to a contingent deferred sales charge because, upon redemption, the duration of the shareholder's investment must be determined in order to determine the applicable charge. Although the transfer agency fee will differ on a per account basis as stated above, the specific extent to which the transfer agency fees will differ between the classes as a percentage of net assets is not certain, because the fee as a percentage of net assets will be affected by the number of shareholder accounts in each class and the relative amounts of net assets in each class.

Prior names. Prior to November 27, 2019, UBS Government Money Market Investments Fund was known as "PACE Government Money Market Investments." Prior to December 1, 2016, PACE Global Fixed Income Investments was known as "PACE International Fixed Income Investments." Prior to November 28, 2015, PACE Government Money Market Investments was known as "PACE Money Market Investments." Prior to March 31, 2014, PACE Mortgage-Backed Securities Fixed Income Investments was known as "PACE Government Securities Fixed Income Investments." Prior to November 22, 2010, the Trust was known as "UBS PACE Select Advisors Trust" and the funds were known as "UBS PACE Money Market Investments," "UBS PACE Government Securities Fixed Income Investments," "UBS PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments," "UBS PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments," "UBS PACE Municipal Fixed Income Investments," "UBS PACE Global Fixed Income Investments," "UBS PACE High Yield Investments," "UBS PACE Large Co Value Equity Investments," "UBS PACE Large Co Growth Equity Investments," "UBS PACE Small/Medium Co Value Equity Investments," "UBS PACE Small/Medium Co Growth Equity Investments," "UBS PACE International Equity Investments," "UBS PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments," "UBS PACE Global Real Estate Securities Investments," and "UBS PACE Alternative Strategies Investments." Prior to April 8, 2002, the Trust was known as "PaineWebber PACE Select Advisors Trust" and the funds were known as "PACE Money Market Investments," "PACE Government Securities Fixed Income Investments," "PACE Intermediate Fixed Income Investments," "PACE Strategic Fixed Income Investments," "PACE

Municipal Fixed Income Investments," "PACE Global Fixed Income Investments," "PACE Large Company Value Equity Investments," "PACE Large Company Growth Equity Investments," "PACE Small/Medium Company Value Equity Investments," "PACE Small/Medium Company Growth Equity Investments," "PACE International Equity Investments," and "PACE International Emerging Markets Equity Investments." Prior to December 1, 1997, the Trust was known as "Managed Accounts Services Portfolio Trust."

**Custodian, accounting agent and recordkeeping agent; transfer and dividend agent.** State Street, located at One Congress Street, Suite 1, Boston, MA 02114, serves as custodian, accounting agent and recordkeeping agent for each fund and employs foreign sub-custodians in accordance with applicable requirements under the Investment Company Act to provide custody of the funds' foreign assets. BNY Mellon serves as each fund's transfer and dividend disbursing agent. BNY Mellon is located at 400 Bellevue Parkway, Wilmington, DE 19809.

UBS Financial Services Inc. provides certain services pursuant to a delegation of authority from BNY Mellon and is compensated for the services by BNY Mellon, not the funds.

**Counsel.** The law firm of Dechert LLP, Three Bryant Park, 1095 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10036, serves as counsel to the Trust. Dechert LLP also has acted as counsel to UBS AM in connection with other matters. Proskauer Rose LLP, Eleven Times Square, New York, NY 10036, serves as independent counsel to the Independent Trustees.

**Independent registered public accounting firm.** Ernst & Young LLP, One Manhattan West, New York, NY 10001, serves as independent registered public accounting firm for each series of the Trust.

# Financial statements

The Trust's annual report to shareholders for its fiscal year ended July 31, 2023 is a separate document, and the financial statements, accompanying notes and report of Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, appearing therein are incorporated by this reference into the SAI.

# **Appendix**

## **Ratings Information**

# **Description of Moody's Corporate Bond Ratings**

**Aaa.** Bonds which are rated Aaa are judged to be of the best quality. They carry the smallest degree of investment risk and are generally referred to as "gilt edged." Interest payments are protected by a large or by an exceptionally stable margin and principal is secure. While the various protective elements are likely to change, such changes as can be visualized are most unlikely to impair the fundamentally strong position of such issues.

**Aa.** Bonds which are rated Aa are judged to be of high quality by all standards. Together with the Aaa group they comprise what are generally known as high grade bonds. They are rated lower than the best bonds because margins of protection may not be as large as in Aaa securities or fluctuation of protective elements may be of greater amplitude or there may be other elements present which make the long term risk appear somewhat larger than in Aaa securities.

**A.** Bonds which are rated A possess many favorable investment attributes and are to be considered as upper-medium-grade obligations. Factors giving security to principal and interest are considered adequate, but elements may be present which suggest a susceptibility to impairment sometime in the future.

**Baa.** Bonds which are rated Baa are considered as medium-grade obligations, *i.e.*, they are neither highly protected nor poorly secured. Interest payment and principal security appear adequate for the present but certain protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any great length of time. Such bonds lack outstanding investment characteristics and in fact have speculative characteristics as well.

**Ba.** Bonds which are rated Ba are judged to have speculative elements; their future cannot be considered as well-assured. Often the protection of interest and principal payments may be very moderate and thereby not well safe-quarded during both good and bad times over the future. Uncertainty of position characterizes bonds in this class.

**B.** Bonds which are rated B generally lack characteristics of the desirable investment. Assurance of interest and principal payments or of maintenance of other terms of the contract over any long period of time may be small.

**Caa.** Bonds which are rated Caa are of poor standing. Such issues may be in default or there may be present elements of danger with respect to principal or interest.

**Ca.** Bonds which are rated Ca represent obligations which are speculative in a high degree. Such issues are often in default or have other marked shortcomings.

**C.** Bonds which are rated C are the lowest rated class of bonds, and issues so rated can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of ever attaining any real investment standing.

**Note:** Moody's applies numerical modifiers, **1, 2** and **3** in each generic rating classification from **Aa** through **Caa**. The modifier 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category, the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking, and the modifier 3 indicates a ranking in the lower end of that generic rating category.

# **Description of S&P Corporate Debt Ratings**

**AAA.** An obligation rated AAA has the highest rating assigned by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong,

- **AA.** An obligation rated AA differs from the highest rated obligations only in small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is very strong.
- **A.** An obligation rated A is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.
- **BBB.** An obligation rated BBB exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **BB, B, CCC, CC, C.** Obligations rated BB, B, CCC, CC and C are regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. BB indicates the least degree of speculation and C the highest. While such obligations will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these may be outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.
- **BB.** An obligation rated BB is less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **B.** An obligation rated B is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligations rated BB, but the obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **CCC.** An obligation rated CCC is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. In the event of adverse business, financial, or economic conditions, the obligor is not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **CC.** An obligation rated CC is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment. The CC rating is used when a default has not yet occurred but S&P expects default to be a virtual certainty, regardless of the anticipated time to default.
- **C.** An obligation rated C is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment, and the obligation is expected to have lower relative seniority or lower ultimate recovery compared to obligations that are rated higher.
- **D.** An obligation rated D is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the D rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within five business days in the absence of a stated grace period or within the earlier of the stated grace period or 30 calendar days. The D rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to D if it is subject to a distressed exchange offer.
- Plus (+) or Minus (—): The ratings from "AA" to "CCC" may be modified by the addition of a plus or minus sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.
- **r.** This symbol is attached to the ratings of instruments with significant noncredit risks. It highlights risks to principal or volatility of expected returns which are not addressed in the credit rating.
- **N.R.** This indicates that no rating has been requested, that there is insufficient information on which to base a rating or that S&P does not rate a particular obligation as a matter of policy.

# **Description of Moody's Commercial Paper Ratings**

**Prime-1.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-1 have a superior ability for repayment of senior short-term debt obligations. Prime-1 repayment ability will often be evidenced by many of the following characteristics: Leading market positions in well established industries; high rates of return on funds employed; conservative capitalization structures with moderate reliance on debt and ample asset protection; broad margins in earnings coverage of fixed financial charges and high internal cash generation; well established access to a range of financial markets and assured sources of alternate liquidity.

**Prime-2.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-2 have a strong ability to repay senior short-term debt obligations. This will normally be evidenced by many of the characteristics cited above, but to a lesser degree. Earnings trends and coverage ratios, while sound, will be more subject to variation. Capitalization characteristics, while still appropriate, may be more affected by external conditions. Ample alternate liquidity is maintained.

**Prime-3.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-3 have an acceptable ability for repayment of senior short-term obligations. The effect of industry characteristics and market compositions may be more pronounced. Variability in earnings and profitability may result in changes in the level of debt-protection measurements and may require relatively high financial leverage. Adequate alternate liquidity is maintained.

**Not Prime.** Issuers rated Not Prime do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.

# **Description of S&P Commercial Paper Ratings**

- **A-1.** A short-term obligation rated A-1 is rated in the highest category by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong. Within this category, certain obligations are designated with a plus sign (+). This indicates that the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on these obligations is extremely strong.
- **A-2.** A short-term obligation rated A-2 is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rating categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is satisfactory.
- **A-3.** A short-term obligation rated A-3 exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **B.** A short-term obligation rated B is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. The obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation; however, it faces major ongoing uncertainties which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.
- **C.** A short-term obligation rated C is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **D.** A short-term obligation rated D is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the D rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within any stated grace period. However, any stated grace period longer than five business days will be treated as five business days. The D rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to D if it is subject to a distressed exchange offer.

### **Description of Moody's Municipal Bond Ratings**

**Aaa.** Bonds which are rated Aaa are judged to be of the best quality. They carry the smallest degree of investment risk and are generally referred to as "gilt edged." Interest payments are protected by a large or by an exceptionally

stable margin and principal is secure. While the various protective elements are likely to change, such changes as can be visualized are most unlikely to impair the fundamentally strong position of such issues.

**Aa.** Bonds which are rated Aa are judged to be of high quality by all standards. Together with the Aaa group they comprise what are generally known as high grade bonds. They are rated lower than the best bonds because margins of protection may not be as large as in Aaa securities or fluctuation of protective elements may be of greater amplitude or there may be other elements present which make the long term risk appear somewhat larger than in Aaa securities.

**A.** Bonds which are rated A possess many favorable investment attributes and are to be considered as upper-medium-grade obligations. Factors giving security to principal and interest are considered adequate, but elements may be present which suggest a susceptibility to impairment sometime in the future.

**Baa.** Bonds which are rated Baa are considered as medium-grade obligations, *i.e.*, they are neither highly protected nor poorly secured. Interest payment and principal security appear adequate for the present but certain protective elements may be lacking or may be characteristically unreliable over any great length of time. Such bonds lack outstanding investment characteristics and in fact have speculative characteristics as well.

**Ba.** Bonds which are rated Ba are judged to have speculative elements; their future cannot be considered as well-assured. Often the protection of interest and principal payments may be very moderate and thereby not well safe-guarded during both good and bad times over the future. Uncertainty of position characterizes bonds in this class.

**B.** Bonds which are rated B generally lack characteristics of the desirable investment. Assurance of interest and principal payments or of maintenance of other terms of the contract over any long period of time may be small.

**Caa.** Bonds which are rated Caa are of poor standing. Such issues may be in default or there may be present elements of danger with respect to principal or interest.

**Ca.** Bonds which are rated Ca represent obligations which are speculative in a high degree. Such issues are often in default or have other marked shortcomings.

**C.** Bonds which are rated C are the lowest rated class of bonds, and issues so rated can be regarded as having extremely poor prospects of ever attaining any real investment standing.

**Note:** Moody's applies numerical modifiers, **1, 2** and **3** in each generic rating classification from **Aa** through **Caa**. The modifier 1 indicates that the obligation ranks in the higher end of its generic rating category, the modifier 2 indicates a mid-range ranking, and the modifier 3 indicates a ranking in the lower end of that generic rating category.

### **Description of S&P Municipal Debt Ratings**

**AAA.** An obligation rated AAA has the highest rating assigned by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely strong.

**AA.** An obligation rated AA differs from the highest rated obligations only in small degree. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is very strong,

**A.** An obligation rated A is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rated categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is still strong.

- **BBB.** An obligation rated BBB exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **BB, B, CCC, CC, D.** Obligations rated BB, B, CCC, CC and C are regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. BB indicates the least degree of speculation and C the highest. While such obligations will likely have some quality and protective characteristics, these may be outweighed by large uncertainties or major exposures to adverse conditions.
- **BB.** An obligation rated BB is less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative issues. However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business, financial, or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **B.** An obligation rated B is more vulnerable to nonpayment than obligations rated BB, but the obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. Adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will likely impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **CCC.** An obligation rated CCC is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation. In the event of adverse business, financial, or economic conditions, the obligor is not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **CC.** An obligation rated CC is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment. The CC rating is used when a default has not yet occurred but S&P expects default to be a virtual certainty, regardless of the anticipated time to default.
- **C.** An obligation rated C is currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment, and the obligation is expected to have lower relative seniority or lower ultimate recovery compared to obligations that are rated higher.
- **D.** An obligation rated D is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the D rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within five business days in the absence of a stated grace period or within the earlier of the stated grace period or 30 calendar days. The D rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to D if it is subject to a distressed exchange offer.
- Plus (+) or Minus (—): The ratings from "AA" to "CCC" may be modified by the addition of a plus or minus sign to show relative standing within the major rating categories.
- **c** The 'c' subscript is used to provide additional information to investors that the bank may terminate its obligation to purchase tendered bonds if the long-term credit rating of the issuer is below an investment-grade level and/or the issuer's bonds are deemed taxable.
- **p** The letter 'p' indicates that the rating is provisional. A provisional rating assumes the successful completion of the project financed by the debt being rated and indicates that payment of debt service requirements is largely or entirely dependent upon the successful, timely completion of the project. This rating, however, while addressing credit quality subsequent to completion of the project, makes no comment on the likelihood of or the risk of default upon failure of such completion. The investor should exercise his own judgment with respect to such likelihood and risk.
- \* Continuance of the ratings is contingent upon S&P's receipt of an executed copy of the escrow agreement or closing documentation confirming investments and cash flows.

**r** The 'r' highlights derivative, hybrid, and certain other obligations that S&P believes may experience high volatility or high variability in expected returns as a result of noncredit risks. Examples of such obligations are securities with principal or interest return indexed to equities, commodities, or currencies; certain swaps and options; and interest-only and principal-only mortgage securities. The absence of an 'r' symbol should not be taken as an indication that an obligation will exhibit no volatility or variability in total return.

#### **N.R.** Not rated.

## **Description of Moody's Ratings of Short-Term Obligations**

There are three rating categories for short-term obligations that are considered investment grade. These ratings are designated as Moody's Investment Grade (MIG) and are divided into three levels—MIG 1 through MIG-3. In addition, those short-term obligations that are of speculative quality are designated SG, or speculative grade.

In the case of variable rate demand obligations (VRDOs), a two-component rating is assigned. The first element represents Moody's evaluation of the degree of risk associated with scheduled principal and interest payments. The second element represents Moody's evaluation of the degree of risk associated with the demand feature, using the MIG rating scale.

The short-term rating assigned to the demand feature of VRDOs is designated as VMIG. When either the long- or short-term aspect of a VRDO is not rated, that piece is designated NR, e.g. Aaa/NR or NR/VMIG 1.

MIG ratings expire at note maturity. By contrast, VMIG rating expirations will be a function of each issue's specific structural or credit features.

**MIG-1/VMIG-1.** This designation denotes superior credit quality. Excellent protection is afforded by established cash flows, highly reliable liquidity support or demonstrated broad-based access to the market for refinancing.

**MIG-2/VMIG-2.** This designation denotes strong credit quality. Margins of protection are ample, although not so large as in the preceding group.

**MIG-3/VMIG-3.** This designation denotes acceptable credit quality. Liquidity and cash flow protection may be narrow and market access for refinancing is likely to be less well established.

**SG.** This designation denotes speculative-grade credit quality. Debt Instruments in this category may lack sufficient margins of protection.

### Description of S&P's Ratings of State and Municipal Notes and Other Short-Term Loans:

A S&P note rating reflects the liquidity factors and market access risks unique to notes. Notes due in 3 years or less will likely receive a note rating. Notes maturing beyond 3 years will most likely receive a long-term debt rating. The following criteria will be used in making the assessment.

- Amortization schedule (the larger the final maturity relative to other maturities, the more likely it will be treated as a note).
- Source of payment (the more dependent the issue is on the market for its refinancing, the more likely it will be treated as a note).
- **SP-1.** Strong capacity to pay principal and interest. An issue determined to possess very strong capacity to pay debt service is given a plus (+) designation.

- **SP-2.** Satisfactory capacity to pay principal and interest with some vulnerability to adverse financial and economic changes over the term of the notes.
- **SP-3.** Speculative capacity to pay principal and interest.
- **D.** D is assigned upon failure to pay the note when due, completion of a distressed debt restructuring, or the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions.

## **Description of Short-Term Debt Commercial Paper Ratings**

Moody's short-term ratings are opinions of the ability of issuers to honor senior financial obligations and contracts. These obligations have an original maturity not exceeding one year, unless explicitly noted.

Moody's employs the following three designations, all judged to be investment grade, to indicate the relative repayment ability of rated issuers:

**Prime-1.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-1 have a superior ability for repayment of senior short-term debt obligations. Prime-1 repayment ability will often be evidenced by many of the following characteristics: Leading market positions in well established industries; high rates of return on funds employed; conservative capitalization structures with moderate reliance on debt and ample asset protection; broad margins in earnings coverage of fixed financial charges and high internal cash generation; well established access to a range of financial markets and assured sources of alternate liquidity.

**Prime-2.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-2 have a strong ability to repay senior short-term debt obligations. This will normally be evidenced by many of the characteristics cited above, but to a lesser degree. Earnings trends and coverage ratios, while sound, will be more subject to variation than is the case for Prime-2 securities. Capitalization characteristics, while still appropriate, may be more affected by external conditions. Ample alternate liquidity is maintained.

**Prime-3.** Issuers (or supporting institutions) rated Prime-3 have an acceptable ability for repayment of senior short-term obligations. The effect of industry characteristics and market composition may be more pronounced. Variability in earnings and profitability may result in changes in the level of debt protection measurements and may require relatively high financial leverage. Adequate alternate liquidity is maintained.

**Not Prime.** Issuers rated Not Prime do not fall within any of the Prime rating categories.

Commercial paper rated by S&P have the following characteristics:

- **A-1.** A short-term obligation rated A-1 is rated in the highest category by S&P. The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is strong. Within this category, certain obligations are designated with a plus sign (+). This indicates that the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on these obligations is extremely strong.
- **A-2.** A short-term obligation rated A-2 is somewhat more susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic conditions than obligations in higher rating categories. However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is satisfactory.
- **A-3.** A short-term obligation rated A-3 exhibits adequate protection parameters. However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are more likely to lead to a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

- **B.** A short-term obligation rated B is regarded as having significant speculative characteristics. The obligor currently has the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation; however, it faces major ongoing uncertainties which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity to meet its financial commitments on the obligation.
- **C.** A short-term obligation rated C is currently vulnerable to nonpayment and is dependent upon favorable business, financial and economic conditions for the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.
- **D.** A short-term obligation rated D is in default or in breach of an imputed promise. For non-hybrid capital instruments, the D rating category is used when payments on an obligation are not made on the date due, unless S&P believes that such payments will be made within any stated grace period. However, any stated grace period longer than five business days will be treated as five business days. The D rating also will be used upon the filing of a bankruptcy petition or the taking of a similar action and where default on an obligation is a virtual certainty, for example due to automatic stay provisions. An obligation's rating is lowered to D if it is subject to a distressed exchange offer.

You should rely only on the information contained or referred to in the funds' prospectuses and this Statement of Additional Information. The funds and their principal underwriter have not authorized anyone to provide you with information that is different. The prospectuses and this Statement of Additional Information are not an offer to sell shares of the funds in any jurisdiction where the funds or their principal underwriter may not lawfully sell those shares.

© UBS 2023. All rights reserved. PACE Select Advisors Trust Investment Company Act File No. 811-8764 UBS Asset Management (Americas) Inc. is an indirect asset management subsidiary of UBS Group AG S953

